HEICRITS

Come Grow With Us!

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

City Council Work Session

September 7, 2021
6:00 P.M.
City Hall — Council Chambers — 6131 Taylorsville Road

Call Meeting To Order/Roll Call
Approval of Minutes

. August 31, 2021

Work Session Topics Of Discussion
. City Manager Report

. Water Bonds Refinancing Presentation

. Issuance of Notes

* Property Acquisition - City Administrative Offices
* Property Acquisition - Governmental Facilities

* Property Acquisition - Economic Development

. County Assessments Authorization

Energy Aggregation Discussion

Chambersburg Road Widening Project - Phase IV - Contract Modification



. 2021 Sidewalk Program and Concrete Portion of the 2021 Street Program - Contract
Modification

. Marian Meadows Demolition - Phase Il - Award Contract

Maintenance Cap Increase - Suez Water
Jonetta Street Lift Station Discussion

Redwood Development Agreement Amendment
Carriage Trails Annexation Service Agreement

. Monita Field Parking/Amenities

. Baseball Field Maintenance Contract

. TJL-CES, LLC Purchase Agreement - Sale of Property

Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) #6 - First Amendment

. Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) #7 - Modification

. OneOhio Subdivision Settlement Participation Form — National Opioid Settlement
Liquor Permit #58111440425 - Meijer Gas - 7266 Executive Boulevard

Liquor Permit #3097970 - Marathon - 7851 Old Troy Pike

. City Manager Search Firm Proposals

U.S. Census - Ward Redistricting

Adjournment



Al-7804 Topics of Discussion B
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Water Bonds Refinancing Presentation

Submitted By: Jim Bell

Department: Finance Division: Accounting

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Water Bonds Refinancing Presentation

Purpose and Background

Municipal Advisor Andy Brossart will make a presentation concerning an opportunity for the City to refinance water
bonds issued in 2013 and 2014 for the purposes of financing a water tower, radio read water meters, water line
construction, and water system improvements.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.




Al-7801 Topics of Discussion
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Issuance of Notes - Property Acquisition - City Administrative Offices - $1,740,000

Submitted By: Jim Bell

Department: Finance Division: Accounting

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: Yes

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Issuance of Notes

* Property Acquisition - City Administrative Offices

Purpose and Background

The attached ordinance will allow the City to issue one-year notes in the amount of $1,740,000 for the renewal of
the notes issued in 2020 for the cost of the property acquisition which will be used as a site for City administrative
offices. The estimated tax-exempt rate for this note is 0.50%. City Staff is requesting this ordinance be passed
as emergency legislation, so the notes can be sold with two additional notes and the proceeds received prior to

the maturity of the notes issued in 2020.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: Notes
Cost: $1,740,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Engagement Letter
Fiscal Officer Certificate
Ordinance




SQ U I RE ' &) Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP
s 2000 Huntington Center

PATTON BOGGS 41 South High Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215

O +1614 3652700
F  +1614 365 2499
squirepattonboggs.com

Christopher J. Franzmann
T +1614 3652737
chris.franzmann@squirepb.com

August 20, 2021
Via E-MAIL

Scott P. Falkowski

Interim City Manager

City of Huber Heights, Ohio
6131 Taylorsville Road
Huber Heights, Ohio 45424

Re: City of Huber Heights, Ohio
(Not to Exceed) $3,543,000 Various Purpose Notes, Series 2021

Dear Scott:

We are pleased that the City of Huber Heights, Ohio (the “Ci#”) has requested Squire
Patton Boggs (US) LLP (the “Firm”) to serve as the City’s bond counsel in connection with the
issuance of the referenced unvoted, general obligation bond anticipation notes (the “Notes™).

The Firm’s services will include those customarily provided by bond counsel in
connection with issues such as the Notes, including the rendering of our legal opinion (the “Bond
Opinion™), provided that the proceedings for the issuance of the Notes have been completed to
our satisfaction. The Bond Opinion will address the legality, validity and binding effect of the
Notes, the source of payment and security for the Notes, the excludability of interest on the
Notes from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and certain other tax aspects of the
Notes under federal law and under the laws of the State of Ohio. The Firm will address the Bond
Opinion to the City and to the original purchaser and will deliver it on the date that the City
delivers the Notes to the original purchaser in exchange for their purchase price. For those legal
services, the Firm shall be paid just and reasonable compensation in an amount not expected to
exceed $12,750, and shall be reimbursed for the actual out-of-pocket expenses it incurs in
rendering those legal services.

As the City’s bond counsel, the Firm represents the City. The City is the Firm’s client,
and an attorney-client relationship will exist between the Firm and the City. We assume that all
other parties to the transaction will retain such counsel as they deem necessary and appropriate to
represent their interests in this transaction. We further assume that all other parties understand
that, in this transaction, we represent only the City, that we are not counsel to any other party,

45 Offices in 20 Countries

Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP is part of the international tegal practice Squire Patton Boggs, which operates worldwide through a number of separate
legal entities.

Please visit squirepattonboggs.com for more information.



Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP
Scott P. Falkowski

August 20, 2021
Page 2

and that we are not acting as an intermediary among the parties. Our representation of the City
will not, however, affect our responsibility to render an objective Bond Opinion.

The City’s proposed issuance of the Notes will involve an original purchaser and perhaps
other parties. The Firm conducts a national practice in the area of public finance that involves
the representation of issuers, underwriters and other parties in the issuance of governmental debt
obligations. In addition, the Firm conducts a national and international corporate law practice
that includes the representation of financial institutions and other businesses in transactions,
litigation and other matters. As a result of the extent and diversity of that practice, the Firm may
currently represent or may have represented the original purchaser of the Notes or other parties
involved in the issuance of the Notes in matters unrelated to the City or its issuance of the Notes.
The Firm may also commence such representations during the time it is serving the City as bond
counsel for the Notes. Considering the lack of relationship that such other matters have to the
City or to its issuance of the Notes, the Firm does not expect any such other representations to
conflict with its fulfillment of its professional obligations to the City as bond counsel for the
Notes. We request that the City, by signing and returning a copy of this letter, acknowledge and
consent to the Firm’s serving the City as bond counsel for the issuance of the Notes though the
Firm serves, may have served or may serve other parties to that issuance in other, unrelated
matters.

The Firm appreciates the opportunity to represent the City in this transaction. Please
signify that the City desires for the Firm to proceed with this engagement as described in this
letter by signing a copy of this letter and returning it to us. Please retain the original for the
City’s files.

Very truly yours,
Christopher J. Franzmann
CJF/pf

Engagement Letter Accepted:
City oF HUBER HEIGHTS, O

e ZH L

Printed: Scott P. Falkowski

Title: Interim City Manager

Dated: //Z 9’/ z/




SUPPLEMENTAL
FISCAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE

To the City Council of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio:

As fiscal officer of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, and supplementing the fiscal
officer’s certificate of October 20, 2020, I certify in connection with your proposed issuance of
notes in the maximum principal amount of $1,740,000 (the “Notes™), to be issued in anticipation
of the issuance of bonds (the “Bonds™) for the purpose of paying the costs of acquiring certain
real property which will be used as a site for City administrative offices, and providing for
general site preparation thereof and improvements thereto, together with all necessary
appurtenances thereto (the “Improvement”), that:

1. The estimated life or period of usefulness of the Improvement is at least five (5)
years.

2. The estimated maximum maturity of the Bonds, calculated in accordance with
Section 133.20 of the Revised Code, is thirty (30) years. If notes in anticipation of the Bonds are
outstanding later than the last day of December of the fifth year following the year of issuance of
the original issue of notes, the period in excess of those five years shall be deducted from that
maximum maturity of the Bonds.

3. The maximum maturity of the Notes is November 18, 2040.

7 ==
Dated: eyt [ 2021 éz: . Lo —
! Dixcctor of Finance
City of Huber Heights, Ohio




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-0-

PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOTES IN THE MAXIMUM
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,740,000, IN ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE OF
BONDS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF ACQUIRING CERTAIN REAL
PROPERTY WHICH WILL BE USED AS ASITE FOR CITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES,
AND PROVIDING FOR GENERAL SITE PREPARATION THEREOF AND
IMPROVEMENTS THERETO, TOGETHER WITH ALL NECESSARY APPURTENANCES
THERETO, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2020-0-2448 passed October 26, 2020, notes in
anticipation of bonds in the principal amount of $1,740,000, dated November 18, 2020 (the
“Outstanding Notes”), were issued for the purpose stated in Section 1, to mature on
November 17, 2021; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines that the City should retire the Outstanding Notes
with the proceeds of the Notes described in Section 3 and other funds available to the City; and

WHEREAS, this City Council has requested that the Director of Finance, as fiscal officer of this

City, certify the estimated life or period of usefulness of the Improvement described in Section 1,
the estimated maximum maturity of the Bonds described in Section 1 and the maximum maturity
of the Notes described in Section 3 to be issued in anticipation of the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance has certified to this City Council that the estimated life or
period of usefulness of the Improvement described in Section 1 is at least five (5) years, the
estimated maximum maturity of the Bonds described in Section 1 is thirty (30) years, and that
the maximum maturity of the Notes described in Section 3, to be issued in anticipation of the
Bonds, is November 18, 2040.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. It is necessary to issue bonds of this City in the maximum principal amount of
$1,740,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of paying the costs of acquiring certain real property
which will be used as a site for City administrative offices, and providing for general site
preparation thereof and improvements thereto, together with all necessary appurtenances thereto
(the “Improvement”).

Section 2. The Bonds shall be dated approximately November 1, 2022, shall bear interest at
the now estimated rate of 5.00% per year, payable semiannually until the principal amount is
paid, and are estimated to mature in twenty (20) annual principal installments on December 1 of
each year and in such amounts that the total principal and interest payments on the Bonds in any
fiscal year in which principal is payable shall be substantially equal. The first principal payment
on the Bonds is estimated to be December 1, 2023.

Section 3. It is necessary to issue and this Council determines that notes in the maximum
principal amount of $1,740,000 (the “Notes™) shall be issued in anticipation of the issuance of
the Bonds for the purpose described in Section 1 and to retire, together with other funds available
to the City, the Outstanding Notes and to pay any financing costs. The principal amount of
Notes to be issued (not to exceed the stated maximum amount) shall be determined by the
Director of Finance in the certificate awarding the Notes in accordance with Section 6 of this
Ordinance (the “Certificate of Award”) as the amount which, along with other available funds of
the City, is necessary to provide for the retirement of the Outstanding Notes and to pay any
financing costs. The Notes shall be dated the date of issuance and shall mature not more than
one year following the date of issuance, provided that the Director of Finance shall establish the
maturity date in the Certificate of Award. The Notes shall bear interest at a rate or rates not to
exceed 5.00% per year (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day
months), payable at maturity and until the principal amount is paid or payment is provided for.
The rate or rates of interest on the Notes shall be determined by the Director of Finance in the
Certificate of Award in accordance with Section 6 of this Ordinance.



Section 4. The debt charges on the Notes shall be payable in lawful money of the United
States of America or in Federal Reserve funds of the United States of America as determined by
the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award, and shall be payable, without deduction for
services of the City’s paying agent, at the office of a bank or trust company designated by the
Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award after determining that the payment at that bank or
trust company will not endanger the funds or securities of the City and that proper procedures
and safeguards are available for that purpose or at the office of the Director of Finance if agreed
to by the Director of Finance and the original purchaser (the “Paying Agent”).

The City Manager and the Director of Finance shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf
of the City, the Note Registrar Agreement between the City and the Paying Agent, in
substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk of Council. The Note Registrar
Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with
this Ordinance and not substantially adverse to the City and that are approved by the City
Manager and the Director of Finance on behalf of the City, all of which shall be conclusively
evidenced by the signing of the Note Registrar Agreement or amendments thereto. The Director
of Finance shall provide for the payment of the services rendered and for reimbursement of
expenses incurred pursuant to the Note Registrar Agreement, except to the extent paid or
reimbursed by the original purchaser in accordance with the Certificate of Award, from the
proceeds of the Notes to the extent available and then from other money lawfully available and
appropriated or to be appropriated for that purpose.

Section 5. The Notes shall be signed by the City Manager and Director of Finance, in the
name of the City and in their official capacities; provided that one of those signatures may be a
facsimile. The Notes shall be issued in minimum denominations of $100,000 (and may be issued
in denominations in such amounts in excess thereof as requested by the original purchaser and
approved by the Director of Finance) and with numbers as requested by the original purchaser
and approved by the Director of Finance. The entire principal amount may be represented by a
single note and may be issued as fully registered securities (for which the Director of Finance
will serve as note registrar) and in book entry or other uncertificated form in accordance with
Section 9.96 and Chapter 133 of the Ohio Revised Code if it is determined by the Director of
Finance that issuance of fully registered securities in that form will facilitate the sale and
delivery of the Notes. The Notes shall not have coupons attached, shall be numbered as
determined by the Director of Finance and shall express upon their faces the purpose, in
summary terms, for which they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Ordinance.
As used in this Section and this Ordinance:

“Book entry form” or “book entry system” means a form or system under which (a) the
ownership of beneficial interests in the Notes and the principal of and interest on the Notes may
be transferred only through a book entry, and (b) a single physical Note certificate in fully
registered form is issued by the City and payable only to a Depository or its nominee as
registered owner, with the certificate deposited with and “immobilized” in the custody of the
Depository or its designated agent for that purpose. The book entry maintained by others than
the City is the record that identifies the owners of beneficial interests in the Notes and that
principal and interest.

“Depository” means any securities depository that is a clearing agency registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, operating and
maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a book entry system to record ownership of
beneficial interests in the Notes or the principal of and interest on the Notes, and to effect
transfers of the Notes, in book entry form, and includes and means initially The Depository Trust
Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York, New York.

“Participant” means any participant contracting with a Depository under a book entry
system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies and clearing
corporations.

The Notes may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system and, if and as long as a
book entry system is utilized, (a) the Notes may be issued in the form of a single Note made
payable to the Depository or its nominee and immobilized in the custody of the Depository or its
agent for that purpose; (b) the beneficial owners in book entry form shall have no right to receive
the Notes in the form of physical securities or certificates; (c) ownership of beneficial interests in
book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained and operated by the

-2-



Depository and its Participants, and transfers of the ownership of beneficial interests shall be
made only by book entry by the Depository and its Participants; and (d) the Notes as such shall
not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository or to another
nominee of a Depository, without further action by the City.

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for the Notes for use in a
book entry system, the Director of Finance may attempt to establish a securities depository/book
entry relationship with another qualified Depository. If the Director of Finance does not or is
unable to do so, the Director of Finance, after making provision for notification of the beneficial
owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, shall permit
withdrawal of the Notes from the Depository, and shall cause the Notes in bearer or payable
form to be signed by the officers authorized to sign the Notes and delivered to the assigns of the
Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the
event is not the result of City action or inaction, of those persons requesting such issuance.

The Director of Finance is also hereby authorized and directed, to the extent necessary or
required, to enter into any agreements determined necessary in connection with the book entry
system for the Notes, after determining that the signing thereof will not endanger the funds or
securities of the City.

Section 6. The Notes shall be sold at not less than par plus accrued interest (if any) at private
sale by the Director of Finance in accordance with law and the provisions of this Ordinance, the
Certificate of Award and the Note Purchase Agreement. The Director of Finance shall sign the
Certificate of Award referred to in Section 3 fixing the interest rate or rates which the Notes shall
bear and evidencing that sale to the original purchaser, cause the Notes to be prepared, and have
the Notes signed and delivered, together with a true transcript of proceedings with reference to
the issuance of the Notes if requested by the original purchaser, to the original purchaser upon
payment of the purchase price.

The Note Purchase Agreement between the City and the original purchaser and now on file with
the Clerk of Council is approved, and the City Manager and the Director of Finance are
authorized to sign and deliver, on behalf of the City, the Note Purchase Agreement with such
changes that are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, are not materially adverse
to the interests of the City and are approved by the City Manager and the Director of Finance.
Any such changes to the Note Purchase Agreement are not materially adverse to the interests of
the City and are approved by the City Manager and the Director of Finance shall be evidenced
conclusively by the signing of the Note Purchase Agreement by the City Manager and the
Director of Finance.

The City Manager, the Director of Finance, the City Attorney, the Clerk of Council and other
City officials, as appropriate, and any person serving in an interim or acting capacity for any
such official, are each authorized and directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial
statements and other documents and instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or
appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. The actions of the
City Manager, the Director of Finance, the City Attorney, the Clerk of Council or other City
official, as appropriate, in doing any and all acts necessary in connection with the issuance and
sale of the Notes are hereby ratified and confirmed. The Director of Finance is authorized, if it is
determined to be in the best interest of the City, to combine the issue of Notes with one or more
other note issues of the City into a consolidated note issue pursuant to Section 133.30(B) of the
Ohio Revised Code.

Section 7. The proceeds from the sale of the Notes received by the City (or withheld by the
original purchaser or deposited with the Paying Agent, in each case on behalf of the City) shall
be paid into the proper fund or funds, and those proceeds are appropriated and shall be used for
the purpose for which the Notes are being issued. The Certificate of Award and the Note
Purchase Agreement may authorize the original purchaser to (a) withhold certain proceeds from
the sale of the Notes or (b) remit certain proceeds from the sale of the Notes to the Paying Agent,
in each case to provide for the payment of certain financing costs on behalf of the City. If
proceeds are remitted to the Paying Agent in accordance with this Section 7, the Paying Agent
shall be authorized to create a fund in accordance with the Note Registrar Agreement for that
purpose. Any portion of those proceeds received by the City (after payment of those financing
costs) representing premium or accrued interest shall be paid into the Bond Retirement Fund.



Section 8. The par value to be received from the sale of the Bonds or of any renewal notes
and any excess funds resulting from the issuance of the Notes shall, to the extent necessary, be
used to pay the debt charges on the Notes at maturity and are pledged for that purpose.

Section 9. During the year or years in which the Notes are outstanding, there shall be levied
on all the taxable property in the City, in addition to all other taxes, the same tax that would have
been levied if the Bonds had been issued without the prior issuance of the Notes. The tax shall
be within the ten-mill limitation imposed by law, shall be and is ordered computed, certified,
levied and extended upon the tax duplicate and collected by the same officers, in the same
manner and at the same time that taxes for general purposes for each of those years are certified,
levied, extended and collected, and shall be placed before and in preference to all other items and
for the full amount thereof. The proceeds of the tax levy shall be placed in the Bond Retirement
Fund, which is irrevocably pledged for the payment of the debt charges on the Notes or the
Bonds when and as the same fall due.

In each year to the extent receipts from the municipal income tax are available for the payment
of the debt charges on the Notes or the Bonds and are appropriated for that purpose, the amount
of the tax shall be reduced by the amount of such receipts so available and appropriated in
compliance with the following covenant. To the extent necessary, the debt charges on the Notes
or the Bonds shall be paid from municipal income taxes lawfully available therefor under the
Constitution and the laws of the State of Ohio and the Charter of the City; and the City hereby
covenants, subject and pursuant to such authority, including particularly Section 133.05(B)(7) of
the Ohio Revised Code, to appropriate annually from such municipal income taxes such amount
as is necessary to meet such annual debt charges.

Nothing in the preceding paragraph in any way diminishes the irrevocable pledge of the full faith
and credit and general property taxing power of the City to the prompt payment of the debt
charges on the Notes or the Bonds.

Section 10.  The City covenants that it will use, and will restrict the use and investment of, the
proceeds of the Notes in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary so that (a) the
Notes will not (i) constitute private activity bonds or arbitrage bonds under Sections 141 or 148
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) or (ii) be treated other than as
bonds the interest on which is excluded from gross income under Section 103 of the Code, and
(b) the interest on the Notes will not be an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code.

The City further covenants that (a) it will take or cause to be taken such actions that may be
required of it for the interest on the Notes to be and remain excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes, (b) it will not take or authorize to be taken any actions that would
adversely affect that exclusion, and (c) it, or persons acting for it, will, among other acts of
compliance, (i) apply the proceeds of the Notes to the governmental purpose of the borrowing,
(i) restrict the yield on investment property, (iii) make timely and adequate payments to the
federal government, (iv) maintain books and records and make calculations and reports and

(v) refrain from certain uses of those proceeds, and, as applicable, of property financed with such
proceeds, all in such manner and to the extent necessary to assure such exclusion of that interest
under the Code.

The Director of Finance or any other officer of the City having responsibility for issuance of the
Notes is hereby authorized (a) to make or effect any election, selection, designation, choice,
consent, approval, or waiver on behalf of the City with respect to the Notes as the City is
permitted to or required to make or give under the federal income tax laws, including, without
limitation thereto, any of the elections available under Section 148 of the Code, for the purpose
of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or status of the Notes or interest
thereon or assisting compliance with requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or
expense of such compliance, reducing the rebate amount or payments or penalties with respect to
the Notes, or making payments of special amounts in lieu of making computations to determine,
or paying, excess earnings as rebate, or obviating those amounts or payments with respect to the
Notes, which action shall be in writing and signed by the officer, (b) to take any and all other
actions, make or obtain calculations, make payments, and make or give reports, covenants and
certifications of and on behalf of the City, as may be appropriate to assure the exclusion of
interest from gross income and the intended tax status of the Notes, and (c) to give one or more
appropriate certificates of the City, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the Notes,
setting forth the reasonable expectations of the City regarding the amount and use of all the

-4-



proceeds of the Notes, the facts, circumstances and estimates on which they are based, and other
facts and circumstances relevant to the tax treatment of the interest on and the tax status of the
Notes. The Director of Finance or any other officer of the City having responsibility for issuance
of'the Notes is specifically authorized to designate the Notes as “qualified tax-exempt
obligations” if such designation is applicable and desirable, and to make any related necessary
representations and covenants.

Each covenant made in this Section with respect to the Notes is also made with respect to all
issues any portion of the debt service on which is paid from proceeds of the Notes (and, if
different, the original issue and any refunding issues in a series of refundings), to the extent such
compliance is necessary to assure the exclusion of interest on the Notes from gross income for
federal income tax purposes, and the officers identified above are authorized to take actions with
respect to those issues as they are authorized in this Section to take with respect to the Notes.

Section 11.  The Clerk of Council is directed to promptly deliver a certified copy of this
Ordinance to the County Auditors of Miami and Montgomery Counties, Ohio.

Section 12.  The Director of Finance is authorized to request a rating for the Notes from
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. or S&P Global Ratings, or both, as the Director of Finance
determines is in the best interest of the City. The expenditure of the amounts necessary to secure
any such ratings as well as to pay the other financing costs (as defined in Section 133.01 of the
Ohio Revised Code) in connection with the Notes is hereby authorized and approved and the
amounts necessary to pay those costs are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if
available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund.

Section 13.  The legal services of the law firm of Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP are hereby
retained. Those legal services shall be in the nature of legal advice and recommendations as to
the documents and the proceedings in connection with the authorization, sale and issuance of the
Notes and securities issued in renewal of the Notes and rendering at delivery related legal
opinions, all as set forth in the form of engagement letter from that firm which is now on file in
the office of the Clerk of Council. In providing those legal services, as an independent
contractor and in an attorney-client relationship, that firm shall not exercise any administrative
discretion on behalf of this City in the formulation of public policy, expenditure of public funds,
enforcement of laws, rules and regulations of the State of Ohio, any county or municipal
corporation or of this City, or the execution of public trusts. For those legal services, that firm
shall be paid just and reasonable compensation and shall be reimbursed for actual out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in providing those legal services. To the extent they are not paid or
reimbursed pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement and/or the Note Registrar Agreement, the
Director of Finance is authorized and directed to make appropriate certification as to the
availability of funds for those fees and any reimbursement and to issue an appropriate order for
their timely payment as written statements are submitted by that firm. The amounts necessary to
pay those fees and any reimbursement are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if
available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund.

Section 14.  The services of Bradley Payne, LLC., as municipal advisor, are hereby retained.
The municipal advisory services shall be in the nature of financial advice and recommendations
in connection with the issuance and sale of the Notes. In rendering those municipal advisory
services, as an independent contractor, that firm shall not exercise any administrative discretion
on behalf of the City in the formulation of public policy, expenditure of public funds,
enforcement of laws, rules and regulations of the State of Ohio, the City or any other political
subdivision, or the execution of public trusts. That firm shall be paid just and reasonable
compensation for those municipal advisory services and shall be reimbursed for the actual out-
of-pocket expenses it incurs in rendering those municipal advisory services. To the extent they
are not paid or reimbursed pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement and/or the Note Registrar
Agreement, the Director of Finance is authorized and directed to make appropriate certification
as to the availability of funds for those fees and any reimbursement and to issue an appropriate
order for their timely payment as written statements are submitted by that firm. The amounts
necessary to pay those fees and any reimbursement are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of
the Notes, if available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund.

Section 15.  This Council determines that all acts and conditions necessary to be done or

performed by the City or to have been met precedent to and in the issuing of the Notes in order to
make them legal, valid and binding general obligations of the City have been performed and

-5-



have been met, or will at the time of delivery of the Notes have been performed and have been
met, in regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith and credit and general
property taxing power (as described in Section 9) of the City are pledged for the timely payment
of the debt charges on the Notes; and that no statutory or constitutional limitation of
indebtedness or taxation will have been exceeded in the issuance of the Notes.

Section 16.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council and any
of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were taken in an open
meeting of this Council or any of its committees, and that all deliberations of this Council and of
any of its committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public,
all in compliance with the law, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 17. This Ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate
preservation of the public peace, health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of the City, and for
the further reason that this Ordinance is required to be immediately effective in order to issue and
sell the Notes, which is necessary to enable the City to timely acquire the Improvement;
therefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021;
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:
Clerk of Council Mayor
Date Date

CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, Clerk of Council of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, hereby certifies that the
foregoing is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 2021-0O- passed by the City Council
of the City of Huber Heights, on , 2021.

Clerk of Council



Al-7802 Topics of Discussion
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Issuance of Notes - Property Acquisition - Governmental Facilities - $1,803,000

Submitted By: Jim Bell

Department: Finance Division: Accounting

Council Committee Review?: Council Work Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: Yes

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
* Property Acquisition - Governmental Facilities

Purpose and Background

The attached ordinance will allow the City to issue one-year notes in the amount of $1,803,000 for the renewal of
the notes issued in 2020 for the cost of the property acquisition which will be used for governmental facilities. The
estimated tax-exempt rate for this note is 0.50%. City Staff is requesting this ordinance be passed

as emergency legislation, so the notes can be sold, with two additional notes, and the proceeds received prior to
the maturity of the notes issued in 2020.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: Notes
Cost: $1,803,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Engagement Letter
Fiscal Officer Certificate
Ordinance




SQ U I RE ' &) Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP
s 2000 Huntington Center

PATTON BOGGS 41 South High Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215

O +1614 3652700
F  +1614 365 2499
squirepattonboggs.com

Christopher J. Franzmann
T +1614 3652737
chris.franzmann@squirepb.com

August 20, 2021
Via E-MAIL

Scott P. Falkowski

Interim City Manager

City of Huber Heights, Ohio
6131 Taylorsville Road
Huber Heights, Ohio 45424

Re: City of Huber Heights, Ohio
(Not to Exceed) $3,543,000 Various Purpose Notes, Series 2021

Dear Scott:

We are pleased that the City of Huber Heights, Ohio (the “Ci#”) has requested Squire
Patton Boggs (US) LLP (the “Firm”) to serve as the City’s bond counsel in connection with the
issuance of the referenced unvoted, general obligation bond anticipation notes (the “Notes™).

The Firm’s services will include those customarily provided by bond counsel in
connection with issues such as the Notes, including the rendering of our legal opinion (the “Bond
Opinion™), provided that the proceedings for the issuance of the Notes have been completed to
our satisfaction. The Bond Opinion will address the legality, validity and binding effect of the
Notes, the source of payment and security for the Notes, the excludability of interest on the
Notes from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and certain other tax aspects of the
Notes under federal law and under the laws of the State of Ohio. The Firm will address the Bond
Opinion to the City and to the original purchaser and will deliver it on the date that the City
delivers the Notes to the original purchaser in exchange for their purchase price. For those legal
services, the Firm shall be paid just and reasonable compensation in an amount not expected to
exceed $12,750, and shall be reimbursed for the actual out-of-pocket expenses it incurs in
rendering those legal services.

As the City’s bond counsel, the Firm represents the City. The City is the Firm’s client,
and an attorney-client relationship will exist between the Firm and the City. We assume that all
other parties to the transaction will retain such counsel as they deem necessary and appropriate to
represent their interests in this transaction. We further assume that all other parties understand
that, in this transaction, we represent only the City, that we are not counsel to any other party,

45 Offices in 20 Countries

Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP is part of the international tegal practice Squire Patton Boggs, which operates worldwide through a number of separate
legal entities.

Please visit squirepattonboggs.com for more information.



Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP
Scott P. Falkowski

August 20, 2021
Page 2

and that we are not acting as an intermediary among the parties. Our representation of the City
will not, however, affect our responsibility to render an objective Bond Opinion.

The City’s proposed issuance of the Notes will involve an original purchaser and perhaps
other parties. The Firm conducts a national practice in the area of public finance that involves
the representation of issuers, underwriters and other parties in the issuance of governmental debt
obligations. In addition, the Firm conducts a national and international corporate law practice
that includes the representation of financial institutions and other businesses in transactions,
litigation and other matters. As a result of the extent and diversity of that practice, the Firm may
currently represent or may have represented the original purchaser of the Notes or other parties
involved in the issuance of the Notes in matters unrelated to the City or its issuance of the Notes.
The Firm may also commence such representations during the time it is serving the City as bond
counsel for the Notes. Considering the lack of relationship that such other matters have to the
City or to its issuance of the Notes, the Firm does not expect any such other representations to
conflict with its fulfillment of its professional obligations to the City as bond counsel for the
Notes. We request that the City, by signing and returning a copy of this letter, acknowledge and
consent to the Firm’s serving the City as bond counsel for the issuance of the Notes though the
Firm serves, may have served or may serve other parties to that issuance in other, unrelated
matters.

The Firm appreciates the opportunity to represent the City in this transaction. Please
signify that the City desires for the Firm to proceed with this engagement as described in this
letter by signing a copy of this letter and returning it to us. Please retain the original for the
City’s files.

Very truly yours,
Christopher J. Franzmann
CJF/pf

Engagement Letter Accepted:
City oF HUBER HEIGHTS, O

e ZH L

Printed: Scott P. Falkowski

Title: Interim City Manager

Dated: //Z 9’/ z/




SUPPLEMENTAL
FISCAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE

To the City Council of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio:

As fiscal officer of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, and supplementing the fiscal
officer’s certificate of October 20, 2020, I certify in connection with your proposed issuance of
notes in the maximum principal amount of $1,803,000 (the “Notes™), to be issued in anticipation
of the issuance of bonds (the “Bonds™) for the purpose of paying the costs of acquiring certain
real property which will be used as a site for one or more governmental facilities, and providing
for general site preparation thereof and improvements thereto, together with all necessary
appurtenances thereto (the “Improvement”), that:

1. The estimated life or period of usefulness of the Improvement is at least five (5)
years.

2. The estimated maximum maturity of the Bonds, calculated in accordance with
Section 133.20 of the Revised Code, is thirty (30) years. If notes in anticipation of the Bonds are
outstanding later than the last day of December of the fifth year following the year of issuance of
the original issue of notes, the period in excess of those five years shall be deducted from that
maximum maturity of the Bonds.

3. The maximum maturity of the Notes is November 18, 2040.

) / — .
Dated: St (201 (/z e A Lote—
! Diréctor of Finance
City of Huber Heights, Ohio



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-0-

PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOTES IN THE MAXIMUM
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,803,000, IN ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE OF
BONDS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF ACQUIRING CERTAIN REAL
PROPERTY WHICH WILL BE USED AS A SITE FOR ONE OR MORE GOVERNMENTAL
FACILITIES, AND PROVIDING FOR GENERAL SITE PREPARATION THEREOF AND
IMPROVEMENTS THERETO, TOGETHER WITH ALL NECESSARY APPURTENANCES
THERETO, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2020-0-2449 passed October 26, 2020, notes in
anticipation of bonds in the principal amount of $1,803,000, dated November 18, 2020 (the
“Outstanding Notes”), were issued for the purpose stated in Section 1, to mature on
November 17, 2021; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines that the City should retire the Outstanding Notes
with the proceeds of the Notes described in Section 3 and other funds available to the City; and

WHEREAS, this City Council has requested that the Director of Finance, as fiscal officer of this

City, certify the estimated life or period of usefulness of the Improvement described in Section 1,
the estimated maximum maturity of the Bonds described in Section 1 and the maximum maturity
of the Notes described in Section 3 to be issued in anticipation of the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance has certified to this City Council that the estimated life or
period of usefulness of the Improvement described in Section 1 is at least five (5) years, the
estimated maximum maturity of the Bonds described in Section 1 is thirty (30) years, and that
the maximum maturity of the Notes described in Section 3, to be issued in anticipation of the
Bonds, is November 18, 2040.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. It is necessary to issue bonds of this City in the maximum principal amount of
$1,803,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of paying the costs of acquiring certain real property
which will be used as a site for one or more governmental facilities, and providing for general
site preparation thereof and improvements thereto, together with all necessary appurtenances
thereto (the “Improvement”).

Section 2. The Bonds shall be dated approximately November 1, 2022, shall bear interest at
the now estimated rate of 5.00% per year, payable semiannually until the principal amount is
paid, and are estimated to mature in twenty (20) annual principal installments on December 1 of
each year and in such amounts that the total principal and interest payments on the Bonds in any
fiscal year in which principal is payable shall be substantially equal. The first principal payment
on the Bonds is estimated to be December 1, 2023.

Section 3. It is necessary to issue and this Council determines that notes in the maximum
principal amount of $1,803,000 (the “Notes™) shall be issued in anticipation of the issuance of
the Bonds for the purpose described in Section 1 and to retire, together with other funds available
to the City, the Outstanding Notes and to pay any financing costs. The principal amount of
Notes to be issued (not to exceed the stated maximum amount) shall be determined by the
Director of Finance in the certificate awarding the Notes in accordance with Section 6 of this
Ordinance (the “Certificate of Award”) as the amount which, along with other available funds of
the City, is necessary to provide for the retirement of the Outstanding Notes and to pay any
financing costs. The Notes shall be dated the date of issuance and shall mature not more than
one year following the date of issuance, provided that the Director of Finance shall establish the
maturity date in the Certificate of Award. The Notes shall bear interest at a rate or rates not to
exceed 5.00% per year (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day
months), payable at maturity and until the principal amount is paid or payment is provided for.
The rate or rates of interest on the Notes shall be determined by the Director of Finance in the
Certificate of Award in accordance with Section 6 of this Ordinance.



Section 4. The debt charges on the Notes shall be payable in lawful money of the United
States of America or in Federal Reserve funds of the United States of America as determined by
the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award, and shall be payable, without deduction for
services of the City’s paying agent, at the office of a bank or trust company designated by the
Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award after determining that the payment at that bank or
trust company will not endanger the funds or securities of the City and that proper procedures
and safeguards are available for that purpose or at the office of the Director of Finance if agreed
to by the Director of Finance and the original purchaser (the “Paying Agent”).

The City Manager and the Director of Finance shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf
of the City, the Note Registrar Agreement between the City and the Paying Agent, in
substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk of Council. The Note Registrar
Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with
this Ordinance and not substantially adverse to the City and that are approved by the City
Manager and the Director of Finance on behalf of the City, all of which shall be conclusively
evidenced by the signing of the Note Registrar Agreement or amendments thereto. The Director
of Finance shall provide for the payment of the services rendered and for reimbursement of
expenses incurred pursuant to the Note Registrar Agreement, except to the extent paid or
reimbursed by the original purchaser in accordance with the Certificate of Award, from the
proceeds of the Notes to the extent available and then from other money lawfully available and
appropriated or to be appropriated for that purpose.

Section 5. The Notes shall be signed by the City Manager and Director of Finance, in the
name of the City and in their official capacities; provided that one of those signatures may be a
facsimile. The Notes shall be issued in minimum denominations of $100,000 (and may be issued
in denominations in such amounts in excess thereof as requested by the original purchaser and
approved by the Director of Finance) and with numbers as requested by the original purchaser
and approved by the Director of Finance. The entire principal amount may be represented by a
single note and may be issued as fully registered securities (for which the Director of Finance
will serve as note registrar) and in book entry or other uncertificated form in accordance with
Section 9.96 and Chapter 133 of the Ohio Revised Code if it is determined by the Director of
Finance that issuance of fully registered securities in that form will facilitate the sale and
delivery of the Notes. The Notes shall not have coupons attached, shall be numbered as
determined by the Director of Finance and shall express upon their faces the purpose, in
summary terms, for which they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Ordinance.
As used in this Section and this Ordinance:

“Book entry form” or “book entry system” means a form or system under which (a) the
ownership of beneficial interests in the Notes and the principal of and interest on the Notes may
be transferred only through a book entry, and (b) a single physical Note certificate in fully
registered form is issued by the City and payable only to a Depository or its nominee as
registered owner, with the certificate deposited with and “immobilized” in the custody of the
Depository or its designated agent for that purpose. The book entry maintained by others than
the City is the record that identifies the owners of beneficial interests in the Notes and that
principal and interest.

“Depository” means any securities depository that is a clearing agency registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, operating and
maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a book entry system to record ownership of
beneficial interests in the Notes or the principal of and interest on the Notes, and to effect
transfers of the Notes, in book entry form, and includes and means initially The Depository Trust
Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York, New York.

“Participant” means any participant contracting with a Depository under a book entry
system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies and clearing
corporations.

The Notes may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system and, if and as long as a
book entry system is utilized, (a) the Notes may be issued in the form of a single Note made
payable to the Depository or its nominee and immobilized in the custody of the Depository or its
agent for that purpose; (b) the beneficial owners in book entry form shall have no right to receive
the Notes in the form of physical securities or certificates; (c) ownership of beneficial interests in
book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained and operated by the

-2-



Depository and its Participants, and transfers of the ownership of beneficial interests shall be
made only by book entry by the Depository and its Participants; and (d) the Notes as such shall
not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository or to another
nominee of a Depository, without further action by the City.

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for the Notes for use in a
book entry system, the Director of Finance may attempt to establish a securities depository/book
entry relationship with another qualified Depository. If the Director of Finance does not or is
unable to do so, the Director of Finance, after making provision for notification of the beneficial
owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, shall permit
withdrawal of the Notes from the Depository, and shall cause the Notes in bearer or payable
form to be signed by the officers authorized to sign the Notes and delivered to the assigns of the
Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the
event is not the result of City action or inaction, of those persons requesting such issuance.

The Director of Finance is also hereby authorized and directed, to the extent necessary or
required, to enter into any agreements determined necessary in connection with the book entry
system for the Notes, after determining that the signing thereof will not endanger the funds or
securities of the City.

Section 6. The Notes shall be sold at not less than par plus accrued interest (if any) at private
sale by the Director of Finance in accordance with law and the provisions of this Ordinance, the
Certificate of Award and the Note Purchase Agreement. The Director of Finance shall sign the
Certificate of Award referred to in Section 3 fixing the interest rate or rates which the Notes shall
bear and evidencing that sale to the original purchaser, cause the Notes to be prepared, and have
the Notes signed and delivered, together with a true transcript of proceedings with reference to
the issuance of the Notes if requested by the original purchaser, to the original purchaser upon
payment of the purchase price.

The Note Purchase Agreement between the City and the original purchaser and now on file with
the Clerk of Council is approved, and the City Manager and the Director of Finance are
authorized to sign and deliver, on behalf of the City, the Note Purchase Agreement with such
changes that are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, are not materially adverse
to the interests of the City and are approved by the City Manager and the Director of Finance.
Any such changes to the Note Purchase Agreement are not materially adverse to the interests of
the City and are approved by the City Manager and the Director of Finance shall be evidenced
conclusively by the signing of the Note Purchase Agreement by the City Manager and the
Director of Finance.

The City Manager, the Director of Finance, the City Attorney, the Clerk of Council and other
City officials, as appropriate, and any person serving in an interim or acting capacity for any
such official, are each authorized and directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial
statements and other documents and instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or
appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. The actions of the
City Manager, the Director of Finance, the City Attorney, the Clerk of Council or other City
official, as appropriate, in doing any and all acts necessary in connection with the issuance and
sale of the Notes are hereby ratified and confirmed. The Director of Finance is authorized, if it is
determined to be in the best interest of the City, to combine the issue of Notes with one or more
other note issues of the City into a consolidated note issue pursuant to Section 133.30(B) of the
Ohio Revised Code.

Section 7. The proceeds from the sale of the Notes received by the City (or withheld by the
original purchaser or deposited with the Paying Agent, in each case on behalf of the City) shall
be paid into the proper fund or funds, and those proceeds are appropriated and shall be used for
the purpose for which the Notes are being issued. The Certificate of Award and the Note
Purchase Agreement may authorize the original purchaser to (a) withhold certain proceeds from
the sale of the Notes or (b) remit certain proceeds from the sale of the Notes to the Paying Agent,
in each case to provide for the payment of certain financing costs on behalf of the City. If
proceeds are remitted to the Paying Agent in accordance with this Section 7, the Paying Agent
shall be authorized to create a fund in accordance with the Note Registrar Agreement for that
purpose. Any portion of those proceeds received by the City (after payment of those financing
costs) representing premium or accrued interest shall be paid into the Bond Retirement Fund.



Section 8. The par value to be received from the sale of the Bonds or of any renewal notes
and any excess funds resulting from the issuance of the Notes shall, to the extent necessary, be
used to pay the debt charges on the Notes at maturity and are pledged for that purpose.

Section 9. During the year or years in which the Notes are outstanding, there shall be levied
on all the taxable property in the City, in addition to all other taxes, the same tax that would have
been levied if the Bonds had been issued without the prior issuance of the Notes. The tax shall
be within the ten-mill limitation imposed by law, shall be and is ordered computed, certified,
levied and extended upon the tax duplicate and collected by the same officers, in the same
manner and at the same time that taxes for general purposes for each of those years are certified,
levied, extended and collected, and shall be placed before and in preference to all other items and
for the full amount thereof. The proceeds of the tax levy shall be placed in the Bond Retirement
Fund, which is irrevocably pledged for the payment of the debt charges on the Notes or the
Bonds when and as the same fall due.

In each year to the extent receipts from the municipal income tax are available for the payment
of the debt charges on the Notes or the Bonds and are appropriated for that purpose, the amount
of the tax shall be reduced by the amount of such receipts so available and appropriated in
compliance with the following covenant. To the extent necessary, the debt charges on the Notes
or the Bonds shall be paid from municipal income taxes lawfully available therefor under the
Constitution and the laws of the State of Ohio and the Charter of the City; and the City hereby
covenants, subject and pursuant to such authority, including particularly Section 133.05(B)(7) of
the Ohio Revised Code, to appropriate annually from such municipal income taxes such amount
as is necessary to meet such annual debt charges.

Nothing in the preceding paragraph in any way diminishes the irrevocable pledge of the full faith
and credit and general property taxing power of the City to the prompt payment of the debt
charges on the Notes or the Bonds.

Section 10.  The City covenants that it will use, and will restrict the use and investment of, the
proceeds of the Notes in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary so that (a) the
Notes will not (i) constitute private activity bonds or arbitrage bonds under Sections 141 or 148
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) or (ii) be treated other than as
bonds the interest on which is excluded from gross income under Section 103 of the Code, and
(b) the interest on the Notes will not be an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code.

The City further covenants that (a) it will take or cause to be taken such actions that may be
required of it for the interest on the Notes to be and remain excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes, (b) it will not take or authorize to be taken any actions that would
adversely affect that exclusion, and (c) it, or persons acting for it, will, among other acts of
compliance, (i) apply the proceeds of the Notes to the governmental purpose of the borrowing,
(i) restrict the yield on investment property, (iii) make timely and adequate payments to the
federal government, (iv) maintain books and records and make calculations and reports and

(v) refrain from certain uses of those proceeds, and, as applicable, of property financed with such
proceeds, all in such manner and to the extent necessary to assure such exclusion of that interest
under the Code.

The Director of Finance or any other officer of the City having responsibility for issuance of the
Notes is hereby authorized (a) to make or effect any election, selection, designation, choice,
consent, approval, or waiver on behalf of the City with respect to the Notes as the City is
permitted to or required to make or give under the federal income tax laws, including, without
limitation thereto, any of the elections available under Section 148 of the Code, for the purpose
of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or status of the Notes or interest
thereon or assisting compliance with requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or
expense of such compliance, reducing the rebate amount or payments or penalties with respect to
the Notes, or making payments of special amounts in lieu of making computations to determine,
or paying, excess earnings as rebate, or obviating those amounts or payments with respect to the
Notes, which action shall be in writing and signed by the officer, (b) to take any and all other
actions, make or obtain calculations, make payments, and make or give reports, covenants and
certifications of and on behalf of the City, as may be appropriate to assure the exclusion of
interest from gross income and the intended tax status of the Notes, and (c) to give one or more
appropriate certificates of the City, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the Notes,
setting forth the reasonable expectations of the City regarding the amount and use of all the

-4-



proceeds of the Notes, the facts, circumstances and estimates on which they are based, and other
facts and circumstances relevant to the tax treatment of the interest on and the tax status of the
Notes. The Director of Finance or any other officer of the City having responsibility for issuance
of'the Notes is specifically authorized to designate the Notes as “qualified tax-exempt
obligations” if such designation is applicable and desirable, and to make any related necessary
representations and covenants.

Each covenant made in this Section with respect to the Notes is also made with respect to all
issues any portion of the debt service on which is paid from proceeds of the Notes (and, if
different, the original issue and any refunding issues in a series of refundings), to the extent such
compliance is necessary to assure the exclusion of interest on the Notes from gross income for
federal income tax purposes, and the officers identified above are authorized to take actions with
respect to those issues as they are authorized in this Section to take with respect to the Notes.

Section 11.  The Clerk of Council is directed to promptly deliver a certified copy of this
Ordinance to the County Auditors of Miami and Montgomery Counties, Ohio.

Section 12.  The Director of Finance is authorized to request a rating for the Notes from
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. or S&P Global Ratings, or both, as the Director of Finance
determines is in the best interest of the City. The expenditure of the amounts necessary to secure
any such ratings as well as to pay the other financing costs (as defined in Section 133.01 of the
Ohio Revised Code) in connection with the Notes is hereby authorized and approved and the
amounts necessary to pay those costs are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if
available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund.

Section 13.  The legal services of the law firm of Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP are hereby
retained. Those legal services shall be in the nature of legal advice and recommendations as to
the documents and the proceedings in connection with the authorization, sale and issuance of the
Notes and securities issued in renewal of the Notes and rendering at delivery related legal
opinions, all as set forth in the form of engagement letter from that firm which is now on file in
the office of the Clerk of Council. In providing those legal services, as an independent
contractor and in an attorney-client relationship, that firm shall not exercise any administrative
discretion on behalf of this City in the formulation of public policy, expenditure of public funds,
enforcement of laws, rules and regulations of the State of Ohio, any county or municipal
corporation or of this City, or the execution of public trusts. For those legal services, that firm
shall be paid just and reasonable compensation and shall be reimbursed for actual out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in providing those legal services. To the extent they are not paid or
reimbursed pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement and/or the Note Registrar Agreement, the
Director of Finance is authorized and directed to make appropriate certification as to the
availability of funds for those fees and any reimbursement and to issue an appropriate order for
their timely payment as written statements are submitted by that firm. The amounts necessary to
pay those fees and any reimbursement are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if
available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund.

Section 14.  The services of Bradley Payne, LLC., as municipal advisor, are hereby retained.
The municipal advisory services shall be in the nature of financial advice and recommendations
in connection with the issuance and sale of the Notes. In rendering those municipal advisory
services, as an independent contractor, that firm shall not exercise any administrative discretion
on behalf of the City in the formulation of public policy, expenditure of public funds,
enforcement of laws, rules and regulations of the State of Ohio, the City or any other political
subdivision, or the execution of public trusts. That firm shall be paid just and reasonable
compensation for those municipal advisory services and shall be reimbursed for the actual out-
of-pocket expenses it incurs in rendering those municipal advisory services. To the extent they
are not paid or reimbursed pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement and/or the Note Registrar
Agreement, the Director of Finance is authorized and directed to make appropriate certification
as to the availability of funds for those fees and any reimbursement and to issue an appropriate
order for their timely payment as written statements are submitted by that firm. The amounts
necessary to pay those fees and any reimbursement are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of
the Notes, if available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund.

Section 15.  This Council determines that all acts and conditions necessary to be done or

performed by the City or to have been met precedent to and in the issuing of the Notes in order to
make them legal, valid and binding general obligations of the City have been performed and

-5-



have been met, or will atthe time of delivery of the Notes have been performed and have been
met, in regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith and credit and general
property taxing power (as described in Section 9) of the City are pledged for the timely payment
of the debt charges on the Notes; and that no statutory or constitutional limitation of
indebtedness or taxation will have been exceeded in the issuance of the Notes.

Section 16.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council and any
of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were taken in an open
meeting of this Council or any of its committees, and that all deliberations of this Council and of
any of its committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public,
all in compliance with the law, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 17.  This Ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of the
City, and for the further reason that this Ordinance is required to be immediately effective in
order to issue and sell the Notes, which is necessary to enable the City to timely acquire the
Improvement; therefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its
passage.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021;
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:
Clerk of Council Mayor
Date Date

CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, Clerk of Council of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, hereby certifies that the
foregoing is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 2021-0- passed by the City Council
of the City of Huber Heights, on , 2021.

Clerk of Council



Al-7803 Topics of Discussion
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Issuance of Notes - Property Acquisition - Economic Development - $4,262,000

Submitted By: Jim Bell

Department: Finance Division: Accounting

Council Committee Review?: Council Work Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: Yes

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
* Property Acquisition - Economic Development

Purpose and Background

The attached ordinance will allow the City to issue one-year notes in the amount of $4,262,000 for the renewal
of the notes issued in 2020 for the cost of the acquisition of properties which will be used for various economic
development needs. The estimated taxable rate for this note is 0.75%. City Staff is requesting this ordinance be
passed as emergency legislation, so the notes can be sold with two additional notes and proceeds received prior
to the maturity of the notes issued in 2020.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: Notes
Cost: $4,262,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Engagement Letter
Ordinance




SQ U I R E => Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP

2000 Huntington Center

PATTON BOGGS 41 South High Street

Columbus, Ohio 43215

O +1614 365 2700
F  +1614 365 2499
squirepattonboggs.com

Christopher J. Franzmann
T +1614 3652737
chris.franzmann@squirepb.com

August 20, 2021
VIiA E-MAIL

Scott P. Falkowski

Interim City Manager

City of Huber Heights, Ohio
6131 Taylorsville Road
Huber Heights, Ohio 45424

Re: City of Huber Heights, Ohio
(Not to Exceed) $4,262,000 Special Obligation Nontax Revenue Notes, Series 2021B
(Federally Taxable)

Dear Scott:

We are pleased that the City of Huber Heights, Ohio (the “Cify”’) has requested Squire
Patton Boggs (US) LLP (the “Firm’) to serve as the City’s bond counsel in connection with the
issuance of the referenced unvoted, special obligation bond anticipation notes (the “Notes™).

The Firm’s services will include those customarily provided by bond counsel in
connection with issues such as the Notes, including the rendering of our legal opinion (the “Bond
Opinion”), provided that the proceedings for the issuance of the Notes have been completed to
our satisfaction. The Bond Opinion will address the legality, validity and binding effect of the
Notes, the source of payment and security for the Notes, and certain tax aspects of the Notes
under the laws of the State of Ohio. The Firm will address the Bond Opinion to the City and to
the original purchaser and will deliver it on the date that the City delivers the Notes to the
original purchaser in exchange for their purchase price. For those legal services, the Firm shall
be paid just and reasonable compensation in an amount not expected to exceed $13,250, and
shall be reimbursed for the actual out-of-pocket expenses it incurs in rendering those legal
services.

As the City’s bond counsel, the Firm represents the City. The City is the Firm’s client,
and an attorney-client relationship will exist between the Firm and the City. We assume that all
other parties to the transaction will retain such counsel as they deem necessary and appropriate to
represent their interests in this transaction. We further assume that all other parties understand
that, in this transaction, we represent only the City, that we are not counsel to any other party,

45 Offices in 20 Countries

Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP is part of the international legal practice Squire Patton Boggs, which operates worldwide through a
number of separate legal entities.

Please visit squirepattonboggs.com for more information.



Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP
Scott P. Falkowski

August 20, 2021
Page 2

and that we are not acting as an intermediary among the parties. Our representation of the City
will not, however, affect our responsibility to render an objective Bond Opinion.

The City’s proposed issuance of the Notes will involve an original purchaser and perhaps
other parties. The Firm conducts a national practice in the area of public finance that involves
the representation of issuers, underwriters and other parties in the issuance of governmental debt
obligations. In addition, the Firm conducts a national and international corporate law practice
that includes the representation of financial institutions and other businesses in transactions,
litigation and other matters. As a result of the extent and diversity of that practice, the Firm may
currently represent or may have represented the original purchaser of the Notes or other parties
involved in the issuance of the Notes in matters unrelated to the City or its issuance of the Notes.
The Firm may also commence such representations during the time it is serving the City as bond
counsel for the Notes. Considering the lack of relationship that such other matters have to the
City or to its issuance of the Notes, the Firm does not expect any such other representations to
conflict with its fulfillment of its professional obligations to the City as bond counsel for the
Notes. We request that the City, by signing and returning a copy of this letter, acknowledge and
consent to the Firm’s serving the City as bond counsel for the issuance of the Notes though the
Firm serves, may have served or may serve other parties to that issuance in other, unrelated
matters.

The Firm appreciates the opportunity to represent the City in this transaction. Please
signify that the City desires for the Firm to proceed with this engagement as described in this
letter by signing a copy of this letter and returning it to us. Please retain the original for the
City’s files.

Very truly yours,
Christopher J. Franzmann
CIF/pf

Engagement Letter Accepted:

C1TY OF HUBER HEIGW
By: ,{//

Printed: Scott P. Falkowski

Title: Interim Cjty Manager

Dated: g /Z ;Z /Z/




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-0-

PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOTES IN THE MAXIMUM
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $4,262,000, IN ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE OF
BONDS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF ACQUIRING
APPROXIMATELY 19.5 ACRES OF REAL PROPERTY NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF
BRANDT PIKE AND FISHBURG ROAD AND PROVIDING FOR THE SITE
PREPARATION THEREOF, ALL IN SUPPORT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND
JOB CREATION WITHIN THE CITY, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Huber Heights, Ohio (the “City”) is authorized by virtue of the laws of
the State of Ohio, including, without limitation, Section 13 of Article VIII, Ohio Constitution,
and Chapter 165, Ohio Revised Code (the “Act”), among other things, to issue bonds or notes to
acquire, construct, equip, furnish, or improve a “project” as defined in Section 165.01, Ohio
Revised Code, for the purpose of creating or preserving jobs and employment opportunities and
improving the economic welfare of the people of the City and of the State of Ohio; and

WHEREAS, to facilitate the creation of jobs and employment opportunities and improving the
economic welfare of the people of the City and of the State of Ohio, the City has determined to
issue the Notes (described below) to acquire approximately 19.5 acres of real property near the
intersection of Brandt Pike and Fishburg Road and provide for the site preparation thereof (the
“Project”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2020-0-2450 passed October 26, 2020, notes in
anticipation of bonds in the principal amount of $4,262,000, dated November 18, 2020 (the
“Outstanding Notes”), were issued for the purpose described in Section 2, to mature on
November 17, 2021; and

WHEREAS, this City Council finds and determines that the City should retire the Outstanding
Notes with the proceeds of the Notes described in Section 4 and other funds available to the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. This City Council hereby determmes that the Project is a “project” as
defined in the Act and is consistent with the purposes of Section 13 of Article VIII of the Ohio
Constitution; that the utilization of the Project is in furtherance of the purposes of the Act and
will benefit the people of the City and of the State by creating and preserving jobs and
employment opportunities and improving the economic welfare of the people of the City and of
the State; and that the amount necessary to finance the Project will require the issuance, sale and
delivery of the Notes (as defined below), which Notes shall be issued in anticipation of the
Bonds (as defined below), and which Notes shall be payable and secured as provided herein.

Section 2. It is necessary to issue bonds of this City in the maximum principal amount
of $4,262,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of paying the costs of acquiring approximately 19.5
acres of real property near the intersection of Brandt Pike and Fishburg Road and providing for
the site preparation thereof, all in support of economic development and job creation within the

City.

Section 3. The Bonds shall be dated approximately November 1, 2022, shall bear
interest at the now estimated rate of 5.00% per year, payable semiannually until the principal
amount is paid, and are estimated to mature in twenty (20) annual principal installments on
December 1 of each year and in such amounts that the total principal and interest payments on

the Bonds in any fiscal year in which principal is payable shall be substantially equal. The first
principal payment on the Bonds is estimated to be December 1, 2023.

Section 4. It is necessary to issue and this Council determines that notes in the
maximum principal amount of $4,262,000 (the “Notes™) shall be issued in anticipation of the
issuance of the Bonds for the purpose described in Section 2 and to pay the costs of the Project
and any financing costs. The principal amount of Notes to be issued (not to exceed the stated



maximum amount) shall be determined by the Director of Finance in the certificate awarding the
Notes in accordance with Section 7 of this Ordinance (the “Certificate of Award”) as the amount
which is necessary to pay the costs of the Project and any financing costs. The Notes shall be
dated the date of issuance and shall mature not more than one year following the date of
issuance, provided that the Director of Finance shall establish the maturity date in the Certificate
of Award. The Notes shall bear interest at a rate or rates not to exceed 5.00% per year
(computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months), payable at
maturity and until the principal amount is paid or payment is provided for. The rate or rates of
interest on the Notes shall be determined by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award
in accordance with Section 7 of this Ordinance. The Notes shall be issued pursuant to the Act,
the Charter of the City, this Ordinance and the Certificate of Award.

Section 5. The debt charges on the Notes shall be payable in lawful money of the
United States of America or in Federal Reserve funds of the United States of America as
determined by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award, and shall be payable, without
deduction for services of the City’s paying agent, at the office of a bank or trust company
designated by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award after determining that the
payment at that bank or trust company will not endanger the funds or securities of the City and
that proper procedures and safeguards are available for that purpose or at the office of the
Director of Finance if agreed to by the Director of Finance and the original purchaser (the
“Paying Agent”).

The City Manager and the Director of Finance shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf
of the City, the Note Registrar Agreement between the City and the Paying Agent, in
substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk of Council. The Note Registrar
Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with
this Ordinance and not substantially adverse to the City and that are approved by the City
Manager and the Director of Finance on behalf of the City, all of which shall be conclusively
evidenced by the signing of the Note Registrar Agreement or amendments thereto. The Director
of Finance shall provide for the payment of the services rendered and for reimbursement of
expenses incurred pursuant to the Note Registrar Agreement, except to the extent paid or
reimbursed by the original purchaser in accordance with the Certificate of Award, from the
proceeds of the Notes to the extent available and then from other money lawfully available and
appropriated or to be appropriated for that purpose.

Section 6. The Notes shall be signed by the City Manager and Director of Finance, in
the name of the City and in their official capacities, provided that one of those signatures may be
a facsimile. The Notes shall be issued in minimum denominations of $100,000 (and may be
issued in denominations in such amounts in excess thereof as requested by the original purchaser
and approved by the Director of Finance) and with numbers as requested by the original
purchaser and approved by the Director of Finance. The entire principal amount may be
represented by a single note and may be issued as fully registered securities (for which the
Director of Finance will serve as note registrar) and in book entry or other uncertificated form in
accordance with Section 9.96 and Chapter 133 of the Ohio Revised Code if it is determined by
the Director of Finance that issuance of fully registered securities in that form will facilitate the
sale and delivery of the Notes. The Notes shall not have coupons attached, shall be numbered as
determined by the Director of Finance and shall express upon their faces the purpose, in
summary terms, for which they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Ordinance.
As used in this Section and this Ordinance:

“Book entry form” or “book entry system” means a form or system under which (a) the
ownership of beneficial interests in the Notes and the principal of and interest on the Notes may
be transferred only through a book entry, and (b) a single physical Note certificate in fully
registered form is issued by the City and payable only to a Depository or its nominee as
registered owner, with the certificate deposited with and “mmobilized” in the custody of the
Depository or its designated agent for that purpose. The book entry maintained by others than
the City is the record that identifies the owners of beneficial interests in the Notes and that
principal and interest.

“Depository” means any securities depository that is a clearing agency registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, operating and
maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a book entry system to record ownership of
beneficial interests in the Notes or the principal of and interest on the Notes, and to effect

-2-



transfers of the Notes, in book entry form, and includes and means initially The Depository Trust
Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York, New York.

“Participant” means any participant contracting with a Depository under a book entry
system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies and clearing
corporations.

The Notes may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system and, if and as long as a
book entry system is utilized, (a) the Notes may be issued in the form of a single Note made
payable to the Depository or its nominee and immobilized in the custody of the Depository or its
agent for that purpose; (b) the beneficial owners in book entry form shall have no right to receive
the Notes in the form of physical securities or certificates; (c) ownership of beneficial interests in
book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained and operated by the
Depository and its Participants, and transfers of the ownership of beneficial interests shall be
made only by book entry by the Depository and its Participants; and (d) the Notes as such shall
not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository or to another
nominee of a Depository, without further action by the City.

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for the Notes for use in a
book entry system, the Director of Finance may attempt to establish a securities depository/book
entry relationship with another qualified Depository. If the Director of Finance does not or is
unable to do so, the Director of Finance, after making provision for notification of the beneficial
owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, shall permit
withdrawal of the Notes from the Depository, and shall cause the Notes in bearer or payable
form to be signed by the officers authorized to sign the Notes and delivered to the assigns of the
Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the
event is not the result of City action or inaction, of those persons requesting such issuance.

The Director of Finance is also hereby authorized and directed, to the extent necessary or
required, to enter into any agreements determined necessary in connection with the book entry
system for the Notes, after determining that the signing thereof will not endanger the funds or
securities of the City.

Section 7. The Notes shall be sold at not less than par plus accrued interest (if any) at
private sale by the Director of Finance in accordance with law and the provisions of this
Ordinance, the Certificate of Award and the Note Purchase Agreement. The Director of Finance
shall sign the Certificate of Award referred to in Section 4 fixing the interest rate or rates which
the Notes shall bear and evidencing that sale to the original purchaser, cause the Notes to be
prepared, and have the Notes signed and delivered, together with a true transcript of proceedings
with reference to the issuance of the Notes if requested by the original purchaser, to the original
purchaser upon payment of the purchase price.

The Note Purchase Agreement between the City and the original purchaser and now on file with
the Clerk of Council is approved, and the City Manager and the Director of Finance are
authorized to sign and deliver, on behalf of the City, the Note Purchase Agreement with such
changes that are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, are not materially adverse
to the interests of the City and are approved by the City Manager and the Director of Finance.
Any such changes to the Note Purchase Agreement are not materially adverse to the interests of
the City and are approved by the City Manager and the Director of Finance shall be evidenced
conclusively by the signing of the Note Purchase Agreement by the City Manager and the
Director of Finance.

The City Manager, the Director of Finance, the City Attorney, the Clerk of Council and other
City officials, as appropriate, and any person serving in an interim or acting capacity for any
such official, are each authorized and directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial
statements and other documents and instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or
appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. The actions of the
City Manager, the Director of Finance, the City Attorney, the Clerk of Council or other City
official, as appropriate, in doing any and all acts necessary in connection with the issuance and
sale of the Notes are hereby ratified and confirmed.

Section 8. The proceeds from the sale of the Notes received by the City (or withheld by
the original purchaser or deposited with the Paying Agent, in each case on behalf of the City)



shall be paid into the proper fund or funds, and those proceeds are appropriated and shall be used
for the purpose for which the Notes are being issued. The Certificate of Award and the Note
Purchase Agreement may authorize the original purchaser to (a) withhold certain proceeds from
the sale of the Notes or (b) remit certain proceeds from the sale of the Notes to the Paying Agent,
in each case to provide for the payment of certain financing costs on behalf of the City. If
proceeds are remitted to the Paying Agent in accordance with this Section 7, the Paying Agent
shall be authorized to create a fund in accordance with the Note Registrar Agreement for that
purpose. Any portion of those proceeds received by the City (after payment of those financing
costs) representing premium or accrued interest shall be paid into the Bond Fund (as described
below).

Section 9. The par value to be received from the sale of the Bonds or of any renewal
notes and any excess funds resulting from the issuance of the Notes shall, to the extent necessary,
be used to pay the debt charges on the Notes at maturity and are pledged for that purpose.

Section 10. The Notes are special obligations of the City, the principal of and interest on
which are payable solely from the proceeds of the Bonds and by a pledge of and lien on the
Nontax Revenues established by and as provided in this Ordinance which are on deposit in the
Bond Fund, all as described below. The City covenants that to the extent the Notes will not be
paid fully from Nontax Revenues, it will do all things necessary for the issuance of the Bonds or
renewal bond anticipation notes in an appropriate amount to provide for the payment of the
principal of and interest on the Notes on the maturity date of the Notes.

There was heretofore created by the City a separate account within the Bond Retirement Fund
named the Economic Development Bond Retirement Account (the “Bond Fund”) into which
Nontax Revenues shall be deposited in accordance with the following provisions.

The City hereby covenants and agrees that on or before any date on which principal or interest is
payable on the Notes it shall deposit into the Bond Fund from Nontax Revenues selected by the
City or proceeds from the Bonds or renewal bond anticipation notes as determined by the City,
an amount equal to the amount of principal and/or interest due on the Notes on that date, less, in
the discretion of the City, any interest earnings or other moneys accumulated in the Bond Fund
which have not theretofore been used as a credit against a prior payment obligation. Moneys in
the Bond Fund shall be used solely and exclusively to pay principal and interest on City
obligations payable from the Nontax Revenues.

The City hereby covenants and agrees that so long as the Notes are outstanding, it will
appropriate and maintain sufficient Nontax Revenues each year to make each payment due under
this Section 10 and to pay principal and interest when due; provided, however, the amount of
such appropriation may be reduced by the amount of any Bonds or renewal bond anticipation
notes issued for the purpose of refunding the Notes and payments due hereunder and under the
Notes are payable solely from the proceeds of the Bonds and the Nontax Revenues, which
Nontax Revenues are hereby selected by the City pursuant to Section 165.12 of the Ohio Revised
Code as moneys that are not raised by taxation. The Notes are not secured by an obligation or
pledge of any moneys raised by taxation. The Notes do not and shall not represent or constitute
a debt or pledge of the faith or credit or taxing power of the City, and the registered owners of
the Notes have no right to have taxes levied by the City for the payment of principal of and
interest on the Notes.

Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring the City to use or apply to the payment of
principal of and interest on the Notes any funds or revenues from any source other than proceeds
of the Bonds and Nontax Revenues. Nothing herein, however, shall be deemed to prohibit the
City, of its own volition, from using, to the extent that it is authorized by law to do so, any other
resources for the fulfillment of any of the terms, conditions or obligations of this Ordinance or of
the Notes.

For purpose of this Ordinance, “Nontax Revenues” shall mean all moneys of the City which are
not moneys raised by taxation, to the extent available for such purposes, including, but not
limited to the following: (a) grants from the United States of America and the State of Ohio; (b)
payments in lieu of taxes now or hereafter authorized by State statute; (c) fines and forfeitures
which are deposited in the City’s General Fund; (d) fees deposited in the City’s General Fund
from properly imposed licenses and permits; (e) investment earnings on the City’s General Fund
and which are credited to the City’s General Fund; (f) investment earnings of other funds of the

-4-



City that are credited to the City’s General Fund; (g) proceeds from the sale of assets which are
deposited in the City’s General Fund; (h) rental income which is deposited in the City’s General
Fund; (i) gifts and donations; and (j) proceeds from the sale of any portion of the Project.

Section 11.  The Director of Finance is authorized and directed to provide the notification
required by Section 165.03(D) of the Ohio Revised Code to the Director of the Ohio
Development Services Agency.

Section 12.  The Director of Finance is authorized to request a rating for the Notes from
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. or S&P Global Ratings, or both, as the Director of Finance
determines is in the best interest of the City. The expenditure of the amounts necessary to secure
any such ratings as well as to pay the other financing costs (as defined in Section 133.01 of the
Ohio Revised Code) in connection with the Notes is hereby authorized and approved and the
amounts necessary to pay those costs are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if
available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund.

Section 13. The legal services of the law firm of Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP are
hereby retained. Those legal services shall be in the nature of legal advice and recommendations
as to the documents and the proceedings in connection with the authorization, sale and issuance
of the Notes and securities issued in renewal of the Notes and rendering at delivery related legal
opinions, all as set forth in the form of engagement letter from that firm which is now on file in
the office of the Clerk of Council. In providing those legal services, as an independent
contractor and in an attorney-client relationship, that firm shall not exercise any administrative
discretion on behalf of this City in the formulation of public policy, expenditure of public funds,
enforcement of laws, rules and regulations of the State of Ohio, any county or municipal
corporation or of this City, or the execution of public trusts. For those legal services, that firm
shall be paid just and reasonable compensation and shall be reimbursed for actual out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in providing those legal services. To the extent they are not paid or
reimbursed pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement and/or the Note Registrar Agreement, the
Director of Finance is authorized and directed to make appropriate certification as to the
availability of funds for those fees and any reimbursement and to issue an appropriate order for
their timely payment as written statements are submitted by that firm. The amounts necessary to
pay those fees and any reimbursement are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if
available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund.

Section 14. The services of Bradley Payne, LLC., as municipal advisor, are hereby
retained. The municipal advisory services shall be in the nature of financial advice and
recommendations in connection with the issuance and sale of the Notes. In rendering those
municipal advisory services, as an independent contractor, that firm shall not exercise any
administrative discretion on behalf of the City in the formulation of public policy, expenditure of
public funds, enforcement of laws, rules and regulations of the State of Ohio, the City or any
other political subdivision, or the execution of public trusts. That firm shall be paid just and
reasonable compensation for those municipal advisory services and shall be reimbursed for the
actual out-of-pocket expenses it incurs in rendering those municipal advisory services. To the
extent they are not paid or reimbursed pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement and/or the Note
Registrar Agreement, the Director of Finance is authorized and directed to make appropriate
certification as to the availability of funds for those fees and any reimbursement and to issue an
appropriate order for their timely payment as written statements are submitted by that firm. The
amounts necessary to pay those fees and any reimbursement are hereby appropriated from the
proceeds of the Notes, if available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund.

Section 15. This Council determines that all acts and conditions necessary to be done or
performed by the City or to have been met precedent to and in the issuing of the Notes in order to
make them legal, valid and binding special obligations of the City have been performed and have
been met, or will at the time of delivery of the Notes have been performed and have been met, in
regular and due form as required by law; and that no statutory or constitutional limitation of
indebtedness or taxation will have been exceeded in the issuance of the Notes.

Section 16. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council and
any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were taken in an
open meeting of this Council or any of its committees, and that all deliberations of this Council
and of any of its committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the
public, all in compliance with the law, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

-5-



Section 17. This Ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of the
City, and for the further reason that this Ordinance is required to be immediately effective in
order to permit the City to issue the Notes under Chapter 165 of the Ohio Revised Code in order
to create or preserve jobs and employment opportunities and improve the economic welfare of
the people of the City and the State of Ohio and to enable the City to timely acquire the Project;
therefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021,
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:
Clerk of Council Mayor
Date Date

CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, Clerk of Council of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, hereby certifies that the
foregoing is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 2021-0- passed by the City Council
of the City of Huber Heights, on , 2021.

Clerk of Council



Al-7823 Topics of Discussion D
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

County Assessments Authorization

Submitted By: Jim Bell

Department: Finance Division: Accounting

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: Yes

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
County Assessments Authorization

Purpose and Background

Montgomery County requires all communities to pass separate legislation for assessments that are to be added to
the tax duplicate. Therefore, before the City can assess property for such things as annual sidewalk assessments,
grass/weed charges, property maintenance abatement, unpaid water and sewer, etc., the City must pass
legislation specifically identifying the property and the amount of the assessment. Assessments are based on
collection for City services previously provided; therefore, City Staff are asking that this item be passed as
emergency legislation.

Exhibit A, which provides all details of the assessments, is attached. City Staff request waiving of the second
reading and approval of this legislation at the City Council Meeting on September 13, 2021 because that is the last
opportunity (extended time) to present assessments for the 2021 property tax bills that residents will receive in
2022.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Ordinance
Exhibit A




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-0O-

APPROVING INDIVIDUAL ASSESSMENTS AMOUNTS AND DIRECTING THE FINANCE
DIRECTOR OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE TO CERTIFY THE AMOUNTS TO THE APPLICABLE
COUNTY AUDITOR FOR COLLECTION, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6, Article XVIII of the Ohio Constitution the General Assembly has
enacted general laws stating purposes for which municipalities may assess specially benefited

property; and

WHEREAS, these laws include Ohio Revised Code Sections 727.01, 727.011, 727.012, 727.013,
729.06, 729.11, 1710.01(h) and others, which authorize the City to levy and collect special
assessments upon the abutting, adjacent, and contiguous, or other specially benefited, lots or lands in
the municipal corporation, for among other things, any part of the cost connected with the
improvement of any street, public road, place, boulevard, parkway, or park entrance or an easement
of the municipal corporation; sidewalk construction; sewers; sewage disposal works and treatment
plants, sewage pumping stations, water treatment plants, water pumping stations, reservoirs, and
water storage tanks or standpipes, together with the facilities and appurtenances necessary and
proper therefore; drains, storm-water retention basins, watercourses, water mains, or laying of water
pipe; lighting; any part of the cost and expense of planting, maintaining, and removing shade trees
thereupon; any part of the cost and expense of constructing, maintaining, repairing, cleaning, and
enclosing ditches; and

WHEREAS, for such approved assessments, the County Auditor is to act at the direction, or on
behalf, of a municipality with respect to collection of such assessments R.C. 727.30; (R.C. 727.33);
and

WHEREAS, the General Assembly has also enacted laws that require a County Auditor to act at the

direction, or on behalf, of a municipality with respect to collection of certain costs assessed to
properties including but not limited to R.C 743.04, 715.261 and 731.51-54; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the foregoing, the City of Huber Heights has passed, and will in the future
pass, laws to assess real property for all or part of the cost of a public improvement and/or certain
permitted costs of abatement or collection, including but not limited to Ordinance No. 97-0-997
codified as Huber Heights Code Section 175.04 Assessments for Capital Improvement Projects (for
sanitary sewer, water, sidewalks and drive aprons, roadways and storm sewers); Ordinance No. 90-
0O-419 codified as Huber Heights Code Section 919.01 (street lighting); Ordinance No.2009-0-1771
codified as Huber Heights Code Section 929.16 (unpaid water service); Ordinance No. 1996-0-856
codified as Huber Heights Code Section 923.08 (unpaid sanitary sewer); Ordinance No. 2002-0O-
1325 codified as Huber Heights Code Section 922.32 (stormwater); Ordinance No. 2014-0-2096
codified as Huber Heights Code Section 521.11 (nuisance in the right of way); Huber Heights Code
Section 911.02 (sidewalk repair); Ordinance No. 2002-O-1324 and No. 2011-O-1897 (weed cutting
assessment); Huber Heights Code Sections 925.05 (lower Rip Rap Road sewer district assessment),
952.04 (nuisance abatement for false alarms), 521.081, (littering and deposit of garbage) and such
other ordinances or resolution that may be passed from time to time pursuant to these codified laws;
and

WHEREAS, in order to better track and account for authorized legal assessments and the amounts
due to the City, City Council has determined it is in the best interest of the citizens to pass this
Ordinance setting forward the applicable properties and assessment amounts to be certified to the
County for collection; and

WHEREAS, the assessments set forth in Exhibit A have been authorized by the City Council of the
City of Huber Heights and are required by law to be assessed and collected by the County on behalf
of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:



Section 1. The properties set forth on the attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated herein by
this reference, are to be assessed in the amount also set forth on the applicable section of Exhibit A
unless payment is made within the time frame set forth in the applicable section of Exhibit A.

Section 2. In the event a payment for the amount or any portion of the amount set forth in
Exhibit A is received by the City prior to final assessment date set forth in Exhibit A, which is the
same date set forth in the notice sent to such property owner, the Finance Director, or his/her
designee is authorized to remove or revise such assessment from Exhibit A prior to certification to
the County Auditor.

Section 3. The Finance Director or his/her designee is instructed to certify this Ordinance,
including the final assessed properties in Exhibit A, to the applicable County Auditor for collection.

Section 4. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 5. This Ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate
preservation of the public peace, property, health, welfare and safety of the City, and for the further
reasons that finalizing and certifying assessment at the earliest time is necessary to timely establish a
lien and protect the City’s interest in payment of amounts owed to the City; therefore, this Ordinance
shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021;
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



EXHIBIT A

Total to be Begin
Project No Project Desc Parcel ID Address Assessed | Tax Year | Collection
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00202 0078 |5811 Shore Dr S 33153 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00202 0268 (4033 Kennebec Ave S 349.90 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00202 0275 (4056 Catawba Ave S 386.65 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00202 0358 (4013 Champaign Ave S 331.53 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00202 0581 |Rip Rap Rd(corner of Navajo Ave { $ 322.34 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00202 0604 |6333 Blackfoot St S 349.90 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00202 0728 (6475 Rip Rap Rd S 653.87 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00306 0018 |7210 Kirkview Dr S 32234 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00315 0013 [7240 Rustic Woods Dr S 359.09 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00418 0005 [5288-5290 Coco Dr S 349.90 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00513 0011 (8908 Gardengate Dr S 322.34 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00516 0023 [8909 Cypressgate Dr S 340.71 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00611 0039 |8299 Briar Ridge Ct S 67224 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00619 0058 |6358 Greenfield Way S 635.49 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00907 0033 [4450 Lambeth Dr S 331.53 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00909 0044 [5356 Mystic Dr S 331.53 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00911 0017 (5189 Packard Dr S 359.09 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00913 0004 (4427 Kitridge Rd S 930.27 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00913 0010 |4457 Kitridge Rd S 985.58 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00915 0018 (4572 Korner Dr S 994.77 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 00915 0028 |4510 Korner Dr S 32253 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01006 0053 (5446 Tibet Dr S 653.87 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01009 0021 |5964 Tibet Dr S 976.21 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01114 0034 (7129 Troy Manor S 340.90 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01202 0007 [7249 Charnwood Dr S 331.53 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01313 0027 |6912 Shellcross Dr S 33153 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01404 0041 |5479 Naughton Dr S  653.87 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01409 0034 |5838 Brandt Pike S 663.05 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01410 0042 (5850 Brandt Pike S 994.58 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01410 0042 |5850 Brandt Pk S 331.72 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01411 0037 [5773 Botkins Rd S 644.68 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01417 0018 |5788 Benedict Rd S  699.80 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01502 0023 |4530 Penhurst PL S 1,418.17 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01505 0052 |5325 Fishburg S 663.05 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01505 0052 (5325 Fishburg Rd S 322.53 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01512 0043 |5501 Moorefield Dr S 1,003.77 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01602 0017 (6142 Sanbury Dr S 349.90 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01603 0038 5045 Chesham Dr S 331.53 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01610 0018 |7039 Claybeck Dr S 32234 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01614 0047 |6514 Rosebury Dr S 681.43 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01616 0028 |5956 Corsica Dr S  653.87 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01617 0006 (6627 Celestine St S 331.53 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01710 0010 {6523 Highury Rd S 349.90 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01718 0007 (5656 Bellefontaine Rd S 386.65 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01909 0019 |5176 OId Troy Pike S 340.71 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01911 0025 |5507 Rockdell Ct S 33153 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 01918 0001 |5958 OId Troy Pike S 349.90 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 02021 0009 (5985 Fox Trace Ct S 644.68 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 02027 0020 |5675 Cottonwood Ct S 1,270.98 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 02205 0020 (4699 Santa Anita PI S 368.28 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 03904 0085 (8701 Adams Rd S 643.90 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 03912 0079 |5363 Tilbury Rd S 1,894.96 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 04005 0056 |7605 Old Troy Pike $ 1,538.39 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 04005 0100 |7650 Waynetowne Bl $ 1,219.55 2021 |February 2022
31500 Grass/Weeds P70 04005 0141 [7609 Old Troy Pike $ 1,712.95 2021 |February 2022
TOTAL GRASS/WEEDS $ 33,735.37
Total to be Begin
Project No Project Desc Parcel ID Address Assessed | Tax Year | Collection
31950 Property Maintenance | P70 03912 0079|5363 Tilbury Rd $12,916.65 2021 |February 2022
31950 Property Maintenance | P70 01718 0007|5656 Bellefontaine Rd $763.13| 2021 |February 2022
31950 Property Maintenance | P70 01009 0008|5046 Sabra Ave $558.51| 2021 [February 2022
TOTAL PROPERTY MAINT $12,916.65
Total to be Begin
Project No Project Desc Parcel ID Address Assessed | Tax Year | Collection
31850 Trash/Litter P70 01502 0023 (4530 Penhurst PL $567.90| 2021 |February 2022
31850 Trash/Litter P70 04005 0100 (7650 Waynetowne PL $935.50| 2021 |February 2022
31850 Trash/Litter P70 01506 0008 (6130 Ansbury Dr $425.87| 2021 |February 2022
31850 Trash/Litter P70 03904 0085 (8701 Adams Rd $382.27| 2021 |February 2022
31850 Trash/Litter P70 00202 0534 (4156 Navajo Ave $2,554.41| 2021 |February 2022
31850 Trash/Litter P70 01408 0042 [5701 Belmar Dr $3,682.15 2021 |February 2022

TOTAL TRASH/LITTER

$8,548.10




Total to be Begin
Project No Project Desc Parcel ID Address Assessed | Tax Year | Collection
31322 Delg. Water P70 00202 0677 |6441 Rip Rap Rd $21.00f 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delq. Water P70 00202 0710 |6346 Apache St $1.13( 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delq. Water P70 00202 0770 |4037 Navajo Ave $1.10| 2021 [|February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 00202 1186 |6475 Rip Rap Rd $4.82( 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 00619 0058 (6358 Greenfield Way $95.11| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 00911 0007 (4351 Kitridge Rd $68.03| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 00913 0002 |4415 Kitridge Rd $126.32| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 00913 0026 |4675 Knob Hill Dr $125.81| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 00914 0030 (4541 Kapp Dr $64.37| 2021 |[February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 01008 0078 [5784 Traymore Dr $152.91| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delq. Water P70 01009 0008 [5046 Sabra Ave $83.43| 2021 [February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 01107 0030 (7420 Biscayne Ct $10.35| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 01206 0027 |6771 Pablo Dr $97.47| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delq. Water P70 01313 0027 (6912 Shellcross Dr $297.59| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delq. Water P70 01502 0022 (4540 Penhurst Pl $44.71| 2021 [February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 01511 0035 |5231 Fishburg Rd $60.18| 2021 [February 2022
31322 Delq. Water P70 01512 0008 (6379 Chippingdon Dr $35.47| 2021 |[February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 01610 0033 |7017 Harshmanville $105.36| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 01614 0047 |6514 Rosebury Dr $150.49| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delq. Water P70 01905 0024 |5068 Nebraska Ave $336.68| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 01917 0022 |7272 Charlesworth Dr $57.66| 2021 [February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 01923 0002 |5836 Old Troy Pk $2,604.96| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delq. Water P70 02205 0020 [4699 Santa Anita PI $76.15| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delq. Water P70 03903 0072 (8984 Bellefontaine Rd $0.74( 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 03904 0012 |7544 Chambersburg Rd $0.74( 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 03904 0041 |8184 Chambersburg Rd $0.74( 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 03904 0085 (8701 Adams Rd $97.27| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delq. Water P70 03908 0040 (6980 Chambersburg Rd $0.74| 2021 |February 2022
31322 Delg. Water P70 04002 0018 |6409 Shull Rd $0.74( 2021 |February 2022
TOTAL DELQ. WATER $4,722.07
Total to be Begin
Project No Project Desc Parcel ID Address Assessed | Tax Year | Collection
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0010 |6141 Rip Rap Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0113 |5819 Shore Dr $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0173 |6177 Apache St $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0212 |6171 Pocahontas St $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0225 |6035 Shore Dr $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0275 |4056 Catawba Ave $8.82| 2021 [|February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 00202 0284 |4086 Catawba Ave $17.64| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0330 |6219 Apache St $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0358 |4013 Champaign Ave $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0362 (4029 Champaign Ave $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0376 |6325 Champaign Ave $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water [P70 00202 0405 |4026 Navajo Ave $4.41| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water [P70 00202 0456 |6220 Apache St $22.05| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water [P70 00202 0534 |4156 Navajo Ave $39.69| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00202 0578 |4180 Navajo Ave $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0604 |6333 Blackfoot St $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0677 |6441 Rip Rap Rd $10.14| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0710 |6346 Apache St $4.41| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0710 |6346 Apache St $11.25| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 00202 0712 |6352 Apache St $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water [P70 00202 0753 |4095 Navajo Ave $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00202 0756 |4087 Navajo Ave $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 0758 |4079 Navajo Ave $15.44 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 00202 0770 |4037 Navajo Ave $8.82( 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 1131 |6030 Shore Dr $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 00202 1157 |5810 Shore Dr $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 00202 1160 |5790 Shore Dr $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 1186 |6475 Rip Rap Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 1200 |6461 Rip Rap Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00202 1204 |6255 Blackfoot St $4.41( 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00211 0001 |7500 Bellefontaine Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00211 0006 |8373 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 00212 0001 |7620 Walmac St $25.14| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00212 0007 |7593 Walmac St $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00213 0007 |8489 Betal Ct $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 00213 0009 |7644 Walmac St $27.72| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00213 0011 |7671 Walmac St $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 00214 0001 |8320 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 00512 0037 |5919 Timbergate Tr $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water [P70 00513 0011 |8908 Gardengate Dr $24.05| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 00515 0018 |8941 Willowgate La $28.67| 2021 [February 2022




31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 00518 0005 |4169 Powell Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00603 0034 |6372 Rolling Glen Dr $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00611 0039 (8299 Briar Ridge Ct $18.69| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 00619 0058 |6358 Greenfield Way $13.62| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00705 0002 |6750 Brandt Pk $101.27| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00801 0019 [7209 Summerdale Dr $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00902 0010 |7742 Belleplain Dr $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00906 0004 |4343 Lambeth Dr $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00907 0030 |4457 Longfellow Ave $30.06| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 00911 0007 |4351 Kitridge Rd $8.09( 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00911 0052 (4682 Kautz Dr $24.01| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delqg. Storm Water |P70 00913 0002 |4415 Kitridge Rd $15.93| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 00913 0026 |4675 Knob Hill Dr $18.09| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00913 0036 |4672 Longfellow Ave $16.62| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 00913 0037 |4666 Longfellow Ave $23.64| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00914 0030 |4541 Kapp Dr $7.98( 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 00915 0018 |4572 Korner Dr $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01005 0040 |4773 Rittenhouse Dr $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 01008 0078 |5784 Traymore Dr $14.18| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water |P70 01009 0008 |5046 Sabra Ave $11.52| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 01013 0052 |5724 Rousseau Dr $29.58| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 01014 0008 |4860 Rittenhouse Dr $30.14| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 01106 0005 [7350 Brandt Pk $21.03| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 01107 0030 [7420 Biscayne Ct $3.57| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delqg. Storm Water |P70 01206 0027 |6771 Pablo Dr $13.58| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water |P70 01305 0033 |5575 Clagston Ct $24.08| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 01313 0013 |7500 Shalamar Dr $21.53| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 01313 0027 |6912 Shellcross Dr $15.97| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01404 0012 (4842 Nebraska Ave $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01404 0041 |5479 Naughton Dr $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01408 0018 |5720 Botkins Rd $28.80| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P7001410 0019 |5929 Rosalie Rd $22.05| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water |P70 01502 0022 |4540 Penhurst PI $6.58| 2021 [|February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01505 0052 |5325 Fishburg Rd $14.98| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 01511 0035 |5231 Fishburg Rd $8.85( 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 01512 0008 |6379 Chippingdon Dr $1.68( 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01603 0010 |4982 Queensbury Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01610 0033 |7017 Harshmanville $15.51| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01614 0047 |6514 Rosebury Dr $17.54| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water |P70 01616 0028 |5956 Corsica Dr $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01709 0059 |7031 Klyemore Dr $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01712 0021 |6420 Luton Ct $18.69| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 01905 0024 |5068 Nebraska Ave $27.06| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 01917 0022 |7272 Charlesworth Dr $8.09( 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water [P70 01923 0002 |5836 Old Troy Pk $174.72| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 02014 0001 |8640 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water |P70 02021 0009 |5985 Fox Trace Ct $24.68| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 02205 0020 |4699 Santa Anita Pl $5.88( 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 02210 0054 |7409 Ballauer PI $24.08| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03901 0010 |8610 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 03901 0071 |8836 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03902 0016 |9160 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 03902 0046 |7300 New Carlisle Pk $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03902 0049 |9304 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03902 0050 |9340 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 03902 0055 |9341 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 03903 0061 |9367 Artz Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 03903 0072 (8984 Bellefontaine Rd $25.20| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 03903 0095 |8040 Center Point 70 Blvd $211.08| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 03904 0006 |7795 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03904 0012 |7544 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03904 0019 |8216 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03904 0038 |7527 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water (P70 03904 0041 |8184 Chambersburg Rd $25.36| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 03904 0085 |8701 Adams Rd $9.73| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 03904 0092 |7850 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03905 0004 |7780 Bellefontaine Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03905 0051 |8098 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 03905 0062 |8125 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03905 0081 |8767 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 03905 0086 (7707 Bellefontaine Rd $26.46 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03905 0088 |7815 Bellefontaine Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03906 0030 |8485 Bellefontaine Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03908 0017 |7489 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03908 0018 |7440 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03908 0022 |6583 Fishburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03908 0028 |7405 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022




31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 03908 0029 |6580 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03908 0031 |6616 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03908 0040 |6980 Chambersburg Rd $24.83| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03908 0047 |7020 Chambersburg Rd $27.72| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 03908 0054 (6745 Fishburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03908 0065 |6535 Fishburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 03908 0083 |7230 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P7003908 0117 |6871 Bellefontaine Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 03908 0173 |7318 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03908 9022 |6585 Fishburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03909 0058 |7459 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 03911 0038 |5730 Brandt Pk $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P7003912 0023 |5119 Fishburg $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 03912 0079 |5363 Tilbury Rd $493.75| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04001 0006 |6225 Taylorsville Rd $26.36| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04001 0042 |6775 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 04002 0018 (6409 Shull Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04003 0043 |4316 Powell Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04003 0051 |4280 Powell Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 04003 0056 |4366 Powell Rd $25.14| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04003 0131 |5543-5629 OId Troy Pk $524.87| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04004 0017 |4949 Chambersburg Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 04005 0055 |5201 Taylorsville Rd $309.77| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water  [P70 04005 0055 |5201 Taylorsville Rd $103.26| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04006 0071 |8169 Old Troy Pk $82.97| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04007 0009 |4460 Fishburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 04007 0024 |4214 Powell Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04007 0039 |4250 Fishburg Rd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04007 0056 |4242 Powell Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04008 0009 |6240 Endicott Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water P70 04008 0016 |6124 Endicott Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04008 0028 |4517 Fishburg Rd $26.46| 2021 |[February 2022
31103 Delq. Storm Water |P70 04009 0016 |4246 Taylorsville Rd $26.46| 2021 |February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 04009 0055 |7571 Bridgewater $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
31103 Delg. Storm Water [P70 50217 0047 |5801 Troy Villa Blvd $26.46| 2021 [February 2022
TOTAL DELQ. STORM WATER $5,360.01
Total to be Begin
Project No Project Desc Parcel ID Address Assessed | Tax Year | Collection
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 0010 |6141 Rip Rap Rd $217.60| 2021 |February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0113 5819 Shore Dr $217.60| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0173 |6177 Apache St $217.60| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0212 |6171 Pocahontas St $217.60| 2021 | February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0225 [6035 Shore Dr $217.60| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0275 [4056 Catawba Ave $72.53| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0284 [4086 Catawba Ave $145.07| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 0330 |6219 Apache St $186.10| 2021 |February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 0358 |4013 Champaignh Ave $217.60| 2021 | February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0362 |4029 Champaign Ave $217.60| 2021 | February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0376 [6325 Champaign Ave $217.60| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0405 |4026 Navajo Ave $81.14| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 0456 |6220 Apache St $181.34| 2021 |February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 0578 |4180 Navajo Ave $217.60| 2021 | February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0604 (6333 Blackfoot St $290.30| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0677 |6441 Rip Rap Rd $83.42| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0710 |6346 Apache St $36.27| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0710 (6346 Apache St $113.49| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 0753 |4095 Navajo Ave $217.60| 2021 |February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 0756 |4087 Navajo Ave $217.60| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 0758 |4079 Navajo Ave $123.89| 2021 | February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 0770 |4037 Navajo Ave $72.53| 2021 |February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 1131 [6030 Shore Dr $217.60| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 1157 |5810 Shore Dr $217.60( 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 1160 [5790 Shore Dr $217.60| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 1186 |6475 Rip Rap Rd $217.60| 2021 |February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00202 1200 |6461 Rip Rap Rd $217.60| 2021 |February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00202 1204 (6255 Blackfoot St $36.27| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00619 0058 |6358 Greenfield Way $66.79] 2021 | February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00911 0007 |4351 Kitridge Rd $47.21 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00913 0002 (4415 Kitridge Rd $88.33 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00913 0026 (4675 Knob Hill Dr $88.37| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 00914 0030 |4541 Kapp Dr $44.75| 2021 |February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 01008 0078 |5784 Traymore Dr $104.69| 2021 | February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 01009 0008 |5046 Sabra Ave $58.45| 2021 | February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 01107 0030 |7420 Biscayne Ct $13.25| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 01206 0027 |6771 Pablo Dr $68.32 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 01313 0027 |6912 Shellcross Dr $188.20( 2021 February 2022




31324 Delq. Sewer P70 01502 0022 |4540 Penhurst Pl $31.46| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 01511 0035 5231 Fishburg Rd $42.34| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 01512 0008 (6379 Chippingdon Dr $37.05| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 01610 0033 [7017 Harshmanwville $74.13| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 01614 0047 (6514 Rosebury Dr $112.44| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 01905 0024 |5068 Nebraska Ave $228.81| 2021 | February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 01917 0022 |7272 Charlesworth Dr $40.44| 2021 |February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 01923 0002 |5836 Old Troy Pk $1,870.32| 2021 February 2022
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 02205 0020 |4699 Santa Anita Pl $51.73 2021 February 2022
31324 Delg. Sewer P70 04001 0006 6225 Taylorsville Rd $332.33| 2021 February 2022
TOTAL DELQ. SEWER $8,493.36




Al-7815 Topics of Discussion
Council Work Session
Meeting Date: 09/07/2021
Energy Aggregation Discussion
Submitted By: Stephanie Wunderlich
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

E.

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Energy Aggregation Discussion

Purpose and Background

Rich Surace from Energy Alliance will be discussing the upcoming new energy aggregation agreement and
answer any questions. The old energy aggregation agreement expires at the end of December, 2021.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.




Al-7775 Topics of Discussion F-
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Chambersburg Road Widening Project - Phase IV - Contract Modification

Submitted By: Hanane Eisentraut

Department: Engineering Division: Engineering

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Chambersburg Road Widening Project - Phase IV - Contract Modification

Purpose and Background

This legislation will authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract modification and increase The Kleingers
Group contract by $100,000 to cover the cost of the modification of the design and the additional studies required
by the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) to allow the City to move forward with the Chambersburg Road
Widening Improvements - Phase |V Project.

Those modifications include the addition of a 10’ dedicated multi-use trail facility on the north side of
Chambersburg Road, sidewalk on the south side, submittal of level one Ecological Survey Report (ESR), update
the required Feasibility Study of Phases 1V, V, and VI, modification of the right of way plans and the legal
descriptions for the right of way and temporary/permanent easements, management of the required public meeting
in person and recorded/posted online meetings.

The Capital Fund will be utilized for the cost of the design modification of this project.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: Capital Fund
Cost: $100,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT
MODIFICATION WITH THE KLEINGERS GROUP FOR THE CHAMBERSBURG ROAD
WIDENING IMPROVEMENTS — PHASE IV PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the City Council has applied and received a grant through Miami Valley Regional
Planning Commission (MVRPC) for the construction of the Chambersburg Road Widening
Improvements — Phase IV Project; and

WHEREAS, City Council had previously authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract
with The Kleingers Group for the design of Chambersburg Road Widening Improvements —
Phase IV Project at a cost not to exceed $135,000.00; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to increase the contract amount with The Kleingers Group to reflect
the modification of the design and the additional studies required by Ohio Department of
Transportation (ODOT) to allow the City to move forward with the Chambersburg Road
Widening Improvements — Phase 1V Project; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available to cover the cost of the additional work.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to increase the contract with The
Kleingers Group for the Chambersburg Road Widening Improvements — Phase IV Project by
$100,000.00 to a new total of $235,000.00.

Section 2. Authorization is hereby given to compensate The Kleingers Group for additional
work already completed.

Section 3. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of
this Council and all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021;
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Councll Mayor

Date Date



Al-7808 Topics of Discussion
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

2021 Sidewalk Program and Concrete Portion of the 2021 Street Program - Contract Modification

Submitted By: Hanane Eisentraut

Department: Engineering Division: Engineering

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
2021 Sidewalk Program and Concrete Portion of the 2021 Street Program - Contract Modification

Purpose and Background

This legislation will authorize the City Manager to enter into contract modification and increase the Multi-Task

Construction contract by $55,000 to cover the cost of reconstructing the handicap ramps on Old Troy Pike from
Fishburg Road to the southern City Limit. This section of Old Troy Pike is scheduled to be paved in 2022 under
the ODOT Urban Paving Program. The City is required at its own expense to modify the handicap ramps to be

compliant with the American Disabilities Act (ADA). Multi-Task Construction was the lowest bidder for the

Concrete Portion of 2021 Street Program and also had the lowest unit prices for the handicap ramps. This
contractor agreed to modify the 28 handicap ramps on Old Troy Pike for the same unit prices as in the previous

bid.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: Street Capital Fund
Cost: $55,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO 2021-R-
AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-6980 TO INCREASE THE NOT TO EXCEED
AMOUNT FOR A PORTION OF THE 2021 SIDEWALK PROGRAM AND THE CONCRETE
PORTION OF THE 2021 STREET PROGRAM.
WHEREAS, the City Council had previously authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with
Multi- Task Construction for Section C: Concrete Portion of 2021 Street Program at a cost not to

exceed $780,000.00; and

WHEREAS, Old Troy Pike (State Route 202) from Fishburg Road to the southern City limit will be
paved in 2022 under Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) Urban Paving Program; and

WHEREAS, the handicap ramps are required to be reconstructed at City cost to comply with the
American Disabilities Act (ADA) before the paving operation; and

WHEREAS, funds are available to cover the cost of this modification.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:
Section 1. Section 3 of Resolution No. 2021-R-6980 is hereby amended to increase the not to

exceed amount of the contract with Multi- Task Construction for Section C: Concrete Portion of 2021
Street Program by $55,000.00 to a new total of $835,000.00.

Section 2. Authorization is hereby given to compensate Multi- Task Construction for additional work
already completed.
Section 3. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and

relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and all
deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action were in
meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of
Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter
of the City of Huber Heights

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021,
Yeas, Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



Al-7809 Topics of Discussion H-
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Marian Meadows Demolition - Phase Il - Award Contract

Submitted By: Hanane Eisentraut

Department: Engineering Division: Engineering

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Marian Meadows Demolition - Phase Il - Award Contract

Purpose and Background

This legislation will authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Advanced Demolition Services as the
lowest and best bidder for the Marian Meadows Demolition - Phase |l Project at a cost not to exceed

$97,000. The City has applied through Montgomery County and has received a Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) to demolish a portion of the Marian Meadows strip center located at 6131-6147 Brandt Pike. Since
the bid received was lower than the estimated cost, additional quantities at the unit price received in the bid for
the parking lot cold planing were added to the contract to capitalize on the grant fund received.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: CDBG Grant and Note Proceeds
Cost: $97,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Bid Results
Resolution




oL

i

TS

3

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
RSOUTHPOINTE CROSSING DEMOLITION PHASE I

BID RESULT
Come Grow With Us! BID DATE: AUGUST 11, 2021

CONTRACTOR'S NAME

BID AMOUNT

Advanced Demolition

$ 59,300

110 Calendar Days

Bid Bond - Yes

Steve Rauch

$ 194,620

30 Calendar Days

Bid Bond - Yes

Durst Brothers

$ 89,530

100 Calendar Days

Bid Bond - Yes

Charles Jergens

$ 113,358

60 Calendar Days

Bid Bond - Yes

O'Rourke

$ 112,265

30 Calendar Days

Bid Bond - Yes




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR THE MARIAN
MEADOWS DEMOLITION — PHASE Il PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the City of Huber Heights has received a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
through Montgomery County for the Marian Meadows Demolition — Phase 1 Project; and

WHEREAS, City Council under Resolution No. 2021-R-7021, dated July 12, 2021, has previously
authorized the securing of bids for the Marian Meadows Demolition — Phase 11 Project; and

WHEREAS, construction bids were properly received on August 11, 2021.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract for the Marian
Meadows Demolition — Phase Il Project with Advanced Demolition Services as the lowest and best
bidder at a cost not to exceed $97,000.00 on the terms and conditions as substantially set forth in the
bid documents.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and all
deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action were in
meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of
the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter
of the City of Huber Heights.
Passed by Council on the day of , 2021,

Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



Al-7813 Topics of Discussion |
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Maintenance Cap Increase - Suez Water

Submitted By: Geri Hoskins

Department: Engineering

Council Committee Review?: Council Work Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Maintenance Cap Increase - Suez Water

Purpose and Background

Maintenance cap monies used by Suez Water Environmental, Inc. to date represents 92% of the total approved
maintenance cap of $160,000. A purchase order in the amount of $160,000 is being requested to cover the
estimated maintenance expenditures between now and the end of the year. The Maintenance Cap Summary
attachment provides a full detail of the year’'s monthly expenditures up through August 31, 2021 and a calculation
of the $160,000 in additional monies needed before the end of the year.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Maintenance Cap Summary
Resolution




Vendor
Aqua-Line

Cummins Sales and Service
Cummins Sales and Service

Element
Element

Lee Shellhaas
Lee Shellhaas
OUPS

Peterson Construction Company
Allied Technical Services Inc
Groundscape Maintenance

C&S Solutions
Core & Main
Core & Main
Core & Main
Core & Main
Carey Electric
Carey Electric
Core & Main
Core & Main
Core & Main
Carey Electric
Core & Main

January

Vendor

Buckeye Pumps

Element
Martin Marietta
Martin Marietta

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

Amount

764.60
1,409.81
1,658.62
1,069.89
3,751.74
1,200.00
1,700.00
72.00
3,770.00
3,493.52
4,219.38
137.93
506.54
567.75
488.04
739.91
210.00
140.00
573.55
488.04
244.02
411.00

Description

Emergency leak detection services (7217 Taylorsville Rd)

Renewal of semi-annual generator maintenance agreement at the Shop
Renewal of semi-annual generator maintenance agreement at Brandt Pk
Vehicle maintenance

Vehicle maintenance

Concrete repair for mainbreak repair at corner of Hubbard and Alter
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair at 5716 Fisher Rd

Monthly maintenance fee

Transfer pump replacement for caustic soda

Bypass pump for Apache lift station

Yard repair due to mainbreak repair

Repair parts for pipe locater to mark main water lines

Angle valve repair

Hydrant repair

Mainbreak repair

Mainbreak repair

Install electric to pump at Brandt Pk lift station

Troubleshoot pump at Oaks lift station

Mainbreak repair

Mainbreak repair

Mainbreak repair

Troubleshoot no power to control cabinet at Cosner lift station

(326.47) Hydrant expenses reversed. Billed as Third Party Damages.

27,289.87

Amount
1,755.00
4,072.85
3,252.39
3,391.41

Description

Pump repair at Shull Rd pump station
Vehicle maintenance

Gravel for mainbreak repair

Gravel for mainbreak repair



OUPS

Treasurer State of Ohio
Treasurer State of Ohio
Allied Technical Services
Springer Enterprises
Springer Enterprises
BL Anderson

Core & Main

Core & Main

Core & Main

Core & Main

Core & Main

February

Vendor
Cummins
Element

OUPS

Lee Shellhaas
Lee Shellhaas
Lee Shellhaas
Lee Shellhaas
Lee Shellhaas
Lee Shellhaas
Martin Marietta
Martin Marietta
Partin Trucking Inc
Buckeye Pumps
Buckeye Pumps
Towner Filtration
Carey Electric
Terminix

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
5
$
$
$
$

PEPOBAPARANDADAPAARLAARDLNALOLN

1,5638.12
270.00
190.00

3,206.77
175.00

55.00
1,816.36
85.64
173.16

1,267.32
645.32

Monthly maintenance fee & 2021 Annual Assessment Fee for OUPS
SERC for RRRWTP for 2021

SERC for NRWTP for 2021

Apache lift station bypass

Backflow recertification at RRRWTP
Backflow recertification at Admin Office
Element tubes for chemical feed pumps
Angle valve repair

Sewer repair

Mainbreak repair

Mainbreak repair

(279.73) Hydrant expenses reversed. Billed as Third Party Damages.

21,614.61

Amount

879.01
1,361.03
32.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
1,100.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
890.76
1,578.09
455.00
8,120.00
5,343.00
5,190.60
738.00
64.50

Description

Generator repair at St Rt 40 booster station

Vehicle maintenance

Monthly maintenance fee

Concrete repair for mainbreak repair at 6811 Hubbard Dr
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair at 6231 Alter Rd
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair at corner of Holbrook and Alter
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair at 6535 Menlo Way
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair at 5871 Hinckley Dr
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair

Gravel for mainbreak repair

Gravel for mainbreak repair

Dirt hauling for mainbreak repair

Replacement pump for residual station at RRRWTP
Pump repair at Apache lift station

Nano filtration cartridges

Troubleshoot Bellefontaine Rd lift station

Pest control for Admin Office



Carey Electric

Core & Main

Core & Main

Core & Main

Core & Main

Great Lakes Service & Supplies
Carey Electric

Journey

Core & Main

Gasser's Garage

Best One

Bob Sumerel Tire Company
Leach Enterprises

March

Vendor

Allied Pump
Element

Lee Shellhaas
Lee Shellhaas
Lee Shellhaas
OUPS

Martin Marietta
Buckeye Pumps
Buckeye Pumps
Buckeye Pumps
Civica

M&R Electric
Core & Main
Core & Main
USA Bluebook
Core & Main

« R PR RPN NNLR

O APALP DAL PPN

842.00
1,535.00
426.52
70.22
1,934.56
478.34
657.00
1,237.50
1,449.21
490.00
427.04
377.64
185.15

40,862.17

Amount
5,457.06
1,362.09

700.00
2,370.00
1,700.00

40.00
3,649.99
2,892.00
5,343.01
3,821.00
6,695.00

32.25
1,800.74

378.50

366.78

157.98

Check and repair motor at Shore lift station
Hydrant repair

Hydrant repair

Angle valve repair

Mainbreak and water line repair

Vehicle maintenance - for Vaccon for sewer cleaning - main line root cutter m
Installed new starter at Heathermere lift station
Sewer hauling for lift station

Mainbreak and angle valve repair

Hauling of mainbreak dirt from mainbreak repairs
Vehicle maintenance - Backhoe tire repair
Vehicle maintenance - Backhoe tire repair
Repair at Apache lift station

Description

Apached lift station bypass

Vehicle maintenance

Concrete repair for mainbreak repair at corner of Alter & Holbrook
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair at 6485 & 6489 Rolling Glen
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair at 6111 & 6105 Holbrook
Monthly maintenance fee

Gravel for mainbreak repair

Pump repair - Oaks lift station

Pump repair - Apache lift station

Pump repair - Cosner lift station

2021 license, support and maintenance for Authority billing software
Electrical parts for repair at Elysian lift station

Mainbreak repair

Hydrant repair

Lift station maintenance - float switches

Service line repair



Gasser's Garage
Carey Electric
Core & Main

April

Vendor

Element

OUPS

Paulus Lawn and Landscape LLC
Partin Trucking Inc
Lee Shellhaas

Lee Shellhaas
Core & Main

Core & Main

Core & Main
DeZurik

Lowe's

Lowe's

Brehob

Leach Enterprises
Core & Main

May

Vendor

Element

OUPS

Paulus Lawn and Landscape LLC
Towner Filtration

Buckeye Pumps

Core & Main

Core & Main

$
$
$

< PR AR LP NN R

PP ARALH

560.00
363.00

Dirt removal from mainbreak repair
Replace GFCI and wire pump at RRRWTP

(1,876.82) Hydrant expenses reversed. Billed as Third Party Damages.

35,812.58

Amount

1,314.28
40.00
532.13
595.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
273.46
189.25
1,839.12
659.81
292.67
18.22
618.91
428.25

Description

Vehicle maintenance

Monthly maintenance fee

Grounds maintenance at Plants

Dirt hauling for mainbreak repair

Concrete repair for mainbreak repair - 6605 Alter Rd
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair - Longford and Leycross
Mainbreak repair

Hydrant repair

Mainbreak repair

Repair parts for filter valves

Sump pump for Stonehurst

items for sump pump for Stonehurst

Air compressor dryers

Repair to Heathermere lift station

(1,002.32) Hydrant expenses reversed. Billed as Third Party Damages.

7,798.78

Amount
1,547.71
44.00
763.25
5,388.40

Description

Vehicle maintenance

Monthly maintenance fee
Grounds maintenance at Plants
Nano filtration cartridges

(0.01) Pump repair - Apache lift station - overage from AP accrual

919.48
237.07

Mainbreak repair
Hydrant repair



Core & Main
Terminix

Assured Automation
Core & Main
Gasser's Garage
Quality Seasons
MegaCity

MegaCity

June

Vendor

Element

Best Equipment

Core & Main

Core & Main

Core & Main

Groundscape Maintenance
Martin Marietta

Martin Marietta

Martin Marietta

Partin Trucking

Lee Shellhaas

Lee Shellhaas

Lee Shellhaas

Lee Shellhaas

Lee Shelthaas

Lee Shellhaas

Commerce Controls Inc
Buckeye Pumps

Paulus Lawn and Landscape LLC
OUPS

Regal Plumbing & Heating Co
Regal Plumbing & Heating Co

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

PP ARAARARARALLODNADLRLDAPARPR NN

1,006.52
68.80
1,820.37
1,304.32
1,5697.22
2,231.11
139.75
711.85

17,779.84

Amount

6,715.08
496.36
1,229.81
2,454.11
2,070.65
5,500.00
1,006.41
2,098.47
3,563.85
525.00
1,150.00
3,600.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
1,150.00
1,100.00
1,100.00
5,876.00
886.88
32.00
1,314.00
4,590.00

Hydrant repair

Pest control for Admin Office

Digital positioner for filter valves (valve controller) - replacement of stock
Mainbreak repair at Old Troy Pk

Hauling of dirt from mainbreak repair at Old Troy Pk

Hauling of dirt from mainbreak repair at Old Troy Pk

Annual inspection of wet sprinkler system at Plant

Annual inspection of portable fire extinguishers for Admin Office, Shop and P

Description

Vehicle maintenance

Vehicle maintenance - Vac truck maintenance
Mainbreak repair

Mainbreak repair at Old Troy Pk

Mainbreak repair

Turf renovation due to mainbreak repair

Gravel for mainbreak repair

Gravel for mainbreak repair

Gravel for mainbreak repair

Dirt hauling for mainbreak repair

Concrete repair for mainbreak repair - 7154 Chadbourne
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair - Old Troy Pk
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair - 6800 Locustview
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair - 5434 Pitcairn
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair - 6111 Holbrook
Concrete repair for mainbreak repair - Corner of Haddon and Hemingway
PLC card for radio telemetry

Vitek lift station pump replacement

Grounds maintenance at Plants

Monthly maintenance fee

Rebuild of air relief valves

Rebuild of air relief valves



Core & Main $ 188.62 Water line repair

Core & Main $ 1,475.77 Mainbreak repair

Sparling Instruments $ 954.50 RRRWTP Well #4 totalizer

Brehob $ 911.09 Parts for air compressors that work the valves on the pressure filters
BL Anderson $ 850.32 Chemical feed tubes

Core & Main $ 700.78 Mainbreak and service line repair

BestOne Tire $ 963.49 Vehicle maintenance - Vac truck tire repair

Zoro $ 147.53 Vehicle maintenance - Vac truck hydraulic filters

Lavy Enterprises LLC $ 849.40 Vehicle maintenance - Repair of backhoe

Leach Enterprises $ 150.00 Repair at Apache lift station

Pickrel Bros $ 156.98 Pressure regulator for water

Quality Seasons $ 2,297.55 Yard repair due to mainbreak repair

Core & Main $ (689.78) Hydrant expenses reversed. Billed as Third Party Damages.
July $ 57,514.87

Vendor Amount Description

260.00 Troubleshoot controller regarding pump motor
2,328.21 Mainbreak repair
2,311.38 Mainbreak repair
1,000.00 Concrete repair for mainbreak repair - Charnwood and Camerford
2,423.59 Vehicle maintenance
Martin Marietta 294.60 Gravel for mainbreak repair
Martin Marietta 3,039.66 Gravel for mainbreak repair

Carey Electric $
$
$
$
$
$
$

Martin Marietta $ 299.66 Gravel for mainbreak repair
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Core & Main
Core & Main
Lee Shellhaas
Element

Regal Plumbing & Heating Co 4,590.00 Rebuild of 2 air relief valves

Regal Plumbing & Heating Co 1,314.00 Rebuild of air releive valves

Neptune Technology Group 2,899.92 Annual maintenance for software, belt clip and pocket proreader
Woolace Electric Corp 949.45 RRRWTP Well #6 repair

Best Equipment 820.27 Vehicle maintenance - Vac truck repair

Best Equipment 5,567.77 Vehicle maintenance - Vac truck repair

OUPS 92.00 Monthly maintenance fee

Paulus Lawn and Landscape LLC 682.63 Grounds maintenance at Plants



Vandalia Rental
Leach Enterprises
Pickrel Bros
Core & Main
RD Holder
Zoro
SecurCom
Pickrel Bros

BL Anderson
Core & Main
EJP

August

Main Breaks

Vehicle Maintenance

Lift Stations
Hydrants
Plants

Misc

YTD Total

- €A R NP P AP PP PP

36,498.64

Grand Total $ 245171.36

101,783.94
34,534.11
46,513.36

49,335.45
11,681.55
245,171.36

Rental of backhoe

Repair to Oaks lift station

Replacement of pressure regulator (Brandt south of 70)
Mainbreak, service line and angle valve repair
Vehicle maintenance - Vac truck repair
Vehicle maintenance - Vac truck repair

Fire alarm inspection - recertify NF building
Plumbing supplies for NF skid #3

Tube elements for chemical feed supply
Gasket for Vitek lift station

Hydrant repair



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-

TO INCREASE THE NOT TO EXCEED MAINTENANCE CONTRACT AMOUNT AND
AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT MODIFICATION
WITH SUEZ WATER ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.

WHEREAS, Suez Water Ervronmental Services, Inc. has operated the City’s water and wastewater
systems since September 29, 1995; and

WHEREAS, the City Charter requires that City Council approve all work performed by a single
contractor n excess of $25,000.00 in any given year; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined to increase the not to exceed amount of the contract to pay the
auditors fees for ths year’s audit outside the contract and also to alow the company to perform
additional work for the City due to emergency measures and additional services as needed, without
delay; and

WHEREAS, City Council agrees that it 5 prudentand cost eflective to increase Suez Water
Ervironmental Services, Inc. contractto alow the company to perform addtional work for the City due to
emergency measures and additional services as needed, without delay.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The City Manager b hereby authorized to enter into a contract modification to increase
the maintenance contract amount for Suez Water Environmental Services, Inc. by $160,000.00 for a
new total of $341,892.26.

Section 2. It 5 hereby found and determined that all formal actions of ths Council conceming and
rebting to the passage of ths Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of ths Council and all
delberations of ths Courcil and of any of is Committees that resulied n such formal action were in
meetings open to the public and in compliance with all kgal requirements ncluding Section 121.22 of
the Ohio Revsed Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into eflect upon is passage as provided by bw and the Charter
of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Courcil on the day , 2021,
Yeas, Nays.

Efective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



Al-7822 Topics of Discussion
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Jonetta Street Lift Station Discussion

Submitted By: Hanane Eisentraut

Department: Engineering Division: Engineering

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Jonetta Street Lift Station Discussion

Purpose and Background
This agenda item is for continued discussion concerning the private lift station on Jonetta Street.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.




Al-7816 Topics of Discussion K.
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021
Redwood Development Agreement Amendment
Submitted By: Scott Falkowski
Department: City Manager

Council Committee Review?: Council Work Session
Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Redwood Development Agreement Amendment

Purpose and Background

The City entered into the Red Buckeye Development Agreement in 2015 that addresses certain property located
within Carriage Trails which is intended to be used for commercial projects. This Red Buckeye Development
Agreement details the use of CRA incentives related to these projects. The City added certain property to the
then existing CRA area to accomplish economic development. All of the property that was added to the CRA
district was not covered within the Red Buckeye Development Agreement. The owners of certain other property,
not covered under the Red Buckeye Development Agreement, but added to the CRA, have agreed to only request
CRA exemption if agreed to in advance by the City and that the City may deny CRA exemption at its sole
discretion. This allows the City to control the granting of CRA exemptions and binds future owners of these
parcels to this agreement. An agreement was created for Redwood - Phase lll, and the developer is ready to
move to Phase IV.

This additional agreement allows for the next phase of the Redwood (Harrison) development. The previous
phases did not include a portion of the Carriage Trails and Red Buckeye assessments; however, this phase on the
involved parcel does. The agreement will allow for incentives within the CRA for the advancement of the project.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution
Exhibit A




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-

APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF THAT CERTAIN FIRST AMENDMENT TO
REDWOOD DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS,
OHIO (“CITY”), DEC LAND CO. | LLC (“DEC”), AND REDWOOD USA LLC
(“REDWOOD”) (THE “PARTIES”); AND GIVING CERTAIN DISCRETIONARY
CONTROL TO THE CITY RELATIVE TO THE EXTENSION OF CRA RIGHTS TO
CERTAIN PROPERTY OF THE PARTIES.

WHEREAS, DEC owns certain real property within the City (“Red Buckeye Developer
Property”) wherein the DEC proposed to construct, or cause to be constructed, various
development projects; and

WHEREAS, the City and DEC entered into a Red Buckeye Development Agreement dated
September 28, 2015 to provide for the development of the Red Buckeye Developer Property; and

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Redwood Development Agreement dated June 12, 2019
(“Redwood Development Agreement”) to provide for the development of a portion of the Red
Buckeye Developer Property for the purpose of causing to be constructed thereon approximately
82 single-story multi- family apartments known as Harrison III (“Redwood Apartment Project”);
and the City passed Resolution No. 2019-R-6764 on June 10, 2019 approving the execution of
the Redwood Development Agreement; and

WHEREAS, DEC and Redwood have entered into a Purchase Agreement effective April 29,
2021 to provide for the development of a portion of the Red Buckeye Developer Property for the
purpose of causing to be constructed thereon approximately 34 single-story multi- family
apartments to be known as Harrison IV (“Redwood Apartment Project-Harrison IV” or
“Harrison IV”); and

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a First Amendment to Redwood Development
Agreement (“First Amendment”), attached as Exhibit A (the “Property”); the Property is or will
be covered by CRA Area #5; and the Parties desire to give to the City certain discretionary
control over the use and application of the benefits of CRA #5 relative to the Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio, that:

Section 1. The First Amendment, attached as Exhibit A, has been discussed by Council and
it is determined that entering into the First Amendment is in the best interest of the City. The
City Manager, for and in the name of this City, is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement,
provided further that the approval of changes hereto by that official, and their character as not
being substantially adverse to the City, shall be evidenced conclusively by the execution thereof.

Section 2. This Council further hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager, the Director
of Finance, the City Attorney, the Clerk of Council, or other appropriate officers of the City to
prepare and sign all agreements and instruments and to take any other actions as may be
appropriate to implement this Resolution.

Section 3. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.



Passed by Council on the day of , 2021.
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:
Clerk of Council Mayor
Date Date

CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, Clerk of Council of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, hereby certifies that the
foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2021-R- adopted by the Council
of the City of Huber Heights, on , 2021.

Clerk of Council



Exhibit A

FIRST AMENDMENT TO
REDWOOD DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO REDWOOD DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the
“First Amendment”) is made and entered into this ___ day of August, 2021 (the “Effective
Date”), by and between the CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO (the “City”), a municipal
corporation duly organized and validly existing under the Constitution and the laws of the
State of Ohio (the “State”) and its Charter; DEC LAND CO. | LLC, an Ohio limited liability
company (the “Developer”); and REDWOOD USA LLC, an Ohio limited liability company
(“Redwood”), and together with the City and Developer (the “Parties”) and each of the
Parties individually referred to herein as a “Party”, under the circumstances summarized
in the following recitals:

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Developer owns certain real property within the City (“Red
Buckeye Developer Property”) wherein the Developer proposed to construct, or
cause to be constructed, various development projects;

WHEREAS, the City and Developer entered into a Red Buckeye Development
Agreement dated September 28, 2015 to provide for the development of the Red
Buckeye Developer Property;

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Redwood Development Agreement dated
June 12, 2019 (“Redwood Development Agreement”) to provide for the development of
a portion of the Red Buckeye Developer Property for the purpose of causing to be
constructed thereon approximately 82 single-story multi-family apartments known as
Harrison Il (“Redwood Apartment Project”);

WHEREAS, the Developer and Redwood have entered into a Purchase
Agreement effective April 29, 2021 to provide for the development of a portion of the
Red Buckeye Developer Property (depicted and/or described on Exhibit A attached
hereto) (“Harrison IV Property”) for the purpose of causing to be constructed thereon
approximately 34 single-story multi-family apartments (“Redwood Apartments”) to be
known as Harrison IV (“Redwood Apartment Project-Harrison V" or “Harrison IV");

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and covenants contained herein,
and to induce Developer to continue to proceed with the proposed development for
Harrison IV, the Parties hereto agree and obligate themselves as follows:

Paragraph 1. Harrison IV. Developer and the City hereby confirm that the Harrison IV
Property lies within the real property subject to the TIF Ordinance and CRA #5 Resolution.
Except to the extent necessitated by the changes set forth herein, all references to the
Redwood Apartment Property in the Redwood Development Agreement shall be deemed
to include the Harrison IV Property, and all references to the Redwood Apartment Project
in the Redwood Development Agreement shall be deemed to include Harrison IV.



Paragraph 2. Modifications to the Redwood Development Agreement.

A. Definitions

a. For purposes of Harrison 1V, the last sentence of the definition of “MSP First
Payment Year” shall be deleted and replaced with the following: “However,
in no event shall the first payment begin later than 2025 regardless of the
status of or percentage of completion of the project.

b. The Notice Address for Redwood shall be replaced with the following:
7007 E. Pleasant Valley Road
Independence, Ohio 44131
Attn: Chief Legal Office
Email: Legal@byredwood.com

B. Section 4.1 The parties agree that Section 4.1 of the Agreement applies only to
Harrison I, and is not reflective of or applicable to the Harrison IV Property.

C. Section 4.11 Other Obligations of Redwood

1. Red Buckeye Assessment for Harrison IV. Redwood shall pay an
annual assessment for construction of Red Buckeye Parkway, in the amount of $9,180
($270 per Redwood Apartment, re-calculated to the extent more or less than 34 Redwood
Apartments are constructed) plus any collection fee that may be imposed by the County,
which annual amount shall be payable in calendar years 2022 through and including 2042,
in semi-annual installments on or before the date required for payment of the assessment
as required by law.

2, Payment of the Carriage Trails Parkway Assessment for Harrison |V.
Redwood shall pay an annual assessment in the amount of $680($20 per Redwood
Apartment, re-calculated to the extent more of less than 34 Redwood Apartments are
constructed) plus any collection fee that may be imposed by the County, which annual
amount shall be payable in calendar years 2022 through and including 2032, in semi-
annual installments as required by law.

3. Payment of the MSP Payments for Harrison IV. Redwood shall make
the following MSP payments to the City in the following years in semi-annual instaliments,
on or before the date required for payment as required by law:

For the Redwood Apartment Project-Harrison |V, the annual amount of the
Minimum Service Payment shall equal:

Year Annual Amount
MSP First Payment Year (i.e., 2023) $39,837
MSP Payment Years 1-15 (i.e., 2024-2036) $39,837
MSP Last Payment Year (i.e., 2037) $39,837

D. Except as expressly set forth herein, the Redwood Development Agreement is

unmodified and in full force and effect. In the event of an inconsistency between the terms
2



of this First Amendment and the terms of the Redwood Development Agreement, the
terms of this First Amendment shall control. This First Amendment shall be binding upon
and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their heirs, personal representatives,
successors and assigns. This First Amendment may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original copy of the agreement and all of
which, when taken together, will be deemed one and the same agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this First Amendment to be executed
in their respective names by their duly authorized representatives, all as of the date first

written above.



CitYy oF HuBER HEIGHTS, OHIO

By:

Printed:

Title: City Manager
Approved as to Form and Correctness:
By:
Printed: Gerald McDonald
Title: City Attorney
STATE OF OHIO )

) SS:

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY )
Onthis __ dayof , 2021, before me a Notary Public personally appeared

, the authorized representative of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, and

acknowledged the execution of the foregoing instrument, and that the same is their
voluntary act and deed on behalf of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio and the voluntary act
and deed of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio. The Notarial act certified hereby is an
acknowledgment. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer with regard to

the notarial act certified to hereby.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my

official seal on the date and year aforesaid.

Notary Public



STATE OF OHIO )
) SS.
COUNTY OF FRANKLIN )

DEC Land Co. | LLC

D

Y/

——

By: Carriage Trails at The Heights LLC
Its: Managing Member
By: William W. Keethler [, President

On this 'iﬁ*day of Awg}\_x 3{ -, 2021, before me a Notary Public personally appeared

William W. Keethler I, President of Carriage Trails at The Heights LLC, Managing
Member of DEC Land Co. | LLC, an Ohio limited liability company, and acknowledged the
execution of the foregoing instrument, and that the same is his voluntary act and deed on
behalf of DEC Land Co. | LLC and the voluntary act and deed of DEC Land Co. | LLC.

The Notarial act certified hereby is an acknowledgment. No oath or affirmation was

administered to the signer with regard to the notarial act certified to hereby.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my

official seal on the date and year aforesaid.

Notary Public, State of Ohlo
My Commission Expires 08-16-2025

ANy,
‘.\\ul iy,

Nocand AR AL

Notafy Public  J )



By: David Conwill, Authorized Signer

STATE OF OHIO )

) SS:
COUNTY OF ngmhg%(/_\ )
On this \Q day of &M{;}A& , 2021, before me a Notary Public personally

appeared David Conwill, Authorized Member, REDWOOD USA LLC, an Ohio limited
liability company, and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing instrument, and that
the same is his voluntary act and deed on behalf of REDWOOD USA LLC and the
voluntary act and deed of REDWOOD USA LLC. The Notarial act certified hereby is an
acknowledgment. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer with regard to

the notarial act certified to hereby.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my

official seal on the date and year aforesaid.

CRAAL g, -
By &,
10263 Jocelyn B. Musarra 4 VO~

Y ic. State of Ohio -
3 % No‘aryg;‘;,{;g;ion Expires: Notary Pliblic

April 5, 2026

My C



FISCAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, Director of Finance of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio under the
foregoing Agreement, certifies hereby that the moneys required to meet the obligations of
the City during the year 2021 under the foregoing Agreement have been appropriated
lawfully for that purpose, and are in the Treasury of the City or in the process of collection to
the credit of an appropriate fund, free from any previous encumbrances. This Certificate is

given in compliance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.41 and 5705.44.

Dated: , 2021

James A. Bell
Director of Finance
City of Huber Heights, Ohio



EXHIBIT A

—
[
-
!
|
!
{
;
i &
| b8
] a o
! 8a
i p
! s
! g
|
h
| / f
| /’
/ 0
P LA /
iy 4
& ¢§ !
&/ !
. ¥ /; f' %
wa Y 44 !
a4 Y 4 I m
8¢ R ! >
ot V7 X !
s Y ] il
iy /A4 |
2z 744 ! 2
% /i - L :
S8 4 ; B 0T 1508
A | > 93MAcReg
A/l/ :. (@) R
./
‘w’ ,”\\ ,'! “
] i J
<ql \ ! /
sh Y I p—————
il - Jr 4 S
: T e i
R = . e e—
‘[ A2 20y ,“,C:. ,_.s '7”5"‘(":‘”? ragsg'—-—_',;'
1 —— / g/
! —~—CIIgdnm——o 5 !
i fr I 3o
al ' | & !
N Iyl ! o
) ¥ i B
| It ! !
H ! I
! { |
] H i ! F
| %“ { ! !
| / ! !
b, i ! ! /i
! J
1 L { ! ’
' { { [
! A | b 4,
| A\ ! s
W i 1,77
vy ’ A/
‘
<
.
= by st
v OF gl
ﬂ"l HARRISOH IV :’ ;




Al-7817 Topics of Discussion L
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Carriage Trails Annexation Service Agreement

Submitted By: Scott Falkowski

Department: City Manager

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Carriage Trails Annexation Service Agreement

Purpose and Background

A petition is being filed to annex 233 acres along the north boundary of Huber Heights. Part of the process is for
the City to provide a resolution stating that it will provide services for the area. The attached agreement allows for
the City to place the land into a TIF district and allows for the developer to assign developer-funded special
assessments for public infrastructure.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Agreement
Resolution




1420266v2

PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

THIS PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"”) is made and entered into this

day of ,20__, by and among CARRIAGE TRAILS AT THE HEIGHTS LLC (the

"Developer"), and the CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO (the "City"), The Developer and the City are
referred to collectively herein as the "Parties".
RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Developer owns or controls by contract approximately 233.280+/- acres of land
(which land is depicted on ExHIBIT A attached hereto and owned by the several owners as described on
ExHIBIT B attached hereto and referred to herein as the "Property"); and

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that it is in their mutual interest during the annexation process to
enter into this Agreement for the mutual benefit of the Developer and the City; and

Now THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements contained herein, the
Developer and the City covenant and agree as follows:

Section 1. Annexation Petitions and Related Approvals.

A. Petition(s) for Annexation; Annexation. The Developer agrees to prepare and file one

or more petitions as required by the Ohio Revised Code ("ORC"), to annex the Property to the City. The
annexation process shall be an "Expedited Type 11" annexation as provided in ORC Section 709.023.

B. City Service Resolution. As required by the ORC, the City agrees to enact, prior to

twenty (20) days after the date of filing the annexation petition(s) with the Board of County
Commissioners of Miami County, Ohio (the "Commissioners"), the appropriate resolution of service (the
"Service Resolution”) stating the services that will be provided to the Property upon annexation. A copy
of the proposed Service Resolution is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

Section 2. Development Considerations.

(i) TIF. The Developer agrees to cooperate with the City to place Tax Increment Financing

(“TIF”) on the Property. The City will prepare all documents necessary to impose the TIF on the



1420266v2

Property and the Developer and the City will execute said documents after an agreement has been reached
by the parties.

(i) Special Assessments. The City agrees to approve developer-funded special assessments

on terms consistent with those described in City Resolution No. 2021-R-7018 and City Ordinance No.
2021-0-2483. The terms of the special assessments will be negotiated by the parties and the parties will
execute an agreement once the terms have been agreed upon.

Section 3. Zoning Considerations. The Developer has determined to seek zoning for a

planned unit development designation similar to Carriage Trails. If, for any reason, the rezoning cannot
be accomplished in a manner acceptable to the Developer and/or the rezoning is referred or defeated for
any reason, and/or an ordinance, resolution or rule is enacted by the City that would adversely affect
Developer's intended use of the Property, the City agrees, at the Developer’s request, not to accept the
annexation by allowing the 120-day acceptance period to expire and Developer may terminate this
Agreement. If (i) the annexation approval occurs prior to or other than concurrently with the approval of
the rezoning and the rezoning is subsequently not approved in a manner acceptable to the Developer;
(i) the annexation approval is referred to a vote of the electorate; or (iii) an ordinance, resolution or rule
is enacted or adopted by the City that would adversely affect Developer's intended use of the Property, the
City agrees, at the request of the Developer: (a) to reconsider the ordinance accepting the annexation
and/or rescind, repeal and reject the annexation approval; or (b) to approve detachment/de-annexation
from the City the part(s) of the Property and/or not oppose Developer’s petition to detach/de-annex all or
part the Property; and the Developer may terminate this Agreement.

Section 4. Compliance. Nothing in this Agreement shall abrogate the Parties hereto from
the zoning, development plan, and subdivision platting process before the Planning Commission, Board

of Zoning Appeals, if necessary, and before the City Council of the City.



1420266v2

Section 5. Miscellaneous.

A. Intent of Parties. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties hereto and their

respective successors and/or assigns, and by execution hereof, all Parties represent that they are duly

authorized to sign it. By passage of Ordinance No. on , the City has authorized

the execution of this Agreement.

B. Public Notice and Hearings. All public hearings will occur in accordance with the
requirements of the ORC, the Rules of Regulations of the Board of County Commissioners pertaining to
Annexations, and the ordinances of the City.

C. Notices. For purposes of this agreement, notices shall be addressed as follows:

to the Developer at:

Carriage Trails at The Heights LLC
5131 Post Road, Suite 101

Dublin, Ohio 43017

Attn: William W. Keethler 11
bkeethler@carriage-trails.com

with a copy to:

Jill S. Tangeman, Esq.

Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease
52 East Gay Street

Columbus, Ohio 43215
jstangeman@vorys.com

to the City at:
City of Huber Heights

6131 Taylorsville Road

Huber Heights, Ohio 45424

Attn: Scott Falkowski, Interim City Manager
sfalkowski@hhoh.org

with a copy to:

Gerald McDonald, Director of Law
6131 Taylorsville Road

Huber Heights, Ohio 45424
gmcdonald@pselaw.com



mailto:bkeethler@carriage-trails.com
mailto:jstangeman@vorys.com
mailto:sfalkowski@hhoh.org
mailto:gmcdonald@pselaw.com

1420266v2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their

duly authorized representatives to be effective 20
CiTY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO APPROVED AS TO FORM FORTHE CITY
By: By:
Printed: Printed:
Title: Title:
By:
Title:
By:
Title:
STATE OF OHIO )
) SS:
COUNTY OF )
On this day of , 20__, before me a Notary Public personally
appeared , the authorized representative of the City of Ohio, and

acknowledged the execution of the foregoing instrument, and that the same is of the City of Huber
Heights, Ohio.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my official seal on
the date and year aforesaid.

Notary Public



1420266v2

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their

duly authorized representatives this day of , 20

DEVELOPER
CARRIAGE TRAILS AT THEHEIGHTS LLC

By:

Its:

STATE OF OHIO )
) SS:
COUNTY OF FRANKLIN )

On this day of , 2021, before me a Notary Public personally
appeared William W. Keethler Il, the authorized representative of Developer and acknowledged the
execution of the foregoing instrument, and that the same is his voluntary act and deed on behalf of
Developer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my official seal on
the date and year aforesaid.

Notary Public



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-

ADOPTING A STATEMENT INDICATING THE SERVICES THE CITY OF HUBER
HEIGHTS, OHIO WILL PROVIDE TO THE TERRITORY PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED
TO THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS PURSUANT TO A PETITION FILED WITH THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF MIAMI COUNTY BY LAND OWNERS (AS DEFINED
BELOW), AS PROVIDED BY OHIO REVISED CODE SECTION 709.023.

WHEREAS, Gary L. Lavy, Successor Trustee (Parcel No. A01-012200), Gessaman Family
Farm, LLC (Parcel Nos. A01-012300 and A01-044400) and Raymond E. and Kriss T. Haren
(Parcel No. A01-015000) (collectively referred to as the “Land Owners”), have filed with the
Board of Commissions of Miami County, a petition to annex to the City of Huber Heights
approximately 233.280 acres of land within Bethel Township, Miami County Obhio,
("Township™) as shown in the legal descriptions and map attached and incorporated as Exhibit A
(the “Proposed Property™);

WHEREAS, the Land Owners’ property is contiguous to the City of Huber Heights Corporation
limits as shown in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 709.023, a special annexation procedure
where land is not excluded from Township. the municipal corporation to which annexation is
proposed shall adopt a resolution stating what services the municipal corporation will provide to
the land petitioned to be annexed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The City of Huber Heights states that within a reasonable amount of time
after completion of the annexation of the Proposed Property to the City of Huber Heights,
which is anticipated to be approximately , 2021 it will provide to the
newly annexed territory the following services:

Police and fire protection; paramedic and ambulance services; professional
engineering staff, park and recreation programming; maintenance of any
and all public streets and alleyways, falling within the jurisdiction and
control of the City, keeping the same open, in repair, and free from
nuisance; street lighting in accordance with any citywide plan/policy for
streetlights; planning and development services; fire inspections; water
service, sewer service in accordance with reasonable development needs
of the Proposed Property and expansion ability of City; and any and all
other services provided at the discretion of City of Huber Heights, which
may be in addition to those services listed herein.

Section 2. If the Proposed Property is subject to zoning regulations adopted under either
Chapter 303 or 519 of the Revised Code and once annexed becomes subject to City of Huber
Heights zoning which permits uses in the annexed territory that the City determines are clearly
incompatible with uses under current county or township zoning in the adjacent land remaining
in the Township, the City of Huber Heights shall require, in the zoning ordinance permitting the
incompatible use the owner of the annexed territory to provide a buffer separating the use of the
annexed territory and the adjacent land remaining within the township.

Section 3. The Clerk of Council is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this legislation
with the Board of County Commissioners for Miami County, Ohio within twenty days following
the date that the petition was filed with the County.

Section 4. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in



such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 5. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021.
Yeas,; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:
Clerk of Council Mayor
Date Date

CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, Clerk of Council of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, hereby certifies that the
foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2021-R- adopted by the Council
of the City of Huber Heights, on , 2021.

Clerk of Council



Exhibit A

DESCRIPTION OF 233280 ACRES
BETHEL TOWMNSHIP, MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO
FOR ANNEXATION TO THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS

Sitwated in the State of Ohio, County of Miami, Township of Bethel, being parts of
Sections 13, 19 and 20, Township 2, Range 9, Miami Rivers Survey, being all that property of
Raymond E. & Kriss T. Haren, of record in Deed Book 616, Page 414, all that property of Gary
L. Lavy, Trustee, of record in 20090R-07903 (Tract [ only), and all that property of (Gessaman
Family Farm LLC, of record in Deed Book 722, Page 610, all references herein being to the
records of the Recorder’s Office, Miami County, Ohio, and being more particularly described as
follows:

Beginning at the southeasterly corner of the Haren property and in the existing northerly
corporation ling of the City of Huber Heights, of record in Plat Book 19, Pages 73 & 73A;

Thence along said corpoeration line the following courses:

1. North 84720709 West, a distance of 167787 feet to the southwesterly corner of the Lavy
property 24 940-acre parcel;

2. Morth 5"13°29” East, a distance of 732,60 feet to the southeasterly comer of the Lavy 93-
acre parcel;

3. Morth 84754754 West, a distance of 2678 46 feet to the southwesterly corner of the
Giessaman Family Farm 25-acre parcel (part of Tract Twa):

4. Morth 5"06°04™ East, a distance of 61438 feet to the southeasterly corner of the

Giessaman Family Farm 14-acre parcel (Tract One):

Morth 84734707 West, a distance of 45676 feet to the southwesterly corner of said 14-

acre parcel;

Ln

Thence Morth 4°58°53" East, along the westerly line of said 14-acre parcel, a distance of
133764 feet to a point at the northwesterly cormer of saime;

Thence South 84"30° 287 East, along the northerly line of said 14-acre parcel, a distance of
33371 feet to a point;

Thence North 57307367 East, along the westerly line of a Gessaman Family Farm 1-acre
parcel (part of Tract Two), a distance of 34518 feet to a point in the centerline of U.S. Route 40;

Thence North 82°30708™ East, along said centerline, a distance of 251.02 feet to the
northeasterly comer of another Gessaman Family Farm 1-acre parcel (part of Tract Two);

Thence South 4"377 187 West, along the easterly line of said 1-acre parcel, a distance of
400.50 feet to a point in the northerly line of said Gessaman Family Farm 235-acre parcel (part of
Tract Two);

Thence South 84"34°427 East, along said northerly line and the northerly line of the Lavy
95-acre parcel, a distance of 1524.19 feet to a point at the southwesterly corner of the Lavy
20.32-acre parcel;

Thence North 4"377187 East, along the westerly line of said 20.32-acre parcel, a distance of
T43.04 feet to a point in the centerline of U.S Route 40;



Thence North 82°20°47" East, along said centerling, a distance of 1071.14 feet the
northeasterly comner of the Lavy 0.67-acre parcel:

Thence South 5"23°34™ West, along the easterly line of said 0.67-acre parcel, a distance of’
979.28 feet io the northwesterly corner of the Lavy 25-acre parcel:

Thence South 8475347427 East, along the northerly line of said 25-acre parcel, a distance of
1030 feet to the northeasterly comer of same;

Thence South 5"4& 08 West, along the easterly line of said 25-acre parcel, a distance of
1353.47 feet to the northwesterly corner of the Haren 26.697-acre parcel;

Thence South 84712749 East, along the northerly line of said 26.6%7-acre parcel, a
distance of 867.90 feet to the northeasterly corner of same;

Thence South 4"3%° 217 West, along the easterly line of said 26.697-acre parcel, a distance
of 1339.13 feet to the place of beginning and containing 233 280 acres of land, 76.313 acres in
Section 13, 132 453 acres in Section 19 and 24 514 acres in Section 20,

Total perimeter of this annexation area is 17,517 feet of which 6,160 feet is contiguous
with the existing City of Huber Heights corporation line, producing a 35% perimeter contiguiry.

Bearings herein are based on the Ohio State Plane Coordinate Svstem, South Lone, NAD
LR

This description was prepared by IBI Group Survey based on information ebtained from
partial field surveys, the Miami County Engineer’s record of land surveys and the Miami County
Recorder’s deed records and plat records, in May 2021,

7] s/ o
s ARl s

David L. Chiesa Date 052721
Registered Survevor Mo, 7740

Sy et

VET



Al-7814 Topics of Discussion M-
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Monita Field Parking/Amenities

Submitted By: Scott Falkowski

Department: Planning Division: Parks and Recreation

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 08/17/2021 and 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Monita Field Parking/Amenities

Purpose and Background

When the project was bid for the Monita Field Skate Park, Wagner Pavings' bid had three parts. City Staff
requested approval of one portion of that bid which was approved by City Council. This request is for approval of
the other two sections for additional asphalt repair and paving from that original bid. As requested by City Council,
an additional proposal has been provided to expand the parking lot for an additional 12 spaces. This earlier
legislation is scheduled for a second reading at the September 13, 2021 City Council Meeting.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Proposal
Proposal - Updated
Resolution - Revised




Proposal

Wagner Paving, Inc.

P.O. Box B
Laura, Ohio 45337
Phone: (937) 947-1834
Fax: (937) 947-1899

COMPANY: City of Huber Heights PHONE: (937) 902-2279 DATE: 6/01/2021
EMAIL: jking@hhoh.org SUBJECT: Monita Field Park
TO: Josh King TOTAL PAGES: 1 JOB NUMBER: 21-0585

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

ASPHALT REPAIRS BASED ON APPROX. 200 SQ. YD.:
1. Mill deteriorated areas to 3" depth.

2. Haul spoil off site.

3. Sweep and clean areas.

4. Apply liquid tack to vertical edges.

5. Place and compact 2" of #301 base asphalt. PRICE: $6,240.00

PARKING LOT ON RIGHT OF DRIVE BASED ON APPROX. 1,538 SQ. YD.:

1. Mill existing area to approx. 10" depth.

2. Leave milling in place to be graded and re-compacted.

3. Remove and/or add necessary stone base to achieve desired grade.

4. Apply liquid tack to vertical edges.

5. Place and compact 2" of #301 base asphalt. PRICE: $29,159.00

TOTAL AREA INCLUDING DRIVE AND PARKING AREA BASED ON APPROX. 4,180 SQ. YD.:

1. Mill existing asphalt where necessary to provide level transitions.

2. Clean and sweep area.

3. Apply liquid tack to entire area.

4, Place 1 2" compacted #448 Type 1 surface asphait.

5. Stripe parking areas as existing.

6. Remove and re-set {35) existing parking blocks. PRICE: $30,717.00

NOTE: NO permits, testing, #408 prime, traffic control, or signs included IF required.

NON PREVAILING WAGE RATES TAX NOT INCLUDED 1 MOVE IN 2021 ONLY

*NOTES* CONFIRMATION NEEDED WITHIN 15 DAYS TO LOCK IN PRICES.
With the greatly fluctuating cost of asphalt, aggregate, and fuel prices, 2022 and beyond prices cannot be
guaranteed at this time. Wagner Paving reserves the right to adjust price fluctuations positive or negative in
regards to 2022 and beyond pricing as necessary.
Any reduction in units, quantities, or increases in mobilizations may result in an increase in cost.
All grade to be sound and within tolerance. _1 move in, all others $850.00 each. Ali traffic control by others. Any overage due to poor grade
done by others will be paid for by owner.
IF THIS IS ACCEPTED AS A CONTRACT, PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN. Project will not be started until a signed contract is received by
Wagner Paving, Inc. Upon acceptance, please also forward a Notice of Commencement and any applicable tax exempt forms. Net due 30
days from date of invoice. There will be a 1 1/2% (18% apr) service charge applied to all past due accounts.
All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed

in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices. Any

alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs /\

will be executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra Authorized / ) 1

charge over and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon Signature ﬁ)

strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, TEVE QVERHOLSER

tomado and other necessary insurance. Our workers are fully covered

by Worker's Compensation Insurance. We are an EEO employer. Note: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted
Accepfance of Proposal -- The above prices, specifications and within 15 days.

conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are

authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as

outlined above. Signature
mb

Date of Acceptance:

Signature




Proposal

Wagner Paving, Inc.

P.O. Box B
Laura, Ohio 45337
Phone: (937) 947-1834
Fax: (937) 947-1899

COMPANY: City of Huber Heights PHONE: (937) 902-2279 DATE: 8-30-21
EMAIL: jking@hhoh.org SUBJECT: Additional Parking at Monita Field Park
TO: Josh King TOTAL PAGES: 1 JOB NUMBER: 21-0585

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

EXCAVATION BASED ON APPROX. 311 SQ. YD. INCLUDING PARKING AREA & SLOPING EMBANKMENT:
. Excavate area to proposed grade.

. Remove section of concrete on East end of new section.

. Remove brush and vegetation at East end of new section.

. All spoil to be hauled off site.

. Place, grade and compact 10” of 304 crushed concrete (112" x 20%)

. Place 2" of compacted Type 2 base asphalt.

. Place 1.5" of compacted Type 1 surface asphalt.

. Stripe area for 12 car spaces.

. Place and pin used parking blocks. PRICE: $23,484.00

OO~ WN=

Notes: 1. Any tree removal of over 4" diameter will be charged labor & equipment.
2. Any new 6’ concrete parking blocks purchased & pinned @ $80.00 each
3. Seed and mulch dirt areas by owner.
4. All work to be done at the same time as base bid.

Due to our current work under contract and the approaching fall weather conditions,

Wagner Paving, Inc. cannot commit to a completion date at this time. In order for work to be
considered for this fall, it is extremely important that Wagner Paving, Inc. receive a signed proposal
as soon as possible. Prices will be held into 2022 if work cannot be completed until then.

NOTE: NO permits, testing, #408 prime, traffic control, or signs included IF required.

NON PREVAILING WAGE RATES TAX NOT INCLUDED 1 MOVE IN 2021 OR 2022

*NOTES* CONFIRMATION NEEDED WITHIN 15 DAYS TO LOCK IN PRICES.
With the greatly fluctuating cost of asphalt, aggregate, and fuel prices, 2022 and beyond prices cannot be
guaranteed at this time. Wagner Paving reserves the right to adjust price fluctuations positive or negative in
regards to 2022 and beyond pricing as necessary.
Any reduction in units, quantities, or increases in mobilizations may result in an increase in cost.
All grade to be sound and within tolerance. _1 move in, all others $850.00 each. All traffic control by others. Any overage due to poor grade
done by others will be paid for by owner.

IF THIS IS ACCEPTED AS A CONTRACT, PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN. Project will not be started until a signed contract is received by
Wagner Paving, Inc. Upon acceptance, please also forward a Notice of Commencement and any applicable tax exempt forms. Net due 30
days from date of invoice. There will be a 1 1/2% (18% apr) service charge applied to all past due accounts.

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed

in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices. Any

alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs /é’\l

will be executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra Authorized

charge over and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon Signature Ve

strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, STEVE OVERHOLSER

tornado and other necessary insurance. Our workers are fully covered

by Worker's Compensation Insurance. We are an EEO employer. Note: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted
Acceptance of Proposal -- The above prices, specifications and within 15 days.

conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are

authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as

outlined above. Signature
dc

Date of Acceptance:

Signature




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTS FOR THE GRINDING
AND REPAVING OF ASPHALT FOR THE MONITA FIELD SKATE AND BMX PROJECT.

WHEREAS, City Council has previously passed Resolution No. 2020-R-6932 approving the
addition of a new amenity to the City’s parks and recreation facilities for construction of a new
multi-use Skate Park and BMX Track at Monita Field Park; and

WHEREAS, City Council under Resolution No. 2021-R-6998 has previously authorized the
securing of bids for construction and installation of a multi-use Skate Park and BMX Track to be
located within Monita Field Park; and

WHEREAS, bids were properly received on June 3, 2021.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract for Scope Number
Three of the Monita Field Park Skate Park and BMX Track Project for grinding and repaving of
asphalt with Wagner Paving as the lowest and best bidder at a cost not to exceed $35,400.00 on the
terms and conditions as substantially set forth in the specifications of the contract.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021;
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



Al-7819 Topics of Discussion N
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021
Baseball Field Maintenance Contract
Submitted By: Josh King
Department: Planning Division: Parks and Recreation
Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Baseball Field Maintenance Contract

Purpose and Background

Three City baseball fields at Thomas Cloud Park and Monita Field Park are in need of maintenance. Two quotes
were received and no other companies were willing to provide quotes. The overall cost for the renovations and
maintenance of the three baseball fields exceeds $25,000, so the legislation attached is requesting to waive the
competitive bidding requirements. This project was funded in the current City Budget.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: Parks and Recreation Fund
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Quotes
Resolution




LAWR

i
M|
== T i3
Athletic Field Specialisia

Customer

Name

Address

City
Phone

Estimate No. 5164

5062 Bantas Creek
West Alexandria, OH 45381
(937) 839-LAWN

ESTIMATE

City of Huber Heights: Thomas Cloud Field #1 Date 5/7/2021
Order No.
State ZIP

Qty
1

00O

Description Unit Price TOTAL
Field renovation of Field #1 $17,900.00 $17,900.00
Remove all bases/plate/pitching rubber
Sod cut all existing infield grass to about 4' from foul lines and remove
Sod cut outfield arc to appoximately 4' further than existing arc to remove
lip and make symmetrical
Till in new topsoil and grade to proper slope to prepare for new sod
Lay new turf type tall fecsue large roll sod in infield
Roll with 1.5 ton roller to lightly compact and crimp edges
Apply starter fertilizer to new sod
Incorporate 20 tons of Alvis Infield mix and 20 tons of Washington Ball Mix
into skinned infield and grade to proper slope using professional dual
slope laser grade machine. Roll to compact using 1.5 ton roller
Incorporateftopdress 4 tons of Turface MVP infield conditioner
Install new pittcher's mound at correct hieght and distance. (new rubber,
mound blocks, mound clay)
Install new home plate using clay blocks and pro mound clay in batters'
boxes and install new bases at 90'

SubTotal $17,900.00

Taxes State $0.00

TOTAL | $17,900.00 |

Office Use Only

THANKS FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

“
-_— s T A BirPTPTPBLPLAsusuBbCEPRMSSSSRRI————.,

"Victory Will Look Its Best"



Estimate No. 5165

M&Wﬁ 5062 Bantas Creek
Liie v T\m-'l —  West Alexandria, OH 45381

(937) 839-LAWN

ESTIMATE =

Customer
Name City of Huber Heights- Monita Fields Date 5/11/2021
Address 5001 Fishburg Rd Order No.

City Huber Heights State OH ZIP 45424
Phone

Qty Description Unit Price TOTAL
1 Renovate fields 1 and 2 at Monita Park $19,500.00 $19,500.00
Total kill both fields (round up) and remove vegetation
Cut oufield arcs to correct depth and to help remove lips, replace arc with
new large roll sod to make clean, symmetrical edge
Incorporate 40 tons of Alvis Infield Mix into skinned infields (80 tons total)
Roll to compact using 1.5 ton roller
Laser grade skinned infields to correct grade/slope using professional
dual slope laser grade machine
Incorporate 4 tons of Turface Infield Conditioner into both skinned infields
(8 tons total)
Replace pitching rubbers and home plates and set new bases at desired
length
Rebulild mound to correct distance/height/slope on larger field
Roll to compact skinned infields, nail drag, and finish drag

SubTotal $19,500.00

Taxes State $0.00

00O

TOTAL | $19,500.00 |

Office Use Only

THANKS FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

e e ——— e e e RN

"Victory Will Look Its Best"



4 MERCER
GROUR, INC,

ATHLETIC FIELD CONTRACTORS

www.mercer-group.com
TROY, OHIO




MERCER

Mercer Group, Inc. -
P.0. Box 771 ¢ Troy, Ohio 45373
Phone 937.335.7100 » Fax 937.335.3344 UP’ IN :
WwWw.mercer-group.com
ATHLETIC FIELD CONTRACTORS
www.mercer-group.com
TROY, OHIO .
Estimate/Contract
CUSTpMER INFORMATION P rop Osal
City of Huber Heights
Josh King
DATE ESTIMATE NO.
311512021 1857
ITEM DESCRIPTION Qry COST |TOTAL COST
Cloud Park - Field 1

Veg. Co... | Vegetation/Round-p Control 1 180.00 180.00T

Topo Su... | Use Laser Instrument to calculate grade slopes of Skinned Infield surface. 1 195.00 195.00T

infield Lip | Infield Lip/interface Removal 1 695.00 695.00T

Laser Gr... | Laser Grade/Leve! Skinned Infield with auto-grade master machine controlied box grader. 1] 1,250.00 1,250.00T

Pitchers ... | Re-build/Re-define mound. 1 560.00 960.007

Infield Mix | Processed Skinned Infield Ball Diamond Mix. Cost Includes Delivery, Placement on Sports 1| 6,250.00 6,250.00T

Field, and Rough Grading. 100 Tons

RolliCo... |Vibratory Compact Skinned Infieid Soils. 1 275.00 275.00T
Turface | Turface Type Soil Amendment. 3 Tons 3| 650.00 1,950.00T
Sod Install Big Roll Sports Turf Blend Sod. Sod back where lips were removed. Sod first and third 1] 7,850.00 7,650.007

base paths. (see drawing)

Base/HP... | Bases, Base Anchors, Home Plate, Pitching Rubber, supply and install 1 995.00 995.00T
Mobiliza... | Mobilization of equipment to and from site to perform project. 1 475.00 475.00T
Tax Ex. 0.00 0.00

TERMS: All accounts unpaid after 30 days from date of invoice will be charged a FINANCE
CHARGE of 2% per month which is an ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE of 24%. TOTAL COST  s2087500

MERCER GROUP, INC. and its employees are covered by general liability and workers'

f

compensation insurance as required by Ohio law. MERCER GROUP, INC. is a certified Drug %

]

Free Workplace Company. MERCER GROUP, INC. workforce is OSHA certified.
i

Troy S. Mercer, Vice President

§
i

P.O. Box 771 * Troy, Ohio 45373 Phone 937-335-7100 « Fax 937-335-3344



::;5;3 ' MERC ER School Name: (24D FARK

IﬂGROUR INC' Field Name:_ 7

ATHLETIC FIELD CONTRACTORS pate: $-/<= 202/

P O BOX 771, TROY, OH 45373 (937) 335-7100

Job Notes:

=

Attach with estimate # [E S7

FPRoPoSED NEN Sol

Sop ENTIRE BASELATH




Mercer Group, Inc.
P.0. Box 771 * Troy, Ohio 45373
Phone 937.335.7100 » Fax 937.335.3344

www.mercer-group.com
www.mercer-group.com
TROY, OHIO =
| Estimate/Contract
CUSTOMER INFORMATION P ro posal
City of Huber Heights
Josh King
DATE ESTIMATE NO.
3/15/2021 1858
ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY COST |TOTAL COST

Monita Park - Smaller field (East)

Veg. Co... | Vegetation/fRound-Up Control 1 135.00 135.00T
Topo Su... | Use Laser Instrument to calculate grade slopes of Skinned Infield surface. 1 195.00 195.007
infield Lip |infield Lip/Interface Removal 1 525.00 525.00T
Laser Gr... | Laser Grade/Level Skinned Infield with auto-grade master machine controlied box grader. 1 995.00 995.00T
Infield Mix | Processed Skinned Infield Ball Diamond Mix. Cost Includes Delivery, Placement on Sports t| 3,750.00 3,750.00T
Field, and Rough Grading. 60 Tons
Roli/Co... | Vibratory Compact Skinned Infield Soils.
Turface | Turface Type Soil Amendment. 2 Tons

—

275.00 275.00T
650.00 1,300.00T

M

Sod Install Big Roll Sports Turf Blend Sod. Sod back where lips were removed in apron area. (see 1] 1,500.00 1,500.00T
drawing)

Base/HP... | Bases, Base Anchors, Home Plate, Pitching Rubber, supply and install 1 995.00 995.007

Mobiliza... | Mobilization of equipment to and from site to perform project. 1 475,00 475.007
Tax Ex. 0.00 0.00

TERMS: All accounts unpaid after 30 days from date of invoice will be charged a FINANCE P
CHARGE of 2% per month which is an ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE of 24%. TOTAL COSt  sfeta50

MERCER GROUP, INC. and its employees are covered by general liability and workers'
compensation insurance as required by Ohio law. MERCER GROUP, INC.is a certified Drug 2 A
Free Workplace Company. MERCER GROUP, INC. workforce is OSHA ceriified.

Troy S. Mercer, Vice President

P.O. Box 771 ¢ Troy, Ohio 45373 Phone 937-335-7100 « Fax 937-335-3344



B@ GROUPING, | mdmms itk —

ATHLETIC FIELD CONTRACTORS Date: 3. /55 2o 2

P O BOX 771, TROY, OH 45373 (937) 335-7100

Job Notes: Attach with estimate # m

[T] Profossr NEW Sob




P.0. Box 771 ¢ Troy, Ohio 45373
Phone 937.335.7100  Fax 937.335.3344

Mercer Group, Inc. MERCER

GROUP INC.

www.mercer-group.com
ATHLETIC FIELD CONTRACTORS
www.mercer-group.com
TROY, OHIO -
Estimate/Contract
CUSTOMER INFORMATION Pro posal
City of Huber Heights
Josh King
DATE ESTIMATE NO.
315/2021 1859
ITEM DESCRIPTION QTyY CQST |TOTAL COST

Monita Park - Larger Field (West)

Veg. Co... | Vegetation/Round-Up Control 1 165.00 165.00T
Topo Su... | Use Laser Instrument to calculate grade slopes of Skinned Infiefd surface. 1 195.00 195.00T
Infield Lip | Infield Lip/interface Removal 1 595.00 595.007
Laser Gr... | Laser Grade/Level Skinned Infield with auto-grade master machine controlled box grader. 1] 1,100.00 1,100.007
infield Mix | Processed Skinned Infield Balf Diamond Mix. Cost Includes Delivery, Placement on Sports 1] 4,375.00 4,375.00T
Field, and Rough Grading. 70 Tons
Roll/Co... |Vibratory Compact Skinned Infield Soils. 1 275.00 275.00T
Turface | Turface Type Soil Amendment. 3 Tons. 3 650.00 1,950.00T
Sod install Big Roll Sports Turf Blend Sod. Sod back where lips were removed in apron area. (see 1] 2,700.00 2,700.00T
drawing)
Base/HP... | Bases, Base Anchors, Home Plate, Pitching Rubber, supply and install 1 995.00 995.00T
Mobiliza... | Mobilization of equipment to and from site o perform project. 1 475.00 475.00T
Tax Ex. 0.00 0.00

TERMS: All accounts unpaid after 30 days from date of invoice will be charged a FINANCE
CHARGE of 2% per month which is an ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE of 24%.

TOTAL COST 128250

MERCER GROUP, INC. and its employees are covered by general liability and workers'
compensation insurance as required by Ohio law. MERCER GROUP, INC. is a certified Drug
Free Workplace Company. MERCER GROUP, INC. workforce is OSHA certified.

T227

Troy S. Mercer, Vice President

P.0. Box 771 * Troy, Ohio 45373

Phone 937-335-7100 * Fax 937-335-3344



MERCER

Sa#GROU INC.

ATHLETIC FIELD CONTRACTORS

P O BOX 771, TROY, OH 45373 (937) 335-7100

=
School Name:_/MON JTA. PAEK

Field Name: 4&&6{?@ ﬂ 5& [ZZE:SI )

Date: Y /S 2027

Job Notes:

e ——,

L | Zos=0 NEL obD

Attach with estimate # (f-s-?




REFERENCE
LiIsT
FOR
AERCER GROUP, ING.

ATHLETIC FIELD CONTRACTORS

WWw.mercer-group.com
TROY, OHIO

University and College F. jeld References

The Ohio State University Softball Fields, Columbus, OH
Ohio University Baseball & Football, Athens, OH
Miami University Baseball & Football, Oxford, OH
Urbana University Basebali, Urbana, OH
West Virginia State University Baseball
University of Cincinnati Baseball, Cincinnati, Oh
University of Cincinnati Practice Football Fields, Cincinnati, OH
Ohio Christian University Baseball, Circleville, OH
University of Dayton Baseball, Softball & Soccer Fields, Dayton, OH
Edison College Baseball, Piqua, OH
Wright State University Softball, Fairborn, OH

Football Field References
Troy Memorial Stadium, Troy, OH
Troy "Bob Ferguson” Field, Troy, OH
Lima Stadium, Lima OH
Waynesville High School, Waynesviile, OH
Middietown Bishop Fenwick High School, Middietown, OH
Valley View High School, Germantown, oH
Versailles High School, Versailles, OH
Troy Christian High School, Troy, OH
Dixie (New Lebanon) High School, New Lebanon, OH
stebbins High School, Riverside, OH
Cincinnat Hills Christian Academy High School, Cincinnati, OH
Brookville High School, Brookville, OH
Miami East High School, Casstown, OH

Baseball and Softball Field References

The Ohijo State University Softball Fields, Calumbus, OH
University of Dayton Softbail, Dayton, OH
Mechanicsburg High School Baseball and Softball, Mechanicsburg, OH
City of Mason Sports Park, Masen, OH
New Bremen High Schoot Baseball and Softball, New Bremen, OH
City of St. Marys Park District, St. Marys, OH
Mason High School Baseball and Softbail, Mason, OH
Fort Loramie High School Baseball, Fort Loramie, OH
Wright Patterson Air Force Base Softbalt Complex, Dayton, Oh
Centerville High Schoo! Softball, Centerville, OH
Morthmont High School Softhball, Englewood, OH
Sidney High School Baseball, Sidney, OH
Edison College Baseball, Piqua, OH
Lima Sr. High School, Lima, OH
Newton High School, Pleasant Hill, OH
parkway High School, Rockford, OH

Soccer Field References

Warrior Soccer Club Practice and Training Facility, Huber Heights, OH
Yeltow Springs Soccer Association, Yellow Springs, OH
City of Troy Duke Park Soccer Fields, Troy, OH

Past Customer's that have used
Mercer Group, Inc. for Sports Field
improvements.
City of Springdale
Greenville High School
West Carrollton Schools
Grove City High School
Twin Valley High School
Miami East High School
Xenia High School
Miami Valley School
Huber Heights Wayne High School
Covington OH Schools
Arcanum High School
Grandview Schools
Tecumseh Schools
Naortheastern High School
Otentangy High School
Dayton Dragons Baseball
Dixie Heights High Schaol, KY
Mississinawa High School
West Virginia State University
Urbana University
Seneca East Local Schools
Wright Patterson AFB Softball
University of Dayton
#Miiton Unjon High School
Northridge High Schoo!l
Stebbins High School
City of Troy Parks
Tippecanoe High School
Northmont High School
Centerville High School
. . Valley View Schools
Detaware Hayes High School
. Troy Christian Schools
Middletown Bishop Fenwick High School
Versailles High School
City of Tipp City Parks
Columbus Academy
. Patterson Park Baseball
Village of Botkins, OH
City of St. Bernard Parks
Orange High Scheol
City of Lebanon Parks
Hamilton City Schools
City of Brookville Parks
Trotwood Madison High School
Sidney High School
Newton High School
Cincinriati Sycamore Schoots
Troy High School
City of Richmond, IN
Oakwoad High School
Piqua City Schools
Vandelia Butler High School
Miami University
Kenton Ridge High School
Washington Courthouse High School
Liberty High School
Kettering Fairmont High School
Hilliard Davidson High Scheol

University of Dayton Soccer, Dayton, Oh . Monroe High School
Piqua Wertz Stadium, Piqua, OH ) Lakota East Schoals

City f Sharonville Soccer Field, ‘Sharonville; OH e Mason High School
* . Franklin Monroe High Schicol, Pitsburg; OH ' gl " City of Mason Parks
* Dayton Dutch Lions, West Carroliton, OH | Bethel Schools
V ) Brookville High School

] e Mechanicsburg High School

p n I S u l‘ Tri County North High School
MANAGERS ASSOCIATION Otsego High School
Exporis un the Fichd, Paciners ia the CGame Newtan Schools
City of Sidney

Springfeld High School

P.O. Box 771 « Troy, Ohio 45373

Phone 937-335-7100 - Fax 937-335-3344



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR BASEBALL
FIELD RENOVATION AT THOMAS CLOUD PARK AND MONITA FIELD PARK AND
WAIVING THE FORMAL BIDDING REQUIREMENTS.

WHEREAS, Baseball Field 1 at Thomas A. Cloud Park and Fields 1 and 2 at Monita Field Park
are in need of renovation; and

WHEREAS, the cost of the project will be in excess of $25,000; and
WHEREAS, two written quotes were obtained for said work; and

WHEREAS, the City Courcil may waive the competitive bidding requrements whenever it deems to
be in the best interest of the City to do so as defined n Section 171.12 of the Codified Ordinances of
the City of Huber Heights.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Courcil of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.  The City Manager & hereby authorized to contract with Lawn Plus for renovation
services for baseball fields at Thomas Cloud Park and Monita Field Park in an amount notto exceed
$40,000.00.

Section 2. Consistent with the provisions of the City Charter and the Huber Heights Codified
Ordinances, the competitive bdding requirements are hereby waived.

Section 3. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter
of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021;
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



Al-7807 Topics of Discussion  ©:
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

TJL-CES, LLC Purchase Agreement - Sale of Property

Submitted By: Bryan Chodkowski

Department: Economic Development

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
TJL-CES, LLC Purchase Agreement - Sale of Property

Purpose and Background

The City has negotiated a Purchase Agreement for TJIL-CES, LLC to purchase ~1 acre of City-owned property
located at the northwest intersection of Brandt Pike and Meijer Access Drive. The agreed upon purchase price is
$150,000 per acre which is in line with recent appraisal values. The purchaser intends to construct a limited, quick
service restaurant. This agreement also presents future outlot development opportunities on Meijer Access
Drove.

The agreement has been reviewed by the Law Director and it is City Staff's recommendation that City Council
approve the proposed purchase agreement.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution
Exhibit A




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH
TIL-CES, LLC.

WHEREAS, the City seeks to invigorate economic development; and

WHEREAS, the City has negotiated a Purchase Agreement with TJL-CES, LLC to purchase
approximately one acre of the Lehman Farm from the City located at the northwest corner of Brandt
Pike (State Route 202) and Meijer Access Drive.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Purchase Agreement
with TIL-CES, LLC as approved by the Law Director and attached hereto as Exhibit A as if
incorporated herein.

Section 2. The City Manager is further authorized to pay a seller’s commission to Paul Howe
Realty, Inc.in an amount not to exceed 3%, or $4,500.00, for services rendered as related to this
Purchase Agreement. The terms and conditions of the seller’s commission shall be subject to review
and approval of the Law Director.

Section 3. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning

and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and

that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter
of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021;
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



EXHIBIT A-PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the day of 2021, by and between
the City of Huber Heights, Ohio (hereinafter referred to as “Seller”) and TJL-CES, LLC, an
Ohio limited liability company (herenafter referred to as “Purchaser”) to evidence the following
understandings, covenants and agreements:

1. LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Purchaser agrees to buy and Seller agrees to sell certain property located on Brandt Pike,
Huber Heights, Ohio and depicted Exhibit “A” (the “Property”).

The Property includes: (a) the land; and (b) all appurtenant rights, privileges and easements.
All of the Property shall be free and clear of liens and security interests on the Closing Date.

Seller at Seller’s expense, cause a lot split (but not a survey) of the Property to establish
the Property as a separate conveyable parcel.

Seller shall cause to be prepared and delivered to Buyer the proposed lot split of the
Property. The ot split shall be subject Buyer’s approval, not to be unreasonably withheld. Upon
Buyer’s approval of the lot split, Seller shall proceed to get all necessary public approvals of the
lot split. Seller shall cause the lot split to be recorded with Montgomery County prior to Closing.
Upon the recording of the lot split, the legal description of the Property shall be used on the Deed
as described herein

2. PURCHASE PRICE AND EARNEST MONEY

By this Agreement, Seller hereby agrees to sell and Purchaser agrees to purchase, subject
to certain conditions contained herein, the Property. The total purchase price for all the Property
shall be One Hundred Fifty Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($150,000.00) per acre, based on the
acreage reflected on the lot split of the Property. The Purchase Price shall be paid at the Closing.

@ Purchaser shall deposit Earnest Money of Five Thousand and no/100 Dollars
($5,000.00) (the “Earnest Money”), with Fidelity Lawyers Title Agency, LLC as Escrow Agent to
be held pursuant to the terms hereof. The Earnest Money shall be credited toward the Purchase
Price at Closing or shall be otherwise dealt with according to the terms of this Agreement. If the
closing does not occur because of Seller's default or because any condition of this Contract is not
satisfied or waived, Purchaser shall be entitled to the Earnest Money. If Purchaser defaults, Seller
shall be entitled to the Earnest Money. The Earnest Money shall be held by the Escrow Agent until
one of the following occurs: (1) the transaction closes and the Escrow Agent disburses the Earnest
Money pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; (2) the parties provide the Escrow Agent with
written instructions that both parties have signed that specify how the Escrow Agent is to disburse
the Earnest Money; (3) the Escrow Agent receives a copy of a final court order that specifies to

1



whom the Earnest Money is to be awarded; or (4) the funds become unclaimed and the Escrow
Agent turns them over to the Division of Unclaimed Funds. However, if within two years from
the date the Earnest Money is deposited with the Escrow Agent, the parties have not provided the
Escrow Agent with such signed instructions or written notice that legal action to resolve the dispute
has been filed, the Escrow Agent may return the Earnest Money to Purchaser with no further notice
to Seller. Payment or refund of the Earnest Money shall not prejudice the rights of the non-
defaulting party in an action for damages or specific performance against the defaulting party.

3.

OBLIGATIONS CONDITIONAL

A Purchaser's Conditions Precedent.  The Purchaser's obligations under this
Agreement shall be subject to satisfaction of each of the following conditions listed in
subparagraphs (1) through (7) inclusive (collectively, the “Conditions”). The cost of
satisfying the Conditions shall be the responsibility of Purchaser.

Purchaser shall have a period of ninety (90) days (the “Due Diligence Period”) in
which to determine if the Conditions have been met. If, during the Due Diligence Period
(or at the end of any applicable cure period), Purchaser determines that any Condition has
not been reasonably satisfied, then Purchaser shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement by written notice to Seller and Escrow Agent shall promptly refund the Earnest
Money to Purchaser. If Purchaser terminates the Agreement as provided in this Section
then Purchaser agrees to deliver originals or copies of its inspection reports to Seller.
However, if Purchaser has not notified Seller that any Condition remains unsatisfied by the
expiration of the Due Diligence Period (or the end of any applicable cure period which
extends beyond the Due Diligence Period), then all of the Conditions will conclusively be
deemed to have been satisfied or waived.

Q) Title. Purchaser shall secure a commitment for an owner's policy of title
insurance which shall be acceptable to Purchaser.

@) Survey. Purchaser shall obtain an ALTA survey of the Property, which
survey shall contain the legal description of the Property and shall show the location
of all improvements located upon the Property. Such survey shall show no
encroachments, overlaps, gaps, gores or other irregularities.

(3) Inspections. Purchaser shall have the right to make a thorough inspection
of the Property and Purchaser shall have access to the Property for the purpose of
completing the inspections.

4) Environmental Study. Purchaser shall secure a Phase | environmental site
assessment to be performed regarding the Property, which assessment shall be
made by a qualified environmental assessment professional person or organization.
If such report concludes that the Property, or any part thereof, is unsuited for
Purchaser's intended use of the Property due to land contamination by any

2



Hazardous Material, as defined below, Purchaser shall have the option to terminate
this Agreement in its entirety or as to such part of the Property which contains the
contamination.

(5) Quantity of Utilities. Purchaser shall have satisfied itself that electricity,
gas, water, telephone, sanitary sewer and storm sewers are available to the Property
in sufficient capacities to service the Purchaser's proposed use of the Property.

6) Zoning. Purchaser shall have determined that the current zoning of the
Property permits Purchaser's intended use of the Property.

(7) Access. Purchaser shall have a obtained an access easement from the owner
of the adjacent Meijer parcel providing perpetual access to the Property on terms
and conditions acceptable to Purchaser in Purchaser’s sole discretion (the “Meijer
Easement”).

The Due Diligence Period may be extended for one (1) additional period of sixty (60) days
only for the purpose of obtaining the Meijer Easement. Such extension shall be made if all
by written notice from Buyer to Seller given on or before the conclusion of the original
Due Diligence Period.

B. Seller’s Right to Cure. If any of the above reports or inspections disclose any
materially adverse condition unacceptable to Purchaser, then the Purchaser shall promptly
deliver written notice to the Seller and Seller shall have thirty (30) days to remedy (at
Seller’s sole cost and expense) and at Seller’s discretion, any materially adverse condition
Purchaser has objected to in writing. If Seller does not begin efforts reasonably calculated
to remedy the objection within fifteen (15) days after the date of Purchaser’s notice then
Purchaser shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by written notice to the Seller.
However, in the event that Seller is unable or unwilling to cure any objection made by
Purchaser, Purchaser may, by written notice to Seller, waive such condition and proceed
to purchase the Property.

C. Inspections.  Purchaser, or its consultants, shall have the right during the Due
Diligence Period to enter upon the Property at reasonable times so as not to interfere with
Seller's use of the Property, to gather such information, including, but not limited to,
surveys, soils tests, and environmental assessment reports, as it deems necessary.
Purchaser agrees to return or restore the Property to substantially its original state within a
reasonable time period after the tests are conducted, not to exceed sixty (60) days after
completion of the tests. Purchaser shall indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any and
all claims, costs or liability arising from the entry onto the Property and testing performed
by Purchaser, its consultants, agents or employees.



D. AS 1S. Should Purchaser decide to Close on the Property after the Due Diligence
Period, all above contingencies shall be deemed satisfied or waive and the Property shall
be transferred in its AS IS condition.

COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER

Purchaser covenants and warrants to Seller as follows:

A Authorization.  Purchaser has full legal power and authority to purchase the
Property as provided for herein, without any other consent or proceeding required from
any other person, entity or organization and the person executing this Agreement on behalf
of Purchaser is fully authorized to act on behalf of the Purchaser.

B. Conflict. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by Purchaser
does not conflict with or result in a breach of the provisions of, or constitute adefault under
the terms of Purchaser's organizational documents or any mortgage, deed of trust,
franchises, permit, license, note, agreement or other instrument to which Purchaser is a
party or by which Purchaser may be bound.

COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER

Seller covenants and warrants to Purchaser as follows:

A Authorization.  Seller has full legal power and authority to own and convey the
Property as provided for herein, without any other consent or proceeding required from
any other person, entity or organization and the person executing this Agreement on behalf
of Seller is fully authorized to act on behalf of Seller.

B. Conflict. Neither the entering into of this Agreement nor any Closing under this
Agreement will constitute a violation or breach by Seller of any contract, agreement,
encumbrance, court order or other instrument to or by which Seller may be bound.

C. Litigation. There is no pending litigation or claim which affects or which might
affect the Property.

D. Work in Progress. Nowork has been performed or is in progress upon the Property
and no materials have been furnished to the Property or any portion thereof which after
Closing could give rise to any mechanics, materialmen, or other liens and at Closing, Seller
shall furnish to Purchaser an affidavit attesting to the absence of any such liens or rights to
liens. Further, as of the date of this Agreement, no assessments for public improvements
or otherwise have been made against the Property which remain unpaid (including without
limitation, those for construction of water, sewer, gas and electric lines).




E. Hazardous Materials. Seller represents that, to the best of Seller's knowledge, the
Property is free from any material or substance presently prohibited or regulated by any
governmental authority orwhich is presently known to pose a hazard to the health or safety
of occupants or the Property (“Hazardous Material”’). During Seller's ownership of the
Property it has been used primarily for farming purposes only.

F. Title. Seller owns fee simple marketable title to the Property and no other person
or entity has any right to the Property which is based on encumbrances, written agreements
or oral understandings, other than matters which appear in the public record. For the
purposes of this paragraph, “marketable title” shall be determined by reference to the Ohio
State Bar Association Standards of Title Examination.

G. No Encroachments.  Seller has no notice and no knowledge of any facts which
would reasonably put Seller on notice: (1) of any dispute regarding the location of the
Property lines; (2) that any improvements on adjacent properties encroach onto the
Property; or (3) that any improvement on the Property encroaches upon any adjacent

property.

H. No Violations.  Seller has no notice and no knowledge of any facts which would
reasonably put Seller on notice regarding: (1) the removal or abatement of any nuisance;
(2) any building code violation on the Property; (3) the violation of any zoning ordinances
affecting the Property; or (4) any violation of any other regulation of any governmental
authority having jurisdiction over the Property.

l. No Condemnations or Assessments. The Property is not subject to any pending
condemnation or proceeding in eminent domain and Seller is not aware of any planned or
threatened proceedings. There are no special assessments affecting the Property and Seller
is not aware of any planned improvements which might lead to the imposition of any such
assessments.

Seller shall reaffirm to Purchaser that these warranties are true at the time of the Closing.

CLOSING AND POSSESSION

Subject to the conditions precedent to Purchaser’s obligation to close as provided m Item

3 hereof, the Closing shall occur within thirty (30) days after the end of the Due Diligence Period,
at such place in Montgomery County, Ohio as agreed upon by both parties. Possession of the
Property shall be delivered to Purchaser at the Closing. Seller, at Sellers expense shall terminate
any agreement for tenant farming affecting the Property.

MARKETABLE TITLE AND REAL ESTATE TAXES

At the Closing, Seller shall convey to Purchaser good and marketable title to the Property

by general warranty deed. Such deed shall vest in Purchaser full title to the Property, free and

5



clear of all liens and encumbrances and the rights to take liens and encumbrances, except: (a) legal
highways; (b) installments of taxes and assessments becoming due and payable after the Closing
Date; (c) zoning; and (d) any other exception disclosed in the title insurance commitment and
accepted by the Purchaser in writing on or before the Closing Date. Seller shall have paid (or shall
credit against the Purchase Price at Closing) all taxes and assessments, if any, due and payable
prior to the Closing date.

8. PRORATIONS AT CLOSING

A Taxes. The Seller shall also pay or credit a prorata share of the next estimated semi-
annual installment of taxes and assessments due and payable in accordance with location
custom; except that if the assessments are assessed annually, then the proration of
assessments shall be based upon the annual assessment. The Seller's prorata share shall be
computed based upon the number of days elapsing between the most recent semi-annual
installment and the Closing Date. Seller shall be responsible for the payment of any
agricultural recoupment.

B. Utilities. Water, electricity, steam and gas meters shall be read as of the date of
Closing and Seller shall pay all final bills, including all sewer charges, in full as of the
Closing date.

9. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY

Seller shall keep the Property adequately insured against fire and extended coverage perils
and shall maintain the Property in its present condition until Closing. Seller shall bear all risk of
loss to the Property until Closing. If any of the Property is materially damaged, or destroyed before
the Closing, Purchaser may either: (a) proceed with the Closing and be entitled to all insurance
proceeds not exceeding the Purchase Price, if any, payable to the Seller under all policies covering
the Property plus an amount equal to Seller's insurance deductible(s); or (b) terminate this
Agreement by giving written notice to Seller within twenty (20) days after the Purchaser receives
written notice of the damage or destruction, including the amount of insurance proceeds payable.
If Purchaser terminates this Agreement for the reasons stated in this Section the Escrow Agent
shall immediately refund the Earnest Money to Purchaser.

10. DEFAULT BY SELLER

Seller shall be in Default hereunder if, (a) Seller fails or refuses to deliver good and
marketable title to the Property at the Closing; (b) Seller shall fail to comply with any material
term, provision or condition of this Agreement; or (c) any of the representations and warranties
made by Seller herein shall be in any material respect misleading, inaccurate or untrue. Upon the
occurrence of any default of Seller hereunder, Purchaser shall give Seller written notice specifying
the nature of the default. If Seller does not cure the default within 30 days, or other period of time
agreed upon by Purchaser, the Purchaser may then as its only remedies, (a) seek specific
performance of this Agreement; (b) cancel future obligations under this Agreement by giving

6



written notice of such cancellation to Seller and receive a return of the Earnest Money; or (c) take
title subject to the defect, exception, objection inaccuracy or failure.

11. DEFAULT BY PURCHASER

Purchaser shall be in Default hereunder if Purchaser (a) fails to comply with any material
term, provision or condition of this Agreement; (b) fails to timely close the purchase of the
Property and such closing deadline is not extended in writing by Seller; (c) enters into a general
assignment or arrangement for the benefit of creditors; (d) files avoluntary petition in bankruptcy;
(e) has filed against it a petition in bankruptcy and the same not having been dismissed within
ninety (90) days after its filing; or (f) has appointed areceiver with respect to the property or assets
of Purchaser. Upon the occurrence of a default by Purchaser hereunder, Seller shall give Purchaser
written notice specifying the nature of the default. If Purchaser does not cure the default within
30 days, or other period of time agreed upon by Seller, Seller may then as its only remedies (a)
terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Purchaser and thereby relieve the Property from
the terms of this Agreement, and (b) retain the Earnest Money as liquidated damage, it being agreed
that actual damage would be impossible to ascertain. .

12. COMMISSIONS

Except for Paul Howe Realty, Inc. representing the Purchaser, whose commission shall be
paid pursuant to a separate letter agreement, each party represents to the other that it has not
retained any broker or agreed to pay any brokerage fee or commission to any agent or broker for,
or on account of, this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby and each party agrees to
indemnify the other against claims for commissions arising from the actions of said party.

13. SURVIVAL

The representations, warranties and covenants contained herein shall survive the closings
provided for herein and delivery of the deeds pursuant hereto.

14. NOTICES

Notice to Purchaser required or provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be
deemed given when deposited in the U.S. mail, certified or registered, postage prepaid, addressed
to Purchaser at:

TIL-CES, LLC
5099 Springboro Pike,
Moraine, OH 45439

or such other address in Ohio as Purchaser shall notify Seller in writing. Notice to Seller required
or provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when deposited in the U.S.
mail, certified or registered, postage prepaid, addressed to Seller at:



City of Huber Heights,
6131 Taylorsville Road
\Huber Heights, OH 45424
or such other address in Ohio as Seller shall notify Purchaser in writing.

15. PERSONS BOUND

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the undersigned
parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

16. APPLICABLE LAW; TIME OF ESSENCE

This Agreement shall be controlled, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of
the State of Ohio. Time is of the essence in the performance of all obligations of each of the parties
under this Agreement.

17. AMENDMENT

This Agreement including all Exhibits and attachments hereto which are hereby
incorporated by reference into this Agreement, represents the entire Agreement between the parties
and supersedes all prior oral and written proposals and communications and may be amended only
by written instrument executed by Seller and Purchaser through their respective officials or officers
who are thereunto duly authorized.

18. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in several counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original but which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

19.  COUNCIL APPROVAL

This Agreement shall not be binding upon the City of Huber Heights unless approved by
City Council.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller and Purchaser have caused this Agreement to be
executed as of the day and year first above stated.

PURCHASER:
TIL-CES, LLC, an Ohio limited liability
company

By:




Its:

SELLER:
City of Huber Heights, Ohio

By .

Its:




EXHIBIT “A”

PROPERTY DEPICTION

(2]
=3
S
o =
=
o
o
X
@
o
=
@




Al-7812 Topics of Discussion P
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) #6 - First Amendment

Submitted By: Bryan Chodkowski

Department: Economic Development

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) #6 - First Amendment

Purpose and Background

This legislation is the second of two pieces of legislation to support development at the northeast corner of Old
Troy Pike and Taylorsville Road. As Council was previously briefed, this development partnership facilitates the
necessary resources to fund traffic improvements from Taylorsville Road north to I-70. These improvements are
designed to increase traffic flow and reduce traffic congestion.

This legislation extends Community Reinvestment Area #6 over all parcels in and around the development site for
continuity of benefit. Companion legislation being entertained by Council removes several disjointed parcels in
and around the development site from Community Reinvestment Area #7.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution
Exhibit A.1
Exhibit A.2




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-

AMENDING COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA #6 BY INCLUDING ADDITIONAL
PROPERTIES WITHIN COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA #6.

WHEREAS, the City of Huber Heights desires to encourage the development of and
reinvestment in certain real property in the City; and

WHEREAS, on November 8, 1993 Resolution No. 93-R-1347 created Community Reinvestment
Area #6 within the City of Huber Heights; and

WHEREAS, a housing survey was undertaken with respect to the creation of Community
Reinvestment Area #6 and includes land described in Exhibit A.1 (which is attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference) and is on file with the Clerk of Council; and

WHEREAS, the City of Huber Heights has determined it is in the best interest of the City to
amend Resolution No. 93-R-1347to include those additional lands described on the attached
Exhibits A.1 and A.2 within Community Reinvestment Area #6; and

WHEREAS, this is the first amendment to Community Reinvestment Area # 6 which was
created prior to November 8, 1993 and accordingly, the amended Community Reinvestment
Area # 6 shall be subject to the applicable provisions of the Ohio Revised Code in existence at
the time Community Reinvestment Area # 6 was originally created.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The area set forth in Exhibits A.1 is hereby found and determined to be an area in
which housing facilities or structures of historical significance are located and in which new
housing construction and repair of existing facilities or structures are discouraged. It is further
found by the Council that remodeling of existing structures and new construction on properties
described in Exhibits A.1 and A.2 would serve to encourage economic stability, maintain real
property values, and generate new employment opportunities.

Section 2. The exemptions from real estate taxation as described in Resolution No. 93-R-
1347 shall apply to the newly expanded Community Reinvestment Area #6 which shall now
include those properties as described in Exhibits A.1 and A.2.

Section 3. The City Council reserves the right to re-evaluate the designation of Community
Reinvestment Area #6 after January 1, 2022 at which time the Council may direct the Housing
Officer not to accept any new applications for tax exemptions as referred to in Section 3735.67,
Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. The City Manager shall remain the Housing Officer for Community Reinvestment
Area #6 as required by the Ohio statutes referred to in Section 2 above.

Section 5. The Community Reinvestment Area Housing Council created under Resolution
No. 93-R-1347 shall continue to serve as the Community Reinvestment Area Housing Council
for Community Reinvestment Area #6.

Section 6. The Clerk of Council is hereby directed to deliver a copy of this Resolution to the
Montgomery County Auditor and Ohio Department of Development for information and
reference.

Section 7. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.



Section 8. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021,
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



Date: 8/31/2021

CRA#6 Boundary

EXHIBIT A1

LEGEND
mProposed

(@]
I
(@]

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS,




EXHIBIT A.2

CRA #6 Parcels Additions

Parcel Number Parcel Location Owner Name Zoning Class
P70 04005 0069 | 7777 Waynetowne Blvd. Saint Francis Humane Society Inc. PC
P70 04005 0066 7841 Old Troy Pk. Prime Huber LLC PC
P70 04005 0026 7638 Wildcat Rd. Joshua Adams I-1
P70 51307 0005 5221 Waynetowne Ct. Interesting Development LLC PC
P70 51307 0006 5221 Waynetowne Ct. Interesting Development LLC PC
P70 51307 0007 5221 Waynetowne Ct. Interesting Development LLC PC
P70 51307 0002| 5211 Waynetowne Ct. HHED LLC PC
P7051307 0003 | 5211 Waynetowne Ct. HHED LLC PC
P70 51307 0004 | 5221 Waynetowne Ct. Huber Heights Ohio Building | LLC PC
P70 04005 0126 5227 Taylorsville Rd. Penn Station Realty LTD PC
P70 04005 0065 5239 Taylorsville Rd. Barkley Holdings LLC PC
P70 04005 0136 7631 Old Troy Pk. Waynetowne Investments J LLC ETAL 3 PC
P70 04005 0135 7747 Old Troy Pk. Waynetowne Investments J LLC ETAL 3 PC
P70 04005 0134 7777 Old Troy Pk. Waynetowne Investments J LLC ETAL 3 PC
P70 04005 0056 7605 Old Troy Pk. John R Oettinger TR PC
P70 04005 0140 7611 Old Troy Pk. Huber Heights ABG LLC PC
P70 04005 0141 7609 Old Troy Pk. John R Oettinger TR PC
P70 04005 0015| 7578-7608 Old Troy Pk. HF 2 Sub LLC R-6
P70 04005 0003 7851 Old Troy Pk. R A Corp PC
P70 04005 0004 7888 Old Troy Pk. Giant Dayton LLC B-3
P70 04005 0082 5571 Merily Way Roosters Real Estate LLC B-3
P70 04005 0081 5571 Merily Way Roosters Real Estate LLC B-3
P70 04005 0132 5611 Merily Way Texas Roadhouse of Huber Heights LLC PC
P70 04005 0128 5612 Merily Way Aashirvad LLC B-3
P70 04005 0046 5588 Merily Way Laxmi Hospitality LLC B-3
P70 04005 0079 5570 Merily Way Beavbux LLC B-3
P70 04006 0002 | 5343 Kellenburger Rd. David C Studebaker A
P70 01924 0003 Charlesgate Rd. TJH Holdings LLC PR
P70 02025 0012 8101 Old Troy Pk. City of Huber Heights PC
P70 02025 0010 8001 Old Troy Pk. Store Master Funding X LLC PC
P70 02025 0011 8101 Old Troy Pk. Store Master Funding X LLC PC
P70 04005 0092 7886 Wildcat Rd. Gump Timi S DBA I-1
P70 04005 0089 7888 Wildcate Rd. SS Huber Heights LLC PI
P70 04005 0067 7778 Wildcat Rd. Huber Heights Masonic Temple Co. PP
P70 04005 0124 7888 Wildcat Rd. SS Huber Heights LLC Pl
P70 04005 0125 7888 Wildcat Rd. SS Huber Heights LLC Pl
P70 04005 0022 7740 Wildcat Rd. Emma L Hart TR PC
P70 04005 0057 Wildcat Rd. City of Huber Heights -1
P70 01922 0001 Middleton Ct. TJH Holdings LLC -1
P70 04005 0055 5201 Taylorsville Rd. Murat A Shamshidinov PC
P70 04005 0098 5205 Taylorsville Rd. Jacquelyn R Koogler TR ETAL 5 PC
P70 04005 0118 5229 Taylorsville Rd. Keith Huelskamp ETAL 3 PC
P70 02026 0002| 5151 Waynetowne Ct. Jacquelyn R Koogler TR ETAL 5 PC
P70 51307 0010 5211 Waynetowne Ct. Waynetowne Professional Suites PC
P70 04005 0097 | 7737 Waynetowne Blvd. EPT Neneteen Inc PC




P70 00818 0003 7761 Old Country Ct. Ram K Shree Inc PC
P70 00818 0002 | 7737 Waynetowne Blvd. EPT Neneteen Inc PC
P70 00818 0001 7765 Old Country Ct. Waynetowne Investments J LLC ETAL 3 PC
P70 04005 0072 | 7801 Waynetowne Blvd. Waynetowne Investments J LLC ETAL 3 PC
P70 04005 0073 | 7875 Waynetowne Blvd. Waynetowne Investments J LLC ETAL 3 PC
P70 04005 0121 | 7760 Waynetowne Blvd. Allenmarie LLC PC
P70 04005 0104 | 7764 Waynetowne Blvd. Jason Rodgers PC
P70 04005 0100 | 7650 Waynetowne Blvd. Larkspur Huber Heights LLC PC
P70 04005 0138 7601 Old Troy Pk. Fifth Third Bank PC
P70 04005 0085 7607 Old Troy Pk. MHH LLC PC
P70 04005 0088 7757 Old Troy Pk. Waynetowne Investments J LLC ETAL 3 PC
P70 04005 0064 5561 Merily Way KMS1 Investments LTD B-3
P70 04005 0059 5562 Merily Way McDonald's Real Estate Co B-3
P70 01926 0002 7720 Old Troy Pk. JSR Huber Heights LLC PC
P70 01926 0001 7690 Old Troy Pk. Huntington National Bank B-3
P70 04005 0043 5550 Huber Rd. HF 2 Sub LLC B-3




Al-7810 Topics of Discussion @
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) #7 - Modification

Submitted By: Bryan Chodkowski

Department: Economic Development

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) #7 - Modification

Purpose and Background

This legislation is the first of two pieces of legislation to support development at the northeast corner of Old Troy
Pike and Taylorsville Road. As Council was previously briefed, this development partnership facilitates the
necessary resources to fund traffic improvements from Taylorsville Road north to I-70. These improvements are
designed to increase traffic flow and reduce traffic congestion.

This legislation removes several disjointed parcels in and around the development site from Community
Reinvestment Area #7. Separate legislation extending Community Reinvestment Area #6 over all parcels in and
around the development site for continuity of benefit is companion to this legislation.

Additionally, this legislation removes the original Marian Meadows property from Community Reinvestment Area
#7. Future legislation establishing a new Post-94 Community Reinvestment Area will be presented to City Council
once a meaningful redevelopment investment has committed to this site. This is necessary to ensure the accurate
and uniform incentive application and management.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution
Exhibit A.1
Exhibit A.2
Exhibit A.3




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-

TO MODIFY COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA #7 BY REMOVING CERTAIN
PROPERTIES FROM COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA #7

WHEREAS, Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) #7 was created on June 20, 1994 by
Resolution No. 94-R-1453 which included a definition of the area encompassed by CRA #7; and

WHEREAS, the City has received no applications for CRA exemption, has no pending
applications for CRA exemption, and has not received any inquiry or notice of intent to make use
of CRA exemptions from any owners of the property described on Exhibits A.1, A.2, and A.3.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio, that:

Section 1. After due deliberation and consideration by the City Council for the City of Huber
Heights, it is determined that the interests of the City are best served by the removal from CRA
#7 of certain pieces of real estate as more fully described on Exhibits A.1, A.2, and A.3 as
attached. In accordance with Ohio Revised Code Section 3735.661, such removal of real estate
from CRA #7 shall not constitute an amendment to CRA #7. The City Manager is hereby
authorized to take whatever action is necessary to implement this legislation.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021;
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



LEGEND

Remove from CRA #
CRA#7 to Remain

| (s

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO Exhibit A.1

Date: 7/20/2021




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO Exhibit A.2

Date: 8/5/2021




EXHIBIT A.3

CRA #7 Parcels to Remove

Parcel Number

Parcel Location

Owner Name

Zoning Class

CRA No.

P70 04005 0069 | 7777 Waynetowne Blvd. Saint Francis Humane Society Inc. PC 7
P70 04005 0066 7841 Old Troy Pk. Prime Huber LLC PC 7
P70 04005 0026 7638 Wildcat Rd. Joshua Adams I-1 7
P70 51307 0005 5221 Waynetowne Ct. Interesting Development LLC PC 7
P70 51307 0006 5221 Waynetowne Ct. Interesting Development LLC PC 7
P70 51307 0007 5221 Waynetowne Ct. Interesting Development LLC PC 7
P70 51307 0002 5211 Waynetowne Ct. HHED LLC PC 7
P70 51307 0003 5211 Waynetowne Ct. HHED LLC PC 7
P70 51307 0004 5221 Waynetowne Ct. Huber Heights Ohio Building I LLC PC 7
P70 04005 0126 5227 Taylorsville Rd. Penn Station Realty LTD PC 7
P70 04005 0065 5239 Taylorsville Rd. Barkley Holdings LLC PC 7
P70 04005 0136 7631 Old Troy Pk. Waynetowne Investments J LLC ETAL 3 PC 7
P70 04005 0135 7747 Old Troy Pk. Waynetowne Investments J LLC ETAL 3 PC 7
P70 04005 0134 7777 Old Troy Pk. Waynetowne Investments J LLC ETAL 3 PC 7
P70 04005 0056 7605 Old Troy Pk. John R Oettinger TR PC 7
P70 04005 0140 7611 Old Troy Pk. Huber Heights ABG LLC PC 7
P70 04005 0141 7609 Old Troy Pk. John R Oettinger TR PC 7
P70 04005 0015 7578-7608 Old Troy Pk. HF 2 Sub LLC R-6 7
P70 04005 0003 7851 Old Troy Pk. R A Corp PC 7
P70 04005 0004 7888 Old Troy Pk. Giant Dayton LLC B-3 7
P70 04005 0082 5571 Merily Way Roosters Real Estate LLC B-3 7
P70 04005 0081 5571 Merily Way Roosters Real Estate LLC B-3 7
P70 04005 0132 5611 Merily Way Texas Roadhouse of Huber Heights LLC PC 7
P70 04005 0128 5612 Merily Way Aashirvad LLC B-3 7
P70 04005 0046 5588 Merily Way Laxmi Hospitality LLC B-3 7
P70 04005 0079 5570 Merily Way Beavbux LLC B-3 7
P70 03912 0094 6121 Brandt Pk. Fitzgerald Chace LLC B-3 7
P70 03912 0106 6139 Brandt Pk. City of Huber Heights B-3 7
P70 03912 0102 6185 Brandt Pk. City of Huber Heights B-3 7




Al-7818 Topics of Discussion R
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

OneOhio Subdivision Settlement Participation Form — National Opioid Settlement

Submitted By: Scott Falkowski

Department: City Manager

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
OneOhio Subdivision Settlement Participation Form — National Opioid Settlement

Purpose and Background

There may be a settlement between the State of Ohio and certain opioid distributors that could result in Huber
Heights receiving between $172,000 and $246,000 (the Montgomery County portion) and between $4,000 and
$6,000 (the Miami County portion). Johnson and Johnson is close to settling as well and if it does these amounts
will increase. It appears that the funds, if distributed are to be used “to prevent, treat and support recovery from
addiction including opioids and/or any other co-occurring substance use and/or mental health conditions which are
all long-lasting (chronic) diseases that can cause major health, social, and economic problems at the individual,
family and/or community level.” It is unclear at this time how it will be disbursed or even how it can be spent
(assuming there is a settlement). The proposed settlement on the table requires at least 95% participation from
local governments (among other things) so OML was pushing to get its members to vote to accept this
settlement. The City needed to submit its approval by August 13, 2021 and this subsequent legislation ratifying
the acceptance of the settlement keeps the process moving forward.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution
Exhibit A




CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R

RATIFYING THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE MATERIAL TERMS OF THE ONEOHIO
SUBDIVISION SETTLEMENT PURSUANT TO THE ONEOHIO MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING AND CONSISTENT WITH THE TERMS OF THE JULY 21, 2021
NATIONAL OPIOID SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT.

WHEREAS, Huber Heights, Ohio is a municipal entity formed and organized pursuant to the
Constitution and laws of the State of Ohio; and

WHEREAS, the people of the State of Ohio and its communities have been harmed by
misfeasance, nonfeasance and malfeasance committed by certain entities within the Opioid
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain; and

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio, through its Attorney General, and certain Local Governments,
through their elected representatives and counsel, are separately engaged in litigation seeking to
hold Opioid Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants accountable for the damage caused by
their misfeasance, nonfeasance and malfeasance; and

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio, through its Governor and Attorney General, and its Local
Governments share a common desire to abate and alleviate the impacts of that misfeasance,
nonfeasance and malfeasance throughout the State of Ohio; and

WHEREAS, the State and its Local Governments, subject to completing formal documents
effectuating the Parties Agreements, have drafted and Huber Heights has filed its affirmation of
the adoption of, a OneOhio Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) relating to the allocation
and the use of the proceeds of any potential settlements described; and

WHEREAS, the MOU has been collaboratively drafted to maintain all individual claims while
allowing the State and Local Governments to cooperate in exploring all possible means of
resolution; and

WHEREAS, the City understands that an additional purpose of the MOU is to create an effective
means of distributing any potential settlement funds obtained under the MOU between the State
of Ohio and Local Governments in a manner and means that would promote an effective and
meaningful use of the funds in abating the opioid epidemic throughout Ohio, as well as to permit
collaboration and explore potentially effectuation earlier resolution of the Opioid Litigation
against Opioid Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants; and

WHEREAS, nothing in the MOU binds any party to a specific outcome, but rather, any
resolution under the MOU requires acceptance by the State of Ohio and the Local Governments;
and

WHEREAS a settlement proposal is being presented to the State of Ohio and Local Governments
by distributors AmerisourceBergen, Cardinal, and McKesson (collectively the “Settling
Distributors™) to resolve governmental entity claims in the State of Ohio using the structure of
the OneOhio MOU and consistent with the material terms of the July 21, 2021 proposed National
Opioid Distributor Settlement Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Local Governments were required to file a participation form, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit A, (“Participation Agreement”) pursuant to the MOU regarding the
pursuit and use of potential opioid litigation settlement funds and consistent with the material
terms of the July 21, 2021 proposed National Opioid Distributor Settlement Agreement available
at httpsJ//nationalopioidsettlement.com/; and

WHEREAS, the Participation Agreement had to be filed prior to August 13, 2021, in order to
move the settlement process forward, and the City Manager timely filed same as an indication of


https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/

the City’s acceptance of the material terms of the proposed National Opioid Distributor
Settlement Agreement with the Settling Distributors (the “Proposed Settlement”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. City Council ratifies and approves the filing by the City Manager of the
Participation Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A and the City Manager is authorized to
accept the Proposed Settlement on behalf of the City, pursuant to the terms of the OneOhio
MOU.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the day of , 2021,
Yeas; Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



EXHIBIT A

OneOhio Subdivision Participation Form

 Governmental Entity: City of Huber Heights State: Ohio

Authorized Official: Scott P. Falkowski

Address 1: 6131 Taylorsville Rd B

Address 2:

 City, State, Zip: Huber Heights, OH 45424 |
' Phone: 937-237-5821 -

Email: sfalkowski@Ghhoh.org

The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain
and in consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity consistent with the
material terms of the National Settlement Agreement dated July 21, 2021 (“National Distributor
Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned authorized official, hereby elects to
participate in the material terms of the National Settlement Agreement Distributor Settlement,
release all Released Claims against all Released Entities, and agrees as follows.

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the National Distributor Settiement,
understands that all terms in this Participation Form have the meanings defined therein,
and agrees that by signing this Participation Form, the Governmental Entity elects to
participate consistent with the material terms of the National Distributor Settlement
and become a Participating Subdivision as provided therein pursuant to the terms of the
final OneOhio Memorandum of Understanding dated July 28, 2021.

2. The Governmental Entity’s election to participate is specifically conditioned on
participation by 95% or more of the Litigating Subdivisions in Ohio. Should less than
95% of the Litigating Subdivisions in Ohio participate, this election shall be deemed void
and no claims shall be released.

3. The Governmental Entity shall, prior to the filing of the Consent Judgment, secure the
dismissal with prejudice of any Released Claims that it has filed.

4. The Governmental Entity agrees to the material terms of the National Distributor
Settlement pertaining to Subdivisions as defined therein.

5. By agreeing to the material terms of the National Distributor Settlement and becoming
a Releasor, the Governmental Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein,
including, if applicable, monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date.

6. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the material
terms of the National Distributor Settlement solely for the purposes provided therein.




7. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the Madison County Court of
Common Please where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to the court’s
role as provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the material
terms of the National Distributor Settlement Agreement. If the National Distributor
Settlement is finalized, the Governmental Entity likewise agrees to arbitrate before the
National Arbitration Panel as provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent
otherwise provided in the National Distributor Settlement.

8. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the material terms of the National
Distributor Settlement as provided therein.

9. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for
all purposes in the material terms of the National Distributor Settlement, including, but
not limited to, all provisions of Part XI, and along with all departments, agencies,
divisions, boards, commissions, districts, instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys,
and any person in their official capacity elected or appointed to serve any of the
foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity claiming by or through any of the
foregoing, and any other entity identified in the definition of Releasor, provides for a
release to the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the Governmental Entity
hereby absolutely, unconditionally, and irrevocably covenants not to bring, file, or claim,
or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to
establish liability for any Released Claims against any Released Entity in any forum
whatsoever. The releases provided for in the material terms of the National Distributor
Settlement are intended by the Parties to be broad and shall be interpreted so as to give
the Released Entities the broadest possible bar against any liability relating in any way
to Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the power of the Governmental
Entity to release claims. The material terms of National Distributor Settlement shall be a
complete bar to any Released Claim.

10. The Governmental Entity hereby takes on all rights and obligations of a Participating
Subdivision consistent with the material terms of the National Distributor Settlement.

11. In connection with the releases provided for in the material terms of the National
Distributor Settlement, each Governmental Entity expressly waives, releases, and
forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and benefits conferred by any law of
any state or territory of the United States or other jurisdiction, or principle of common
law, which is similar, comparable, or equivalent to § 1542 of the California Civil Code,
which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims
that the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in
his or her favor at the time of executing the release, and that if known by



him or her would have materially affected his or her settlement with the
debtor or released party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it
knows, believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each
Governmental Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles,
releases and discharges, upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may
exist as of such date but which Releasors do not know or suspect to exist, whether
through ignorance, oversight, error, negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and
which, if known, would materially affect the Governmental Entities’ decision to
participate in the material terms of the National Distributor Settlement.

12. Nothing herein is intended to madify in any way the terms of the material terms of the National
Distributor Settlement to which Governmental Entity hereby agrees, with the exception of the
requisite Litigating Government participation level. If the National Settlement becomes
effective by July 1, 2022 its terms will supersede the terms of the Ohio Settlement Agreement
and will control with regard to all provisions except for Dismissal of Claims as set forth in the
Ohio Settlement Agreement. If it is not effective by July 1, 2022, the Ohio Specific Distributor
Settlement will control. To the extent this Participation Form is interpreted differently from the
Ohio Specific Distributor Settlement in any respect, the Ohio Specific Distributor Settlement
controls.

I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Participation Form on
behalf of the Governmental Entity and have been afforded the opportunity to review this

matter with counsel. /%/
Signature: ‘_//M L |

Name: Scott P. Falkowski

Title: Interim City Manager

Date: 8/11/21




Al-7796 Topics of Discussion
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Liquor Permit #58111440425 - Meijer Gas - 7266 Executive Boulevard

Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers

Department: City Council
Type of New
Liquor Permit:

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

S.

Agenda Item Description
Liquor Permit #58111440425 - Meijer Gas - 7266 Executive Boulevard

Review and Comments - Police Division
The Police Division has no objections to this liquor permit.

Review and Comments - Fire Division
The Fire Division has no objections to this liquor permit.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Liquor Permit




OHIO DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL
NOTICE TO LEGISLATIVE 6606 TUSSING ROAD, P.0. BOX 4005
AUTHORITY REYNOLDSBURG, OHIO 43068-9005

(614)644-2360 FAX(614)644-3166
TO

N MEIJER STORES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
58111442$§3mma we DBA MEIJER GAS STATION 241
| 7266 EXECUTIVE BLVD

DATE HUBER HEIGHTS OH 45424
07 (28 (2021
FILING DATE
c2
PERMIT CLASSES
57 (083 P D09524
TAX DISTRICT BECEIPT NO,

FROM 08,/06/2021

PERMIT NUMBER TYPE
ISSUE DATE

FILING DATE

J FEFMIT CLASSES
TAX DISTRICT RECEIPT NO.

T

waneo 08/06/2021

RESPONSES MUST BE POSTMARKED NO LATER THAN. 09/07/2021

IMPORTANT NOTICE

PLEASE COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM TO THE DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL
WHETHER OR NOT THERE IS A REQUEST FOR A HEARING

REFER TO THIS NUMBER IN ALL INQUIRIES A N 5811144-0425

(TRANSACTION & NUMBER)

(MUST MARK ONE OF THE FOLLOWING)

WE REQUEST A HEARING ON THE ADVISABILITY OF ISSUING THE PERMIT AND REQUEST THAT
THE HEARING BE HELD 1IN OUR COUNTY SEAT. (] IN COLUMBUS.

WE DO NOT REQUEST A HEARING. ]
DID YOU MARK A BOX? IF NOT, THIS WILL BE CONSIDERED A LATE RESPONSE.

PLEASE SIGN BELOW AND MARK THE APPROPRIATE BOX INDICATING YOUR TITLE:

(Signature} (Title)-[] Clerk of County Commissioner

[] clerk of City Council

[] Township Fiscal Officer

(Date}

CLERK OF HUBER HGTS CITY COUNCIL
6131 TAYLORSVILLE RD
HUBER HGTS OHIO 45424

DLC 4052

REV. 03/09



Al-7776 Topics of Discussion
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

Liquor Permit #3097970 - Marathon - 7851 Old Troy Pike

Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers

Department: City Council
Type of Transfer
Liquor Permit:

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

T.

Agenda Item Description
Liquor Permit #3097970 - Marathon - 7851 OId Troy Pike

Review and Comments - Police Division
The Police Division has no objections to the approval of this liquor permit.

Review and Comments - Fire Division
The Fire Division has no objections to the approval of this liquor permit.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Liquor Permit




OHIO DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL

NOTICE TO LEGISLATIVE 6606 TUSSING ROAD, P.0. BOX 4005
NOLDSBURG, OHIO 43068-3005
R il RI{E;'I4}644-2360 FAX(614)644-3166
TO
AVIN UICK STOP LLC
3097970PEHMIT NUMBER TRTE:? ggAl (%AT%(I)N
019 785 OLD TR
ui 025”25 HUBER HEIGHTS OH 45424
08 (10 |2021
| FILING DATE
D5
PERMIT CLASSES
57 1[083 F25822
TAX DISTRICT RECEIPT NO
RON I8 /12/2021
8 HAI RADHE LLC
o7 [aoss ™ A, TAe wimuon,
' 1E HUBER HEIGHTS OH 45424
08 10}%021
D5
PERMIT CLASSES
57 los3
TAX DISTRICT RECEIPT NO.

LN TR

vaies 08/12/2021 09/13/2021

RESPONSES MUST BE POSTMARKED NO LATER THAN.

IMPORTANT NOTICE
PLEASE COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM TO THE DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL
WHETHER OR NOT THERE IS A REQUEST FOR A HEARING.
REFER TO THIS NUMBER IN ALL INQUIRIES A TRFO 3097970

{TRANSACTION & NUMBER)

(MUST MARK ONE OF THE FOLLOWING)

WE REQUEST A HEARING ON THE ADVISABILITY OF ISSUING THE PERMIT AND REQUEST THAT
THE HEARING BE HELD [ ]IN OUR COUNTY SEAT. (1IN COLUMBUS.

WE DO NOT REQUEST A HEARING. []
DID YOU MARK A BOX? IF NOT, THIS WILL BE CONSIDERED A LATE RESPONSE.

PLEASE SIGN BELOW AND MARK THE APPROPRIATE BOX INDICATING YOUR TITLE:

(Signature)} (Title)- [_] Clerk of County Commissioner (Date}

[] clerk of City Council

[] Township Fiscal Officer

CLERK OF HUBER HGTS CITY COUNCIL
fl%lgl TAYLORSVILLE RD

ER HGTS OHIO 45424

DLC 4052 REV. 03/09



Al-7820 Topics of Discussion U
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

City Manager Search Firm Proposals

Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers

Department: City Council

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 08/17/2021 and 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
City Manager Search Firm Proposals

Purpose and Background

The City Council authorized a Request For Proposals (RFP) for City Manager Search Firms in Resolution No.
2021-R-7008. RFP 21-001-CC - City Manager Search Firm was distributed with a deadline of August 2, 2021 for
submission of proposals. The City received five proposals for RFP 21--001-CC. These five proposals were
received from:

- Baker Tilly US, LLC

- Gov HR USA

- Koff & Associates

- Management Partners

- Slavin Management Consultants

This agenda item is to have a follow up discussion regarding the process for evaluating the proposals and
selecting a City Manager search firm.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Proposal - Baker Tilly US, LLC
Proposal - Gov HR USA
Proposal - Koff & Associates
Proposal - Management Partners
Proposal - Slavin Management Consultants




- City of Huber Heights, Ohio

RFP 21-001-CC
Proposal to provide a City Manager search

August 2, 2021 @ bakerti lly

now, for tomorrow.




VI L VT VT VT VI VI VRV T U VT U VT VT U I I L I U LT U LR LI L LI LR

=== HURER
==® HEIGHTS

Page 6 of 11 ———— Cunie Grow With L’s!

Request for Proposals

cost to the City of Huber Heights.

£ Timeline: Provide an estimated, standard timeline for installation,
implementation and creative design services. Timeline should be included in
bid documents.

£ Configuration and Pricing: Bidder must itemize all charges for individually
identifiable components of the proposed system, including all associated
installation, programming and training if applicable. Bidder must include
charges for all components required to connect any applicable applications.

RFP Checklist:

Please review and check off these 10 most important items to consider when
responding to an RFP for the City of Huber Heights:

v

Read the entire document. Note critical items such as: mandatory requirements;
supplies/services required; submittal dates; number of copies required for
submittal; contract requirements (i.e., contract performance, insurance
requirements, performance and/or reporting requirements, etc.).

Note the procedures for communication with the City during the RFP
process. All communication during the RFP process must be in writing. Offerors
should not contact City personnel or officials outside of the opportunity provided in
the document.

Attend the pre-proposal conference if one is offered. These conferences provide
an opportunity to ask clarifying questions, obtain a better understanding of the
project, or tonotify the City of any ambiguities, inconsistencies, or errors in the RFP.

Take advantage of the “question and answer” period. Submit your questions by
the due date listed and view the answers given in the formal “addenda” issued for
the RFP. All addenda issued for an RFP are posted on the City’s website and will
include all questions asked and answered concerning the RFP.

Follow the fbrmat required in the RFP when preparing your response. Provide
point-by-point responses to all sections in a clear and concise manner.

Provide complete answers/descriptions. Read and answer all questions and
requirements. Don’t assume the City or the evaluating staff will know what your
company capabilities are or what items/services you can provide, even if you have
previously contracted with the City of Huber Heights. The proposals are evaluated
based solely on the information and materials provided in your response.

Use the forms provided, if any. e.g., bidders’ submittal page, reference forms,
attachment forms, etc.

Before submitting your response, check the City’s website at: www.hhoh.org to
see whether any addenda were issued for the RFP.




K kY

WO W

o o W b W e e Ui U W R e LR OIN IR N U IR W W D LR LR DR RS

Request for Proposals
Page 7 of 11

TS

rron MW )

Review and read the RFP document again to make sure that you have addressed
all requirements. Your original response and the requested copies must be identical
v’ | and be complete. The copies are provided to the evaluating staff members and will
be usedto score your response.

Submit your response on time. Note all the dates and times listed in the RFP and
v’ | be sure to submit all required items on time. Late proposal responses are never
accepted.

Please Note:

All potential contractors are strongly urged to submit supporting documentation as to
their qualifications to perform the Scope of Work.

Certificate of Insurance, Reference List and Timeline must be attached.

If additional comments or conditions are desired, please attach a separate sheet
providing details.

Include all proposed equipment specifications; showing manufacturer name, model, etc.
depicting unit specifications and other pertinent information.

Certification:

The undersigned on the Bid Proposal certifies that the Instructions to Bidder has
been carefully examined, is thoroughly familiar with the terms and specifications
applicable to and made part of this Request for Proposal, and understands and is
capable of meeting the provisions within to the quality, type and grade of work
requested. The undersigned further certifies the prices shown in the schedule of
items contained within the Proposal/Bid are in accordance with the conditions,
terms and speeifications of thé€ proposal and that any exception taken thereto may
disquglify thie bid.

’ i/ / ' © July 29, 2021
ighature/- y : ZV N Date
Chuck Rohre ’ Managing Director
Print Name Title
chuck.rohre@bakertilly.com (214) 608 7477
Email Address Phone

Baker Tilly US, LLP
Company Name




WO N oW oW oW W R o kN U U N W W e W I LN OIND LN LM U Db e Ul Y DRE WY W D

Exceptions

Per RFP 7.1, we take exception to the following section of the RFP: Insurance. If selected,
we will provide the City with a copy of our standard engagement terms for review.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the RFP, should the City wish to propose
alternative terms or proceed on the basis of its own format agreement, we will require the
ability to negotiate mutually acceptable terms and conditions prior to executing a final
contract.



U T T VT VT U U VR U R U L T T U U T T T LT R U U IR L L L LR T

@ pakertilly

Baker Tilly US, LLP
380 Jackson Street, Suite 300
St. Paul, MN 55101

T: +1 (651) 223 3000
F: +1 (651) 223 3046

________ m bakertilly.com

August 2, 2021

Mr. Anthony C. Rodgers, MPA
Clerk of Council

City of Huber Heights

6131 Taylorsville Road.

Huber Heights, Ohio 45424

Dear Mr. Rodgers:

Baker Tilly US, LLP (“Baker Tilly”) appreciates the opportunity to submit the following proposal for executive
recruitment services to the City of Huber Heights (the “City”) to help you identify your next City Manager.
We believe that our record of successfully placing qualified and very accomplished professionals, along
with our extensive experience providing executive recruitment services to cities, counties and other
public-sector organizations nationwide, will be beneficial for your recruitment and will allow us to find the
candidate who has the traits, skills, experience and overall competence you desire for your organization.

We know that you have options when it comes to selecting a recruitment firm. However, we believe that
our unique approach, highly regarded customer service practices, and our record of identifying and
recruiting top level executives in similar roles, sets us apart from our competitors. Additionally, we offer
the following unique features:

— Customized profile development: working with the Mayor, members of the City Council, designated
staff and community, we develop a customized candidate profile based on the required, desired and
preferred qualifications, traits and attributes you seek in the individual you interview or hire for your
next City Manager. We strive to understand how Huber Heights’s current and anticipated needs and
organizational priorities will shape your recruiting and selection requirements; then we collaborate with
you to develop a nationwide or regional marketing, recruiting and outreach campaign. This approach has
proven to effectively allow us to identify, attract and recruit highly qualified candidates for your review.

- Proprietary management/leadership assessment: relying on exclusively licensed predictive analytics
tools (using data to determine patterns and forecast future outcomes and trends), we administer
assessments to selected applicants to help us identify human potential in each of the candidates we
present to you. Results are “Real,” “Impactful,” and “Powerful.” Furthermore, these results can provide
you with more profound insights into the candidate’s management traits and leadership styles based
on scientific data. '

- Recorded video interviews: we ask selected candidates (semi-finalists) to complete a recorded, one-
way video interview, using questions developed from your “candidate profile,” which gives your review
team an additional tool to evaluate the semi-finalists before inviting them to a face-to-face interview.

- Proprietary online application management: our exclusively licensed, proprietary online application
system enables us to efficiently manage applicant flow, classification and allows us to communicate
with each applicant quickly and effectively. We communicate in real time with applicants, thereby engaging
and informing them of each step, search related assignment and corresponding timeline throughout
the process. Our system also allows us to access, review and evaluate thousands of prior applicants
or individuals who have manifested interest in similar positions. Generally, these are individuals who may
not be actively seeking a job, but who may be open to “the right opportunity.” This is another benefit
and advantage we provide to our clients, which enables us to access a larger number of active and
passive job seekers.



IO IV VT 1T T (N A - LT VI T LT 1T VT T T T VAT T 1T T THT TIT VIT TIT VT VIT | T VO T |

=

Required statements

Baker Tilly is a limited liability partnership registered in the States of lllinois and Wisconsin. Our
Federal Tax Identification number is 39-0859910.

Managing Director Chuck Rohre has actual authority to make decisions as to matters relating to this
RFP and to bind Baker Tilly.

This quote meets the minimum qualifications set forth in this RFP and accepts all requirements and
terms and conditions contained in this RFP. Exceptions are provided as part of the RFP Checklist.

Baker Tilly does not discriminate in its employment practice with regard to race, color, age, religion,
sex, veteran status, sexual preference, national origin or disability.

No attempt has been made or will be made by Baker Tilly to induce any other person or firm to submit
or not submit a quote.

Neither Baker Tilly nor or any of its agents has a possible conflict of interest with any city employee
involved in the RFP and any ensuing Contract(s) or any other conflict of interest.

This proposal details our approach, expertise, references and pricing for this executive recruitment. Our .
team would consider it a professional privilege to provide these services to the City of Huber Heights.

Very truly yours,

Authorized |

Patty Heminover, Director
“Ypresentative Project Team L.eader

M: +1 (214) 608 7477 T: +1 (651) 968 7841
E: chuck.rohre@bakertilly.com E: patty.heminover@bakertilly.com




B OO R OR R R

Hr

=
=
=
|
|
|
|
]
|
|
|
!
|
|
al
@
al
|
|
=
u
=
-

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
FIRM INTRODUCTION
PROJECT CONTACTS AND LOCATIONS
2. UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH
OUR UNDERSTANDING OF HUBER HEIGHTS'S NEEDS

RECRUITMENT SOLUTIONS DURING THE COVID-19
PANDEMIC

REMOTE WORK
PROPOSED SOLUTION TO MEET HUBER HEIGHTS’S

RECRUITMENT APPROACH
OUR STRATEGY FOR RECRUITMENT OF DIVERSE

Contents CANDIDATES

COMMITMENT TO DIVERSITY, INCLUSION AND BELONGING
FOR SUCCESS (DIBS)

WHY BAKER TILLY IS IDEALLY SUITED TO SERVE HUBER
HEIGHTS

BENEFITS TO HUBER HEIGHTS
3. TIMELINE
4. PROPOSED FEES
PROFESSIONAL FEE
TRIPLE GUARANTEE
5. REFERENCES ...
6. EXPERIENCE ‘
7. PROJECT TEAM MEMBERS
8. SAMPLE CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE
APPENDIX I: SAMPLE BROCHURE
APPENDIX Il: SAMPLE EXCERPT OF TTI REPORT

(C. bakertill
Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global a e rtl y

network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are
separate and independent legal entities. now, for TOMOrrow.




B OE OO & &8 KO O OK R OK N R K E B OB OINORON N N R N W

Eo

1. General informat_ion

Firm introduction

Baker Tilly is a nationally recognized firm with a long history of service to clients located
throughout the country. For 90 years, Baker Tilly has understood that our business demands
absolute integrity, a belief in the value of trusted relationships and a willingness to collaborate
with every client. We will strive to continue to deepen and enhance our relationship
with Huber Heights as we seek to become your Yalue Architect™.

Executive recruitment for public and non-profit clients has been a part of Baker Tilly's
portfolio of advisory services for more than 30 years. Within Baker Tilly, our executive
recruitment team consists of 10 recruitment consultants and project coordination staff
available to meet your executive recruitment needs. Each consultant assigned to this
recruitment has experience working with cities, counties, special districts and school districts
and the many different disciplines that comprise the Huber Heights organization. Baker
Tilly's consultants bring an experienced, participatory and energetic perspective to each
engagement. Our unique approach and personal touch are reflected in our internal
standard to provide outstanding services that exceed your expectations. Our combined
consultant team has conducted over 1,500 executive searches.

The Baker Tilly project team will collaborate with the Mayor, City Council and the City's
designated staff as your technical advisor to ensure that the recruitment process for
your next City Manager is conducted in a thorough and professional manner consistent
with “best practices” in the public sector executive recruitment space. Our objective is to
generate highly qualified candidates and assist you with the screening and evaluation
of these candidates.

Since our firm’s beginning, we have emerged as a leader in human resource management
consulting and executive recruitment. It is our 30+ years of consulting experience, coupled
with our unique approach and personal touch that drives our internal standard for delivering
only outstanding services and leading-edge products.

Project contacts and locations

Chuck Rohre, Managing Director Patty Heminover, Director

2500 Dallas Parkway, Suite 300 380 Jackson Street, Suite 300

Plano, TX 75093 Saint Paul, MN 55101

T: +1(972) 748 0300 T: +1(651) 223 3058

M: +1 (214) 608 7477 M: +1 (651) 968 7841

F:+1(214)452 1165 F: +1 (651) 223 3046

E: chuck.rohre@bakertilly.com E: patty.heminover@bakertilly.com

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |1



b & e O & & O R O R R WO e R O o N oE R R R R KR K

2. Understanding .and approach

The recruitment will be national and inclusive in nature, with a
candidate pool of diverse, experienced and talented individuals.

Our understanding of Huber Heights’s needs

We understand the City of Huber Heights is looking for a timely, effective, efficient, responsive,
well-managed and thorough search process to recruit and identify highly qualified candidates
for your next City Manager.

Baker Tilly will work with the Mayor, City Council, City staff and other designated stakeholders
to understand the desired qualities and professional capabilities that are most important
to your organization for this recruitment. This information helps us present the City of Huber
Heights and the vacancy to well-regarded candidates, emphasizing the opportunities for
leadership and professional growth as well as presenting Huber Heights as a vibrant and
thriving community in which to live and work.

We recognize that there is significant competition for experienced city managers today. For
this reason, we work with you to develop a recruitment strategy that includes an aggressive
marketing, recruiting and candidate outreach campaign. As you know, a successful recruitment
often depends upon the ability to reach successful executives who may not necessarily be
in search of new employment opportunities. Thus, we use existing resources to inform and
encourage qualified professionals to apply for opportunities with your organization. We believe
that these efforts are critical to ensuring that the City receives a qualified candidate pool.

Baker Tilly manages and tracks applicant information and provides regular communications,
updating the applicants on the status of the recruitment. Our communications are always
professional and respectful.

We take pride in our ability to provide the City with comprehensive information about each
candidate we present, expanding beyond applications and resumes, to better understand
their professional experience, the leadership and management style they will bring to
your organization, and their motivation for pursuing this career opportunity. We also
assist you in the preparation of interview questions, interview day scheduling, planning
and structuring as needed. Additionally, we are available to you and present throughout
each interview session and are able to facilitate your deliberations and negotiations with
the top candidate.

Recruitment solutions during the Covid-19 Pandemic

In response to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Baker Tilly executive recruitment team leader
will work closely with Huber Heights’s designated point of contact to develop alternative
methods to complete all aspects of our established search processes using existing
technologies and ensure the overall safety of all involved, which may include virtual or
telephonic meetings, interviews, or conversations.

1
"y
)

mn
N



1]

BN W O O KO O R R KE E R B R KR E R KON R R N B K

2. Understanding and approach

As such, we will creatively collaborate with your organization to provide you with access
to critical information you may need to make your hiring decisions. Additionally, we can utilize
our capability for video conferencing during meetings, candidate interviews, etc.

When the time arrives for the Mayor and City Council to interview candidates, we may
encourage and support the steps established or recommended by local, state or federal
guidelines, public health and medical professionals, including social distancing guidelines
and protocols.

Baker Tilly has successfully organized several successful virtual and on-site interview
processes following the prescribed social distancing protocols and best practices. As
such, Patty Heminover is able to provide corresponding on-site support and assistance, if
requested.

Remote work

For Baker Tilly, the safety of our people is paramount. We are committed to playing our
part in containing COVID-19 by practicing responsible social distancing. As of this writing,
our firm is allowing many professionals to work remotely. Because Huber Heights expects
and deserves tailored, personalized service, we recognize that this policy may cause
concern. Please understand that we are prepared to deliver an exceptional service
experience remotely if necessary.

The City’s engagement team has various tools enabling them to assist you from any
location. Baker Tilly professionals each receive their own laptop and remote access
credentials to connect to our internal network from outside the office. When Baker Tilly
and the City are not able to meet in person, we have web conferencing software —
including Zoom and WebEx — to quickly set up online meetings. We also use Microsoft
Teams, which facilitates easier communication and project management.

Additionally, we use Huddie, a secure cloud collaboration software,
to work together anywhere, anytime and on any device. Huddle 7
provides a platform for Huber Heights and Baker Tilly to come U e -
together, share files, assign tasks, and track activity in a secure

environment. Using Huddle as a central hub of activity means we all spend less time

organizing documents, chasing approvals and searching through email — and more time

achieving tangible results. The platform also enables real-time communication, meaning

the status of your engagement will always be available. We also use Microsoft Teams,

which facilitates easier communication and project management.

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |3



b OWOW N O W O O R WO N W R N K W N NN N KK R R R R R R R K

2. Understanding and approach

Proposed solution to meet Huber Heights’s needs

The recruitment will be conducted out of our Saint Paul, Minnesota
office. Patty Heminover will serve as the project team leader. Our
proven process includes five major tasks:

1. Recruitment brochure development and advertising

— We schedule and meet with Huber Heights’s elected officials, appointed management team
members and key stakeholders, as requested, to understand your desired needs, strategic
directions, overall candidate expectations and to develop a candidate profile

2. Execution of recruitment strategy and identification of quality candidates

—  Using the approved profile, we develop a colorful, appealing brochure and embark on a national
or regional targeted recruitment campaign

-~ Additionally, we simultaneously launch a direct applicant outreach campaign targeting eligible
prospects identified via our extensive searchable applicant database

— Using our proprietary applicant tracking system, we communicate and update applicants on
key processes and corresponding search progress

3. Screening of applications, recommendation of semi-finalists and selection of

finalists

—  Once we identify the most promising applicants, we ask them to complete our due diligence
questionnaire and a candidate questionnaire while the project team conducts a
comprehensive web and social media scan to elicit information that could be relevant to
employment

—  These applicants also complete a recorded, one-way video interview of selected questions
designed to secure a different perspective on the applicant’s overall qualifications

" —. We provide you with a Semi-Finalists Report of the top candidates, which includes resumes,

cover letters and due diligence questionnaire responses

—  Selected finalists complete a management and leadership style and strengths assessment
(personality and behavior analysis) to provide us with important information about their styles,
temperament, preference, etc.

4. Conducting background checks (criminal, civil, credit and driving record),

reference checks and academic verifications

— Background records checks and academic verification
-~ References

5. Final interview process

~  Once the Mayor and City Council identifies its top 3-5 finalists, we work with you and the
finalists to coordinate all aspects of the interview process
—  Employment offer — assistance and feedback

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |4



W W W W R b W W R W R W W I IO IR W R R R R R R W N

2. Understanding and approach

Recruitment approach
Task |. Recruitment brochure development and advertising

The development of a comprehensive recruitment brochure that includes a profile of the
ideal candidate is an important first step in your recruitment process. This profile includes
the required academic training, professional experience, leadership, management and
personal characteristics related to the success of the candidate in the position of City Manager.
The recruitment brochure will also include a profile that captures the essence of Huber
Heights as a highly-attractive venue for the successful candidate to live and work.

To prepare the recruitment brochure, the project team leader will come on site to meet
with the Mayor, City Council, City staff and other designated stakeholders to discuss the
required background, professional experience, and management and leadership characteristics
for your City Manager. We meet individually (or collectively depending upon your preference)
with the Mayor and members of the City Council to broaden our understanding of the position’s
leadership and management requirements, current issues, your strategic priorities and your
expectations for the City Manager. [See example of a recruitment brochure in Appendix 1.]

Information obtained from these meetings, coupled with our review of the job description
and other City documents, is used to prepare a position and candidate profile. The completed
profile will be approved by the City before recruitment begins. The position and candidate
profile will be central to our recruitment strategy and outreach to potential candidates.

The project team will also work with the City to develop an advertising and marketing strategy
to notify potential candidates about the vacancy and conduct an open recruitment that
encourages applications from a talented and diverse pool of candidates. Our team will
place ads in appropriate professional publications, websites and local print media, if

_required, and coordinate with City staff to include information about the search on the

City’s social media platforms. Additionally, Baker Tilly has a high-traffic website which
includes an exclusive location dedicated to encouraging potential candidates to upload
their resumes. The aggressive advertising and marketing campaign for top talent will
include national, state, regional and local elements as determined during our initial meetings
with Huber Heights's representatives. Our customized mailing list, selected from our
extensive database and contacts collected at appropriate public-sector conferences, will
be utilized to further promote the City Manager position.

Project milestone Deliverables Timeline

- Interviews with the City
- Baker Tilly receives information on Huber

Position profile and Heights’s budgets, organizational charts, images,

recruitment brochure 2 weeks
development logos, etc. .
- Develop draft documents (recruitment brochure,
advertisement, marketing letter and timeline)

Approve brochure, begin  —~ Brochure sent to the City for final approval

advertising and distribute - Commence advertising and distribution of 1 week
marketing letter recruitment brochure ’

Tt rerEainms Do ==-= 5



=]
=
-
C
=
|
=
=
=
=
=
=
|
=
|
=
=
=
=
=
E |
E |
|
|
-
=
=
=
=
|
e |

2. Understanding and approach

Task Il. Execution of recruitment strategy and identification of quality candidates

Utilizing the information developed in Task |, Baker Tilly will identify and reach out to individuals
who will be outstanding candidates for the position of City Manager. Often, well-qualified
candidates are not actively seeking new employment and will not necessarily respond to
an advertisement. However, if a potential candidate is presented with the opportunity
directly and in the proper manner, he or she may apply. We take pride in our ability to
locate highly qualified candidates across the nation based on the professional contacts
and relationships we have developed and maintained over many years.

These efforts will be supplemented by the creation of a customized database utilizing our
extensive, interactive applicant database for the City Manager position. This will provide
the Baker Tilly team with the ability to customize applicant flow and tracking, communication
with applicants and conduct database inquiries for candidates based on characteristics
important to the City such as geographic location, particular experience, expertise and
credentials.

During this part of the process the project team will work with the Mayor, City Council and
designated City staff to reach consensus on the leadership and management style for the
ideal candidate. Our research will determine the key competencies, work values and
leadership/management style for the City Manager and match the candidates to each attribute.

While recruitment is under way, the project team will work with a team of up to 10 subject
matter experts (SMEs) who know what successful performance in the City Manager position
looks like to reach consensus on the desired leadership and management style for the
ideal candidate. We ask the SMEs to complete a 30-minute, on-line questionnaire. When
aggregated, these responses generate a benchmark that prioritizes the key competencies,
work values and leadership/management style attributes for this position, creating a
framework for assessing candidate fit with Huber Heights. Later in the process, finalists -
for the position are asked to complete a companion questionnaire that allows us to match
candidates’ competencies, work values and leadership/management style to the benchmark.
[See sample excerpt of TTI report in Appendix I1.]

Each candidate submitting a resume is sent a timely acknowledgement by our team,
including an approximate schedule for the recruitment. Throughout the recruitment process,
communications are maintained with each candidate regarding information about the
recruitment progress and their status in the process. We take pride in the many complimentary
comments made by candidates regarding the level of communication and the professional
manner in which they are treated during our recruitments.

Project milestone Deliverables Timeline

- Online data collection and profile development
- Development of interactive, searchable applicant
database for recruitment of the City Manager

Execution of recruitment ~ Baker Tilly performs direct outreach to prospective

thfrtee;Cyhand candidate candidates identified in the recruitment strategy 4-5 weeks
- Utilization of extensive applicant database to
identify applications and review applicant pool for
competencies/demographics
B e i L T =z-=z2 AR



=
L
-
=
E
=
=
=
=
-
=
=
-
=
=
.
=
E |
=
=
o
=
=
E
=
|
E
=
=
= |
E |

2. Understanding and approach

Task lll. Screening of applicants and recommendation of semi-finalists

In Task lll the project team, under the direction of Patty Heminover, will screen the candidates
against the criteria within the position and candidate profile and develop a list of semi-finalists
for recommendation to the Mayor and City Council. We will then narrow the list to a group of
10-15 semifinalists for review and select finalists on the basis of written candidate questionnaires,
early due diligence information, consuitant phone interviews and recorded, one-way video
interviews.

Another unique aspect of our recruitment process is our use of online recorded interviews
for the screening process. Responses are timed and questions are not provided in advance.
This tool allows our team to develop a more comprehensive understanding of each
candidate’s ability to “think on their feet,” as well as their personal and professional
demeanor. Our team will provide an online link for the Mayor, City Council and designated
City staff, as well as others who have input into the hiring decision, allowing them to
review and later discuss the recorded responses. This provides your organization with
additional candidate assessment tools that can be customized to fit the unique needs of
the City of Huber Heights.

Throughout the process, you will have access to our Master Applicant List (MAL), which
will provide pertinent data for each applicant.

Project milestone Deliverables Timeline

- Baker Tilly compares applications to the approved
candidate profile, developed in our searchable
applicant database

- Most promising applicants are asked to complete
candidate questionnaires and provide due diligence
information

~ Media, internet and social media scan for information
pertinent to future employment

- Top 10-15 candidates identified as semi-finalists

Applicant screening and - Semi-Finalist Report is prepared, including the
recommendation of semi- brochure, master applicant list, cover letter and 2-3 weeks
finalists resume of candidates to be considered

- Baker Tilly, the Mayor and the City Council review
video interviews

- Project team leader meets with the Mayor and City
Council to review recommended semi-finalists

- Mayor and City Council selects finalists for on-site
interviews

- Finalists complete candidate management style
assessment, responses are reviewed and interview
questions are developed

¥
"

n
~

e T s el mrte el



RN N R N OE R N N K N RN RO ® NN N NN D NN NN R e

2. Understanding and approach

Task IV. Conducting background checks, reference checks and academic
verifications ‘

When the Mayor and City Council approves of a group of finalists for on-site interviews,
Baker Tilly will begin the process of conducting reference checks, background checks
and academic verifications. A Confidential Reference Report is prepared for each finalist
to complete our understanding of his/her management and leadership characteristics and

 Background checks will include information from the following areas:

Consumer credit Bankruptcy

City/county — criminal State district Superior Court - criminal
City/county — civil litigation State district Superior Court — civil
Judgment/tax lien Federal district - criminal

Motor vehicle driving record Federal district — civil litigation
Educational verification Sex offender registry

To ensure that our quality standards are maintained, we require a minimum of 10-
15 business days between the time that you select the finalists for on-site interviews
and when we submit the candidate documentation for your final interview process.

Project milestone Deliverables Timeline

Design final process with 5 o 1 confirms interviews with candidates

City for on-site interviews . . 1-2 days
with finalists - Travel logistics are scheduled for candidates

Background and reference .

checks and academic — Baker Tilly completes background checks, reference 2-3 weeks

o ic verifications for finalist
verification checks and academ ists

Task V. Final interview process

Upon completion of Task IV, we will work with the Mayor, City Council and others designated
to develop the final interview process, including the use of virtual platforms as requested.
We customize the final interview process according to the needs and functions of the
position and according to your preference, instructions and directives to include steps that
are important to you, our client. As such, the final interview process may include meetings
with the department heads, a City tour and the opportunity for a meet and greet, if requested
by the City. In advance of the interviews, we will provide documentation on each of the
finalists which will provide the highlights of their leadership/management profile (Gap
Analysis) as well as a summary of the results of the reference checks, background checks
and academic verifications. In addition, the Final Report will include guidelines for
interviewing the candidates, suggested interview questions and a candidate assessment
process for your interview panel(s).

The project team leader will be available during the final interview process to answer
guestions about the candidates and, if requested, assist with the final evaluation of the
candidates. In addition, we will assist you with the development of a compensation package
and related employment considerations and assist with the negotiation of an employment
agreement.

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |8



oW W N O O N N NN N N NN NN NN N

2. Understanding and approach

Project milestone Deliverables

- Final Report is prepared; including brochure, interview
Final Report prepared schedule, cover letter, resume, candidate questionnaire,

Timsiine

and delivered to the City suggested interview questions, candidate assessment 1 day
form and management style probing questions
- Interviews are scheduled
On-site interviews with  ~ - Recruitment project team leader attends client 1-2 davs
finalists interviews and is available to participate during y

deliberations of candidates
- If requested, Baker Tilly participates in candidate
employment agreement negotiations
Offer made/accepted — Baker Tilly notifies candidates of decision 1-2 days
— Baker Tilly confirms final process close out items
with the City of Huber Heights

Our strategy for recruitment of diverse candidates

Our corporate core values and work environment reflect our broader social aspirations for
a diverse workforce, equal opportunity and cross-cultural respect. We have established
strong and credible networks with minority and female leaders nationwide. In addition, we
are corporate members of the National Forum for Black Public Administrators (NFBPA)

and the Local Government Hispanic Network and are on their National Corporate Advisory

Council. We participate in their membership events on a regular basis. '

To that end, we take responsibility for diversity in our organization, our recruitment strategy
and our candidate pools. In this recruitment, we will use our established networks to make
direct and personal contacts with prospective minority and female candidates and encourage
them to consider the City of Huber Heights’s City Manager position. Because of our
performance record in presenting a diverse applicant pool, these prospective candidates
know they will be fairly considered in the process.

Baker Tilly is committed to ensuring equitable participation in our business and employment
opportunities without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability,
veteran status, marital status or sexual orientation. As a leader in the executive recruitment
industry, we take positive actions to prevent and to remedy any discriminatory effects of
business and employment practices.

Commitment to Diversity, Inclusion and Belonging for
Success (DIBS)
At Baker Tilly, diversity, inclusion and belonging is

who we are rather than what we do. Creating an -
environment where all team members are valued We choose to embed DIBS into all

empowers us to bring our authentic selves to aspects of our business — from

work each day. When our contributions reflect strategy to operations.

our individual best, we achieve better results

for Huber Heights. From how we recruit, develop and
promote team members, to the

Belonging is a core Baker Tilly value. We foster a way we serve clients, manage

deep level of mutual respect where each one of projects:and treat each other.

us feels seen, heard, valued and connected. Each R

team member commits to upholding a diverse and S DaY‘in,‘day out.

inclusive workplace driven by fairness, compassion T el T

and equality.

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |9



o oo oMol NN N RN NN NN NN NN NN R R R RS R R

2. Understanding and approach

Throughout the firm, you will find our DIBS philosophy and practices embedded into everything
we do. We hire people who bring new perspectives and experiences. We embrace our
differences and believe a more open, connected world serves everyone better. DIBS is
the lens that helps us see things more broadly and lights the path for us to follow. This
benefits our people, our clients and our communities.

DIBS steering committee

DIBS

Diversity, inchuzion argl Belanging lor Success

Baker Tilly’s national DIBS steering committee is designed to
strengthen our firm’s culture of diversity, inclusion and belonging.
Theresa Nickels, partner and chief legal counsel, chairs this
committee. A cross-section of leaders across the firm oversee our
strategy — from inclusion-related communications to accountability measures for our key
diversity goals and coordination of our signature initiatives described below.

Growth and Retention of Women (GROW)

Through our GROW initiative, Baker Tilly provides women
valuable opportunities to network, share their stories, acquire
skills, strengthen professional relationships and advance in their
growth aed resentian af women careers. Our commitment to GROW increases the number of
women in management positions, enhances the retention of
women at all firm levels, creates an environment where women feel empowered and
supports our advocacy of advancing women in business. It also helps us share
knowledge gained with clients and creates a workforce that reflects our client base.

Supporting Opportunity, Advancement and Retention for all (SOAR)

SOAR focuses on improving inclusion and increasing retention of
team members of color to create a more inclusive, innovative and

S ar productive workforce. Diversity makes each of our professionals
<upporting Gpportunity, unique; inclusion is how that unique team collaborates to achieve

advancement and recognition  common goals. Our SOAR strategy rests on four key pillars: talent
acquisition, advancement, education and awareness and recognition.

NexGen: joining workforce generations

Today, four generations coexist in the workplace —
baby boomers, Gen X, millennials and Gen Z - and
S o e e each brings unique viewpoints influenced by events

and experiences in their lifetime. With NexGen, we
aim to empower the next generation of team members to collaboratively engage in the
firm’s progress while promoting an overall investment in our future. Key components of
NexGen’s vision involve discovering how different generations can build rewarding
professional relationships that are mutually beneficial. NexGen amplifies the voices of our
firm’s next generation of professionals — providing leadership and growth opportunities
along the way.

PRIDE team member network

Our PRIDE team member network exists to support the LGBTQ+
community and their allies within Baker Tilly. We strive to create an
open environment centered on LGBTQ+ issues and topics relevant
to the workplace. We also acknowledge this effort includes the
involvement, support, understanding and acceptance from colleagues

across the firm.

City of Huber Heights, Ohio _ Page |10



A N N

w oo

W o W W NN NN
b | .

2o oon NN NN NN NN NN N

2. Understanding and approach

Racial Equity Action Plan (ACTION) and focus on social justice

Our firm developed an ACTION plan to support our strategic
goal of increasing the retention of team members of color,
and also to create positive change in our communities and
our profession. As initial steps in our plan, we convened our
DIBS steering committee and formed a racial equity advisory group consisting of a diverse
group of team members. We then worked closely with a highly respected consulting firm
with more than 30 years of experience to assess the current state of our workplace as it
relates to diversity, inclusion and racial equity. We used their recommendations to refine
our DIBS strategic plan and inform the next steps in our journey.

During the past few months, Baker Tilly team members have taken the time to have
difficult conversations and reflect deeply. Colleagues shared stories of how racism and
discrimination affect their daily lives — stories they did not feel comfortable sharing before.
Others gained new insight into their own unconscious biases and the steps needed to
overcome them. As a firm, we are committed to continue on this learning journey and
achieve tangible results together.

Baker Tilly Foundation support for racial justice advocacy

As a firm, we have made our position clear: we stand against
racism and discrimination in any form. The Baker Tilly Foundation’s
board of directors, with input from our team members, recently
selected key racial justice organizations as recipients of direct
financial support from our firm —with a commitment to match
team member donations. Additionally, our SOAR committees
support local social justice causes through event sponsorship, fundraising initiatives and
volunteer engagement. ‘

Tone from the top: CEO Action for Diversity & Inclusion
Baker Tilly is a member of CEO Action for

CEOIACT!IONIFOR Diversity & Inclusion, a steering committee of

CEOs focused on making diversity and inclusion
DIVERSITY & INCLUSION abusiness priority. CEO Action for Diversity &

Inclusion is the most extensive alliance of
business leaders openly committed to sharing successful diversity initiatives and lessons
learned. This corporate exchange provides a central hub for participating businesses to
share successes and challenges. As a member, Baker Tilly pledges to:

— Make our workplaces trusting places to have open conversations about diversity and
inclusion

— Implement and expand unconscious bias education
— Share best, and unsuccessful, practices

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |11



(OB RN R R R IR R B B 'R B R R R R U T TR T B IR UL

2. Understanding and approach

Why Baker Tilly is ideally suited to serve Huber Heights

There are many reasons Baker Tilly has distinguished itself from peers in public sector
executive recruitment. What makes Baker Tilly different from other firms? Our executive
recruitment solution truly begins with your needs. The City of Huber Heights deserves
to work with a provider that goes beyond checking your recruitment boxes through proactive,
responsive insights, a tailored approach and communication. We encourage you to
consider how the unique combination of our qualifications make us the right fit to serve
the City- today and for years to come.

We are experienced and passionate about what we do

Baker Tilly executive recruitment consultants are highly experienced and passionate about locai
government since all have spent a significant part of their professional careers in senior leadership
positions for cities, counties and school districts. Our team has recruited and placed more than 1,400
executive-level positions within cities, counties, school districts and public and not-for-profit organizations
since 2000.

We are focused on exceeding your expectations

We believe in local government and want to assist the City of Huber Heights organization in building a
great team. We want your organization to hire us again based on the success we achieve the first
time we work together.

We believe that “ethical business practices” are a catalyst for success

These practices include operating with transparency, responsiveness and sensitivity to the culture of
your organization while pursuing an unrelenting commitment to high quality and professional services.

We believe in diversity

Our corporate core values and work environment reflect our broader social aspirations for a diverse
workforce, equal opportunity and cross-cultural respect. We take responsibility for diversity in our
organization, our recruitment strategy and our candidate pools. We are corporate members of the
National Forum for Black Public Administrators (NFBPA) and the Hispanic Network and are on their
National Corporate Advisory Council.

We conduct a timely, high-quality recruitment that is within budget

For an all-inclusive, not-to-exceed professional fee that includes the cost of professional services by the
project team leader, the project support staff and all project related expenses such as advertising,
preparation of a recruitment brochure, background, reference and academic verification checks and
travel expenses for up to three on-site visits. We work with you to establish a timeline, respond to
Huber Heights’s needs and to unexpected circumstances that may develop during the course of a
recruitment in order to expedite the recruitment, but not at the expense of finding high quality
candidates for the City.

We utilize the latest technologies that uniquely sets us apart

Technology plays an important role in the Baker Tilly executive recruitment process. From our proprietary
video interview system and our management/leadership style assessment analysis to our proprietary
online application system, we efficiently manage candidate information and provide the Mayor and
City Council with unique information about each candidate’s leadership and management style and
ability to respond extemporaneously to video questions.

We offer a “Triple Guarantee” that commits us to the City’s success

— We remain focused to assist with your executive recruitment until you make an appointment

—  We guarantee your executive recruitment for 12 months against termination or resignation for any
reason — or we come back to fill the City Manager position for no additiona!l professional fee

—  We will not directly solicit any candidates selected under this contract for another position while
the candidate is employed with your organization

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |12



2. Understanding and approach

Benefits to Huber Heights

Selecting Baker Tilly to conduct your executive recruitment provides you with the following
benefits:

Comprehensive and structured process

Our process is comprehensive and seamless, reflecting our years of interaction with local government
employers and prospective candidates.

Transparency

Baker Tilly comes to the City without having any preconceived notions or expectations about the City

and prospective candidates. The Baker Tilly team works closely with the City to make sure the process
is transparent.

Confidentiality

Prospective candidates know that their application will be kept confidential, allowing them to express
interest in the City Manager position without jeopardizing their current employment. Our reputation for
ensuring candidate confidentiality as permitted by state and local law means that the City can count
on maximizing the number of qualified candidates interested in the position.

Candidate recruitment

Baker Tilly actively recruits qualified candidates, drawing from our extensive personal and professional
connections with capable individuals around the state, region and nation and assuring the City of its
access to established managers and rising stars. The ability to widely recruit for prospective candidates is

one of the primary benefits of using Baker Tilly.

Focused use of the City’s time
Baker Tilly's comprehensive process incorporates the active participation of the Mayor and City Council
members at key steps in the process. Our process keeps decision makers fully-advised and informed

of all aspects of the process without requiring them to expend large amounts of time on the recruitment
process or to put aside other pressing issues facing the City.

Minimize staff disruption

Baker Tilly’s search process also minimizes disruptions to Huber Heights’s staff, some of whom may
have additional duties in this time of transition. Because conducting a thorough recruitment can be
time-consuming, Baker Tilly’s involvement allows staff to stay focused on their primary and assigned
functions.

Thorough evaluation of candidates

The City seeks a City Manager of sound professional and personal character. Baker Tilly’s process
includes a thorough evaluation of the final candidates, including detailed information from references
and a careful review of background records.

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |13




e e e e e W W N N W OR NN NN K R N NN NN

3. Timeline

Below is an estimated timeline for the executive recruitment process. You will be asked
during the first on-site meeting to review and approve a timeline for the recruitment
project. It is our intent to conduct the recruitment expeditiously, but not at the expense of
finding high-quality candidates for you.

Crty of Huber Helghts Ohlo
‘Executive Recruitment .
B _Preliminary Timeline -

The followrng timeline represents a preliminary schedule for your executrve recrmtment based on a
commencement date of August 16. Actual target dates will be developed in consultation with and
approved by the Mayor and City Council.

Project milestone Deliverables Target Date

- Baker Tilly completes interviews to develop
candidate profile and recruitment brochure; the City
approves ad placement schedule and timeline

- Baker Tilly sends draft recruitment brochure to
the City

~  The City returns draft recruitment brochure (with
edits) to Baker Tilly

- Baker Tilly commences executive recruitment
advertising and marketing

- Online data collection and profile development

— Baker Tilly commences formal review of
applications; most promising candidates
complete questionnaires

- Candidates complete recorded interview online

- Baker Tilly completes formal review of
applications and sends selected resumes to the
Mayor and City Council for review

- Candidates’ recorded interviews are presented October

- Baker Tilly meets with the Mayor and City
Council and recommends semi-finalists; the
Mayor and City Council selects finalists for on-
site interviews

- Finalists complete candidate management style
assessment and responses are reviewed and
interview questions are developed

Profile development,
advertising and candidate
outreach

September

Applicant screening and
assessment and
recommendation of semi-
finalists

Comprehensive background
check, academic verifications
and reference checks
completed for finalists

— Baker Tilly completes reference checks /
background checks/ academic verification on November
finalists

) - Baker Tilly sends documentation for finalists to
On-site Interviews with the Mayor and City Council

finalists —~ The Mayor and City Council conducts on-site November
interviews with finalists
Employment offer made / - The Mayor and City Council extends employment
; TBD
accepted offer to selected candidate
City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |14



=
34
=
=
a4
-
=
|
5
=
=
|
=
3.
E |
|
E |
E |
|
|
=
=
2
™
2
2
|
5
E )
=

d i

4. Proposed fees

The all-inclusive professional fee to conduct the recruitment is
provided below.

Professional fee

The all-inclusive professional fee includes the cost of professional services by the project
team leader, the project support staff and all project-related expenses such as advertising,
preparation of the recruitment brochure, printing, candidate background, reference
and academic verification checks and travel expenses for on-site visits. Travel expenses
incurred by candidates for on-site interviews with the client are not the responsibility of Baker
Tilly and are handled directly by the client organization.

The all-inclusive professional fee will be billed in four installments: 30% of the fee will be
billed at the beginning of the recruitment; 30% at the implementation of Phase I; 30% at
the implementation of Phase II; and 10% upon acceptance of an offer by the candidate.

All questions regarding the professional fees and project-related expenses should be directed
to Patty Heminover at patty.heminover@bakertilly.com or via phone at (651) 968 7841.

. Phase .1 Description of professional services Fee
Task 1 Candidate profile development/advertising/marketing
lead consultant hourly rate — approximately 14 hours $3,150 -
research/project management staff hourly rate —
Phase | appr<?X|mate.Iy 16 hqurs $1,700
Task 2 ldentify quality candidates
lead consultant hourly rate — approximately 14 hours $3,150
research/project management staff hourly rate —
approximately 16 hours $1,700
Task 3 Preliminary screening & initial report to client
lead consultant hourly rate — approximately 18 hours $4,150
research/project management staff hourly rate —
approximately 20 hours $2,000
Phase Il Task 4 Reference checks, background checks, assessments
and academic verifications
lead consultant hourly rate — approximately 11 hours $2,500
research/project management staff hourly rate —
approximately 12 hours $1,300
Task 5 Final process/on-site interviews with finalists
Ph lead consultant hourly rate — approximately 14 hours $3,150
ase lll .
research/project management staff hourly rate —
approximately 16 hours $1,700

Conclusion Acceptance of offer by candidate

TOTAL ALL-INCLUSIVE PROFESSIONAL FEE  $24,500

(9]
)
y
wn
O
v
)
t
M
v
o
—
(4]



oo Mol R N N NN NN N N e e A R N

2 W

4. Proposed fees

\Optional services for consideration

At the City of Huber Heights’s option, Baker Tilly will conduct a web-based
survey to determine key community-wide issues and priorities that could be $1,650
considered in the selection of a new City Manager. This survey is completed by ’
community leaders, citizens and City employees and would alter the project

timeline.

On rare occasions, Baker Tilly is asked to provide additional search services

that are not included in this scope of service or to provide more than three on-site

visits to the City of Huber Heights. Additional work specifically requested by the $220 per hour
City which is outside of the scope of this project will be invoiced at the hourly plus expenses
rate of $220 plus expenses. Baker Tilly will submit a written explanation of the

additional services to be provided and the estimated hours that will be required

prior to commencing any additional services.

Triple guarantee

Our Triple Guarantee is defined as:

1. A commitment to remain with the recruitment assignment until you have made an
appointment for the fees and tasks quoted in this proposal. If you are unable to finalize
selection from the initial group of finalists, Baker Tilly will work to identify a supplemental
group until you find a candidate to hire.

2. Your executive recruitment is guaranteed for 12 months against termination or
resignation for any reason. The replacement recruitment will be repeated with no
additional professional fee, but will include project-related expenses. Candidates
appointed from within your organization do not qualify for this guarantee. This guarantee
is subject to further limitations and restrictions of your state laws.

3. Baker Tilly will not directly solicit any candidates selected under this contract for any
other position while the candidate is employed with your organization.

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |16



il o ) ) M e N R W N W N M e e e ) e M W)

o b b ) b

I )

g e ey

3. References

Feel free to contact any of the individuals listed below to verify the quality of work Baker
Tilly provides to each client as part of these recently completed executive recruitment projects.

~ Cityof Willmar,Minnesota =~~~
Name Marv Calvin Title Mayor
Phone (320) 212 2171 Email Mcalvin@wilimarmn.gov
Address 333 Southwest 6th Street, Willmar, MN 56201-0755

JR—

[

IL ~ - City of Oakdale, Minnesota

Name Christina Volkers Title City Administrator
Phone (651) 730-2705 Email Chris.voklers@ci.oakdale.mn.us
Address 1584 Hadley Avenue North, Oakdale, MN 55128-5408

o ; . City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska -
: Name Raymond Gonzales Title ~ Retired Mayor
Phone (308) 631-0947 Email rgonzales@kelleybean.com

. Address 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, NE 69361

" City of Edina, Minnesota

Name Kelly Curtin Title Human Resources Director
Phone (952) 826-0402 Email keurtin@edinamn.gov
Address 4801 West 50th Street, Edina, MN 55424

| " City of Lakeville, Minnesoté

Name Tammy Schutta Title Human Resources Manager
Phone (952) 985-4491 Email tschutta@lakevillemn.gov
Address 20195 Holyoke Avenue West, Lakeville, Minnesota 55044-9177

City of Huber Heights, Ohio ' Page |17



Ml i b

U U]

ol o) ) e e e e e e e e b e U W MW N W W

6. Experience

The following is a list of executive recruitments recently conducted by members of the Baker
Tilly team.

List of relevant prolectS' 2016 to. present

o ey

Current
Current
Current
Current
Current
Current
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019

Carrboro
Clearwater
College Park
inver Grove Heights
North Kansas City
Shakopee

Corpus Christi
Evansville

Long Grove
Moline

Rockville

Boone County
Eau Claire
Fairmont

Front Royal
Herington

Kansas City

Lake Ozark
Maple Plain

Matanuska-Susitna Borough

Missouri City
Moose Lake
Oakdale
Rochester
Scottsbluff
St. Joseph
Beeville
Cloguet
Hobbs

Lake Lotawana
Norman

City of Huber Heights, Ohio

FL
MD
MN
MO
MN
TX
wi
IL
iL
MD
IL
wi
MN
VA
KS
MO
MO
MN
AK
TX
MN
MN
MN
NE
MO
TX
MN
NM
MO
OK

Town Manager 21,230

City Manager 115,159'
City Administrator 32,196

City Administrator 34,344
City Administrator 4,477

Assistant City Administrator 40,731

Assistant City Manager 323,733
City Administrator/Finance Director 5,378
Village Manager 7,956
City Administrator 41,902
Deputy City Manager 66,940
County Administrator 53,513
City Manager 68,866
City Administrator 10,126
Town Manager 15,239
City Manager 2,304
City Manager 488,943
Asst City Admin/Comm Eco Dev Director 1,792
City Administrator 1,807
Borough Manager 108,317
City Manager 74,705
City Administrator 2,798
City Administrator 28,083
City Administrator 114,011

City Manager 14,874
City Manager 74,959
City Manager 12,937
City Administrator 11,938
City Manager 37,764
City Administrator 2,099
City Manager 122,843

Page |18



oMM NN R R R E K K K

VIR R U R R U U

I B )|

6. Experience

m populton

2019  Paris City Manager 24,800
2019  Park City KS City Administrator 7,499
2019  Port Arthur TX  City Manager 53,937
2018  Willmar MN  City Administrator 19,628
2018  Addison TX  City Manager 15,368
2018  Asheville NC City Manager 89,121
2018  Ashland OR  City Administrator 21,636
2018  Avondale AZ  City Manager 82,881
2018  Belle Plaine MN  City Administrator 6,838
2018  Billings MT  City Administrator 110,323
2018  Burnsville MN  City Manager 61,434
2018  Christiansburg VA  Town Manager 21,633
2018  Grand Rapids Ml City Manager 192,294
2018  Herington KS City Manager 2,362
2018  Kingman AZ  City Manager 29,029
2018  Maricopa AZ  City Manager 46,903
2018  Middleburg VA  Town Administrator 828
2018  Mora ' MN  City Administrator/Public Utilities GM 3,453
2018  Salina KS City Manager 46,994
2018  Shawnee KS City Manager 64,323
2018  York PA  Business Administrator 43,859
2017  Berthoud CO  Town Administrator 5,807
2017  Christiansburg VA  Town Manager 21,533
2017  Cloquet MN  City Administrator 11,938
2017  Dickinson TX  City Administrator 19,595
2017  El Dorado KS City Manager 12,852
2017  Glenview IL  Village Manager 45,417
2017  Lake Havasu City AZ City Manager 53,743
2017  Littleton CO City Manager . 44,275
2017  Manassas Park VA  City Manager , 16,149
2017  Morehead City NC City Manager 9,203
2017  Mounds View MN  City Administrator 12,525
2017  Oldsmar FL  City Manager 13,913
2017  Orono MN  City Administrator 8,009
2017  Riviera Beach FL  City Manager 33,263
2017  Rochester MN  City Manager 110,742
2017  Roxbury Township NJ  Township Manager 23,324
2016  Cary NC Town Manager 151,088
2016  Charter Township of Kalamazoo Ml Township Manager 20,918
2016  Christiansburg VA  Town Manager 21,533
City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |19



W o e o oo O NN g e

6. Experience

Lrst of relevant pro;ects 2016 to present

Poputton’

IR R VR VR R

('

2016  Circle Pines City Administrator 4,953
2016  Commerce TX  City Manager 8,276
2016  Crested Butte CO  Town Manager . 1,519
2016  Deerfield Beach FL  Assistant City Manager 78,041
2016  Denton TX  City Manager 123,099
2016 - Dumfries VA  Town Manager 5,168
2016  Fredericksburg VA  City Manager 28,132
2016  Greensboro NC  Assistant City Manager 279,639
2016  Hayden CO  Town Manager 1,801
2016  Jersey Village TX  City Manager 7,862
2016  Mankato MN  Deputy City Manager 40,641
2016  Medford OR City Manager 77,677
2016  Mooresville NC  Town Manager 34,887
2016  Moorhead MN  City Manager 39,398
2016 Moose Lake MN  City Administrator 2,787
2016 North Branch MN  City Administrator 10,087
2016  Roswell NM  City Manager 48,611
2016  Shakopee MN  Assistant City Administrator 39,167
2016  Virginia MN  City Administrator 8,661
2016 Warsaw VA  Town Manager 1,498
2016  Wayzata MN City Manager 4,217
2016  Williamsburg VA  Assistant City Manager 15,206
City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |20



IR R U U U U R R U U U BB U R R R IR TR TR I IR U

| Sna———a—— |

7. Project team members

The Baker Tilly project team is designed specifically for the City
of Huber Heights.

The project team represents experienced professionals who will be working on your City
Manager recruitment. Our service team is selected to meet four very specific objectives
for the City: 1) it represents the staff who will be directly responsible for your projects; 2) it
provides a range of expertise to cover the range of service requirements; 3) it provides a
national perspective of experience and institutional knowledge to achieve your future
objectives; and 4) it represents the commitment to take personal and professional
responsibility for the services and outcomes for the City of Huber Heights.

Project team leader

Patricia Heminover, Director
T: +1 (651) 223 3058
E: patty.heminover@bakertilly.com

Additi\onal project team members
Chuck Rohre, Managing Director

T: +1 (214) 466 2436 o
E: chuck.rohre@bakertilly.com *
Art Davis, Director

T: +1(816) 868 7042
E: art.davis@bakertilly.com

Our engagement team

has completed nearly

Sharon Klumpp, Director 400 successful
T: +1 (651) 223 3053 .
E: sharon.klumpp@bakertilly.com searches since 2016.

Anne Lewis, Director
T:+1(703) 923 8214
E: anne.lewis@bakertilly.com

Edward G. Williams, Ph.D., Director
T: +1 (214) 842 6478
E: edward.williams@bakertilly.com

Cecilia Hernandez, Senior Recruitment Analyst
T.+1 (214) 736 1606
E: cecilia.hernandez@bakertilly.com

Michelle Lopez, Senior Recruitment Analyst
T: +1 (651) 223 3061
E: michelle.lopez@bakertilly.com

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |21



e

o o e RO OE R

[ B '~ G " R < R |

7. Project team members

Patricia Heminover

Patty Heminover, a director with Baker Tilly, has more than 20 years of experience in local government.

Baker Tilly US, LLP
Director

380 Jackson Street
Suite 300

Saint Paul, MN 55101
United States

T +1 (651) 223 3058

M +1 (651) 968 7841
patty.heminover@bakertilly.com
bakertilly.com

Education
Master of Education, Administration
Minnesota State University - Mankato

Mini MBA Program, Human Resources Management
University of Saint Thomas (Saint Paul, Minnesota)

Bachelor of Science, Consumer Science, Business

Administration
Minnesota State University — Mankato

City of Huber Heights, Ohio

Patty has been with the firm since 2010. Prior to joining Baker
Tilly, she was a superintendent, assistant superintendent, director
of human resources and director of finance. She brings considerable

experience identifying management talent, leading organizational

and process improvements, and developing and administering

budgets.

Specific experience

-~ Executive Recruitment, employee development, benefits
administration, strategic planning, performance management,
market compensation studies, workforce planning, recognition
programs and process improvement

- Experience identifying management talent, leading organization
and process improvements, and developing and administering
budgets

- Understanding of human resources and finance
—  Experience working with governing boards

- Served as superintendent, co-superintendent of schools,
director of human resources and finance, director of human
resources and business services for two Minnesota school
districts

— Facilitated discussions with legislators at the state level
regarding education funding, securing new funding for a
Minnesota school district

Industry involvement

- Minnesota Association of School Administrators (MASA)

- American Association of School Administrators (AASA)

- Minnesota Association of School Business Officials (MASBO)
- River Heights Chamber of Commerce, Member

- State Negotiators Association,
Minnesota School Board Association

- Patty has received a School Finance Award, technology
leadership awards and helped establish the first K-12
International Baccalaureate School District in Minnesota

Continuing professional education

-~ Human Resource Certificate, University of St. Thomas
~  Superintendents Licensure, State of Minnesota

Page |22




I U BB U R IR U U U U T TR TR R

7. Project team members

Charles A. Rohre

Chuck Rohre, a Managing Director at Baker Tilly, has more than 35 years of experience
managing and consulting in both the private and public sectors.

Chuck is responsible for managing and conducting executive
recruitment engagements for the firm to ensure their integrity,
timeliness and adherence to budget parameters. He also directs
the professional and support staff of the executive recruitment
practice to ensure best practices, quality control and customer
service goals are met.

Specific experience

-~ Manager of the executive recruitment practice
- Extensive and successful track record of completed recruitments

Baker Tilly US, LLP across thei nation, especially in Texas, Colorado, Arizona,
Managing Director and the Midwestern states
2500 Dallas Parkway -~ Has led more than 400 recruitment engagements in 27 states
Suite 300 for key executives such as city and assistant city managers,
Plano, TX 75093 police chiefs, fire chiefs, library directors, chief information
United States o officers, city/county attorneys, parks & recreation directors,
finance directors and public works directors, as well as
T +1 (214) 466 2436 executive directors of not-for-profit and quasigovernmental
M +1 (214) 608 7477 v organizations
chuck.rohre@bakertilly.com " - Conducted management consulting assignments in a number
bakertilly.com of disciplines including public safety, career development

and strategic planning
- Written and presented training in a variety of subject areas
including personnel assessment, leadership and management
skills, and career development for public sector employees
- Prior to beginning his consulting career, served as police chief
and director of public safety for North Texas municipalities
with populations ranging from 9,000 to 200,000 plus

Education
Master's Degree, Human Relations and Management
Abilene Christian University (Dallas, Texas)

Bachelor of Science, Career Development
Abilene Christian University (Dallas, Texas)

Continuing professional education

- Certified Behavior Analyst by TTI, Inc.

- Advanced management training at the Institute for Law
Enforcement Administration

- Federal Bureau of Investigation, LEEDS course

- Annual participation in the International City/County
Management Association Conference

- Annual participation in state and municipal league conference

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |23



)]

W] W ] !

M M ¥

oMM Moy

BNV BV R R B

7. Project team members

Art Davis

Art Davis, a director with Baker Tilly, has pursued his passion to improve local government and
create great communities for more than 30 years.

Baker Tilly US, LLP
Director

9229 Ward Parkway

Suite 104

Kansas City, MO 64114-3311
United States

T +1 (816) 912 2036

M +1 (816) 868 7042
art.davis@bakertilly.com
bakertilly.com

Education
Master of Public Administration
University of Kansas (Lawrence, Kansas)

Bachelor of Arts, Political Science

and Public Administration
William Jewell College (Liberty, Missouri)

City of Huber Heights, Ohio

Art specializes in providing executive recruitment and
organizational management consulting services for cities,
counties and not-for-profits.

Specific experience

Successfully launched and expanded his own local
government consulting firm over the course of 10 years
Nearly 15 years’ experience in executive recruitment
Community leadership program facilitation

Leadership and management development

Strategic goal setting and strategic planning facilitation
Organizational assessment, design and development
Organization and community facilitation

Served more than six years as associate director for the
Civic Council of Greater Kansas City, a nonprofit, 501c4
membership organization comprised of CEOs representing
some of the largest companies in the region
Coordinated and organized a strategic and master planning
process (and an update of the plan after four years) focused
on re-developing downtown Kansas City, involving hundreds
of stakeholders

Served nearly six years as city administrator for Lee’s
Summit, Missouri and in other local government positions in
Kansas

Served as assistant to the Mayor of Dallas, Texas

Led and participated in a wide variety of community
initiatives; served on a major hospital board for 13 years
and on other not-for-profit boards

Presented with the L.P. Cookingham Award by the Greater
Kansas City Chapter of the American Society for Public
Administration, recognizing his long-term and outstanding
contributions in the field of public administration

Industry involvement

International City/County Management (ICMA), member
since 1984

Page |24



W W & O W

)

UL L

U

»

\J |

|

oM NN N

7. Project team members

Sharon G. Klumpp

Sharon Klumpp, a director with Baker Tilly, has worked on behalf of local governments for more
than 35 years and partnered with them to build strong organizations.

Baker Tilly US, LLP
Director

380 Jackson Street
Suite 300

Saint Paul, MN 55101
United States

T +1 (651) 223 3053

M +1 (651) 270 6856
sharon.klumpp@bakertilly.com
bakertilly.com

Education
Master of Public Administration
University of Kansas (Lawrence, Kansas)

Bachelor of Arts, Political Science
Miami University (Oxford, Ohio)

City of Huber Heights, Ohio

Sharon specializes in providing executive recruitment, organizational
management and facilitation services to local governments and
nonprofits.

Specific experience

More than 15 years’ experience in executive search and
organizational management consulting

Served as associate executive director for the League of
Minnesota Cities

Appointed executive director of the Metropolitan Council, a
seven-county regional planning agency for the
Minneapolis-Saint Paul metropolitan area

Served as city administrator in Oakdale, Minnesota and
assistant city manager for St. Louis Park Minnesota and
Saginaw, Michigan

Private sector experience includes serving as the chief
administrative officer for the Minneapolis office of a major
global engineering and design firm

Served as an adjunct instructor at Walden University, teaching
public administration and organizational change in the
University’s School of Management

Industry involvement

International City/County Management Association (ICMA)

Page |25



s W

1B I 1 1

TR O I

JENUREUNE RN R R UEE R R R U

(|

MO

7. Project team members

Anne Lewis

Anne Lewis, a director with Baker Tilly, has worked for local governments for nearly 20 years.

Baker Tilly US, LLP
Director

8219 Leesburg Pike
Suite 800

Tysons, VA 22182
United States

T +1 (703) 923 8214
anne.lewisi@bakertilly.com
bakertilly.com

Education

Master of Science, Organizational Leadership
and Public Administration

Shenandoah University (Winchester, Virginia)

Bachelor of Science, Business Administration

and Management
Shenandoah University (Winchester, Virginia)

City of Huber Heights, Ohio

Prior to joining Baker Tilly, Anne served as an Assistant County
Administrator for a Virginia county, a Deputy City Manager and
an Assistant City Manager for two Virginia cities. Over the last
17 years, her experience in local government has also included
positions as an Emergency Management Deputy Director, Public
Information Officer, Human Resources Manager, Parking Authority
City Manager, Housing Director, Transit Director and
Convention & Visitors Bureau City Manager. She also has had
responsibility for parks, recreation and community services,
information technology, animal services, general services and
legislative programs.

Industry involvement

- International City/County Management Association,
Credentialed Manager (ICMA)
— Task Force on Recruitment Guidelines Handbook
- Task Force on Women in the Profession
— Task Force on Internship Guidelines

- Virginia Local Government Management Association
(VLGMA), former member of Executive Board

- Virginia Women Leading Government
- Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)

Community involvement

- Shenandoah University Alumni Association, Executive
Committee

- Shenandoah Apple Blossom Festival®, Board of Directors

Continuing professional education

- Graduate Certificate in Public Management

-~  Senior Executive Institute and LEAD graduate, The
Weldon Cooper Center, University of Virginia

Page | 26



M K KON O & N W W K W s W W W A A A Wl W4 W4 U A el

I~ B~ T~ B I~ R~ R |

7. Project team members

Edward G. Williams, Ph.D.

Edward Williams, a director at Baker Tilly, brings character, competence and expertise to every search.

Baker Tilly US, LLP
Director

2500 Dallas Parkway
Suite 300

Plano, TX 75093
United States

T +1(214) 842 6478

M +1 (214) 608 6363
edward.williams@bakertilly.com
bakertilly.com

Languages
English
Spanish

Education
Ph.D., Educational Leadership and Policy Analysis
University of Missouri (Columbia, Missouri)

Master of Higher Education Administration
University of Missouri (Kansas City, Missouri)

Bachelor of Arts, Education
University of Missouri (Kansas City, Missouri)

City of Huber Heights, Ohio

Edward has more than 20 years of collective experience in human
resources and organizational development at various levels, and
across various disciplines including, state and local government,
community and educational institutions.

Specific experience

- Human resources executive (municipal and state govemment)

- Executive recruitment, employee development, benefits
administration, strategic planning, Performance management,
market compensation studies, workforce planning, recognition
programs and process improvement

Industry involvement

- Society for Human Resources (SHRM)
- Institute for Management Studies (IMS), advisory board
- Texas Municipal Human Resources Administration (TMHRA)

Community involvement

~  Ft. Bend Habitat for Humanity, president, vice-president,
secretary and member, board of (2014-2019)

-~ AAU basketball coach — middle school boys
Continuing professional education

- Institute for Management Studies - Houston
- International Personnel Management Association

Page |27



O NN NN NN OO K KON OO MK R WO M R R

7. Project team members

Cecilia Hernandez

Cecilia Hernandez is a senior recruitment analyst with Baker Tilly’s executive recruitment practice.

Baker Tilly US, LLP

Senior Recruitment Analyst
2500 Dallas Parkway

Suite 300

Plano, TX 75093
United States

‘T +1(214) 736 1606

cecilia.hernandez@bakertilly.com
bakertilly.com

l.anguages
English
Spanish

Education
Bachelor of Science, Public Affairs
University of Texas at Dallas (Richardson, Texas)

Master of Public Affairs with a Local Government

Concentration
University of Texas at Dallas (Richardson, Texas)

City of Huber Heights, Ohio

Cecelia is responsib'le for supporting the consultants throughout
each recruitment process and keeps in contact with the candidates
for any questions or concerns they have.

Specific experience

Communicates with and sends out candidate questionnaires
to candidates once the field of applicants for a position has
narrowed to a smaller group _
Responsible for creating reports used and sent to clients,
submits candidates’ information for background checks
and verification of their education, as well as scheduling
interviews for finalists

Worked for a Texas city govemment as the records management
clerk and provided administrative support for the city
secretary department; responsibilities were extended to also
provide support for the City Manager and prepare for City
Council meetings ‘
Worked for a Dallas area university humanities department;
worked closely with event coordinator and manager to
ensure that programs and events scheduled ran smoothly;
was a contact for students and provided support

Page |28



LYY Ji !

Lw}

[T A7

AW

L) B \J B\ J |

w)

B REl E B v )

L)

|\ R \ Y T )]

W

(I I I I I I R

7. Project team members

Michelle Lopez

Michelle Lopez, a senior recruitment analyst at Baker Tilly, has been with the firm since 2017.

Michelle assists in the organizational management of the executive
recruitment process. Along with coordinating internal workflow,
she also works with clients and candidates to ensure objectives
are met throughout the process.

Specific experience

- More than 10 years of administrative support experience
for multiple departments, including human resources and
marketing

- Four years of experience in information technology help
desk and support

Baker Tilly US, LLP - Survey and data reporting

Senior Recruitment Analyst : :

380 Jackson Street - Refer.ence chec'ks for potential canFjldates
Suite 300 - Interview coordination and scheduling

Saint Paul, MN 55101 - Recruitment marketing research and organization

United States

T +1 (651) 223 3061
michelle.lopez@bakertilly.com
bakertilly.com

Education

Currently pursuing Bachelor of Science, Project
Management

Colorado State University — Global Campus

Associate in Arts, Liberal Arts
Minneapolis Community College (Minneapolis, Minnesota)

t
H
I
)
)
3
1
1
)
3
13
)
3
")
1

1)
imn

N
[{a]

W



I |

U IR

MO A N M M

o B4

O B4

M M

8. Sample Certificate of Insurance

City of Huber Heights, Ohio Page |30



O W NN N N SN MY SN YN

) ®
ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE(MM/DD/YYYY)
01/06/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If
SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this
certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

Holder Identifier : 08/06/2020

PRODUCER CONTACT
Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc. mﬁg FAX
New York NY Office Mo Vo, Ext;  (312) 381-1000 FRX Noj: (312) 381-7007
One Liberty Plaza E-MAIL
165 Broadway, Suite 3201 ADDRESS: .
New York NY 10006 USA
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURED INSURER A: American Casualty Co. of Reading PA 20427
Baker Tilly uUS, LLP INSURER B: The Continental Insurance Company 35289
P.0. Box 7398 -
Ten Terrace Court INSURER C: Transportation Insurance Co. 20494
Madison WI 53707-7398 USA INSURER D: valley Forge Insurance Co 20508
INSURER E: National Fire Ins. Co. of Hartford 20478
INSURER F:

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 570085622870

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

Limits shown are as requested

INSRI TYPE OF INSURANCE PR POLICY NUMBER O | () LimITs
E | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY C60157_5|15§8b ] 01/01/2021 éﬂ 0172022[ EAcH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
General LiabiTity DAMAGE TO RENTED
] CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $1,000,000
MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000] R
— o]
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMITAPPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000] o
| | PoLicy L__J JPERé’.; LoC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000 g
OTHER: E
D. | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 6016751641 01/01/2021{01/01/2022| COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $1,000,000 o
Auto {Ea accident) * ’ ..
| ANYAUTO BODILY INJURY ( Per person) §
] SCHEDULED. BODILY INJURY (Per accident) o
OWNED . =
AUTOS @
1 AUTO!
X HILFJQEDiL?FT)I-SY X | NON-OWNED (F;)Z?ZCE;E tI)DAMAGE 3
1~ ] ony AUTOS ONLY "1.::
[
B | x | UMBRELLALIAB | X | occur 6016723001 01/01/2021{01/01/2022| EACH OCCURRENCE £1,000,000] ©
— — Umbrella
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $1,000,000
pEp|  JreTEnTION "
A | WORKERS COMPENSATION AND WwC 6 16751624 01/01/2021101/01/2022| y | PER STATUTE | |OTH-
B m:;ggx;xﬂﬂgnsm EXECUTIVE AEA WC 6 23746823 01/01/2021)01/01/2022 E.L. EACHACCIDENT = $1,000,000
C | OFEICERMEMBER Extr UDED? NIA WC643413436 01/01/2021|01/01/2022 |5 OYY,
(Mandatory in NH) workers Compensation E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Additional insured applies as respects the General Liability and Automobile Liability when required by written contract
subject to the terms and conditions of the respective policies. Primary and Non-Contributory applies on General Liability and
Auto Liability when required by a written contract.
A waiver of subrogation applies as respects the General Liability, Auto Liability and workers Compensation when required by
written contract subject to the terms and conditions of the respective policies.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Evidence of Insurance

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE
. EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Are Dot Foicas Nirrhoastt S

B et R e BT s R

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

" Vo
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 10/01/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
§ CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

) CONTACT
PRODUCER pon Risk Services Northeast, Inc. ;‘ag"ﬁl‘s EAX
One Liberty Plaza, {AIC, No, Ext): 512-381-1000 (AIC, Noj: 312-381-7007
165 Broadway, Suite 3201 RDDRESS:
New York, N.Y. 10006 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURERA : Columbia Casualty Company
2% °""° Baker Tilly US, LLP INSURERB:
Ten Terrace Court INSURER G :
Madison, W| 53718 INSURER D :
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

SR ADDL[SUBR] POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE 3
I:I DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
MED EXP (Any one person) $
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
POLICY D B |:| Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $
OTHER: $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (I:Egl\glgé%lggnsmGLE LIMIT $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED »
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS . (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED l | RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH- ~
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN St [ |85
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? |:| N/A
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $
A | Professional Liability Insurance ABF-188122608 01-Oct-20 01-Oct21 | Notless than US $1,000,000 per claim and in the
annual aggregate.
ESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
aker Tilly US, LLP SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

g en Terrace Court ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

adison, WI 53718

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Hon Bisk Services Hontheast, Tuc.

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
IACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Appendices

mmmmiMiNMERBRARRKNNRRERRRRIRRRREBERARRRAARARAEAARARAANAARANARN

Appendix |I: sample brochure

) | City of Huber Heights, Ohio



il e R VS f t RN . [P

provided by Baker Tilly Public Sector Executive Recruitment




C I - - A R AR O U R U U R U R UN |

The Commuhity

Inver Grove Heights (pop. 35,077) is a vibrant,
diverse, and fast growing community located
southeast of the Twin Cities, in close proximity to
the Mississippi River. With an area of 30 square
miles, the City is poised for continued residential
and commercial development. By 2025, its
population is projected to reach 46,000. With
easy access to Interstate 494 and Minnesota
State Highways 52, 55, and 3, City residents are
156 minutes from downtown St. Paul and 25
minutes from downtown Minneapolis.

|

[
H
i

Lo
- . TOoaEISY
W EmNEseiss
e I R E AL

The largest employers in the area are Flint Hills
Corporate Headquarters and Pine Bend Refinery,
Cenex/CHS Corporate Headquarters, Inver Grove
Heights Community College, ISD 199, and the City
of Inver Grove Heights.

Veterans Memorial Community Center provides
an array of recreation services to Inver Grove
Heights residents. The community center has an
ice arena, which includes a section of indoor turf
used by lacrosse teams, and The Grove Aquatic
and Fitness Center, featuring its own water park.
Inver Grove Heights is also home to the Rock
Island Swing Bridge, which gives visitors a lovely
view of the Mississippi River. The City has 27
parks, including a golf course, an athletic complex
at Rich Valley Athletic Complex, and mountain
bike trails at Harmon Park Reserve. The Inver
Grove Heights Days festival takes place every fall.
The celebration is run by local volunteers and
features sporting events for all ages, a parade,
fireworks, and more.

There are three school districts that serve the
community: ISD 199, 196, and 197, with the

majority of students attending ISD 199 or 196.
ISD 199 has three elementary schools, one

middle school, and one high school located within
the city. Residents also have access to schools in
Apple Valley, Rosemount, Lakeville, Burnsville,
and Eagan. Inver Grove Heights is home to Inver
Hills Community College, which strives to provide
its graduates with transferable or career-focused
degrees at an affordable price.



MO NN NN NN

The Organization

The City operates under a statutory form of government consisting of a four-member city
council and the mayor who is a voting member. Council members serve four-year
staggered terms, with two council members elected every two years and the Mayor
elected every two years. Among its primary duties, the City Council establishes a strategic
vision for the City, responds to resident concerns, makes laws, sets policies, adopts
budgets, and oversees a wide-ranging agenda for the community. The City Council
appoints a City Administrator to head administrative functions and direct all city
operations, projects, and programs. The City employs a staff of 154 full-time equivalents
and 308 part-time/seasonal employees. The City has an all-funds budget of $60 million.

The City of Inver Grove Heights is a full-service city, including police and fire protection,
the construction and maintenance of highways, streets and other infrastructure, water
and sewer services, community development support, and recreational activities and
cultural events.

Vision
A welcoming community on the river, with varied

h - landscapes, that provides a safe environment, quality

built and sustainable infrastructure, supports local

[- businesses, a variety of housing and promotes culture

and recreation.

- Mission

" * The mission of the City of Inver Grove Heights is to

b drovide services and facilities that enhance the quality
of life in our vibrant community.

CITY OF

INVER GROVE
HEIGHTS -




The Position

Under the direction of the City Council, the City Administrator is responsible for overseeing the implementation of the
decisions, policies, and goals of the City Council in collaboration with City department directors and their staff. The City
Administrator provides overall direction and oversight to department directors to ensure the most effective use of City
resources and adherence to City administrative policies and procedures. The City Administrator has ten direct reports:
Director of Parks & Recreation, Director of Public Works, Director of Community Development, Police Chief, Fire Chief,
Director of Finance, IT Manager, Human Resources Manager, Communications Manager, and City Clerk.

Major duties for this position include:

« Oversees the preparation of meeting agendas.
o Attends City meetings, committee meetings, staff meetings, and meetings with other governmental entities.
o =vzluates projects, programs and services and the impact they may have on the community and City.

e S-zydes direction, supervision, coordination, and oversight to department directors and administrative personnel.

- T

tes and sustains an organizational culture that supports and enhances City's values.

e Cversees and directs administrative services of the City including technology, human resources, communications, and
City Clerk functions; monitors and develops budgets in collaboration with Finance Director and other department
neads/directors.

Oversees the selection process of department directors and direct reports and makes recommendations to the City
Council.

e Serves as an advisor to the City Council and its committees on operational issues, items of concerns, and
recommendations.

e Plans, researches, formulates and/or recommends policies, procedures, and proposals for the Council's consideration.
e Oversees and plans the budgetary process and fiscal operations of the City.

« Conducts and performs activities involved in public relations and public information services for the City. -

o Establishes relationships and communications with County administrators, County Commissioners, school
superintendents, local businesses, associations, and agencies.

o Works with a variety of different groups representing various sectors of the community to identify or discuss their
issues, concerns and to represent the City or serve as a liaison between the community, citizens, and the Council.

+ Represents the City with local legislators, appointed officials, community leaders, and other city managers or
administrators.

V., B\J o o N > N " - - - py - - - - _ -
! M O M M M N M M M M b M e
[ ]

I



Desired Capabilities

The successful candidate will be a leader who is approachable and aligned with the City’s values of being ethical (doing
the right thing), engaged (delivering collaborative results), and striving for excellence (setting high standards and
exceeding expectations). Exercising trust and respect for all, the successful candidate will create an organizational culture
that supports and empowers good governance. The successful candidate will understand, respect, and support the role of
the City Council while remaining apolitical. The successful candidate will be a critical thinker in evaluating and addressing
City needs'and problems and receptive to the ideas and perspectives of others. Other desired capabilities include:

e Creative leader who can be a champion for the City and facilitate the community’s growth

e Innovative, receptive to new ideas, not content with the status quo

e Connects with the community, proactively reaches out to and engages community groups

¢ Projects confidence and inspires others to do their best

e Demonstrates the highest level of trust, integrity, and ethics; is transparent in all interactions

s Knowledgeable on issues facing growing communities, relates to the interests of large rural lots and small city lots

» Listens effectively and engages with staff, residents, intergovernmental representatives, other stakeholders, and the
City Council :

e Invites perspectives, professional opinions, and discussion to make informed decisions

e Motivates and encourages staff performance; ensures that employees understand how their work contributes to
organizational goals and objectives

* Sets goals, communicates expectations, and holds staff accountable

e Effective communicator who welcomes questions and responds by providing insight and reasons that explain the
response; keeps the conversation focused on best practices

o Fiscally conservative with a strong financial acumen, emphasizes the importance of long-range fiscal planning
e Calm, courteous, and respectful demeanor
o Self-aware and emotionally intelligent

e Approachable and visible in the community, regularly attends community events



Leadership Opportunities

Council-Administrator relationship. The City Administrator will make it a
priority to get to know the individual members of the City Council and to
work with them collectively to define roles and relationships, to discern
priorities, and to help the City Council reach consensus on policy matters.
The City Administrator, working with the senior management team, will
provide timely information and analysis to the City Council and engage the
City Council by providing options and recommmendations on policy issues.
The City Administrator wil ensure that all Council members get the same
infermation at the same time.

Strategic direction. The City Council has begun work to identify its
strategic goals. The City Administrator will work with the City Council and
the staff leadership team to develop short- and long-range City goals that
are linked to the City budget and long-range financial plans and will provide
the leadership and energy to accomplish adopted goals.

Organizational development. The City Council and staff leadership team
understand the importance of building a cohesive organization with a
forward-looking, shared strategic direction for the City. The City
Administrator will cultivate an inclusive organizational environment that
values collaboration, teamwork, and respect. With vacancies in the
positions of the Directors of Public Works and Engineering and Parks and
Recreation, the City Administrator will also have the opportunity to build
the leadership team.

Community-building. The City Administrator will establish trusting relationships and regular communications with County
officials, school superintendents, and local businesses and connect with groups from various sectors of the community
and the general public to represent the City and discuss issues and concerns. The City Administrator will also represent
the City in professional, regional, and state organizations.

Economic growth. The City wants to ensure that development and construction processes are streamlined to attract more
businesses and developments to help the City realize its untapped potential. The City Administrator will work with the staff
leadership team to accomplish the City's goals of improving existing residential neighborhoods, increasing commercial
activities, increasing the tax base, and providing additional employment opportunities.

Modernize administrative processes. The City Administrator will engage the staff leadership team to identify areas where
efficiencies can be achieved by streamlining business processes and updating technology. As the City grows, the City
Administrator will review, and project staffing needs required to support municipal services

MM o o NN MM N NN N N M M M M N M N M

1

b




P

o \/

Qualifications and
Experience

This position requires a Master's degree in
public administration or a closely related
field and at least five years of management
and leadership experience in the areas of
finance, government and public
administration or an equivalent combination
of education and experience. ICMA-CMis a
plus,

The successful candidate will demonstrate
a proven record of strategic and ethical
leadership, a passion for community
building, and a collaborative management
style. Deep familiarity with the delivery of
municipal services and administrative
functions, including finance and human
resource, is required.

Compensation and Benefits

The 2027 salary range for this position is $152,131 to $180,927, and the anticipated starting salary is $166,529 +/-,
depending upon qualifications and experience. The City offers a full range of employee benefits. Relocation is
negotiable.

Application and Selection Process

Qualified candidates please submit your cover letter and resume online by visiting our website at:

https://bakertilly.recruitmenthome.com/postings/2892

This position is opén until filled; first review of resumes occurs on May 26, 2021. Following this date, applications will be
screened against criteria outlined in this brochure. For more information or to request accommodations, please contact

Sharon Klumpp at sharon klumpp@bakertilly.com or 651-223-3053.

For more information about the City, please visit https://www.ighmn.gov/

The City of Inver Grove Heights is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and
encourages both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.

380 Jackson Street, Suite 300

St. Paul, MN 65101 -

@ pakertitty .o

bakertilly.com




H H E B BN I H M W N M M N M M M M M M MM N M M M Il I N &= W = = W

Appendices

Appendix ll: sample excerpt of TTl report

City of Huber Heights, Ohio



TTI SUCCESS INSIGHTS®

DISCOVER « ENGAGE » ADVANCE - PERFORM

v
l
Workplace Behaviors" candidate Name

. The following graph is designed as a visual comparison between the position and the applicant for each

i behavioral factor. The highlighted area denotes the position-related score for each behavioral factor. The
applicant's score is denoted by the darker red, yellow, green and blue line. The closer the applicant's score aligns
to the position's score, the better the applicant will perform in the position with respect to behavior.

- ———

1 00 e 35 et P B PR A A T U S

Candidate Name 96 82 8 22
Job 71 75 36 46

I:I Job Range (20 point range)

Candidate Name
- Baker Tilly . Copyright © 2006-2019. Target Training International, Ltd. 16



I

TTI SUCCESS INSIGHTS®

DISCOVER * ENGAGE * ADVANCE * PERFORM

AN
A AN
‘ ks s N

The Success Insights” Wheel

-

T

[

" \WPLEMENTOR

~

o

=
Y
| <
=
L (O
l O
\ O

o

o

o

[

Il Job - (13) PROMOTING PERSUADER
.- @ Candidate - (12) CONDUCTING PERSUADER

o

),,
|

: Candidate Name
Baker Tilly Copyright © 2006-2019. Target Training International, Ltd. 17

{,,._
!



[

I e

T

N

TTI SUCCESS INSIGHTS®

DISCOVER * ENGAGE * ADVANCE * PERFORM

1’"»

Com parison AnaIySiS For Consulting and Coaching

Job Competencies Hierarchy
1. Customer Focus> | | |
. 24_'-‘|-Aéanl,wiork R
| 3. Inierbersoﬁai Skiilé o
4. Influencing Others
5. Flexibillty |

6. Creativity and Innovation

7. Leadership

.

Zone Range Person
91 — 100 50 [ ]
R P .
2 - 2 |
o e .
8 — 100 75 [
B .
75 - 93 35 .

Primary Driving Forces Cluster Zone Range Person

1. Collaborative 3% — 57 6
2. Seffless 40 — 62 61 i
3. Harmonious 35 — 57 0
4. Receptive 22 — 45 20 i}
Job Behavioral Hierarchy Zone Range
1. Competitive 73— 100 oo i
2. Interaction 60 — 84 90
3. Versatile 54 — 74 100 [}
4. Frequent Change 52 — 72 92
B Exact match [ ] Fair compatibility
[l Good compatibility [l Poor compatibility [ ] Overdfocused
Candidate Name
Baker Tilly Copyright © 2006-2019. Target Training International, Ltd.



ORIGINAL

HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO
CITY MANAGER

Recruitment Proposal
July 27, 2021

GovHR usa
\ GovTEMPS USA

630 Dundee Road
Suite 225
Northbrook, IL 60062
Primary Contact Person: Laurie Pederson
Director of Administrative Services
847-380-3240
info@GovHRusa.com

A note about COVID-19 -- We are carefully monitoring recommendations from the federal, state and
local governments and working with clients as they begin to reopen. Before COVID we made extensive
use of technology for video interviews with candidates and meetings with clients. We have utilized
these during COVID and can combine technology with appropriate in person meetings to assist clients
in cost effective recruiting.




GovHR usA
! GovTEMPS USA

Table of Contents

Letter of Transmittal
Firm Profile
References

Our Team

Project Approach
Project Timeline

Price Proposal
Summary of Guarantee
Concluding Remarks
Optional Services

Attachments:

Consultant Biography

Client List

Sample Recruitment Brochure

b N = » B 3 IR ¥}

11
12
13
13
15



GovHR usa
\ GoVTEMPS USA

Mr. Anthony C. Rodgers, MPA
Clerk of Council

City of Huber Heights

6131 Taylorsville Road

Huber Heights, Ohio 45424

July 27, 2021

Dear Mr. Rodgers:

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with a proposal for the City Manager recruitment and
selection process for the City of Huber Heights. GovHR USA (“GovHR”) prides itself on a tailored, personal
approach to executive recruitment and selection, able to adapt to your specific requirements for the
position.

GovHR, (a limited liability company, Tax I.D. #27-0598897) is a public management consulting firm serving
municipal clients and other public-sector entities on a national basis. Our headquarters offices are in
Northbrook, lllinois. We are a certified Female Business Enterprise and work exclusively in the public
sector. We have 11 full time and 8 part time employees and 31 project consultants. GovHR offers
customized executive recruitment services and completes other management studies and consulting
projects for communities.

GovHR Senior Vice President Maureen Barry will be responsible for your recruitment and selection
process. She will be assisted by a home office Recruitment Coordinator, and a Reference Specialist. Ms.
Barry’s biography is attached to the proposal and her contact information is:

Maureen Barry
Senior Vice President
GovHR USA LLC
Tiffin, Ohio
Telephone: 224-282-8306
Mbarry@govhrusa.com

We believe we have provided you with a comprehensive proposal that meets the minimum qualifications
set forth in the RFP, and we accept all requirements, terms and conditions contained in the RFP. Gov HR
does not discriminate in its employment practice with respect to race, color, age, religions, sex, veteran
status, sexual preference, national origin, or disability. No attempt has been made or will be made by
GovHR to induce any other person or firm to submit or not submit a quote. We are not aware of any
conflict of interest with any Huber Heights employee that would prevent us from conducting the services
offered in this proposal.

The undersigned has the authority to make decisions at to matters relating to this RFP and to bind the
company to a contract for the services offered herein. A copy of the firm resolution granting this authority
is included with this proposal.

Please contact Laurie Pederson, Director of Administrative Services, 847-380-3240, if you have questions
regarding our proposal or need additional information. If you would like a service that you do not see,



GovHR usA
! GovTEMPS USA

please let us know; we can most likely accommodate your request. We look forward to hearing from you
and hope to have the opportunity to work with you on this important recruitment.

Sincerely, =

Ju Schmittgens
Corporate Secretary and Compliance Manager



GovHR usa
! GovTEMPS USA

Firm Profile

GovHR is a public management consulting firm serving local government clients and other public-sector
entities across the country. The firm was originally formed as Voorhees Associates in 2009, and changed
its name to GovHR USA in 2013. Our headquarters are in Northbrook, Illinois. We are a certified Female
Business Enterprise in the State of lllinois and work exclusively in the public and non-profit sectors. GovHR
offers customized executive recruitment services, management studies and consulting projects for local
government and organizations who work with local government.

GovHR is led by Heidi Voorhees, President, and Joellen Cademartori, Chief Executive Officer. Ms.
Voorhees has conducted more than 350 recruitments in her management consulting career, with many
of her clients repeat clients, attesting to the high quality of work performed for them. In addition to her
17 years of executive recruitment and management consulting experience, Ms. Voorhees has 19 years of
local government leadership and management service, including ten years as Village Manager for the
Village of Wilmette, Illinois. Ms. Cademartori is a seasoned manager, with expertise in public sector human
resources management. She has held positions from Human Resources Director and Administrative
Services Director to Assistant Town Manager and Assistant County Manager. Ms. Cademartori has worked
in forms of government ranging from Open Town Meeting to Council-Manager and has supervised all
municipal and county departments ranging from Public Safety and Public Works to Mental Health and
Social Services.

GovHR has a total of thirty-one consultants, both generalists and specialists (public safety, public works,
finance, parks, etc.), who are based in Arizona, Florida, lllinois, Indiana, Massachusetts, Michigan,
Minnesota and Wisconsin, as well as five reference specialists and eight support staff.

Our consultants are experienced executive recruiters who have conducted over 800 recruitments,
working with cities, counties, special districts and other governmental entities of all sizes throughout the
country. In addition, we have held leadership positions within local government, giving us an
understanding of the complexities and challenges facing today’s public sector leaders.

Please note the following key qualifications of our firm:

% Since our establishment in 2009, our consultants have conducted hundreds of recruitments in 41
states, with an increase in business of at least 30% each year. Twenty-eight (28%) of our clients
are repeat clients, the best indicator of satisfaction with our services.

» Surveys of our clients show that 94% rate their overall experience with our firm as Outstanding
and indicate that they plan to use our services or highly recommend us in the future.

» Our state-of-the-art processes, including extensive use of social media for candidate outreach and
video interviews with potential finalist candidates, ensure a successful recruitment for your
organization.

» Our high quality, thorough Recruitment Brochure reflects the knowledge we will have about your
community and your organization and will provide important information to potential candidates.



GovHR usA
\ GovTEMPSUSA
GovHR has conducted more than 200 top Manager recruitments (City Manager, County Administrator,

etc.) since the firm’s inception. A list of these recruitments for the past 5 years is included with this
proposal, and a complete list of clients is available on our website at www.govhrusa.com.

References

The following references can speak to the quality of service provided by GovHR.

Lakeland FL (City Manager, 2020) — Heidi Voorhees
Bill Mutz, Mayor

228 S. Massachusetts Ave.

Lakeland, FL 33801

863-834-6000

Bill.Mutz@lakelandgov.net

Decatur, GA (Senior Engineer/City Engineer, In Progress) - Charlene Stevens
(Human Resources Director, 2020) - Charlene Stevens

(Assistant City Manager, 2019) - Heidi Voorhees

(City Manager, 2018) - Heidi Voorhees

Andrea Arnold, City Manager

Decatur City Hall, 2nd Floor

509 North McDonough St.

Decatur, GA 30030

Andrea.Arnold@decaturga.com

Evanston, IL (City Manager, 2020) - Heidi Voorhees & Dele Smith

(Chief of Police, 2018) - Joseph De Lopez & Lee McCann

(Director of Parks, Recreation & Community Service, 2015) - Terry Porter & Chuck Balling
Jennifer Lin, Human Resources Manager

2100 Ridge Ave., Suite 4500

Evanston, IL 60201

847-866-2935

ilin@cityofevanston.org

Steve Haggerty, former Mayor of Evanston

Steve.Haggerty@hagertyconsulting.com

Lake Forest, IL

(Director of Human Resources, 2021) - Heidi Voorhees & Maureen Barry
(City Manager, 2018) - Heidi Voorhees

Robert T. E. Lansing, Former Mayor

City of Lake Forest

390 E. Wisconsin Ave.

Lake Forest, IL 60045

847-226-0511

Robteld7@gmail.com



GovHR usA

! GovTEMPS USA
St. Charles, IL (City Administrator, 2021) - Heidi Voorhees
Lora Vitek, Mayor
2 E. Main Street
St. Charles, IL 60174
630-377-4400
LVitek@stcharlesil.gov

Jennifer McMahoon, HR Director
JMcmahon@stcharlesil.gov

QOur Team

Project Manager & Main Point of Contact:

GovHR Senior Vice President Maureen Barry will be responsible for your recruitment and selection
process, and she will be3 assisted by a home office Recruitment Coordinator and a Reference Specialist.
Her biography is attached to this proposal and her contact information is:

Maureen Barry
Senior Vice President
GovHR USA LLC
Tiffin, Ohio
Telephone: 224-282-8306
Mbarry@govhrusa.com

Ms. Barry is currently working on several recruitments, including the Finance Directors for Park Ridge and
Crest Hill, lllinois; the Finance Director and the Chief Diversity & Inclusion Officer for Peoria, lllinois; and
the Director of Public Works for Lake County, lllinois. Ms. Barry served in local government for 15 years
prior to joining GovHR in 2020.

Proposal Inquiries:

Laurie Pederson
Administrative Services Director
847-380-3198
LPederson@GovHRusa.com

Project Approach and Methodology

A typical recruitment and selection process takes approximately 175 hours to conduct. At least 50 hours
of this time is administrative, including advertisement placement, reference interviews, and due diligence
on candidates. We believe our experience and ability to professionally administer your recruitment will
provide you with a diverse pool of highly qualified candidates for your position search. GovHR clients are
informed of the progress of their recruitment throughout the entire process. We are always available by



GovHR usa
! GovTEMPS USA

mobile phone or email should you have a question or need information about the recruitment.

Phase |: Position Assessment, Position Announcement & Brochure
One-on-one or group interviews will be conducted with stakeholders identified by the City to develop the
Recruitment Brochure. We have a variety of other options for gathering input:

» Dedicated email and surveys to obtain feedback from stakeholder groups
» Public Forums conducted by our consultants

A combination of the above items can be used to fully understand community and organizational needs
and expectations for the position.

Development of a Position Announcement to be placed on websites and social media
Development of a thorough Recruitment Brochure for City review and approval

Agreement on a detailed Recruitment Timetable — a typical recruitment takes between 90 to 120 days
from the time you sign the contract to appointment of the finalist candidate.

Phase II: Advertising, Candidate Recruitment & Outreach

We make extensive use of social media as well as traditional outreach methods to ensure a diverse and
highly qualified pool of candidates. In addition, our website is well known in the local government industry
— we typically have 6,000 visits to our website each month. Finally, we develop a database customized to
your recruitment and can do an email blast to thousands of potential candidates.

Phase Il will include the following:
» GovHR consultants will personally identify and contact potential candidates.
» Develop a database of potential candidates from across the country unique to the
position and to the City focusing on:
» Leadership and management skills
» Size of organization
» Experience in addressing challenges and opportunities also outlined in Phase |
» The database will range from several hundred to thousands of names and an email blast
will be sent to each potential candidate.
» Placement of the Position Announcement in appropriate professional online publications:
#» Public sector publications & websites
» Social media
= LinkedIn (over 15,000 connections)
= Facebook
=  Twitter
= |nstagram
» GovHR will provide you with a list of advertising options for approval



GovHR usa
' GovTEMPS USA

Phase lll: Candidate Evaluation & Screening

Phase Il will include the following steps:

>

»
>

Review and evaluation of candidates’ credentials considering the criteria outlined in the

Recruitment Brochure

Candidates will be narrowed down to those candidates that meet the qualification criteria

Candidate evaluation process:

» Completion of a questionnaire explaining prior work experience

» Live Video Interview (45 minutes to 1 hour) conducted by consultant with each finalist
candidate

» References (at least 2 references per candidate will be contacted at this time)

» Internet/Social Media search conducted on each finalist candidate

All résumés will be acknowledged and inquiries from candidates will be personally handled by GovHR,
ensuring that the City’s process is professional and well regarded by all who participate.

Phase |V: Presentation of Recommended Candidates

Phase IV will include the following steps:

>

»

>
>

GovHR will prepare a Recruitment Report presenting the credentials of those candidates
most qualified for the position.

GovHR will provide an electronic recruitment portfolio which contains the candidates’
materials along with a “mini” résumé for each candidate so that each candidate’s
credentials are presented in a uniform way.

The City will receive a log of all applicants and may review résumés if requested.

Report will arrive in advance of the Recruitment Report Presentation.

GovHR will spend approximately 2 hours with the City Council reviewing the recruitment report and
providing additional information on the candidates.

Phase V: Interviewing Process & Background Screening

Phase V will include the following steps:
GovHR will:

>
>
>

Develop the first and second round interview questions for your review and comment
Coordinate candidate travel and accommodations

Provide you with an electronic file that includes:

» Candidates credentials

» Set of questions with room for interviewers to make notes

» Evaluation sheets to assist interviewers in assessing the candidate’s skills and abilities



GovHR usa
! GovTEMPS USA

Background screening® will be conducted along with additional references contacted:

Drivers v ’ Sacial

5 Security
History Verification

’ Background \
Screening

Criminal Process Education

Background Verfication

Screening

N

History

*Per state and federal regulations

GovHR will work with you to develop an interview schedule for the candidates, coordinating travel and
accommodations.

GovHR will coordinate a 2-Step Interview process. The first round interviews will include five or six
candidates. The second round interviews will include two or three candidates. GovHR will supply
interview questions and an evaluation form.

In addition to a structured interview, the schedule can incorporate:
» Tour of City facilities
» Interviews with senior staff

Phase VI: Appointment of Candidate
» GovHR will assist you as much as you request with the salary and benefit negotiations and
drafting of an employment agreement, if appropriate.

» GovHR will notify all applicants of the final appointment, providing professional background
information on the successful candidate.

10



GovHR usa
! GOVTEMPS USA

Project Timeline

Phase Il

Phase IV

e

Weeks 1 & 2 Phase 1: Interviews & Brochure Development

Weeks 3 thru 6 Phase 2: Advertising, Candidate Recruitment & Outreach
Weeks 7 thru 9 Phase 3: Candidate Evaluation & Background Screening

Week 10 Phase 4: Presentation of Recommended Candidates

Week 11 & 12 Phase 5: Interview Process & Additional Background Screening
Weeks 13 & 14 Phase 6: Appointment of Candidate

11



GovHR usA
! GovTEMPS USA

Price Proposal

Summary of Costs Price
Recruitment Fee: $18,500
Recruitment Expenses: (not to exceed) 1,500

Expenses include candidate due diligence efforts

Advertising: 2,500

Advertising costs over $2,500 will be placed only with client approval.
If less than $2,500, Client is billed only for actual cost.

*We are carefully monitoring recommendations from the federal, state and local governments and
working with clients on alternatives to in person meetings. We are fully operational and can work with
you via video and by utilizing electronic files. If at the time of recruitment, COVID-19 restrictions are lifted
and travel is possible, we are happy to attend meetings in person.

Consultant travel expenses are not included in the price proposal. If the consultant is requested to travel
to the client, we estimate $250 per trip (up to 3 trips) for travel. Only actual expenses will be billed to the
client for reimbursement to GovHR.

Possible in-person meetings could include:
1. Recruitment brochure interview process
2. Presentation of recommended candidates
3. Interview Process

Any additional consultant visits requested by the City (beyond the three visits listed above) will be billed
at $125/hour; $500 for a half day and $950 for a full day. The additional visits may also result in an increase

in the travel expenses and those expenses will be billed to the client.

This fee does not include travel and accommodations for candidates interviewed.

Payment for Fees & Services

Professional fees and expenses will be invoiced as follows:

1+ Payment: 1/3 of the Recruitment Fee (invoice sent upon acceptance of our proposal).2~ Payment: 1/3
of the Recruitment Fee and expenses incurred to date (invoice sent following the recommendation of
candidates).
Final Payment: 1/3 of the Recruitment Fee and all remaining expenses (invoice sent after recruitment is
completed).

12



GovHR usA
' GovTEMPS USA

Payment of invoices is due within thirty (30) days of receipt (unless the client advises that its normal
payment procedures require 60 days.)

Guarantee

GovHR is committed to assisting our clients until a candidate is appointed to the position. Therefore, no
additional professional fee will be incurred if the client does not make a selection from the initial group
of recommended candidates and requests additional candidates be developed for interview
consideration. If additional advertising beyond the Phase | advertising is requested, client will be billed for
actual advertising charges. Reimbursable expenses may be incurred should the recruitment process
require consultant travel to Huber Heights.

Upon appointment of a candidate, GovHR provides the following guarantee: should the selected and
appointed candidate, at the request of the City or the employee’s own determination, leave the employ
of the City within the first 12 months of appointment, we will, if desired, conduct one additional
recruitment for the cost of expenses and announcements only. This request must be made within six
months of the employee’s departure.

Why Choose GovHR?

GovHR treats each executive recruitment as a transparent partnership with our client. We believe in
engaging with stakeholders early in each recruitment process to fully understand the challenges and
opportunities inherent in the leadership position. Understanding the organizational culture is critical to a
successful recruitment. We gain this insight and information through meetings (one on one and small
groups), surveys and a review of relevant information. This information is reflected in a polished marketing
piece that showcases the organization and the area it serves.

Our firm was founded on and rooted in a desire to increase the diversity of local government leaders. We
regularly engage with and financially support the National Forum for Black Public Administrators, the Local
Government Hispanic Network, the League of Women in Government and the Emerging Local
Government Leaders. Involvement with these organizations assists us in developing a highly qualified,
diverse candidate pool for each executive recruitment. We also heavily utilize social media including
LinkedIN, Facebook, Twitter and Instagram to push out employment opportunities and connect with
candidates who may not be seeking a position but who would find your opportunity appealing. We pay
for databases that have the email addresses for all local government leaders in public safety, public works,
public finance, planning and economic development as well as in general administration. This allows us
to ensure that we are contacting all candidates who might be interested in your position. In addition, our
consultants are located across the country providing us with personal contacts for potential candidates.
We do not hesitate to call potential candidates who we believe are a fit for your position.

We utilize the information we have gained to evaluate candidates and we conduct a video screening
interview to further understand each qualified candidate’s background and experience. We also conduct
reference calls and media searches to ensure there are no surprises with respect to a candidate’s
background. This information is shared with the client along with our objective assessment of each
candidate. We will provide you with a matrix of all of the candidates, noting the relevant experience and
background of those we recommend you consider for interview.

13



GovHR usA
! GovTEMPS USA

We are your partner throughout the process, present for the interviews and assisting in the compensation
discussions. We guarantee our placements for one year, should the successful candidate leave for any
reason. We believe our thorough and transparent process is unparalleled in our field and we hope to
have the opportunity to work with you.

14



GovHR usa
! GovTEMPS USA

Optional Services

GovTemps USA

Need an Interim? GovTempsUSA, a subsidiary of GovHR USA, specializes in the temporary placement of
positions in local government. The firm offers short-term assignments, in addition to long-term and
outsourced arrangements. Our placement professionals at GovTempsUSA have typically enjoyed
distinguished careers in local government and displayed a commitment to public service throughout their
career.

Recorded One-Way Video Interview of Candidates

Candidates we recommend for your consideration can complete a one-way video interview with 3 to 5
questions that will be recorded and which you can review electronically at your convenience. This can
occur prior to making your decision on which candidates to invite for an interview. Cost $100 per
candidate.

Leadership/Personality Testing

GovHR has experience working with a wide variety of leadership and personality assessment tools,
depending on the qualities and experiences the client is seeking in their candidates. These include but
are not limited to Luminaspark, Caliper, DISC and others. Depending on the evaluation type selected
fees can range between $100 to $500 per candidate.

360° Evaluation

As a service to the Client, we offer the option to provide you with a proposal for a 360° performance
evaluation for the appointed position at six months into his or her employment. This evaluation will
include seeking feedback from both elected officials and department directors, along with any other
stakeholder the Client feels would be relevant and beneficial. This input will be obtained on a confidential
basis with comments known only to the consultant. If you are interested in this option, GovHR will prepare
a proposal for this service.

15



ACTION OF THE MEMBERS OF
GovHR USA, LLC
BY WRITTEN CONSENT

The undersigned, being the sole Members and duly elected Managers of GovHR USA, LLC, an lilinois
Limited Liability Company, hereby waive all notice of meeting, and consent, in writing, without the
necessity of a meeting, pursuant to the authority of the lllinois Limited Liability Company Act and the
Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of the Company, to the following actions:

RESOLVED, that JUDITH SCHMITTGENS, Compliance and Client Relations Manager of GovHR USA,
LLC be and hereby is nominated as Secretary of the Company, with the power to sign proposals,
contracts, certificates, forms and other documents included in Requests for Proposals and Requests for
Qualifications to which GovHR is responding, or otherwise required by clients, businesses and others
with whom GovHR does business, and further,

RESOLVED, that any such documents signed by JUDITH SCHMITTGENS as Secretary and
authorized agent of GovHR USA, LLC, shall have the same authority and ability to bind the Company as
if signed by the undersigned Members of the Company.

/]

Joeléll: Cademartori Earl

DATED as of this 24th day of August, 2018.




MAUREEN BARRY

H GovHR usa
\ GovTEMPS USA

Maureen Barry is a Senior Vice President with GovHR USA, specializing in helping public
organizations to meet their management resources consulting needs. Widely recognized within her
profession for her leadership, capabilities and commitment, she has over 28 years of combined
experience working for local governments in the public and private sectors.

Prior to joining GovHR, Maureen spent nearly 13 years as a Municipal/Financial Advisor providing consulting services related to public
finance and economic development solutions. She also worked directly for municipalities for 15 years, where among other responsibilities,
she performed and managed multiple human resources related functions, including recruitment and selection and various analyses.

Maureen has local government operations expertise and familiarity with public managers and organizations throughout lllinois and the
U.S. She has worked with diverse groups of clients and public participants and has a talent for quickly discerning the culture and values of
each individual community. She emphasizes the importance of comprehensive planning and consensus-building from the earliest phases of
the project and is adept in adjusting the plan as needed along the way. A strong client service ethic is fundamental in Maureen’s approach to
her engagements. GovHR clients can expect from her an approachable style, clear and steady communication, responsiveness, and effective,
reliable, high-quality work products and processes.

PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION * Women in Public Finance (WPF) — Chicago Chapter Board
member

e Lambda Alpha International (LAI), Ely Chapter, Chicago (Land
Use Economics and Development)

e Master of Public Affairs, Indiana University, Bloomington, IN
e Bachelor of Arts in Political Science, University of Dayton,
Dayton, OH

« Qualified Municipal Advisor Representative (Series 50) withthe ~ ®  National Association of Municipal Advisors (NAMA)

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (inactive) * lllinois Tax Increment Association (ITIA)
e Certified Independent Professional Municipal Advisor by the *  Council of Development Finance Agencies (CDFA)

National Association of Municipal Advisors (inactive) e lllinois Municipal Treasurers Association (IMTA)

e The Legacy Project (Advancing Women in Local Government)
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND e Rotary Club of Wilmette Harbor — Past President, Past
Foundation Board & Committee Chair, Board Member

SPEAKING ENGAGEMENTS e Rotary District 6440 — Past District Treasurer, Finance
e  Speaker on various public finance and economic development Committee/Chair, Grants Committee

topics at seminars and conferences sponsored by the following

organizations from 2008-2018: Illinois City/County PROFESSIONAL BACKGROUND

Management Association, lllinois Government Finance Officers
Association, Illinois Municipal Treasurers Association, Illinois
Tax Increment Association, and The Legacy Project, among
others.

15 Years of Local Government Leadership and Management; 13

years of Municipal/Financial Advisory Consulting

e Director/Municipal Advisor, Stern Brothers & Co., Chicago, IL
2019-2020

e Senior Municipal Advisor/Vice President, Ehlers & Associates,

MEMBERSHIPS AND AFFILIATIONS Inc,, Chicago, IL 2008-2019

Illinois City/County Management Association (ILCMA)

; 5 T e Assistant Village Manager, Village of Wilmette, IL 2004-2008
International City/County Management Association (ICMA) - e Assistant to the City Manager, City of Evanston, IL 2000-2004
Confecence Scholirship 1995 e Management Assistant/Intern, City of Glendale, AZ 1995-2000

* lllinois/Government Finance Officers Association (IGFOA and e Intern, Montgomery County Parks & Grounds, Dayton, OH 1992
GFOA) ' ' '

inkdl {1E

P: 847.380.3240 www.govhrusa.com




GovHR usA
\ GovTEMPS USA

City & County Management Recruitments 2015 to Present

{TYPE STATE CLIENT POSITION POPULATION YEAR ]
City
Management Alaska Unalaska City Manager 4,768 2017
Seward City Manager 2,693 2019
Bethel City Manager 6,500 2019
Homer City Manager (Professional Outreach) 5,300 2019
Colorado Eagle Town Manager 6,739 2017
Englewood City Manager 34,957 2019
Connecticut Cheshire Town Manager 29,261 2017
Enfield Town Manager 45,246 2015
2018
2020
Meriden City Manager 60,838 2018
East Hampton Town Manager 13,000 2019
Delaware Newark City Manager 33,398 2018
Florida Largo Assistant City Manager 82,244 2018
Gainesville Assistant City Manager 133,997 2021
Lakeland City Manager 110,000 2020
Palm Beach Assistant City Manager 85,933 2021
Georgia Decatur Assistant City Manager 25,000 2018
City Manager 25,000 2018
Ilinois Bensenville Village Manager 20,703 2015
Bloomington City Manager 78,005 2018
Crest Hill City Administrator 20,837 2015
Decatur City Manager 76,178 2018
Deputy City Manager 76,178 2019
DeKalb City Manager 43,849 2018
Dixon City Manager 18,601 2015
East Moline City Administrator 21,300 2016
East Peoria City Administrator 23,503 2016
Effingham City Administrator 12,577 2018
Fox Lake Village Administrator 10,550 2021
Freeport City Manager 25,000 2017
Glencoe Assistant Village Manager 8,723 2015
Homewood Assistant Village Manager (Virtual) 19,464 2017
Joliet City Manager 147,500 2017
La Grange Assistant Village Manager (Virtual) 15,732 2017
La Grange Village Manager 15,732 2017
La Grange Park Assistant Village Manager 13,579 2020
Lake Bluff Assistant to the Village Manager 5,700 2016
Lake Forest City Manager 19,375 2018
Lake Zurich Village Manager 19,631 2015
Libertyville Village Manager 20,431 2016
Assistant Village Manager/Community
Lincolnshire Development Director 7,500 2016
Lindenhurst Village Administrator 14,468 2017
Mokena Village Administrator 19,042 2015
Moline City Administrator 43,100 2017
Mt. Prospect Village Manager 54,771 2015
Niles Village Manager 30,001 2021



City & County Management Recruitments 2015 to Present

frvee
City

STATE CLIENT POSITION POPULATION YEAR
Illinois Normal City Manager 54,264 2017
Northbrook Village Manager 35,000 2021
Assistant Village Manager/Human Resources
Oak Park Director 52,000 2019
Orland Park Village Manager 60,000 2016
2019
Pekin City Manager 33,223 2016
Schiller Park Village Manager 11,870 2015
Shorewood Village Administrator 17,495 2018
Vernon Hills Village Manager 25,911 2021
Villa Park Assistant Village Manager (Virtual) 22,038 2021
Washington City Administrator 15,700 2015
Wauconda Village Administrator 13,758 2017
Winnetka Assistant Village Manager 12,422 2019
Woodridge Village Administrator 32,971 2017
Barrington Village Manager 10,455 2018
Willowbrook Village Administrator 8,967 2019
Geneseo City Administrator (Virtual) 6,500 2019
Princeton City Manager 7,700 2019
Mundelein Village Administrator 31,385 2020
Centralia City Manager 13,000 2020
Savoy Village Administrator (Virtual) 8,607 2020
Pingree Grove Village Manager 10,000 2020
Palos Heights City Administrator (Virtual) 12,480 2021
Indiana St. John Town Manager (Professional Outreach) 18,047 2020
lowa Bondurant City Administrator 5,493 2017
Newton City Administrator 15,000 2016
Webster City City Manager 8,000 2016
Windsor Heights City Administrator 4,860 2019
Muscatine City Administrator 23,819 2020
Maryland Greenbelt City Manager 23,753 2016
Hagerstown City Administrator 40,612 2015
Sykesville Town Manager 3,941 2019
Westminster City Administrator 18,522 2021
Massachusetts Cambridge City Manager 110,000 2016
Eastham Town Administrator 4,956 2016
Provincetown Town Manager 2,990 2015
Williamstown Town Manager 8,400 2015
Michigan Hamtramck City Manager 21,752 2017
Oakland Township Township Manager 19,132 2018
Rochester City Manager 13,000 2015
Eastpointe City Manager 32,673 2019
Troy Assistant City Manager 83,813 2019
City Manager 83,813 2018
Albion City Manager 8,337 2018
Adrian City Administrator 20,676 2018
Ferndale City Manager 20,428 2019
Lincoln Park City Manager 36,665 2019
Royal Oak City Manager 59,112 2019
Charlotte City Manager 9,100 2020
Minnesota Woodbury Assistant City Administrator 68,820 2017
Waconia City Administrator 13,500 2021
St. Louis Park City Manager 48,662 2021
Missouri Ferguson City Manager 21,111 2015



City & County Management Recruitments 2015 to Present

|TYPE

City

STATE CLIENT POSITION ) POPULATION YEAR
Missouri Maryland Heights City Administrator 27,436 2015
Republic City Administrator 15,590 2016
University City Assistant City Manager 35,172 2020
City Manager 35,172 2017
Assistant to the City Manager/Communications
Director 35,172 2018
Assistant to the City Manager/Director of Human
Resources 35,172 2020
Wildwood City Manager 35,524 2019
South Lyon City Manager 11,327 2018
Cape Girardeau City Manager 38,000 2020
Ballwin City Administrator 30,181 2020
Webster Groves City Manager 22,800 2020
Nevada Boulder City City Manager 16,207 2021
New Hampshire Portsmouth City Manager 21,796 2019
New Jersey Waldwick Borough Administrator 9,800 2015
New York Mamaroneck Town Administrator 29,156 2021
Village Manager 19,426 2018
Long Beach Deputy City Manager (Virtual) 33,275 2021
North Carolina Fayetteville Assistant City Manager 210,000 2017
2018
North Dakota  Minot City Manager 45,700 2020
Ohio Oberlin City Manager 8,390 2016
Pennsylvania Ferguson Township Township Manager 18,300 2017
Mt. Lebanon Municipal Manager 33,137 2015
South Fayette Township Township Manager 14,416 2018
Rhode Island  North Kingston Town Manager 26,326 2015
Texas Burleson City Manager 43,960 2018
Garland Assistant City Manager 233,206 2016
Missouri City Assistant City Manager 74,139 2019
McKinney Assistant City Manager 191,645 2019
Virginia Chesapeake City Manager 245,000 2019
Portsmouth City Manager 96,000 2020
Salem City Manager 25,643 2019
Virginia Beach City Manager 442,707 2019
West Virginia  Morgantown City Manager 31,000 2016
Bridgeport City Manager 8,582 2019
Wisconsin Baraboo City Administrator 12,048 2019
Bayside Assistant Village Manager 4,400 2019
Bellevue Village Administrator 15,524 2018
Beloit City Manager 36,966 2015
Cedarburg Town Administrator 11,475 2015
Franklin Director of Administation 36,155 2019
Glendale City Administrator 12,920 2016
Hartford City Administrator 14,251 2015
Hobart Village Administrator 8,500 2016
Lake Geneva City Administrator 7,710 2015
Oak Creek City Administrator 35,243 2016
Plymouth City Administrator/Utilities Manager 8,540 2020
Prairie du Chien City Administrator 5,900 2017
Racine City Administrator 78,200 2016
Rome Town Administrator 2,720 2016
Shorewood Village Manager 13,331 2017



City & County Management Recruitments 2015 to Present

[TYPE STATE CLIENT POSITION POPULATION YEAR |
City Wisconsin West Bend City Administrator 31,000 2016
Beloit (Town) Town Administrator 7,083 2016

Rhinelander City Administrator 7,800 2018

Monroe City Administrator 10,827 2020

Harrison Village Manager 13,185 2021

County

Management Arizona Yuma County County Administrator 203,000 2015
Florida Marion County County Administrator 337,362 2015

Pasco County County Administrator 475,502 2016

Pinellas County Assistant County Administrator 970,600 2020

Deputy County Administrator/Chief of Staff 970,600 2019

Illinois Lake County Assistant County Administrator 703,462 2016

2017

County Administrator 703,462 2019

Rock Island County County Administrator 147,258 2017

Winnebago County County Admnistrator 290,600 2016

Michigan Grand Traverse County County Administrator 90,782 2017

Kent County County Administrator/Comptroller 636,369 2017

County Executive 11,386 2015
County Administrator 192,122 2018
County Manager 44,122 2016
County Administrator 101,400 2015
County Manager/Administrative Coordinator 20,220 2021

Lake County
South Carolina Beaufort County
Wisconsin Dunn County

Eau Claire County

Adams County



CITY MANAGER
: T . e e 4 rr f

R

GovHR usa
\ GovTEMPS USA

EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT




NORTH DAKOTA

M A N A G E R

THE COMMUNITY

Minot, ND (population 48,000), The Magic
City, is strategically located in north central
North Dakota and is the fourth largest city in
the state and a regional hub. The City has a
strong diversified economy which features
agriculture, energy and military defense.
Minot offers a high quality of life with
numerous amenities and excellent schools
and healthcare. The community also enjoys
direct air service to Minneapolis-St. Paul,
Denver, Las Vegas and Mesa. Minot is also
close to Canada with cities like Winnipeg and
Regina within a five-hour vehicle travel
distance.

The Minot Air Base is home to over 5,000
military members and over 5,000 dependents.
It is the only air base in the country with a
dual wing nuclear mission and is an important
part of the regional economy. Minot is also
home to Minot State University, with over 60
courses of study and an enroliment of 3,000.
The region is served by Trinity Healthcare
which is currently building a new $350 million
medical campus in the city.

Minot has outstanding recreational amenities
and events, which include numerous parks,
the Roosevelt Park Zoo, which was the first
zoo to open in North Dakota, over 100 miles
of trails and six golf courses. Lake
Sakakawea, one of the largest man-made
reservoirs in the country, is nearby and Lake
Audubon and Lake Darling are also short
drives from Minot. The region is well known
for its hunting and fishing abundance and
offers outdoor recreation for all ages and
sSeasons.

The City annually hosts the North Dakota
State Fair, which brings 300,000 attendees
over the nine-day event. The community also
is home to the Scandinavian Heritage Park
and the annual Norsk Hostfest as well as
numerous other community supported and
organized festivals and events.

The City offers a thriving arts and cultural
scene, including the Minot Symphony
Orchestra, Minot Chamber Chorale, Mouse
River Players, MSU Summer Theater and
Arts in the Parks. Downtown Minot offers
locally owned and unique restaurants and
shops of all variety.

y 2
l"

'A

1
MINOT

FACTS & FIGURES:
% Median Age: 31 .6
20 278

Households

Median Household Income:

$65,350

Median Single-Family
] Home Value:

$178,000
ﬁ 27.29 Square Miles:




THE POSITION IN BRIEF

The City Manager is appointed by the
Mayor and City Council. The City Manager
is expected to provide executive level
guidance to the City Council for
development of long-range policy and
strategic planning as well as to oversee
daily operations of a full service city with
an annual operating budget of
$143,898,000 and 425 FTEs.

THE ORGANIZATION
MINOT cunFacTs

Minot is governed by a Mayor and 6-Member City Council. The Mayor is elected at
large for a four-year term. The Members of the City Council are elected at large for
four-year terms and one half are elected biennially. The City is also served by

Minot has been home to
the North Dakota State
Fair, the largest annual

event in the state, for several volunteer boards and commissions.

oee than SOyears, The City of Minot is a full service entity and includes the departments of Assessor,

Airport, Attorney, Community Development, Human Resources, Engineering,
Finance, Fire, Library, Municipal Court, Public Works, Police and the Office of
Resilience, which are under the supervision of the City Manager. Parks and
Recreation is provided through the Minot Park District, a separate political
Finland, Iceland, Denmark, subdivision. The City also partners with Ward County, The Chamber of Commerce
Sweden and Norway. and Minot Area Economic Development Corporation to attract and retain business

The Scandinavian Heritage
Park pays homage to the five
Scandinavian countries of

and industry.

The Minot Air Force Base
is just north of Minot, and
is the only dual-wing
nuclear capable air base

in the Air Force.

The Dakota Territory Air
Museum, located in Minot,
tells the rich and varied
story of the region's

aviation history.




EXPECTATIONS AND PROJECTS

The next City Manager is expected to be a strategic and visionary leader who will build a
strong working relationship between the Mayor, Council and City staff. The next City Manager
will have demonstrated experience in managing and developing budgets as well as
overseeing staff to ensure key goals are met. The next City Manager will be an active leader
in the community, able to build and maintain strong working relationship with multiple
community partners.

In addition, the next City Manager will have an opportunity to be engaged in or lead the
following city initiatives:

The $1 billion-dollar, multi-year flood control project for the Mouse River. The next City
Manager will continue to work closely with the Souris River Joint Board and State of North
Dakota to ensure the region’s efforts are funded and projects are completed.

The Northwest Area Water Supply project which will address long term water supply needs
for the City of Minot as well as the surrounding region will require continued partnerships
within the region and state to ensure its scheduled completion.

Support the efforts of the community to build environmental and economic resilience as
outlined in the City's National Disaster Resilience program for which the City received $74

M in grant funding.

Engage the Mayor, Council and City staff in a City-Wide Strategic Planning Effort.

Develop strategies to enhance community engagement and communication among a

variety of stakeholders.

Be an active partner with Ward County, The Minot Area Chamber of Commerce and Minot
Area Development Corporation to further the City's and regions’ economic growth.

Be an active partner with the State of North Dakota and advocate on behalf of the City of
Minot during the 2021 Biennial Legislative Session.

Continue efforts to assess, evaluate and upgrade the city’s technology, such as the current
deployment of new enterprise wide financial software.

In 2021, the City will undertake a Comprehensive Plan Update and has recently begun the
process of reviewing and updating the Zoning Code.

Develop opportunities for employee recruitment, retention and succession planning across

all levels of the organization.

THE IDEAL CANDIDATE WILL BE

A highly collaborative leader with a
communicative, team-oriented management
style who is capable of mentoring and
coaching staff.

An ethical and professional manager able to
inspire the confidence of elected officials,
city staff and the general public.

An open, ftransparent and proactive
communicator with the Mayor and Council,
city staff and the community at large.

Accessible and approachable to all within
the organization and outside of the
organization,

An innovative and strategic leader able to
anticipate  challenges, consider new
approaches and to lead and develop
improvement strategies.

Able to build and maintain strong
partnership and relationships with a wide
variety of diverse stakeholders. A good
listener with a high level of interpersonal
awareness.

A strong and fair leader who can establish
expectations and hold individuals
accountable to meet those expectations.

Knowledgeable of best practices in
municipal government and able to translate
theory into practice to benefit the
organization and community.

. ‘ "
: ! h t
CANDIDATE

QUALIFICATION
CRITERIA

The following education, experience,
leadership and management criteria have
been identified by the City of Minot as
important skills and abilities for the
successful candidate to possess:

» A Bachelor's degree in public
administration, public policy, business
administration or related field; MPA
preferred.

A minimum of five to seven years of
executive level experience, preferably in an
organization of a similar size.

¢ The ability to mentor, lead and develop
staff.

Excellent interpersonal and communication
skills, able to connect with and relate to a
wide variety of individuals and stakeholders.

Strong skills in strategic and financial
planning, with demonstrated experience of
the same.




NORTH DAKOTA

CITY MANAGER

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

ary Range is $140,000 — 170,000 +/- DOQ. The City
vides an excellent and comprehensive benefits package.

HOW TO APPLY

idates should apply by September 25, 2020
ver letter and five professional references to:

ol

B




Request for Proposals === H ¥ R
==10 HEIGHTS

Page 7 of 11 ==—===mr Crne Grou

Review and read the RFP document again to make sure that you have addressed
all requirements. Your original response and the requested copies must be identical
and be complete. The copies are provided to the evaluating staff members and will
be usedto score your response.

Submit your response on time. Note all the dates and times listed in the RFP and
be sure to submit all required items on time. Late proposal responses are never
accepted.

Please Note:

All potential contractors are strongly urged to submit supporting documentation as to
their qualifications to perform the Scope of Work.

Certificate of Insurance, Reference List and Timeline must be attached.

If additional comments or conditions are desired, please attach a separate sheet
providing details.

Include all proposed equipment specifications; showing manufacturer name, model, etc.
depicting unit specifications and other pertinent information.

Certification:

The undersigned on the Bid Proposal certifies that the Instructions to Bidder has
been carefully examined, is thoroughly familiar with the terms and specifications
applicable to and made part of this Request for Proposal, and understands and is
capable of meeting the provisions within to the quality, type and grade of work
requested. The undersigned further certifies the prices shown in the schedule of
items contained within the Proposal/Bid are in accordance with the conditions,
terms and specifications of the proposal and that any exception taken thereto may
disqualify the bid. __ .

1
Q gf% /»W 712721
Sig z ture U d Date

Judith Schmittgens Corporate Secretary
Print Name Title
jschmittgens@govhrusa.com 847-380-3240
Email Address Phone

GovHR USA

Company Name



/.-“ . DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

4/27/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endgrsement(s).

'K‘ODUCER St & g A LLC oMECT Select Commercial

20 N Martingale Road o ooneY B company PHONE o (B47) 797-5700 FA%. No: (B47) 440-9133

Suite 100 iDDAr{Ess; select@assuranceagency.com ! 1

Schaumburg IL 60173 c f INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
_ A" INSURER A : Everest Insurance Co -

'ES”REDR USA LLC ’ \ GOVHUSAT| \wsurer 8 : Lloyds of London 85202

ngTemps USA, LLC INSURER ¢ : Hartford Insurance Company 38288

630 Dundee Rd INSURER D :

#130 s -

Northbrook IL 60062 ::53::: :j

COVERAGES £ CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1068354887 = REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL|SUBR| [ POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP |
LR | TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD| WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDIYYYY) | { Mle'éanvl LTS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Y | Y | 91ML001668201 7/7/2020 7/7/2021 | EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
cLams-MaDE | X | occur \ PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 1,000,000
B i MED EXP (Any one person) $ 10,000
! \ PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: ‘ GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
: POLICY fEo- | |ec PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
| OTHER: ‘ $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Y | ¥ | 91ML001668201 | 7712020 772021 | GOMBINER PINGLELIMIT 151,000,000
iL ANY AUTO . BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
OWNED | SCHEDULED i
!_ A?J&s ONLY ﬁchE i BODILY INJL:;V (P(:]rsacc:denl) $
' H WN PROPERTY DAMA
| X | autosonty | X | AuTOS ONLY ‘ | (Per accident) $1.000,000
$
A | X | UMBRELLALIAB X | occur 91CU001265201 7/7/12020 7/7/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 4,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
' pep | X | RETENTIONS 10 000 | 8
C | WORKERS COMPENSATION 83WECAF5AZK 1712021 3/7/2022 £ER QTk-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY VN nage | SiAnre | [ ! =
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE [ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT | 51,000,000
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? LY ||nra . ‘ N
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $ 1,000,000
If yes, describe under ‘
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 1,000,000
A | Crime 91CR000639201 7/7/2020 71712021 Limit: 100,000 Deductible: 1,000
B | CyberLiabilty ESJ0219668983 | 71712020 7/7/2021 | Aggregate: 250,000 Deductible: 2,500
A | Employment Practices Liability | 91MLO01668201 I 7/7/2020 71712021 Occurence: 1,000,000 Agg.: 1,000,000
| |
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Professional Liability - Everest Insurance Co. -91ML001668201- Effective 7/7/2020 to 7/7/2021. $1M Occurrence. $2M Aggregate.
Workers Compensation and Employers’ Liability: Any Proprietor/Partner/Executive Officer/Member, as listed on the policy, is excluded.

Umbrella sits over the General Liability, Professional Liability and Automobile Liability

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Town of Wayland
41 Cochituate Rd.

Wayland MA 01778 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Danid & e

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



PROPOSAL FOR EXECUTIVE SEARCH SERVICES
CITY MANAGER
HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO

Submittal date: August 2, 2021

Submitted by:

Koff & Associates
2835 Seventh Street
Berkeley, CA 94710

Gary Palmer ICMA-CM, AICP, CMFO
Executive Recruiter/Project Manager
Alpharetta GA Office

12457 Danesfeld Dr
Alpharetta, GA 30004 I<< Koff & Associates
gpalmer@koffassociates.com A Gallagher Company

510.345.3954







I(< Koff & Associates
& A Gallagher Company

Table of Contents

Experience dnd Qucliifico’rions-_
Recent Successful Recruitments
Project Team

Project Approach / Methodology
References

Pricing Proposal

Other: Insurance Considerations
Signature Page

Attachment: Sample Brochure

10

11

13

14

2835 Seventh Street, Berkeley, California 94710 | 510.658.5633 | KoffAssociates.com


















I<<8 Koff & Associates

A Gallagher Company

PROJECT APPROACH/METHODOLOGY

Our philosophy ensures thorough, thoughtful, and strategic sourcing, evaluation, selection, and vetting of
candidates. This includes focused advertising including websites and publications specific to women and
minority candidates, business media, outreach emails to perspective candidates and referral sources,
contacting users’ groups and associations, and of course picking up the phone and proactively calling passive
professionals that may not otherwise be looking.

K&A Recruiting will provide weekly progress reports to the City and participate in conference calls and/or
onsite meetings as requested.

We are responsible for ensuring compliance, adhering to and maintaining all legally mandated documentation
throughout the process.

Step 2: i b -
Step 1: . { Step 4:
. Five Week o) Step 3: Tl 2
Window for Review, Screen &
Applications & ™ Recommendation
Sourcing of | of Candidates

Candidates

Interview
Facilitation (semi-
finalist and
finalist)

Engagement &

Ideal City
Manager
Candidate Profile

[— T S SR e e T e S e e T TS S L Lo MR Y R L M e = [

RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO









I@} Koff & Associates

A Gallagher Company

Project Schedule

Following is an estimated project schedule which includes time to allow for community engagement. Sixteen
(16) weeks to completion should allow enough time for all steps of the process and client schedules.

Weeks 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

Step 1

Step 2

Step 3

Step 4

Step 5

R e S R e S Ve b e N 1 A R ARNR Sl e W T

RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO



I<<G Koff & Associates

A Gallagher Company

REFERENCES

We are proud of our past recruitment work with clients to successfully place candidates to meet their

organization’s needs.

Agency & Recruitments Contact

City of Oxnard, CA
e  Public Works Director
e Asst. Public Works Director (2)
e Chief Financial Officer
e Purchasing Manager
e Controller
e Communications & Marketing Manager
e Assistant City Attorney
e Civil/Traffic Engineers

Lisa Baker
Assistant Director, Human Resources
805-385-7596
lisa.baker@oxnard.org
4300 W. Third Street
Oxnard, CA 93030

City of Redlands, CA
e Director, Municipal Utilities & Engineering
e Fire Chief

e Manager, Municipal Utilities

Tommi Ng
Asst. Director, Risk & Human
Resources
909-708-7679
tng@cityofredlands.org
35 Cajon Street
Redlands, CA 92373

City of Carson City, CA
e Director of Public Works
e Director of Community Services
e (City Manager

Faye Moseley
Director of Human Resources and
Risk Management
310-952-1735
fmoseley@carsonca.gov
701 E. Carson Street
Carson, CA 90745

City of Salinas, CA
e City Manager
e Finance Director

Marina Horta-Gallegos
Human Resources Director
831-758-7417
marinah@ci.salinas.ca.us
200 Lincoln Avenue
Salinas, CA 93901

City of Roswell, GA
e Police Chief
e Fire Chief

e Recreation and Parks Dir.

Jim Harner
Human Resources Director
770-594-6440
jharner@roswellgov.com
38 Hill Street
Roswell GA 30075

s s = mm e s L L U e e
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO




I(<G Koff & Associates

A Gallagher Company

PRICING PROPOSAL

« $22,000, plus not to exceed $7,000 expenses each recruitment.

¢ Total: $29,000.
* Expenses include brochure development and design, marketing & advertising, printing & shipping,
associated consultant travel, and background. The $7,000 is a not to exceed amount, but may end up
being less.

 Expenses will be billed in correlation to the steps described.
Note: Expenses do not include candidate travel.
Placement Guarantee

K&A Recruiting is committed to recommending only the most qualified candidates who not only meet all the
necessary requirements and qualifications but are also a cultural fit for the City of Greensboro. We proactively
recruit for each search effort until a successful candidate is placed.

We therefore promise to present a slate of candidates to the City that includes only those individuals who have
passed through all our screening processes and have been identified as potential ideal matches for the position
requirements. Should the City disapprove of all final candidates and/or should none of the final candidates pass
the final interview and reference check process, we will work to find a new slate of candidates at no added cost,
with the possible exception of necessary advertising.

In addition, for executive and mid-management positions, we promise to conduct a one-time additional
executive search to find a replacement should the incumbent leave the position or be terminated from
employment within 12 months of hire due to performance issues. In either case, as described above, we will
identify a replacement and only charge through related expenses as described in the Pricing Proposal.

Overall, K&A Recruiting’s retention rate during the first 12 months of hire is very strong and has been at over
95% over the last 37 years.

e R T AP R e I e I T R P A T T e R T e PR et
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO

11






l@; Koff & Associates

A Gallagher Company

OTHER: INSURANCE CONSIDERATIONS

We will submit and support the levels of coverage and endorse the City with our General Liability coverage upon award
of a contract for the project.

Workers’ Compensation: Statutory Limits

Commercial General Liability: $2,000,000 per occurrence
Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions): $1,000,000 per occurrence
Automobile Insurance: $1,000,000 per occurrence

We will be pleased to sign the City’s professional services contract for recruitment services. We respectfully request that
the City will allow for a period of negotiation of certain terms in the professional services contract related to liability,
indemnity, insurance, and other terms. We have found that we have always come to an agreement with all our clients in
the past and appreciate the City’s flexibility in reviewing certain terms in a collaborative fashion between our legal
counsels.

RS T S s R e R A R e A 1 R e T eSS O e e

RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO

13



I@; Koff & Associates

A Gallagher Company

SIGNATURE PAGE

We thank you for your consideration of our proposal. We are committed to providing high quality service and
investing in a long-term partnership.

This proposal is valid for ninety (90) days.
Respectfully submitted,

By: KOFF & ASSOCIATES

State of California

Gl L)

Frank Rojas Date: August 2, 2021

Recruitment Manager

T T — R R S TR e e R SR R A e

RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO

14



O]
<
=
=
v
O
e
i

Finance
SALINAS Director

RICH IN VALUES




THE COMMUNITY

The City of Salinas is the 34th largest City in the state with

a population of approximately 155,205. Salinas is located in
beautiful Monterey County, and is the County seat. Just 40
minutes south of the heart of the nation’s high-tech industry,
Silicon Valley, the City has the largest population in California’s
Central Coast, is a multicultural and diverse community and

a key asset in today’s global economy. The region also boasts
spectacular scenery, from breathtaking mountains and valleys,
to the beauty of the sun, sand, sea, and soil. Salinas serves as the
main business, governmental and industrial center of the region.
The marine climate is ideal for the floral industry, grape vineyards,
and vegetable growers. Salinas is known as the "Salad Bowl of
the World"for its large, vibrant agriculture industry. The City is
rich'in diversity with an approximate 75% Hispanic population
and a median age of 34, which allows for various cultural family
activities and world class annual events such as the California
Rodeo Salinas, El Grito Festival, Forbes Ag Tech Summit and
world-renowned amenities right next door, including the Pebble
Beach Golf Resort and the Monterey Bay Aquarium. Salinas is
home to Hartnell, a robust community college, along with being
just minutes from Cal State Monterey Bay. The City is also home
to a wealth of cultural and historic assets, including the California
Welcome Center/Regional Heritage Center and the National
Steinbeck Center — the only museum in the country devoted to a
single author - along with Steinbeck’s family home. Salinas is the
birthplace of John Steinbeck.

Although agriculture forms the economic base, more than

100 manufacturing, financial, and medical related firms call
Salinas home. Salinas has a global reputation as an agriculture
and innovation hub, it is a source for agricultural research

and resources and is developing the latest technology and
advancements. Some of the largest employers in the city include
the County of Monterey, Taylor Farms, D'Arrigo Bros, and Salinas
Valley Memorial Hospital.

Visitors can also explore the nearby Monterey Peninsula: the
historic missions of San Juan Bautista, Soledad, Carmel and San
Antonio de Padua, the world class wineries of South Monterey
County and the beauty of nearby beaches and Pinnacles National
Monument.

CITY GOVERNMENT

The City of Salinas was incorporated in 1874 and became a
Charter City in 1903. The City operates under a Council-City
Manager form of government. The seven-member City Council
includes six members elected by district for four-year staggered
terms on a nonpartisan basis, plus the Mayor who is elected
at-large and serves a term of two years. The City employs 530
full-time staff with 200 additional temporary employees. The
total Operating and Capital budget is $189 million. The City
Manager leads and directs eight departments which include
Administration, Community Development, Finance, Fire, Human
Resources, Library and Community Services, Public Works, and the
Police Department.

THE DEPARTMENT

The Finance Department provides coordination and direction of
all fiscal operations of the City. This includes, but is not limited to:

% Directing, monitoring, and controlling all assets and financial
operations of the City.

% Providing a framework for financial planning and analysis
to support the operation and management of all City
Departments.

% Financial administration of the Successor Agency to the
former Salinas Redevelopment Agency, Assessment Districts,
Enterprise Operations, Internal Services and Trust Funds, and
the City's General Fund.

< Managing a staff of approximately 25 |.T. and Finance
professionals.

Departmental responsibilities include long-range financial
planning, budget management, accounts receivable and payable,
payroll, retirement administration, general accounting and
reporting, debt administration, purchasing, revenue and licensing,
information technology and assessment district administration.







—

< Diplomatic,

< A friendly approachable leader who can ensure quality

customer service.

being known as a people person with an engaging
style that is comfortable interacting with a wide spectrum of
individuals and one who welcomes dialogue and discussion.

» A decisive, seasoned leader with the highest integrity,

character, and ethics.

<+ Honest, with the ability to maintain and build trust and actively

listen.

%+ Technologically astute, who recognizes the value of harnessing

and integrating the benefits of cutting-edge technology for
city government and for residents.

<+ A proven understanding of budget/structural deficits and the

willingness and the ability to bring teams together to find
solutions to challenging issues.

< An outstanding fiscal manager, able to develop and implement

plans to expand the tax base, obtain grants, and manage costs.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

% Bachelor's Degree in Public Administration, Business,

Accounting, Finance, or a related field.

<+ Master's Degree (MA/MS) is highly desirable.

< Eight (8) years of senior-level municipal management

setting with extensive
d of

experience in a public service
experience working with a City Council or a Boar
Supervisors.

% Four (4) or more years of senior management experience in

local government of a comparable size to the City of Salinas is
helpful.

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

The salary range for the Finance Director is $144,048 -
$175,080 DOQ

The City offers an attractive benefits package

-

b

-

% CalPERS Retirement Plan —The City participates in the California

¢ Health Insurance —

%+ Holidays -

which includes:

Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) under a 2% @
55 formula for Classic members. New members, as defined by
PEPRA, are under a 2% @ 62 formula.

< 457/401(a) Compensation - City-paid contribution based on

months of service with the City.

The City currently pays 95% of the premium
for the level of coverage the employee has selected, up to
95% of the PERS Choice Plan premium. The City pays the full
amount of premiums for dental and vision plans.

12 per year.

< Annual Leave — May be used for vacation and/or sick leave.
Leave is accrued at a rate of 37 days per year for the first

five years; 42 days per year for years six through ten, with
additional longevity increase in annual leave after ten years of
employment.

< Life Insurance — Term life insurance in the amount of $150,000.

% Bilingual Pay - $75 per pay period if Spanish is used in the
course of his/her job duties (subject to passing a City-
administered bilingual exam and administrative approval).

<+ Auto — City assigned vehicle or $750 per month auto

allowance.

APPLICATION PROCESS AND
RECRUITMENT SCHEDULE

The final filing date is Friday, May 28, 2021.

To be considered, please submit a resume, cover letter, and
five work related references (who will not be contacted in the
early stages of the recruitment) to: koffassociates.com/finance
Resumes should reflect years and months of positions held, as
well as size and budgets of past organization(s).

For additional information, please contact:

Frank Rojas

Recruitment Manager

Phone (510) 495-0448
frolas@koffassociates.com

Website: https:/koffassociates.com/

<
§

RECRUITING

Resumes will be screened based on the criteria outlined in this
brochure. Candidates with the most relevant gualifications

will be given preliminary interviews by the consultant. Koff &
Associates will report the results to the City. The City will then
select candidates to participate in City interviews on June 17.
Extensive reference and background checks will be completed on
the selected candidate.

SALINAS

RICH IN LAND ! RICH IN VALUES




ORIGINAL

City of Huber Heights
Executive Recruitment

RFP #21-001-CC
August 2, 2021

Submitted by Management Partners
1730 Madison Road

Cincinnati, Ohio 45206
inewfarmer@managementpartners.com

Management
Partners




Management
Partners

August 2, 2021

Mr. Anthony C. Rodgers
Clerk of Council

City of Huber Heights
6131 Taylorsville Road
Huber Heights, OH 45424

Dear Mr. Rodgers:

The search for a new City Manager is an opportunity for the City of Huber Heights to hire the person
best positioned to lead the organization forward. Management Partners’ recruitment specialists seek
first to understand your organization and its specific needs, then draw on our extensive networks of
local-government professionals to find the best candidates, and to help City leaders decide on the right
person for the role. Our recruitment practice is built on understanding the importance of "best fit" for
the organizational culture and the leadership qualities that meet the current and anticipated needs of
the organization.

Several other qualities distinguish Management Partners’ executive search services. Our recruiters have
decades of experience working in local government, so they understand the demands of the position,
the goals of the governing body, and the context in which the search is taking place. We are currently
assisting the Ohio cities of Sidney, Fairfield, Riverside, Middletown, and Woodlawn with their
executive recruitments. Our pool of associates reflects the diversity of our client base, and we use our
regional networks to identify qualified candidates and vet them through the lens of the City’s unique
traits. We work with you to establish a schedule that will meet your requirements, and we are able to
support the City and the preferred candidate even after the selection process to ensure a smooth
transition.

Per the RFP, Management Partners is a Subchapter S Corporation incorporated in the state of Ohio in
1994. Our federal tax identification number is 31-1407585. We have offices in Ohio and California and
consult in 44 states.

As President and CEO, |, Jerry Newfarmer, have the authority to make decisions for Management
Partners. Management Partners has no exceptions in the proposal and we believe this proposal meets
and exceeds the minimum qualifications listed in the RFP. We accept all requirements, terms and
conditions contained in the RFP.

Management Partners is committed to equal opportunities in the workplace including diversity, equity,
and inclusion. We do not discriminate on the bases of race, color, age, religion, sex, veteran status,
sexual preference, national origin or disability.

1730 MADISON ROAD @ CINCINNATI, OHI0 45206 ¢ 513 861 5400 ¢ FAax 513 861 3480 MANAGEMENTPARTNERS.COM
2107 NORTH FIRST STREET, SUITE 470 o SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA95131 e 408 437 5400 » FAx 408 453 6191
3152 RED HILL AVENUE, SUITE 210 e COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA 92626 o 949 222 1082 » Fax 408 453 6191



Executive Recruitment

Neither Management Partners, nor any of its agents has a conflict of interest with any City of Huber
Heights employees. Management Partners has not, nor will try to induce any other person or firm to
submit or not submit a proposal.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal. Our team looks forward to discussing our
approach and qualifications with you in more detail. Please let me know if there is any other information
we may provide.

Sincerely,

Jerry Newfarmer
President and CEQO
1730 Madison Road
Cincinnati, OH 45206
(513) 861-5400



City of Huber Heights

TABLE OF CONTENTS

WHO WE ARE ...aeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeensieenensnenaseesssneesosssssssossssssssnnsnssssnsssasstassnsansssnsssnsnsssessnensassanens 1
OUR PHILOSOPHY ABOUT EXECUTIVE HIRING SUPPORT .......ccccververrierecrscsrtnmemercssnceseereesssermnnenes 2
EXPERIENCE ........ccocoverereermiemreiencosersorsscoranssessosssonssssssssssssssnermonssmsmensersmensesenmnsnsansssssssssersesnonenenes 3
REFERENCES .......covccuvueririerssissemmnmimisisssssesessssonsnsnsnssmemissesssnsasossssossensasssssssesemnenenssssssnnnsessssnsnsnse 4
SaAMPIE dOCUMENTS.cciiiiiiitiiiciinreiiiiinsiniiiiesrtnstisisassntiesesstisssssinmmsssmreessssmnerssanansessessranassesssonnrossssansansen 5
OUR APPROAGCH ..ccovvvvverevsoresnunsiosssssscssonseensnesmemstemmissesssssesmmsissssmmnessensiossssssssssssesesnsenossssnennannnns 6
OUr UNderstanding...c..cooccemrireniisnsnnniniiieiiisisisssissimimmmmessssossssessreesssasssssaseessssnassess assassanssssssssnnnnssass 6
OUR TEAM.....oureeeeeieirrssssanasesniiiisssssssssssssasionssssssssssssosssnsssssssssssssstssssssnssssssssnsnsnnnnansssssssencnnnse 9
PROPOSED TIMELINE AND COST .....ceereiereirmemeeeeneeesneenenserenessasnonstmerensnsstsnsssessmensscsnssmenssremmersses 11
L OO 11
Proposed TIMEIINE ......ccccieriiinieiinnriiesiiiiisiiiiisesnnssnsineeseesessssseteessesresssnsssssenstassesasasssssnennassssesnananassns 11
@ Ty T T T OO 11
ATTACHMENT A — RESUMIES ......cccooviemieiereresmeriercmsmsmnsmosiessssmmesesmsmmemsmersemessmmmmssenmnsessmsnseessesssere 12



City of Huber Heights

WHO WE ARE

Management Partners helps local governments strengthen their organizations
through talent recruitment and team development.

Founded: 1994

Offices: Cincinnati, Ohio and San Jose and Costa Mesa, California

Associates: 100+, including a recruitment team of experts assigned to this project
Clients to date: 1,000+ local governments in 44 states

Projects completed: More than 1,700

Services offered:

= Executive Recruitment = Strategic and Business Planning

= Organization Assessments = Service Sharing and Service Consolidation
= Qrganization Development = Management Services

= Performance Management ® Financial Planning, Budgeting and

®= Process Improvement Analysis

Management :
Partners
Page 1



Executive Recruitment

OUR PHILOSOPHY ABOUT EXECUTIVE HIRING SUPPORT

This proposal offers a proven process that consistently identifies excellent individuals for key positions in
local governments, special districts and other public agencies across the nation. Our work is
characterized by the following four qualities:

Well-planned and Executed Hiring Support. Management Partners provides advice and
support throughout the hiring process. Candidates are treated with respect and we help
complete the hiring process in a way designed to launch the appointee’s new relationship
with the organization positively and productively.

i

Quality Client Support and Communications. Management Partners provides complete
information and regular communication throughout every step in the process. After we
assist you in narrowing the field of candidates, we will develop an interview book to support
your interview process that includes sample questions and what we have learned about each
candidate.

Lo
)

Extensive Depth and Reach. Management Partners seeks the best candidates by using our
networks to identify superb professionals and encouraging them to consider applying. We
carefully choose online sources and tools to encourage all qualified persons to apply.

High Ethical Standards. We conduct each search with integrity, respecting the confidentially
of the City’s decision-making process and the confidentiality of the candidate’s interest in the
position.

ER N

Page 2



City of Huber Heights

EXPERIENCE

Management Partners provides quality executive recruitment for higher level local government
professionals, including city managers. While our range of services covers everything that local
governments need to understand and manage the organization, we have performed executive
recruitment engagements for many jurisdictions in the last few years. As mentioned previously, we are
currently assisting the Ohio cities of Sidney, Fairfield, Riverside, Middletown, and Woodlawn with
their executive recruitments.

Jurisdictions in bold indicate city manager or deputy city manager searches. Numbers in parenthesis ()
indicate multiple recruitments.

= Bedford County, Virginia = Petersburg, Virginia
= Clayton, Ohio = San Francisco, California
= Cupertino, California = Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority,
= Forest Park, Ohio (2) California
= Gilroy, California = Santa Clara, California
= Los Altos Hills, California = Santa Fe, New Mexico
= Los Angeles, California = Silicon Valley Clean Energy, California
= Middletown, Ohio = Springdale, Ohio (4)
= Minerva, Ohio = Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TIPA),
= Montgomery, Ohio California (2)
= North Coast County Water District, = Westerville, Ohio
California ' = Worthington, Ohio

= Qakland, California

Management Partners has worked with Ohio jurisdictions with populations from 3,500 to 800,000 since
our founding 27 years ago. The following is a list of Ohio clients we have assisted in the past five years.

= Butler County ® Hamilton County = Montgomery

= Butler Metropolitan = Hebron = Mt. Healthy
Housing Authority = Huron County = Oxford

= Cincinnati = Little Miami Fire District = Riverside

= Cincinnati/Hamilton Co = Loveland = Sidney
Public Library = Miami Valley = Springdale

= Clayton Communications Council = Westerville

= Fairfield = Middletown * Woodlawn

= Forest Park = Milford = Worthington

= Green Township * Minerva

Management
Partners :
Page 3



Executive Recruitment

REFERENCES

We have provided five references for Management Partners’ executive recruitment
engagements. We are happy to provide contact information for any former client.

City of Clayton, Ohio = City Manager Executive Search

Management Partners assisted the Mayor and City Council of Clayton, Ohio with an executive search to
fill their city manager position due to the retirement of the current manager. The recruitment included
extensive personal outreach to current managers and assistants and the listing of the position
announcement on ICMA and various state association websites. We screened all applicants, conducted
preliminarily interviews with the most highly qualified candidates and presented ten resumes for Council
review. Five finalists were selected for interviews with Council and two candidates were invited for
second interviews. We then performed background checks and personal reference checks for the two
finalists, and the Council selected their preferred candidate. We assisted with preliminary contract
negotiations. The successful candidate began her duties in March 2020.

Contact: The Honorable Mike Stevens, Mayor
6996 Taywood Road, Englewood, OH 45322
(937) 836-3500
mstevens@clayton.oh.us

City of Middletown, Ohio = Executive Search Services

Management Partners assisted the Mayor and City Council of Middletown with an executive search to
fill their city manager position. The recruitment process included extensive personal outreach to current
managers and assistants and the listing of the position announcement on ICMA, State, and Regional
Association websites. We originally screened 24 applicants, preliminarily interviewed the most highly
qualified candidates, and presented eight finalists and three alternate resumes for Council review. The
eight finalists were interviewed via Zoom by a group of community leaders and were also interviewed
via Zoom by key management staff. Council interviewed all eight candidates via Zoom and selected four
individuals for follow-up interviews. Council narrowed their choice to two finalists and Management
Partners completed professional references and background checks for both individuals. The preferred
candidate was invited to Middletown for a personal interview session with City Council and a guided
community tour. Management Partners assisted with contract negotiations for the selected candidate
and the Middletown City Council approved the appointment of a new manager on May 19, 2020, who
began his duties on July 13, 2020.

Contact: The Honorable Nicole Condrey, Mayor
One Donham Plaza, Middletown, OH 45042
(513) 425-7766
nicolec@cityofmiddietown.org

Page 4



City of Huber Heights

City of Springdale, Ohio = Executive Recruitment — Multiple Positions

Within the past five years, Management Partners assisted the City of Springdale with executive searches
to fill the following vacancies: city administrator, assistant city administrator, economic development
director, and building official. The recruitments included extensive personal outreach to current and
former managers/administrators and their assistants and the listing of the position announcements on a
variety of appropriate websites, including International City/County Management Association (ICMA),
state, and regional associations. We conducted the original screenings, preliminary interviews with the
most highly qualified candidates, and presented resumes for City review. Finalists were selected for
personal interviews with the Mayor, City Administrator, and in some cases the Human Resources
Officer. Background checks and personal reference checks were performed for finalists, and the Mayor
or City Administrator selected the preferred candidate. Management Partners provided additional
information for salary and benefit offerings.

Contact: The Honorable Doyle Webster, Mayor
11700 Springfield Pike, Springdale, OH 44657
{513) 346-5700
dwebster@springdale.org

City of Forest Park, Ohio = City Manager Executive Recruitment

Management Partners assisted the Mayor and Council of Forest Park with an executive recruitment to
replace their retiring city manager. The recruitment included direct personal outreach and listing the
position on nationally recognized websites. We conducted the original screening of applicants, pre-
interviewed the most highly qualified applicants, performed background and personal reference checks,
provided a short-list of candidates and facilitated the interview process with the Mayor and Council.

Contact: Mr. Andrew Levandusky, Director of Human Resources
1201 West Kemper Road, Forest Park, OH 45240
(513) 595-5204
AlLevandusky@forestpark.org

Village of Minerva, Ohio =>Village Administrator Executive Recruitment
Management Partners assisted the Mayor and Council of the Village of Minerva, Ohio, with an executive
recruitment to replace their 30-plus year Village Administrator. By design, the recruitment included
extensive personal outreach to current and former Ohio managers and listing of the position
announcement on state, regional and national websites. We screened all applicants, interviewed the
most highly qualified applicants and narrowed the list to four finalists and two alternates. Background
and personal reference checks were performed after the Mayor and Council interviewed the initial four
candidates. The preferred candidate was invited for a second interview. We assisted with contract
negotiations for the preferred candidate and facilitated the process to a successful contract award.
The new administrator began his duties in September 2019.
Contact: The Honorable Tim Tarbet, Mayor

209 North Market Street, Minerva, OH 44657

(330) 868-7705

ttarbet@ci.minerva.oh.us

Sample documents
Enclosed with our material are two sample documents from our Middletown Executive Recruitment; the
position profile and the redacted interview book.

Management
Partners
, Page 5



Executive Recruitment

OUR APPROACH

Our approach to each executive search is individually planned and executed to make certain your needs
are met and you have an excellent pool of candidates from which to choose. We work with you to
articulate the core values of the organization and the key issues to be addressed when recruiting a new
person.

We recruit proactively. Our work assisting local governments across the U.S. gives us a
") national presence through the clients we serve and the skills and contacts of our staff.
This perspective is a particular strength as we work to bring highly qualified candidates to
- your organization. We believe that thoughtful, intentional outreach, tailored to each
search, is the key to success in executive recruitment.

We get results. We will complete a search to your satisfaction regardless of the time and

L( W effort required.

We guarantee our work. If the person you hire does not work out within a year, we will
' ,“ reopen the search and assist you in replacing the person for no additional professional
’,,’ fee. Should this unlikely situation occur, we would expect to only be reimbursed for out-
of-pocket expenses for advertising and related costs.

Our Understanding

Leaders in the City of Huber Heights desire professional assistance during the search for a candidate to
replace the Interim City Manager. The City Manager reports to the City Council and Mayor and is
responsible for overseeing City departments’ service delivery to its more than 38,000 residents.

Management Partners will provide the following services to assist with the search and placement for the
candidate that is the best fit for the City.

= Develop a timeline that is acceptable to City leaders;

= Conduct interviews with each member of the City Council, Mayor and other stakeholders;

* Conduct meetings with selected staff and key community members;

= Develop a candidate profile;

= Develop a marketing strategy;

= Use our networks to reach out to qualified individuals, including qualified candidates that
applied for other recent executive positions;

= Advertise the position;

= Develop screening requirements;

* Conduct preliminary video interviews with the top seven to ten candidates;

* Meet with the Mayor and City Council through a video conference to discuss the top candidates;

Page 6



City of Huber Heights

= Notify all candidates of their status;

= Meet with City leaders to determine the finalists;

= Coordinate interviews;

= Develop a search report that includes strengths, resumes, results of interviews and background
checks, and suggested guestions;

=  Assist during interviews;

= Discuss interview results with the Mayor and City Council;

®  Notify the finalists of the status; and

= Conduct reference and background checks and psychological assessments on the desired
candidates.

Based on our experience and our understanding of the needs of Huber Heights as outlined in the RFP,
we have prepared the following detailed plan of work. We expect that we will refine the following
framework to address your specific circumstances and preferences.

Management Partners begins each search by asking the question, “How would you know
in a year or five years from now that you had hired the right person?” We need to
understand both the explicit and implicit standards of the organization.

To answer this important question, we will meet with the Mayor and City Council
members and department leaders, key staff, and other stakeholders recommended by the City to
understand the duties and responsibilities of the position, minimum qualifications, evaluation criteria
and other important qualities and characteristics essential to success in the position. We will conduct
meetings with department directors and the community to receive their valuable input.

We want to understand the culture and the strategic goals that the organization has for the new City
Manager. Our team is led by a recruitment specialist who is knowledgeable about the operating
environment, offering a unique combination of skills and perspective.

At the conclusion of these interviews and meetings, we will prepare a comprehensive and visually
appealing position brochure for your review, modification, and agreement prior to beginning the search.
This profile will identify your organization’s needs, the strategic challenges of the position as well as the
personal and professional characteristics of the ideal candidate. This document drives the recruitment
and enables us to focus our efforts on candidates who will be most able to do the job.

Management Partners will then identify how we will contact individuals who could best meet the
requirements established in the position profile. We start with the premise that we want to attract the
best people in the field, regardless of whether they are looking for a new job. We develop a unique
relationship and familiarity with them which oftentimes helps raise their level of interest in new
offerings in this region.

The strategy will identify target networks and organizations as well as communication methods for
reaching outstanding candidates and those who could recommend professionals we should contact for
the position. We use a wide variety of sources including professional association networks, websites and
industry publications, resources from past consulting assignments, and targeted networking, including
through Linkedin. As with all our recruitments, the strategy includes specific organizations and networks
for reaching women and minority candidates who would be outstanding individuals for the position.

Managemjp
Partners
Page 7



Executive Recruitment

Activity 2 — Conduct a Comprehensive Recruitment Campaign

We will canvass our netwaorks to identify candidates who will be most able to do the

job and distribute the brochure to qualified professionals and those who could refer

qualified individuals to us. We will use the synergy we have with candidates working

with us on several positions in this area and who sometimes apply for multiple

positions. We will also place targeted advertisements and electronic postings in

appropriate media. We will make direct personal contact with those we believe would be a best fit for
your position. We will use the written profile and other materials that describe the opportunity to help
us persuade those most qualified to consider the position.

Management Partners will screen the resumes of all candidates, looking for the experience and skill sets
that most closely meet the requirements of the position. We will conduct preliminary interviews
through video or telephone with the most qualified candidates. Through these interviews we learn the
individual’s reason for being interested in your position, whether they have encountered challenges
similar to those in your organization, and what the candidate believes they would bring to your position.
We also obtain compensation history and reference information. Internal candidates (current
employees) will be screened using the same standards by which external candidates are evaluated.

We use a competitive assessment process that consists of evaluating each candidate against the field in
terms of their ability to meet the challenges of the position. We place each individual in one of three
groups: A) those we believe to be best qualified to be successful in the position, B) those we believe
could be successful in the position but are not as strong as those in the first group, and C) the balance of
the field.

As your representative for the recruitment process, we take steps to ensure that your reputation is
preserved by ensuring courtesy and confidentiality in our communications throughout. For the top
candidates, we then talk with professional references with whom they have worked (including those
they have supervised and those who have supervised them).

Activity 3 — Facilitate the Selection Process
We will meet with the hiring manager and/or to discuss the candidates recommended for
- further consideration. During the meeting we will review the resumes, discuss the results
|_¢_| of our preliminary interviews, and determine which individuals you are interested in
® @ @ hiting for interviews.

We will prepare an interview book that contains information about each of the persons to be
interviewed. We will be prepared to support the interview process to the extent you desire, including
sample questions for the Mayor and City Council to ask candidates. This will often include structuring an
out-of-town candidate’s visit to enable him/her to gain more comfort with the attractions and
challenges in your community and to give you a second and deeper chance to examine the candidate.

We will also conduct education, certification, credit and criminal background checks {each going back
five to seven years) to confirm the strength of their credentials for the position. We do this using a
contractor with the technical ability and legal authority to conduct these investigations. We will
coordinate psychological assessments with the lead candidate.

Page 8



City of Huber Heights

OUR TEAM

Our team of associates assigned to this project possess relevant skills and
knowledge, including many years of recruiting experience, public service, and
consulting expertise.

Greg Horn, who resides in Centerville, Ohio, will serve as lead recruiter and will be supported by Mike
Casey and Suzanne Martin. Mike will assist Greg throughout the process. Suzanne will be involved with
screening and preliminary interviews.

The qualifications of each team member are briefly summarized below. We have included complete
resumes for each person in Attachment A of this response.

Greg Horn, Special Advisor

= Joined Management Partners in 2017 after nearly four decades in local
government, all of them spent as a chief executive officer. Greg served
most recently as city manager in Centerville, Ohio, a position he held for
25 years.

= Recruiter for the cities of Montgomery, Middletown, Springdale,
Worthington, Westerville, Clayton, Minerva and Forest Park Ohio; and
Bedford County and Petersburg, Virginia. |

= Currently assisting the Ohio cities of Sidney, Fairfield, Riverside, Middletown, and Woodlawn
with their executive recruitments.

= Past president of the Ohio City/County Management Association and the Dayton Area Managers
Association.

Mike Casey, Partner

= More than 35 years of experience in local government management.

= Has served as a city or county manager in Oregon, Colorado and Virginia,
and has held other management positions in Missouri, North Carolina
and lowa.

= Over the span of his career, he has assisted more than 200 local
governments recruit their next city manager, county manager or senior
staff member and assisted public and private organizations in developing
strategic business plans, creating and managing operating and capital budgets, improving
project management capacity, analyzing organizational performance and evaluating service
consolidation options.

= Served as a regional vice president for the International City/County Management Association.

= Served as lead recruiter for Ann Arbor, Bay City, East Lansing, Lansing Saint Joseph and Traverse
City, Michigan; Barron County, Wisconsin; Blue Springs, Branson and Independence, Missouri;
Brentwood, Tennessee; Brooklyn Park, Minnesota; The Columbia Corporation, Maryland;
Jacksonville, North Carolina; Miami Beach, Florida; Northglenn, Colorado; Olathe, Kansas; and
The Woodlands Corporation, Texas.

Management
Partners
Page 9




Executive Recruitment

Suzanne Martin, Senior Management Analyst

= Brings expertise in conducting qualitative and quantitative research.

= Suzanne has supported the following recruitments: Bedford County and
Petersburg, Virginia; Clayton, Middletown and Springdale, Ohio; Santa Fe,
New Mexico; and Hayward Area Recreation District, Los Angeles,
Oakland, and Transbay Joint Powers Authority, California.

®  Performs benchmarking analyses, organizational assessments and
analytical research for a wide variety of projects, including user fee
assessments, service consolidation studies, and budget stabilization projects.

* Received her master’s degree in public administration from San Francisco State University in
December 2009.

= Spent two years as a graduate student intern at the California Public Utilities Commission, where
she conducted business services-related program evaluation and policy analysis.

= Member of Pi Alpha Alpha.

Page 10



City of Huber Heights

PROPOSED TIMELINE AND COST

Cost

Management Partners will charge a flat fee for providing these services that includes our team’s normal
direct expenses. The fee for the recruitment support is $23,900. This will be billable in three
installments, the first at the beginning of the recruitment project, the second when the pool of
candidates is delivered, and the final installment when the successful candidate is appointed.
Advertising expenses and background checks will be billed to the City, with prior approval at cost. We
estimate the advertising costs for this engagement will not exceed $1,000. Background checks on
candidates will be approximately $100 per candidate. The psychological assessment will be
approximately $1,500 per candidate.

We are prepared, have the availability, and are qualified to conduct this recruitment for the City. We can
begin the recruitment within two weeks of receiving the signed contract.

Proposed Timeline
The proposed timeline can be adjusted according to the needs of Huber Heights. However, we estimate
the search and offer will take approximately 17 weeks.

Activity Schedule
1- Devt_al(_)p SegniStEtegy - _ VYe_eks 13
2 -Conducta Comprelensive Recruitment Campaign | Weeks 3-8
3- Fafilitate the Selection Process - - 1 Weeks 8-17
Conclusion

Management Partners has the experience, the professional talent, and the commitment to quality
necessary to successfully help the City of Huber Heights find its next City Manager. We welcome the
opportunity to provide additional information that may be helpful, and we look forward to the chance

to discuss the ideas contained in this proposal.

Cover photo courtesy of the City of Huber Heights, Ohic — Government Facebook page

Management
Partners
Page 11



Executive Recruitment

ATTACHMENT A — RESUMES

GREGORY B. HORN

Greg Horn, Special Advisor, has 40 years of local government management experience, serving as city
manager in four communities within Ohio and Missouri. He joined Management Partners in 2017, after
retiring as city manager of Centerville, a position he held for 25 years.

Relevant Projects

Since joining Management Partners, Greg led or assisted with city manager recruitments for the cities
of Forest Park, Minerva, Montgomery, Clayton, Middletown and Springdale, Ohio. He has also led or
assisted several Fire, EMS and Police Chief recruitments including the recent Police Chief recruitments in
Westerville and Worthington, Ohio and the Director of 911 Dispatch in Bedford County and the Fire
Chief for Petersburg, Virginia. He recently assisted with the Management Partners’ review of the
Newport News, Virginia Fire Department.

Experience

Greg has extensive experience in economic development, utility management, and infrastructure
project oversight. He has managed construction efforts for utility plant expansions, water towers, police
facilities, government centers, industrial parks, park and recreation developments, including a $300
million municipal golf/residential development.

Expertise

Skilled at executive recruitment, organizational review, merger studies, annexation analysis, shared
services studies, municipal golf course/operational reviews, retreat facilitation, and economic
development analyses.

Education

Greg holds a Bachelor’s degree from Bowling Green State University as well as a Master of Science
degree in public administration from the University of Missouri where he was awarded a research
assistantship. He received additional training in emergency preparedness, attending FEMA’s National
Training Program in Emmitsburg, Maryland and represented Southwest Ohio on an economic
development mission to Japan and South Korea.

Other

Greg served as the past president/chair of the Ohio City/County Management Association, the Dayton
Area Managers Association, the Miami Valley Communications Council, the Tri-Cities North Regional
Wastewater Authority, and the Montgomery County Regional Communication Council of Government. He
served on numerous technical advisory committees throughout his career ranging from regional economic
development and utility systems to airport master plans and statewide solid waste committees.

Greg was recognized by the Ohio City/County Management Association when he received their Career
Development and Local Government Cooperation Awards and has been awarded Life Member Status by
the International City/County Management Association. He has been a member of Rotary International
for over 30 years in Centerville. He served as the Ohio Chapter Past President and has twice received the
Paul Harris Fellow award.

Page 12



City of Huber Heights

J. MICHAEL CASEY

Mike Casey joined Management Partners in 2006 as a partner. He has more than 35 years of
management experience in local government and the private sector and is a recognized regional and
national leader in industry professional organizations.

As a consultant, Mike has assisted public and private sector organizations, including the cities of Boston;
New Orleans; San Diego, Louisville, Kentucky; and Fulton County, Georgia. He has also assisted cities
and counties in recruiting leaders whose skills and experience were well-suited to their specific
requirements.

Mike served as city or county manager in Grants Pass and Gresham, Oregon; Mesa County, Colorado;
and Middleburg, Virginia. He also worked in local government management positions in Independence,
Missouri; Winston-Salem, North Carolina; and Des Maines, lowa.

Mike is passionate about helping organizations and communities articulate and achieve their goals. He
has practical experience in the difficult process of building communities and managing for short-term, as
well as long-term, results.

He has direct experience in obtaining cost-effective results for service delivery at both the community
and regional level. In the Portland, Oregon, metropolitan area, he was instrumental in delivering fire
protection services across community boundaries to a significant portion of the metropolitan area. In
Louisville, he evaluated the effectiveness of the merged Emergency Medical Services operation to
identify improvements.

Mike graduated from Coe College with a double major in history and political science and he earned a
master’s degree in public administration from Pennsylvania State University, where he was the
Cappazola Fellow. He also holds a Certificate in Local Government Management from Harvard
University.

He has served as president of the Oregon City Management Association, as regional vice president for
the International City/County Management Association, and as fellow of the American Leadership
Forum.

Managemfg
Partners
; Page 13



Executive Recruitment

SUZANNE H. MARTIN

Suzanne Martin, Senior Management Analyst, joined Management Partners in May 2010. Since that
time Suzanne has performed benchmarking analyses, organizational assessments and analytical
research for a wide variety of projects.

Relevant Experience

Suzanne contributed to service consolidation studies for the cities of Las Vegas and North Las Vegas; and
the cities of Burbank, Glendale, and Pasadena. She also provided benchmarking and cost-driver analyses
for budget stabilization projects that Management Partners conducted for the cities of Fremont and
Santa Ana. Some of Suzanne’s other recent projects include user fee assessments for the City of
Brentwood and County of Orange, and a countywide fire service review for the Local Area Formation
Council of Santa Clara County.

Suzanne came to Management Partners following a two-year internship at the California Public Utilities
Commission. She performed program evaluation for many of the business services-related programs in
place at the CPUC, including the Transit Pass, Reprographics, Environmental Sustainability, and
Temporary Staffing programs.

Prior to embarking on her career in public service, Suzanne worked at a private nuclear security services
firm headquartered near Chicago, Hlinois. Suzanne was responsible for such duties as training nuclear
security personnel on the operations of security systems, factory-acceptance testing security systems,
documentation control, and technical writing.

Education

Suzanne received her bachelor’s degree in psychology from the University of Wisconsin-Madison. She
earned her MPA from San Francisco State University, and is a member of Pi Alpha Alpha, the national
honors society for public affairs and administration.

Page 14



City of Huber Heights

ATTACHMENT B — REQUIRED DOCUMENTS

Page 15



Request for Proposals g }—_IIE[]:J T%

Page 6 of 11 P Grow With 175!

RFP Checklist:

Please review and check off these 10 most important items to consider when
responding to an RFP for the City of Huber Heights:

X

Read the entire document. Note critical items such as: mandatory requirements;
supplies/services required; submittal dates; number of copies required for
submittal; contract requirements (i.e., contract performance, insurance
requirements, performance and/or reporting requirements, etc.).

Note the procedures for communication with the City during the RFP
process. All communication during the RFP process must be in writing. Offerors
should not contact City personnel or officials outside of the opportunity provided in
the document.

N/A

Attend the pre-proposal conference if one is offered. These conferences provide
an opportunity to ask clarifying questions, obtain a better understanding of the
project, or tonotify the City of any ambiguities, inconsistencies, or errors in the RFP.

Take advantage of the “question and answer” period. Submit your questions by
the due date listed and view the answers given in the formal “addenda” issued for
the RFP. All addenda issued for an RFP are posted on the City’s website and will
include all questions asked and answered concerning the RFP.

Follow the format required in the RFP when preparing your response. Provide
point-by-point responses to all sections in a clear and concise manner.

Provide complete answers/descriptions. Read and answer all questions and
requirements. Don’t assume the City or the evaluating staff will know what your
company capabilities are or what items/services you can provide, even if you have
previously contracted with the City of Huber Heights. The proposals are evaluated
based solely on the information and materials provided in your response.

Use the forms provided, if any. e.g., bidders’ submittal page, reference forms,
attachment forms, etc.

Before submitting your response, check the City’s website at. www.hhoh.org to
see whether any addenda were issued for the RFP.

Review and read the RFP document again to make sure that you have addressed
all requirements. Your original response and the requested copies must be identical
and be complete. The copies are provided to the evaluating staff members and will
be usedto score your response.

Submit your response on time. Note all the dates and times listed in the RFP and
be sure to submit all required items on time. Late proposal responses are never
accepted.




== HURER

Request for Proposals _ﬁ‘ .
Page 7 of 11 ?—j\_-/-' - H,E}, “}:S

Please Note:

All potential contractors are strongly urged to submit supporting documentation as to
their qualifications to perform the Scope of Work.

Certificate of Insurance, Reference List and Timeline must be attached.

If additional comments or conditions are desired, please attach a separate sheet
providing details.

Include all proposed equipment specifications; showing manufacturer name, model, etc.
depicting unit specifications and other pertinent information.

Certification:

The undersigned on the Bid Proposal certifies that the Instructions to Bidder has
been carefully examined, is thoroughly familiar with the terms and specifications
applicable to and made part of this Request for Proposal, and understands and is
capable of meeting the provisions within to the quality, type and grade of work
requested. The undersigned further certifies the prices shown in the schedule of
items contained within the Proposal/Bid are in accordance with the conditions,
terms and specifications of the proposal and that any exception taken thereto may

disqualify the bid.

D oy Vadarmen July 28, 2021
Signature L Date

Jerry Newfarmer President and CEO
Print Name Title
jnewfarmer@managementpartners.com 513-861-5400
Email Address Phone

Management Partners
Company Name




City of Huber Heights

DATE (MWMICO/YY YY)

N
iiO/RD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 21612021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED A8 A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
it SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lisu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER | jberty Mutual Insurance Rawe
PO Box 188065

Fairfield, OH 45018 fetoss 000027132 A nor  800-645-3660
’ ADDRESS: BusinessService@LibertyMutual.com
INSURER({S) AFFORDING COVERAGE . Naic#

| INSURER A: Chio Security Insurance Company . 24082

HEURED INSURER B;_American Fire and Casualty Gompany | 24068

!Imfa‘?:ba earglesrétnpstrjt ners Inc. INSURER € _Ohin Casualty Insurance Company 24074
Cincinnati OH 45206 INSURER D :
INSURER E :
INSURER F -

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 60176632 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN {SSUED TO THE INSURED MAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERICD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSGURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WSR| TYPE OF INSURANGE ADDL SUBR; POLICY NUMBER DO T e) L MABL oL LIMITS
A | / | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY BKS678268057 3/1/2021  3M/2022 | EACH CCCURRENCE 51,000,000
— | | DAMAGE T RENTED
i CLAIMS-MADE m OGOUR | PREMISES (Ea ocourrence)  $ 1,000,000
| MED EXP {Any one person) 315,000
| E—— - | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY  $1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
¥ fpoucy | ?% ) fLoc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG 2,000,000
| OTHER: ! _ J
B | AUTOMOBILELIABILITY BAAS57826057 312021 3172022 | GUBNEDSRGLE UM 5 pagpng
|/ PANYAUTO | BODILY INJURY (Per person)  §
0 |
D B BODLY WARY (s &
| HIRED HON-OWHED PROPERTY DAMAGE 5
|.. .| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY {Per accide
| $
C |/ |UMBRELLALIB  , oooiR USO57826057 3172021 i 3112022 | EACH GCCURRENCE $5 000.000
|  EXCESSLIAB | CLAIMS-MADE, ! AGGREGATE ~$5.000,000
H
| pep | /i rerenmionsQ | L
A | WORKERS COMPENSATION XWS57826057 3112021 | 3/1/2022 { B arH
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN | SisTavE | B
ANYPROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE t | E.L EACH ACCIDERT $1.000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA i | 1 SV
f:ﬂand:torzﬂ ibne NH& ¥ i EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § 1 000,000
¥ H 1
DESCRIFTIGN OF OPERATIONS below ! EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §1.000 000
A |[Employment Practices Liability BKS57826057 1 3/1/2021  13/1/2022 | Per Claim Limit $10,000
H Aggregate Limit $10,000
Per Claim Deductible $5,000
DESCRIPTION QF OPERATIONS fLOCATIDNS { VEHICLES (ACORD 104, Additional Remark may be if more space i required)
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED FOLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

For Informational Purposes Only

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE /% M A.@L
A\

i Carmen Hendewerk

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

K|z

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

ELLTERYR 87555057 | - Al AL TYE WL OT | Qopwen Handsw 2051 42855 TH {5 | Psae 1 af

Management
Partners

Page 19



EIDDLETOWN

INVITING APPLICATIONS FOR

CITY MANAGER

CITY OF MIDDLETOWN, OHIO




TRODUCTION

e City of Middletown, Ohio is seeking a progressive, innovative leader with a proven record of accomplishment

the local government level. Middletown is positioned well for continued economic growth along the I-75 corridor
iidway between the merging Cincinnati and Dayton, Ohio Standard Metropolitan Statistical Areas. Middletown is
periencing resurgence in business activity, downtown revitalization and historic preservation. The community seeks
dynamic, highly driven and passionate individual to assume its City Manager role and continue to build on the

)sitive momentum that has been established during the past several years.

HE COMMUNITY

liddletown is a diverse community with 48,694 residents that has a proud All-America City history of economic
iccess and tradition in Southwest Ohio. Like many industrialized Midwestern cities, it felt the loss of high paying

bs from blue collar skilled positions to corporate officials through the 1980s and early 2000s. Recent development
iccesses and a renewed focus on reestablishing a community sense of place are causing a stir among some people
the region that Middletown has turned the corner and is actively laying a strong foundation for a Renaissance

:riod that is long overdue.

/0 new hospitals, investment in industrial parks, and major reinvestment in the downtown core and a renewed and
rowing appreciation of the City’s stately historic homes all indicate consistent signs of new community energy. Site
=lectors and venture capitalists are increasingly targeting Middletown as an attractive location for development.
\ajor reinvestment in the City's schools, regional airport, and planning efforts for new commercial development are
1ining momentum.




THE ORGANIZATION

Middletown operates under a Council-Manager form of government that was first implemented by voter approval

in 1913. The City Manager is appointed by the five-member Council and is responsible for the appointment of all
municipal personnel other than the Clerk of Council. The Middletown Mayor is directly elected and the four Council
members are elected at large.

The City operates a full complement of services including public works, sanitary sewer, water distribution and
treatment, police, fire and EMS, a municipal/regional airport, Board of Health, and a complete array of development
services. The City of Middletown employs approximately 383 full-time personnel and has been carefully and
methodically rebuilding its staffing levels from the reductions of the recent Great Recession years. Middletown
comprises a geographic area of approximately 25 square miles and claims significant frontage along the banks of
the Great Miami River. The City's 2020 municipal budget totals $146,486,194 with a general fund appropriation of
$34,501,472. The main revenue source is its municipal income tax which is levied at a voter approved rate of 1.75%
with .25% of that amount earmarked for safety services. The City holds an A1 municipal bond rating.

Major employers within Middletown are AK Steel, Middletown City Schools, Premier Health Network, Kettering Health
Network, and Miami University-Middletown as well as numerous employers in industry and manufacturing.

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE
NEXT CITY MANAGER

The Middletown City Manager must be a dynamic,
highly self-motivated professional who exudes confident
leadership and a passion for local government. The

City of Middletown is gathering increased momentum

in addressing challenges that have confronted the
community for several years. The next City Manager
needs to be able to multi-task and build and nurture
coalitions and partnerships to successfully propel
Middletown forward. While Middletown is small enough
to maintain an appreciated familiarity and valued sense
of place among its residents, it is large enough to have
incurred the challenges of more urban cities with issues
of diversity, homelessness, opioid addiction, etc. This
position is not well suited for a manager that appreciates
the status quo. Rather, it is a tremendous management
opportunity for a hard charger who is prepared to seize
the existing momentum and progress that has been
established and build on that base for a brighter future.

i

i VWU




THE IDEAL CANDIDATE WILL ...

Possess a Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university in Public Administration, Business
Administration or a related field; a Master's degree is preferred

Have ten or more years of progressive, successful work experience in local government management, or an
equivalent combination of education and experience to provide the required knowledge, skills and abilities

Possess the ability to successfully manage complex and varied municipal operations

Serve as the voice and face of Middletown with outside groups and regional agencies

Have knowledge about economic, regulatory and business land use development tools and practices
Be innovative, collaborative and willing to take calculated risks to propel Middletown forward

Possess the ability to evaluate and assess current conditions, challenges and opportunities and have the skills,
courage and finesse to make the difficult decisions needed for Middletown to reach its potential and to effectively
leverage its assets and strengths for the betterment of the residents

Have the knowledge and experience to seek and secure financial grants and funding assistance that enhances
Middletown’s development goals and vision

Possess the energy and determination to hit the ground running in a community that respects its past but is
poised to welcome and implement new practices going forward.

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

'he compensation package includes a salary range of $145,000 to $185,000 and a competitive fringe benefit
offering. The Middletown City Council desires that the next City Manager be a resident of the community and is
nrepared to offer relocation/moving assistance commensurate with a contractual obligation to fulfill such residency
cxpectations.

HOW TO APPLY

Fotential candidates, who are interested in this outstanding career opportunity, please submit a cover letter and detailed resume

with salary expectations by March 27th, 2020 to Management Partners:
GREG HORN
SPECIAL ADVISOR
GHORN@MANAGEMENTPARTNERS.COM

Tel: 513-861-5400
Fax: 513-861-3480
Mr. Horn's direct line: 937-478-6385

ELECTRONIC CORRESPONDENCE ONLY PLEASE

Management
Partners _




City of Middletown

City Manager Interview Packet

April 2020

Management

Partners

SAMPLE

All personal
information has
been redacted.




City Manager Interview Packet
Applicants Management Partners

Applicants

The City of Middletown received a total of 25 applications for the City Manager position. The eight
recommended City Manager candidates are listed in Table 1 below. The submitted cover letters,
resumes, and supplemental information forms for the recommended candidates are presented in the
pages that follow.

Table 1. Recommended City Manager Candidates

Current Job Title or Last

Last Name First Name Position Held (LPH) Current Employer
Human Resource Director City of , OH
City Administrator City of , WI
County Manager (LPH) County, WA
Township Manager/Secretary
(LPH) Township, PA
City Manager and Chief
Financial Officer (LPH) Cityof ,MT
Deputy County Administrator County, FL
Village Administrator Village of , WI
Director of Public Works County, FL

Three alternate candidates for discussion and review are listed in Table 2 below. The cover letters,
resumes, and supplemental information forms for these candidates are included in this packet.

Table 2. Alternate Candidates

City Manager (LPH) City of , TX
Safety Service Director City of , OH
City Manager City of , MD




City Manager Interview Packet
Interview Schedule Management Partners

Interview Schedule

Interviews will occur on Monday April 13 and Wednesday April 15, 2020. The interview schedule
is shown in Table 3, below.

Table 3. Interview Schedule

Date/ Time Interviewee

April 13, 1:45 pm
April 13, 2:30 pm
April 13, 3:15 pm
April 13, 4:00 pm
April 15, 1:45 pm
April 15, 2:30 pm
April 15, 3:15 pm
April 15, 4:00 pm




City Manager Interview Packet
Unlawful Questions Management Partners

Unlawful Questions

UNLAWFUL QUESTIONS TO AVOID IN THE INTERVIEW PROCESS

1. Questions related to age.

2. Questions related to religion.

3. Questions related to race or ethnicity.

4. Questions related to marital status and family issues.

5. Questions related to health and/or disabilities.

6. Questions related to sexual orientation.




City Manager Interview Packet
Position Announcement Management Partners

City of Middletown
City Manager
Position Announcement

INTRODUCTION

The City of Middletown, Ohio is seeking a progressive, innovative leader with a proven record of
accomplishment at the local government level. Middletown is positioned well for continued economic
growth along the I-75 corridor midway between the merging Cincinnati and Dayton, Ohio Standard
Metropolitan Statistical Areas. Middletown is experiencing resurgence in business activity, downtown
revitalization and historic preservation. The community seeks a dynamic, highly driven and passionate
individual to assume its City Manager role and continue to build on the positive momentum that has
been established during the past several years.

THE COMMUNITY

Middletown is a diverse community with 48,694 residents that has a proud All-America City history of
economic success and tradition in Southwest Ohio. Like many industrialized Midwestern cities, it felt the
loss of high paying jobs from blue collar skilled positions to corporate officials through the 1980s and
early 2000s. Recent development successes and a renewed focus on reestablishing a community sense of
place are causing a stir among some people in the region that Middletown has turned the corner and is
actively laying a strong foundation for a Renaissance period that is long overdue.

Two new hospitals, investment in industrial parks, and major reinvestment in the downtown core and a
renewed and growing appreciation of the City’s stately historic homes all indicate consistent signs of new
community energy. Site selectors and venture capitalists are increasingly targeting Middletown as an
attractive location for development. Major reinvestment in the City’s schools, regional airport, and
planning efforts for new commercial development are gaining momentum.

THE ORGANIZATION

Middletown operates under a Council-Manager form of government that was first implemented by voter
approval in 1913. The City Manager is appointed by the five-member Council and is responsible for the
appointment of all municipal personnel other than the Clerk of Council. The Middletown Mayor is directly
elected and the four Council members are elected at large.

The City operates a full complement of services including public works, sanitary sewer, water distribution
and treatment, police, fire and EMS, a municipal/regional airport, Board of Health, and a complete array
of development services. The City of Middletown employs approximately 383 full-time personnel and has
been carefully and methodically rebuilding its staffing levels from the reductions of the recent Great
Recession years. Middletown comprises a geographic area of approximately 25 square miles and claims
significant frontage along the banks of the Great Miami River. The City’s 2020 municipal budget totals
$146,486,194 with a general fund appropriation of $34,501,472. The main revenue source is its municipal
income tax which is levied at a voter approved rate of 1.75% with .25% of that amount earmarked for
safety services. The City holds an A1 municipal bond rating.

Major employers within Middletown are AK Steel, Middletown City Schools, Premier Health Network,
Kettering Health Network, and Miami University-Middletown as well as numerous employers in industry
and manufacturing.




City Manager Interview Packet
Position Announcement Management Partners

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE NEXT CITY MANAGER

The Middletown City Manager must be a dynamic, highly self-motivated professional who exudes
confident leadership and a passion for local government. The City of Middletown is gathering increased
momentum in addressing challenges that have confronted the community for several years. The next City
Manager needs to be able to multi-task and build and nurture coalitions and partnerships to successfully
propel Middletown forward. While Middletown is small enough to maintain an appreciated familiarity
and valued sense of place among its residents, it is large enough to have incurred the challenges of more
urban cities with issues of diversity, homelessness, opioid addiction, etc. This position is not well suited
for a manager that appreciates the status quo. Rather, it is a tremendous management opportunity for a
hard charger who is prepared to seize the existing momentum and progress that has been established
and build on that base for a brighter future.

THE IDEAL CANDIDATE WILL....

e Possess a Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university in Public Administration,
Business Administration or a related field; a Master’s degree is preferred

e Have ten or more years of progressive, successful work experience in local government management,
or an equivalent combination of education and experience to provide the required knowledge, skills
and abilities

* Possess the ability to successfully manage complex and varied municipal operations

» Serve as the voice and face of Middletown with outside groups and regional agencies

» Have knowledge about economic, regulatory and business land use development tools and practices

* Beinnovative, collaborative and willing to take calculated risks to propel Middletown forward

» Possess the ability to evaluate and assess current conditions, challenges and opportunities and have
the skills, courage and finesse to make the difficult decisions needed for Middletown to reach its
potential and to effectively leverage its assets and strengths for the betterment of the residents

» Have the knowledge and experience to seek and secure financial grants and funding assistance that
enhances Middletown’s development goals and vision

» Possess the energy and determination to hit the ground running in a community that respects its past
but is poised to welcome and implement new practices going forward.

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

The compensation package includes a salary range of $145,000 to $185,000 and a competitive fringe
benefit offering. The Middletown City Council desires that the next City Manager be a resident of the
community and is prepared to offer relocation/moving assistance commensurate with a contractual
obligation to fulfill such residency expectations.

HOW TO APPLY
Potential candidates, who are interested in this outstanding career opportunity, please submit a cover
letter and detailed resume with salary expectations by March 27th, 2020 to Management Partners:

GREG HORN
SPECIAL ADVISOR

GHORN@MANAGEMENTPARTNERS.COM
Tel: 513-861-5400 | Fax: 513-861-3480 Mr. Horn's direct line:937-478-6385

ELECTRONIC CORRESPONDENCE ONLY PLEASE




City Manager Interview Packet
Suggested Questions Management Partners

General

1.

City of Middletown, Ohio
City Manager

Suggested Interview Questions

We have all had an opportunity to review your resume. Please briefly highlight your
professional and personal background and explain your specific interest and qualifications for
this position.

What are your short-term/long-term professional goals? How does this position assist you in
achieving those goals?

What areas of responsibility for the Middletown City Manager position do you feel present
the most significant challenges?

Success/Accomplishments

4.

Tell us about two or three of your greatest successes and accomplishments. How do you feel
these experiences will assist you in this position?

What do you expect to accomplish as Middletown’s City Manager by the end of the first 90
days? The first year?

Building Relationships

6.

What actions would you take initially to establish a sound relationship with the City Council
and the City Staff?

What would you do to establish effective working relationships with other public and private
groups in the region with whom you will be expected to interact?

How do you see council’s policy formulation role interacting with your day to day
operational role should you be appointed City Manager?

Management Techniques

9.

How would you describe your leadership style?

10.  What do you consider your greatest strength as a manager?

In the space to the left of each question, rank the candidate’s
answer from 1 to 5, with | being the lowest and 5 being the highest.




City Manager Interview Packet
Suggested Questions Management Partners

11.  What has been the most controversial or politically charged project you worked on directly?
How did you handle it? What was the outcome?

12.  Describe your experience in maintaining current levels of service while dealing with a tight
revenue environment.

13.  What input sources would you use in preparing an annual operating budget? Same question
for capital budget? Have you used multi-year budget models to predict revenue and
expenditure trends?

14.  What experience do you have dealing with labor unions?

15.  Please highlight some successful economic development projects in which you played a key
role. Have any such projects involved municipal airports, downtown revitalization, or
historic preservation?

16. What experience have you had with property maintenance codes, dealing with blighted
residential properties, etc.?

17.  What experience have you had dealing with homelessness?

Building on Relationships with Partners in the Region

18.  Provide examples of your experience in building unique relationships with partners (other
organizations, governments, etc.) whose actions had the potential to impact the quality of
life in the communities you served. Have you found some approaches to be more successful
than others?

Opportunities for Improvement
19.  How would you identify opportunities for improvement within the organization?

20. How would you go about implementing improvement opportunities once they are identified?

Future

21.  What factors will most influence your decision to accept this position if it is offered to you?

Questions of Us

22.  What questions do you have of us?

In the space to the left of each question, rank the candidate’s
answer from | to 5, with 1 being the lowest and 5 being the highest.

Total Score




City Manager Interview Packet
Candidates

Management Partners

Candidate #1

Human Resources Director

City of , OH

Each Candidate will have the following items:
* cover letter
* resume
* completed supplemental information form
* references




Management
Partners

Middletown, OH City Manager Recruitment

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Name

Job Title

Organization

Report to (Title)

Current or most recent annual salary

STAFF

Total number in current organization

Total number you currently supervise

Largest number of staff ever supervised

In what jurisdiction

ANNUAL BUDGET General Fund Capital All Funds

Total Organization (current or most
recent organization)

Portion for which you are responsible

Largest budget for which you have
ever been responsible

In what jurisdiction

1730 MADISON ROAD ® CINCINNATI, OH 45206 » 513 861 5400 » Fax 513 861 3480 MANAGEMENTPARTNERS.COM
2107 NORTH FIRST STREET, SUITE 470 » SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA 95131 » 408 437 5400 » FAx 408 453 6191
3152 ReD HiLL AVENUE, SUITE 210 » CosTA MEsA, CALIFORNIA 92626 ¢ 949 222 1082 « FAx 408 453 6191



1.

Page 2

Briefly describe your experience and/or most significant accomplishments in each of the
following areas, for any position which you have held, using additional space as
necessary.

(a) Fiscal Management - Your experience managing and maintaining service
levels while prioritizing personnel and capital needs of the organization.

(b) Labor Relations - Your experience working with and managing in communities
with organized labor groups.

(¢) Economic Development and Downtown Redevelopment - Your experience, credentials
and accomplishments. Specific examples of your background with Tax Increment
Financing Districts and Community Reinvestment Areas should be included.

(d) Management Style - Explain your approach to leadership and the practices you
employ.

2. Outline your experience with different types of public housing initiatives.

3. Explain your previous involvement with historic preservation efforts, both residentially
and commercially.

4. Please share your reasons for having an interest in this position.

5. Are there any barriers to you accepting the position if it were offered to you?



EIDDLETOWN

INVITING APPLICATIONS FOR

CITY MANAGER

CITY OF MIDDLETOWN, OHIO




TRODUCTION

e City of Middletown, Ohio is seeking a progressive, innovative leader with a proven record of accomplishment

the local government level. Middletown is positioned well for continued economic growth along the I-75 corridor
iidway between the merging Cincinnati and Dayton, Ohio Standard Metropolitan Statistical Areas. Middletown is
periencing resurgence in business activity, downtown revitalization and historic preservation. The community seeks
dynamic, highly driven and passionate individual to assume its City Manager role and continue to build on the

)sitive momentum that has been established during the past several years.

HE COMMUNITY

liddletown is a diverse community with 48,694 residents that has a proud All-America City history of economic
iccess and tradition in Southwest Ohio. Like many industrialized Midwestern cities, it felt the loss of high paying

bs from blue collar skilled positions to corporate officials through the 1980s and early 2000s. Recent development
iccesses and a renewed focus on reestablishing a community sense of place are causing a stir among some people
the region that Middletown has turned the corner and is actively laying a strong foundation for a Renaissance

:riod that is long overdue.

/0 new hospitals, investment in industrial parks, and major reinvestment in the downtown core and a renewed and
rowing appreciation of the City’s stately historic homes all indicate consistent signs of new community energy. Site
=lectors and venture capitalists are increasingly targeting Middletown as an attractive location for development.
\ajor reinvestment in the City's schools, regional airport, and planning efforts for new commercial development are
1ining momentum.




THE ORGANIZATION

Middletown operates under a Council-Manager form of government that was first implemented by voter approval

in 1913. The City Manager is appointed by the five-member Council and is responsible for the appointment of all
municipal personnel other than the Clerk of Council. The Middletown Mayor is directly elected and the four Council
members are elected at large.

The City operates a full complement of services including public works, sanitary sewer, water distribution and
treatment, police, fire and EMS, a municipal/regional airport, Board of Health, and a complete array of development
services. The City of Middletown employs approximately 383 full-time personnel and has been carefully and
methodically rebuilding its staffing levels from the reductions of the recent Great Recession years. Middletown
comprises a geographic area of approximately 25 square miles and claims significant frontage along the banks of
the Great Miami River. The City's 2020 municipal budget totals $146,486,194 with a general fund appropriation of
$34,501,472. The main revenue source is its municipal income tax which is levied at a voter approved rate of 1.75%
with .25% of that amount earmarked for safety services. The City holds an A1 municipal bond rating.

Major employers within Middletown are AK Steel, Middletown City Schools, Premier Health Network, Kettering Health
Network, and Miami University-Middletown as well as numerous employers in industry and manufacturing.

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE
NEXT CITY MANAGER

The Middletown City Manager must be a dynamic,
highly self-motivated professional who exudes confident
leadership and a passion for local government. The

City of Middletown is gathering increased momentum

in addressing challenges that have confronted the
community for several years. The next City Manager
needs to be able to multi-task and build and nurture
coalitions and partnerships to successfully propel
Middletown forward. While Middletown is small enough
to maintain an appreciated familiarity and valued sense
of place among its residents, it is large enough to have
incurred the challenges of more urban cities with issues
of diversity, homelessness, opioid addiction, etc. This
position is not well suited for a manager that appreciates
the status quo. Rather, it is a tremendous management
opportunity for a hard charger who is prepared to seize
the existing momentum and progress that has been
established and build on that base for a brighter future.

i

i VWU




THE IDEAL CANDIDATE WILL ...

Possess a Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university in Public Administration, Business
Administration or a related field; a Master's degree is preferred

Have ten or more years of progressive, successful work experience in local government management, or an
equivalent combination of education and experience to provide the required knowledge, skills and abilities

Possess the ability to successfully manage complex and varied municipal operations

Serve as the voice and face of Middletown with outside groups and regional agencies

Have knowledge about economic, regulatory and business land use development tools and practices
Be innovative, collaborative and willing to take calculated risks to propel Middletown forward

Possess the ability to evaluate and assess current conditions, challenges and opportunities and have the skills,
courage and finesse to make the difficult decisions needed for Middletown to reach its potential and to effectively
leverage its assets and strengths for the betterment of the residents

Have the knowledge and experience to seek and secure financial grants and funding assistance that enhances
Middletown’s development goals and vision

Possess the energy and determination to hit the ground running in a community that respects its past but is
poised to welcome and implement new practices going forward.

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

'he compensation package includes a salary range of $145,000 to $185,000 and a competitive fringe benefit
offering. The Middletown City Council desires that the next City Manager be a resident of the community and is
nrepared to offer relocation/moving assistance commensurate with a contractual obligation to fulfill such residency
cxpectations.

HOW TO APPLY

Fotential candidates, who are interested in this outstanding career opportunity, please submit a cover letter and detailed resume

with salary expectations by March 27th, 2020 to Management Partners:
GREG HORN
SPECIAL ADVISOR
GHORN@MANAGEMENTPARTNERS.COM

Tel: 513-861-5400
Fax: 513-861-3480
Mr. Horn's direct line: 937-478-6385

ELECTRONIC CORRESPONDENCE ONLY PLEASE

Management
Partners _




City of Middletown

City Manager Interview Packet

April 2020

Management

Partners

SAMPLE

All personal
information has
been redacted.




City Manager Interview Packet
Applicants Management Partners

Applicants

The City of Middletown received a total of 25 applications for the City Manager position. The eight
recommended City Manager candidates are listed in Table 1 below. The submitted cover letters,
resumes, and supplemental information forms for the recommended candidates are presented in the
pages that follow.

Table 1. Recommended City Manager Candidates

Current Job Title or Last

Last Name First Name Position Held (LPH) Current Employer
Human Resource Director City of , OH
City Administrator City of , WI
County Manager (LPH) County, WA
Township Manager/Secretary
(LPH) Township, PA
City Manager and Chief
Financial Officer (LPH) Cityof ,MT
Deputy County Administrator County, FL
Village Administrator Village of , WI
Director of Public Works County, FL

Three alternate candidates for discussion and review are listed in Table 2 below. The cover letters,
resumes, and supplemental information forms for these candidates are included in this packet.

Table 2. Alternate Candidates

City Manager (LPH) City of , TX
Safety Service Director City of , OH
City Manager City of , MD




City Manager Interview Packet
Interview Schedule Management Partners

Interview Schedule

Interviews will occur on Monday April 13 and Wednesday April 15, 2020. The interview schedule
is shown in Table 3, below.

Table 3. Interview Schedule

Date/ Time Interviewee

April 13, 1:45 pm
April 13, 2:30 pm
April 13, 3:15 pm
April 13, 4:00 pm
April 15, 1:45 pm
April 15, 2:30 pm
April 15, 3:15 pm
April 15, 4:00 pm




City Manager Interview Packet
Unlawful Questions Management Partners

Unlawful Questions

UNLAWFUL QUESTIONS TO AVOID IN THE INTERVIEW PROCESS

1. Questions related to age.

2. Questions related to religion.

3. Questions related to race or ethnicity.

4. Questions related to marital status and family issues.

5. Questions related to health and/or disabilities.

6. Questions related to sexual orientation.




City Manager Interview Packet
Position Announcement Management Partners

City of Middletown
City Manager
Position Announcement

INTRODUCTION

The City of Middletown, Ohio is seeking a progressive, innovative leader with a proven record of
accomplishment at the local government level. Middletown is positioned well for continued economic
growth along the I-75 corridor midway between the merging Cincinnati and Dayton, Ohio Standard
Metropolitan Statistical Areas. Middletown is experiencing resurgence in business activity, downtown
revitalization and historic preservation. The community seeks a dynamic, highly driven and passionate
individual to assume its City Manager role and continue to build on the positive momentum that has
been established during the past several years.

THE COMMUNITY

Middletown is a diverse community with 48,694 residents that has a proud All-America City history of
economic success and tradition in Southwest Ohio. Like many industrialized Midwestern cities, it felt the
loss of high paying jobs from blue collar skilled positions to corporate officials through the 1980s and
early 2000s. Recent development successes and a renewed focus on reestablishing a community sense of
place are causing a stir among some people in the region that Middletown has turned the corner and is
actively laying a strong foundation for a Renaissance period that is long overdue.

Two new hospitals, investment in industrial parks, and major reinvestment in the downtown core and a
renewed and growing appreciation of the City’s stately historic homes all indicate consistent signs of new
community energy. Site selectors and venture capitalists are increasingly targeting Middletown as an
attractive location for development. Major reinvestment in the City’s schools, regional airport, and
planning efforts for new commercial development are gaining momentum.

THE ORGANIZATION

Middletown operates under a Council-Manager form of government that was first implemented by voter
approval in 1913. The City Manager is appointed by the five-member Council and is responsible for the
appointment of all municipal personnel other than the Clerk of Council. The Middletown Mayor is directly
elected and the four Council members are elected at large.

The City operates a full complement of services including public works, sanitary sewer, water distribution
and treatment, police, fire and EMS, a municipal/regional airport, Board of Health, and a complete array
of development services. The City of Middletown employs approximately 383 full-time personnel and has
been carefully and methodically rebuilding its staffing levels from the reductions of the recent Great
Recession years. Middletown comprises a geographic area of approximately 25 square miles and claims
significant frontage along the banks of the Great Miami River. The City’s 2020 municipal budget totals
$146,486,194 with a general fund appropriation of $34,501,472. The main revenue source is its municipal
income tax which is levied at a voter approved rate of 1.75% with .25% of that amount earmarked for
safety services. The City holds an A1 municipal bond rating.

Major employers within Middletown are AK Steel, Middletown City Schools, Premier Health Network,
Kettering Health Network, and Miami University-Middletown as well as numerous employers in industry
and manufacturing.




City Manager Interview Packet
Position Announcement Management Partners

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE NEXT CITY MANAGER

The Middletown City Manager must be a dynamic, highly self-motivated professional who exudes
confident leadership and a passion for local government. The City of Middletown is gathering increased
momentum in addressing challenges that have confronted the community for several years. The next City
Manager needs to be able to multi-task and build and nurture coalitions and partnerships to successfully
propel Middletown forward. While Middletown is small enough to maintain an appreciated familiarity
and valued sense of place among its residents, it is large enough to have incurred the challenges of more
urban cities with issues of diversity, homelessness, opioid addiction, etc. This position is not well suited
for a manager that appreciates the status quo. Rather, it is a tremendous management opportunity for a
hard charger who is prepared to seize the existing momentum and progress that has been established
and build on that base for a brighter future.

THE IDEAL CANDIDATE WILL....

e Possess a Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university in Public Administration,
Business Administration or a related field; a Master’s degree is preferred

e Have ten or more years of progressive, successful work experience in local government management,
or an equivalent combination of education and experience to provide the required knowledge, skills
and abilities

* Possess the ability to successfully manage complex and varied municipal operations

» Serve as the voice and face of Middletown with outside groups and regional agencies

» Have knowledge about economic, regulatory and business land use development tools and practices

* Beinnovative, collaborative and willing to take calculated risks to propel Middletown forward

» Possess the ability to evaluate and assess current conditions, challenges and opportunities and have
the skills, courage and finesse to make the difficult decisions needed for Middletown to reach its
potential and to effectively leverage its assets and strengths for the betterment of the residents

» Have the knowledge and experience to seek and secure financial grants and funding assistance that
enhances Middletown’s development goals and vision

» Possess the energy and determination to hit the ground running in a community that respects its past
but is poised to welcome and implement new practices going forward.

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

The compensation package includes a salary range of $145,000 to $185,000 and a competitive fringe
benefit offering. The Middletown City Council desires that the next City Manager be a resident of the
community and is prepared to offer relocation/moving assistance commensurate with a contractual
obligation to fulfill such residency expectations.

HOW TO APPLY
Potential candidates, who are interested in this outstanding career opportunity, please submit a cover
letter and detailed resume with salary expectations by March 27th, 2020 to Management Partners:

GREG HORN
SPECIAL ADVISOR

GHORN@MANAGEMENTPARTNERS.COM
Tel: 513-861-5400 | Fax: 513-861-3480 Mr. Horn's direct line:937-478-6385

ELECTRONIC CORRESPONDENCE ONLY PLEASE




City Manager Interview Packet
Suggested Questions Management Partners

General

1.

City of Middletown, Ohio
City Manager

Suggested Interview Questions

We have all had an opportunity to review your resume. Please briefly highlight your
professional and personal background and explain your specific interest and qualifications for
this position.

What are your short-term/long-term professional goals? How does this position assist you in
achieving those goals?

What areas of responsibility for the Middletown City Manager position do you feel present
the most significant challenges?

Success/Accomplishments

4.

Tell us about two or three of your greatest successes and accomplishments. How do you feel
these experiences will assist you in this position?

What do you expect to accomplish as Middletown’s City Manager by the end of the first 90
days? The first year?

Building Relationships

6.

What actions would you take initially to establish a sound relationship with the City Council
and the City Staff?

What would you do to establish effective working relationships with other public and private
groups in the region with whom you will be expected to interact?

How do you see council’s policy formulation role interacting with your day to day
operational role should you be appointed City Manager?

Management Techniques

9.

How would you describe your leadership style?

10.  What do you consider your greatest strength as a manager?

In the space to the left of each question, rank the candidate’s
answer from 1 to 5, with | being the lowest and 5 being the highest.




City Manager Interview Packet
Suggested Questions Management Partners

11.  What has been the most controversial or politically charged project you worked on directly?
How did you handle it? What was the outcome?

12.  Describe your experience in maintaining current levels of service while dealing with a tight
revenue environment.

13.  What input sources would you use in preparing an annual operating budget? Same question
for capital budget? Have you used multi-year budget models to predict revenue and
expenditure trends?

14.  What experience do you have dealing with labor unions?

15.  Please highlight some successful economic development projects in which you played a key
role. Have any such projects involved municipal airports, downtown revitalization, or
historic preservation?

16. What experience have you had with property maintenance codes, dealing with blighted
residential properties, etc.?

17.  What experience have you had dealing with homelessness?

Building on Relationships with Partners in the Region

18.  Provide examples of your experience in building unique relationships with partners (other
organizations, governments, etc.) whose actions had the potential to impact the quality of
life in the communities you served. Have you found some approaches to be more successful
than others?

Opportunities for Improvement
19.  How would you identify opportunities for improvement within the organization?

20. How would you go about implementing improvement opportunities once they are identified?

Future

21.  What factors will most influence your decision to accept this position if it is offered to you?

Questions of Us

22.  What questions do you have of us?

In the space to the left of each question, rank the candidate’s
answer from | to 5, with 1 being the lowest and 5 being the highest.

Total Score




City Manager Interview Packet
Candidates

Management Partners

Candidate #1

Human Resources Director

City of , OH

Each Candidate will have the following items:
* cover letter
* resume
* completed supplemental information form
* references




Management
Partners

Middletown, OH City Manager Recruitment

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Name

Job Title

Organization

Report to (Title)

Current or most recent annual salary

STAFF

Total number in current organization

Total number you currently supervise

Largest number of staff ever supervised

In what jurisdiction

ANNUAL BUDGET General Fund Capital All Funds

Total Organization (current or most
recent organization)

Portion for which you are responsible

Largest budget for which you have
ever been responsible

In what jurisdiction

1730 MADISON ROAD ® CINCINNATI, OH 45206 » 513 861 5400 » Fax 513 861 3480 MANAGEMENTPARTNERS.COM
2107 NORTH FIRST STREET, SUITE 470 » SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA 95131 » 408 437 5400 » FAx 408 453 6191
3152 ReD HiLL AVENUE, SUITE 210 » CosTA MEsA, CALIFORNIA 92626 ¢ 949 222 1082 « FAx 408 453 6191



1.

Page 2

Briefly describe your experience and/or most significant accomplishments in each of the
following areas, for any position which you have held, using additional space as
necessary.

(a) Fiscal Management - Your experience managing and maintaining service
levels while prioritizing personnel and capital needs of the organization.

(b) Labor Relations - Your experience working with and managing in communities
with organized labor groups.

(¢) Economic Development and Downtown Redevelopment - Your experience, credentials
and accomplishments. Specific examples of your background with Tax Increment
Financing Districts and Community Reinvestment Areas should be included.

(d) Management Style - Explain your approach to leadership and the practices you
employ.

2. Outline your experience with different types of public housing initiatives.

3. Explain your previous involvement with historic preservation efforts, both residentially
and commercially.

4. Please share your reasons for having an interest in this position.

5. Are there any barriers to you accepting the position if it were offered to you?



















































































































































Al-7824 Topics of Discussion V-
Council Work Session

Meeting Date: 09/07/2021

U.S. Census - Ward Redistricting

Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers

Department: City Council

Council Committee Review?: Council Work  Date(s) of Committee Review: 09/07/2021
Session

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
U.S. Census - Ward Redistricting

Purpose and Background

Every ten years upon receipt of the U.S. Census decennial census results, the City undertakes a process

to evaluate potential changes to ward boundaries. The City has received the data from the 2020 U.S. Census.
Under Ohio Revised Code Section 731.06, the City will need to look at potentially changing some ward
boundaries. As set forth in the statute (see below), the process is to take place after October 1, 2021, but prior to
January 1, 2022.

Section 731.06 | Division of city into wards.
Ohio Revised Code/Title 7 Municipal Corporations/Chapter 731 Organization

(A) The legislative authority of a city shall subdivide the city into wards, equal in number to the members
of the legislative authority to be elected from wards, within ninety days after:

(1) The first day of October of the year following the decennial census year;

(2) The approval of the adoption, change, or abandonment of an alternative plan for the composition of the
legislative authority of the city under division (B) or (C) of section 731.01 of the Revised Code, if the
number of wards is changed,;

(3) The annexation of territory containing, according to the last federal census or a census authorized by
the legislative authority, such population as will entitle the city to an additional member of the legislative
authority under division (A) of section 731.01 of the Revised Code.

(B) If the legislative authority fails to make such subdivision within the time required, it shall be made by
the director of public service.

(C) In order to provide substantially equal population in each of the wards, the legislative authority may
redivide the city into wards at any time.

(D) All wards shall be bounded, as far as practicable, by county lines, streets, alleys, lot lines, avenues,
public grounds, canals, watercourses, municipal corporation lines, center lines of platted streets, or
railroads, and shall be composed of adjacent and compact territory, and substantially equal in population.

(E) The legislative authority may authorize and provide for conducting a census of the population of the
city at any time in order to carry out the powers granted by this section.

(F) Action of the legislative authority to divide the city into wards shall be taken by ordinance and shall be
effective for the first municipal primary election occurring at least one hundred fifty days after the
passage of the ordinance.



Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A

Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.




	Agenda
	AI_7804_Water Bonds Refinancing Presentation
	AI_7801_Issuance of Notes - Property Acquisition - City Administrative Offices - $1,740,000
	       ATT_Engagement Letter
	       ATT_Fiscal Officer Certificate
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_7802_Issuance of Notes - Property Acquisition - Governmental Facilities - $1,803,000
	       ATT_Engagement Letter
	       ATT_Fiscal Officer Certificate
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_7803_Issuance of Notes - Property Acquisition - Economic Development - $4,262,000
	       ATT_Engagement Letter
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_7823_County Assessments Authorization
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_7815_Energy Aggregation Discussion
	AI_7775_Chambersburg Road Widening  Project - Phase IV - Contract Modification
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_7808_2021 Sidewalk Program and Concrete Portion of the 2021 Street Program - Contract Modification 
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_7809_Marian Meadows Demolition - Phase II - Award Contract 
	       ATT_Bid Results
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_7813_Maintenance Cap Increase - Suez Water
	       ATT_Maintenance Cap Summary
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_7822_Jonetta Street Lift Station Discussion
	AI_7816_Redwood Development Agreement Amendment
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_7817_Carriage Trails Annexation Service Agreement
	       ATT_Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_7814_Monita Field Parking/Amenities
	       ATT_Proposal
	       ATT_Proposal - Updated
	       ATT_Resolution - Revised
	AI_7819_Baseball Field Maintenance Contract
	       ATT_Quotes
	Baseball Field Quote 1
	Baseball Field Quote 2

	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_7807_TJL-CES, LLC Purchase Agreement - Sale of Property
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_7812_Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) #6 - First Amendment
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A.1
	       ATT_Exhibit A.2
	AI_7810_Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) #7 - Modification
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A.1
	       ATT_Exhibit A.2
	       ATT_Exhibit A.3
	AI_7818_OneOhio Subdivision Settlement Participation Form – National Opioid Settlement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_7796_Liquor Permit #58111440425 - Meijer Gas - 7266 Executive Boulevard
	       ATT_Liquor Permit
	AI_7776_Liquor Permit #3097970 - Marathon - 7851 Old Troy Pike
	       ATT_Liquor Permit
	AI_7820_City Manager Search Firm Proposals
	       ATT_Proposal - Baker Tilly US, LLC
	       ATT_Proposal - Gov HR USA
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28

	       ATT_Proposal - Koff and Associates
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21

	       ATT_Proposal - Management Partners
	CM Search Proposal - Management Partners
	Management Partners Attachment.PDF
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15


	Management Partners Attachment
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15


	       ATT_Proposal - Slavin Management Consultants
	AI_7824_U.S. Census - Ward Redistricting

